
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, May 20, 2024 at 7:00pm | Borough Council Chambers 

1. Convene Meeting
2. Review and Approve Agenda

3. Review and Approval of Meeting Minutes

A. April 15, 2024, Meeting Minutes

4. Public Comment Restricted to Items on the Planning Commission Meeting Agenda

5. Tabled Old Business
A. SLD-230001 0 Hanover Street
B. SLD-230003 Library Subdivision at Lutheran Seminary
C. SLD-230004 340 Baltimore Street Gettysburg Welcome Center

6. New Business
A. SLD-240001 – Gettys Golf LLC – 533 Steinwehr Avenue

Review of Subdivision and Land Development application for previously accepted
Outdoor Commercial Recreation based land development (miniature golf course)
with modifications to occur at 533 Steinwehr Avenue.

B. SLD-240002 – Spectra Kote – 301 East Water Street
Review of application for acceptance for land development related to an expansion
of an industrial land use/building to occur at 301 East Water Street.

C. ZHB-240001 – Gettysburg Welcome Center – 340 Baltimore Street
Request for (a) a special exception pursuant to Section 27-803(E) to permit the
property to be developed as the Gettysburg Welcome Center; (b) a variance from
Section 27-804.2. to permit nonresidential use on a lot with an area of less than
5,000 square feet; and (c) review and approval of the plans for the Gettysburg
Welcome Center pursuant to Section 27-1403.1.

D. 2023-2024 Rezoning Effort
Discussion regarding the initial revised draft of Chapter 27 Zoning, of the
Ordinances of the Borough of Gettysburg / Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance and
public comment and review sequence for adoption.

7. Announcements
A. Next Planning Commission meeting is scheduled for Monday, June 17, 2024, at

7:00 p.m.

8. Additional Comments from Planning Commission Members

9. Public Comment

10. Adjourn 1



 

 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, April 15, 2024 at 7:00pm | Borough Council Chambers 

Members Present:   Charles Strauss, Chair; Nicholas Redman, Vice-Chair; Sarah Kipp, Secretary 
Martin Jolin; John Rice; Jenny Dumont, Alternate. 

Staff Members:   John Whitmore, Planning Director; Chad Clabaugh, Borough Engineer; Adam Boyer, 
Planning Commission Solicitor. 

Members of the Public: Nathan Mares, Gettys Golf; Dominic Picarelli, KPI Technologies.   

Convene Meeting:   Planning Commission Chair Charles Strauss called to order the Monday, April 15, 
2024 meeting of the Gettysburg Borough Planning Commission at 7:00 p.m. 

Review and Approve Agenda: Martin Jolin made a motion to approve the agenda with new business 
to be considered prior to old business.  John Rice provided a second, and the motion carried 5-0. 

Review and Approve Minutes: Strauss opened discussion of the minutes with reference to 
grammatic errors, also identified by Sara Kipp. Rice made a motion to approve the minutes as 
amended for the April 18, 2024 meeting.  Jolin provided a second, and the motion carried 5-0.   

Public Comment Restricted to Items on the Planning Commission Meeting Agenda: None. 
 
New Business 

SLD-240001 / Gettys Golf LLC / 533 Steinwehr Avenue: John Whitmore noted the process for 
review of the site and land development plans, with Adams County Office of Planning and 
Development Office, the Borough Engineer, and the Planning Director providing comment at the 
next meeting after acceptance of the application (May 20, 2024). Whitmore indicated that the 
applicant was in attendance for any additional questions related to the presented materials.  

Dominic Picarelli with KPI Technologies, the lead designer and engineer for the project noted that 
the Commission had seen the general plans for the development given prior Special Exception 
reviews and the distributed information. Picarelli directed the Commission to a discussion 
involving a waiver requested for this project relating to the total number of planting units required 
for the landscaping component of the project. In particular, the applicant team felt that required 
planters associated with Steinwehr Avenue did not warrant new physical improvements given 
recent streetscape improvements to the Steinwehr Avenue corridor. Nick Redman asked about 
existing sidewalks and Chad Clabaugh asked about the existing Steinwehr Avenue driveway 
apron. Both sidewalks and the apron will remain and not be removed with the project, per 
Picarelli.  

John Rice made a motion to accept the land development application, with Nick Redman 
providing a second. The motion carried 5-0. 

  

 
 

 
 

2



 

 

Old Business 
 
SLD-230001 - 0 Hanover Street: John Whitmore indicated that no updates have been received 
for the 0 Hanover Street Plan to date. Chad Clabaugh provided timeline of the application, with 
discussion of the continued delay of the application. Whitmore indicated that this application 
would was extended until June 30, 2024 and would be reappearing on the June Planning 
Commission meeting agenda. 

SLD-230003 – Library Subdivision at Lutheran Seminary: Whitmore indicated that this 
application would was extended until July 1, 2024 and that the development team was waiting for 
related library land use text amendments to be approved prior to completing the land 
development planning process. 

SLD-230004 – 340 Baltimore Street Welcome Center: Whitmore provided an overview of the 
proposed approval process requiring Zoning Hearing Board action to occur in May. Clabaugh 
provided an update of the Welcome Center project, including recently revised plans, and a 
landscaping waiver involved with the project which will be discussed in more detail at the May 
20, 2024 Planning Commission meeting. Martin Jolin discussed site soil conditions and the built 
environment that could play into a determination on the waiver requested.  John Rice made a 
motion to table the review until the new Planning Commission Meeting.  Martin Jolin provided a 
second and the motion carried 5-0. 

Announcements:  

Next Planning Commission meeting is scheduled for Monday, May 20, 2024, at 7:00 PM in Borough 
Council Chambers.  

Public Comment: None. 

Adjournment: Motion by Redman to adjourn seconded by Kipp, the motion passed unanimously and 
the meeting ended at 7:27 p.m. 

3



SLD-230004 

 

GETTYSBURG  

WELCOME  

CENTER 

 

340 BALTIMORE STREET 

 

LAND DEVELOPMENT PLAN  

4



 

  

 

 
 

 

 
 

To: Gettysburg Borough Planning Commission 

 

From:  Carly Marshall, Borough Planning Director 

 Zoning Officer 

 

CC:  CS Davidson, Inc. 

 Chad Clabaugh, Borough Engineer 

 Adam Boyer, Planning Commission Solicitor 

  

Date: November 27, 2023 

 

RE: SLD-230004 Gettysburg Borough 

 340 Baltimore St 

 Major Land Development Plan 

 

The following is a review of the above-referenced combined preliminary and final land development and subdivision 

plan application for compliance under the Chapter 22 of the Borough Code of Ordinances; Subdivision and Land 

Development “SALDO”, and Chapter 27 of the Borough Code of Ordinances; Zoning. 

 

A. BACKGROUND 

1. Description:  The submitted plan proposes to demolish an existing former residential building for the 

construction of a 1700 square foot mixed-use welcome center and professional offices. 

 Submission Date:  A land development plan was submitted to the Planning Department on October 24, 

2023.   

2. MPC Deadline: The application is scheduled to be accepted on November 20, 2023 at the regularly 

scheduled Planning Commission meeting.  Planning Commission deadline will be Tuesday, February 20, 

2024. 

 

B. REVIEW AGENCIES 

1. Adams County Office of Planning and Development Review:  The application was submitted to the 

Adams County Office of Planning and Development on October 27, 2023.  A review memo dated 

November 16, 2023 has been distributed to the Planning Commission. 

2. Borough Engineer’s Review: A review memo has not been received as of the date of this memo. 

 

C. SALDO COMPLIANCE  

I have reviewed the submitted the submitted plan against the standards of the SALDO and offer the following 

comments. 

 

 

 

5



SLD-220004 340 BALTIMORE ST LAND DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
NOVEMBER 27, 2023 

 

2 of 2 
 

1. §22-603.3 Final Plan Requirements.  This section details the information required to be included on a Final 

Land Development Plan.  The plan should be updated to include any of the following missing information. 

C.3. Names and addresses of abutting property owners 

C.4 Surveyor statement provided in Appendix B of the SALDO. 

G.4 Dimensions of each lot in feet. 

F.1 Applicable zoning districts.  This plan is located in the (RO) Residential Office, (H) Historic, and 

(SEO) Streetscape Enhancement Overlay Districts.  The Historic District and Streetscape Enhancement 

Overlay Districts should be added to the Site Development Standards table on page 1 of the plan. 

 

2. §22-1102.3.E  Contents of Landscape Plans. This section requires a table clearly displaying the relevant 

information necessary for the evaluation of compliance with provisions of this Chapter.  One of the 

requirements relating to whether a plant or tree meets the requirement for shrub, major deciduous, or minor 

deciduous is plant height at maturity.  This information should be included on the table to facilitate the review 

for compliance with this Chapter.  A table indicating the required and proposed landscaping per sections §22-

1103 should also be included. 

3. §22-1102.6.C Landscaping Requirements for Nonresidential Development. This section requires a ten-foot 

wide planting area be provided along all property lines which abut residential districts or uses.  A waiver 

request should be noted on Page 1 of the plan if the applicant wishes to seek modification from this standard. 

   

D. ZONING ORDINANCE COMPLIANCE 

I have reviewed the submitted plan against the standards of the zoning ordinance and offer the following 

comments. 

 

1. §27-802 Uses Permitted by-Right.  This section provides for uses permitted in the RO District, which 

include Office and Tourist Attractions.  The submitted plan is consistent with this section. 

 

2. §27-804.2 Minimum area, nonresidential uses: 5,000 square feet, unless larger area is required in another 

section.  The Site Development Standards table on page 1 of the plan should be updated to reflect the 

nonresidential lot requirements and note the area of the lot in square feet.   

3. §27-804.5 Side yards: five feet.  The Site Development Standards table on page 1 of the plan should be 

updated to reflect the side setback requirements of the RO District of five feet, rather than ‘five feet, one 

side.’ 

4. §27-804.6 Rear yards: five feet minimum depth.  The Site Development Standards table on page 1 of the 

plan should be updated to reflect the correct rear setback of five feet. 

5. §27-805.1 Minimum Building Height.  This section requires a minimum building height of 24 feet in 

height.  This standard should be included on the Site Development Standards table on page 1 of the plan, 

along with the proposed height of the building. 

 

6



 

ADAMS COUNTY OFFICE OF 
PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 

 

670 Old Harrisburg Road, Suite 100 | Gettysburg, PA 17325 
Ph: 717-337-9824 | Fx: 717-334-0786 

Sherri Clayton-Williams, AICP, Director 
 
 
 
DATE: November 16, 2023 
 
TO:  Gettysburg Borough Planning Commission 
  Borough of Gettysburg 
  C.S. Davidson Inc.  
 
FROM: Jenna Smith 
  Comprehensive Planner 
 
SUBJECT: Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan 
  Gettysburg Welcome Center  
  Parcel:    16010-0383---000 
  SLD #23-097 
 

In accordance with Section 502 of Act 247 of 1968, as amended, “the Pennsylvania 
Municipalities Planning Code”, and following an analysis of the Adams County Comprehensive Plan, 
municipal land use ordinances and plans, the Adams County Soil Survey, National Wetlands Inventory 
Maps, Federal Emergency Management Agency Flood Maps, applicable Historic Inventories and other 
pertinent reports and data, the Adams County Office of Planning and Development (ACOPD) offers the 
following review. 
 

This review refers to the Gettysburg Welcome Center plan with plan date of August 4, 2023 as 
submitted to this Office for review on November 6, 2023. If any significant changes to the plan are 
made, either initiated by the applicant or required by Gettysburg Borough, the revised plan including 
such changes must be submitted to this Office for review. Significant changes subject to further review 
include, but are not limited to, changes in lot lines, building placement, parking lot and loading area 
design, and landscaping design.  Failure to submit significant changes to this Office for review prior to 
plan approval will result in this Office being unable to sign the plan for recording. 
 

 
 
I. Introduction:  This plan proposes the demolition of the existing building on the property in 
order to construct a new welcome center building with associated parking.  
 
II. Site Design: The Office of Planning and Development has reviewed the site design and related 
elements of the submitted plan and has no objections. 
 
III. Zoning Ordinance Review:  The subject property is in the Residential Office (RO) District, the 
Streetscape Enhancement Overlay District, and the Historic Overlay District. We have reviewed the 

7



submitted plan against applicable requirements of the Gettysburg Borough Zoning Ordinance and offer 
the following comments. 
 
A. Advisory Review: Zoning compliance comments provided by the Adams County Office of 
Planning and Development are advisory only. The Gettysburg Borough Zoning Officer must be relied 
upon to confirm the interpretation and application of any standard in the Gettysburg Borough Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 
B. Zoning District Designations: It should be noted on the plan that the subject property is also 
located within the Streetscape Enhancement Overlay District and the Historic Overlay District, and that 
the standards of those districts also apply to this plan. It does appear, however, that the plan does meet 
the requirements of these overlay districts.  
 
IV.  Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance Review:  We have reviewed the submitted 
plan against applicable requirements of the Gettysburg Borough Subdivision and Land Development 
Ordinance and offer the following comments. 
 
A. Section 22-503.3.B.10/22-603.3.B.10: It is indicated on the submitted Request for Review form 
that the applicant is seeking Preliminary/Final approval of the plan. This should be indicated on the plan. 
 
B. Section 22-503.3.C.3/22-603.3.C.3 : Names and addresses of abutting property owners have not 
been indicated. 
 
C. Section 22-503.3.G.4/22-603.3.G.4 : It does not appear the dimensions of the lot have been 
provided. 
 
D. Section 22-503.3.G.5/22-603.3.G.5 : It does not appear the rights-of-way or cartway widths have 
been provided on the plan for Baltimore Street or Schoolhouse Alley. 
 
V. Summary: The Office of Planning and Development is supportive of the proposed project that 
will support tourism within the Borough. There are, however, a few minor ordinance compliance issues 
that the applicant may desire to address prior to plan approval.   
 
cc. Carly Marshall, Director of Planning, Zoning, and Code Enforcement 
 
 
 

8



SHEET NO.

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

SCALE

N
O

.

DWG. NO.

FILE NO.

DATE

D
A

TE
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

,
50

 W
ES

T 
M

ID
D

LE
 S

TR
EE

T,
 G

ET
TY

SB
U

R
G

, P
A 

   
  P

H
O

N
E 

(7
17

) 3
37

-3
02

1
38

 N
O

R
TH

 D
U

KE
 S

TR
EE

T,
 Y

O
R

K,
 P

A 
   

  P
H

O
N

E 
(7

17
) 8

46
-4

80
5

W
W

W
.C

SD
AV

ID
SO

N
.C

O
M

31
5 

W
. J

AM
ES

 S
TR

EE
T,

 S
U

IT
E 

10
2,

 L
AN

C
AS

TE
R

,  
PA

   
   

PH
O

N
E 

(7
17

) 4
81

-2
99

1

G
ET

TY
SB

U
R

G
 B

O
R

O
U

G
H

LA
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
A

N
FO

R
34

0 
B

A
LT

IM
O

R
E 

ST
R

EE
T

C
O

VE
R

 S
H

EE
T

G
ET

TY
SB

U
R

G
 B

O
R

O
U

G
H

A
D

A
M

S 
C

O
U

N
TY

PE
N

N
SY

LV
A

N
IA

EMN

AS SHOWN

4/12/2024

238384900_A

2383.8.49.00

1 OF 5

SITE

OCTOBER 2023

9



SHEET NO.

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

SCALE

N
O

.

DWG. NO.

FILE NO.

DATE

D
A

TE
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

,
50

 W
ES

T 
M

ID
D

LE
 S

TR
EE

T,
 G

ET
TY

SB
U

R
G

, P
A 

   
  P

H
O

N
E 

(7
17

) 3
37

-3
02

1
38

 N
O

R
TH

 D
U

KE
 S

TR
EE

T,
 Y

O
R

K,
 P

A 
   

  P
H

O
N

E 
(7

17
) 8

46
-4

80
5

W
W

W
.C

SD
AV

ID
SO

N
.C

O
M

31
5 

W
. J

AM
ES

 S
TR

EE
T,

 S
U

IT
E 

10
2,

 L
AN

C
AS

TE
R

,  
PA

   
   

PH
O

N
E 

(7
17

) 4
81

-2
99

1

G
ET

TY
SB

U
R

G
 B

O
R

O
U

G
H

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S/
D

EM
O

 P
LA

N

G
ET

TY
SB

U
R

G
 W

EL
C

O
M

E 
C

EN
TE

R

G
ET

TY
SB

U
R

G
 B

O
R

O
U

G
H

A
D

A
M

S 
C

O
U

N
TY

PE
N

N
SY

LV
A

N
IA

EMN

AS SHOWN

4/12/2024

238384900_A

2383.8.49.00

2 OF 5

GRAPHIC  SCALE

( IN FEET )
1 INCH =        FT.10

(WHEN PRINTED 22" X 34")

10



GRAPHIC  SCALE

( IN FEET )
1 INCH =        FT.10

SHEET NO.

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

SCALE

N
O

.

DWG. NO.

FILE NO.

DATE

D
A

TE
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

,
50

 W
ES

T 
M

ID
D

LE
 S

TR
EE

T,
 G

ET
TY

SB
U

R
G

, P
A 

   
  P

H
O

N
E 

(7
17

) 3
37

-3
02

1
38

 N
O

R
TH

 D
U

KE
 S

TR
EE

T,
 Y

O
R

K,
 P

A 
   

  P
H

O
N

E 
(7

17
) 8

46
-4

80
5

W
W

W
.C

SD
AV

ID
SO

N
.C

O
M

31
5 

W
. J

AM
ES

 S
TR

EE
T,

 S
U

IT
E 

10
2,

 L
AN

C
AS

TE
R

,  
PA

   
   

PH
O

N
E 

(7
17

) 4
81

-2
99

1

G
ET

TY
SB

U
R

G
 B

O
R

O
U

G
H

SI
TE

, G
R

A
D

IN
G

 &
 U

TI
LI

TY
 P

LA
N

G
ET

TY
SB

U
R

G
 W

EL
C

O
M

E 
C

EN
TE

R

G
ET

TY
SB

U
R

G
 B

O
R

O
U

G
H

A
D

A
M

S 
C

O
U

N
TY

PE
N

N
SY

LV
A

N
IA

EMN

AS SHOWN

4/12/2024

238384900_A

2383.8.49.00

3 OF 5

(WHEN PRINTED 22" X 34")

11



SHEET NO.

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

SCALE

N
O

.

DWG. NO.

FILE NO.

DATE

D
A

TE
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

,
50

 W
ES

T 
M

ID
D

LE
 S

TR
EE

T,
 G

ET
TY

SB
U

R
G

, P
A 

   
  P

H
O

N
E 

(7
17

) 3
37

-3
02

1
38

 N
O

R
TH

 D
U

KE
 S

TR
EE

T,
 Y

O
R

K,
 P

A 
   

  P
H

O
N

E 
(7

17
) 8

46
-4

80
5

W
W

W
.C

SD
AV

ID
SO

N
.C

O
M

31
5 

W
. J

AM
ES

 S
TR

EE
T,

 S
U

IT
E 

10
2,

 L
AN

C
AS

TE
R

,  
PA

   
   

PH
O

N
E 

(7
17

) 4
81

-2
99

1

G
ET

TY
SB

U
R

G
 B

O
R

O
U

G
H

LA
N

D
SC

A
PI

N
G

 P
LA

N

G
ET

TY
SB

U
R

G
 W

EL
C

O
M

E 
C

EN
TE

R

G
ET

TY
SB

U
R

G
 B

O
R

O
U

G
H

A
D

A
M

S 
C

O
U

N
TY

PE
N

N
SY

LV
A

N
IA

EMN

AS SHOWN

4/12/2024

238384900_A

2383.8.49.00

4 OF 5

GRAPHIC  SCALE

( IN FEET )
1 INCH =        FT.10

(WHEN PRINTED 22" X 34")

12



SHEET NO.

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

SCALE

N
O

.

DWG. NO.

FILE NO.

DATE

D
A

TE
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

,
50

 W
ES

T 
M

ID
D

LE
 S

TR
EE

T,
 G

ET
TY

SB
U

R
G

, P
A 

   
  P

H
O

N
E 

(7
17

) 3
37

-3
02

1
38

 N
O

R
TH

 D
U

KE
 S

TR
EE

T,
 Y

O
R

K,
 P

A 
   

  P
H

O
N

E 
(7

17
) 8

46
-4

80
5

W
W

W
.C

SD
AV

ID
SO

N
.C

O
M

31
5 

W
. J

AM
ES

 S
TR

EE
T,

 S
U

IT
E 

10
2,

 L
AN

C
AS

TE
R

,  
PA

   
   

PH
O

N
E 

(7
17

) 4
81

-2
99

1

G
ET

TY
SB

U
R

G
 B

O
R

O
U

G
H

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
ET

A
IL

S

G
ET

TY
SB

U
R

G
 W

EL
C

O
M

E 
C

EN
TE

R

G
ET

TY
SB

U
R

G
 B

O
R

O
U

G
H

A
D

A
M

S 
C

O
U

N
TY

PE
N

N
SY

LV
A

N
IA

EMN

4/12/2024

238384900_A

2383.8.49.00

5 OF 5
13



SLD-240001 

 

GETTYS 

GOLF 

LLC 

 

533 STEINWEHR AVENUE 

 

LAND DEVELOPMENT PLAN  

14



 

  

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
To: Gettysburg Borough Planning Commission 
 
From:  John Whitmore, AICP, Gettysburg Planning, Zoning, and Code Enforcement Director 
 
CC:  Dominic Picarelli, KPI Technology  
 Chad Clabaugh, Borough Engineer 
 Adam Boyer, Planning Commission Solicitor 
 
Date: May 16, 2024 
 
RE: SLD-240001 / Gettys Golf LLC / 533 Steinwehr Avenue 
 Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan 
 
 
The following is a review of the above-referenced combined preliminary and final land development and 
subdivision plan application for compliance under the Chapter 22 of the Borough Code of Ordinances; 
Subdivision and Land Development “SALDO”, and Chapter 27 of the Borough Code of Ordinances; Zoning. 

 

A. BACKGROUND 

1. Description:  The applicant requests combined preliminary and final subdivision and land 
development plan approval for the construction a miniature golf course / commercial outdoor 
recreation land use activity to occur at 533 Steinwehr Avenue 

2. Submission Date: A complete application was submitted to the Planning Department on April 1, 
2024.   

3. MPC Deadline: The application was accepted by the Planning Commission on April 15, 2024.  
Planning Commission deadline is July 14, 2021. 

4. Zoning Hearing Board:  The applicant received Zoning Hearing approval for Outdoor Commercial 
Recreation or Event Venue use On February 13, 2024.  The Memorandum of Decision was provided 
to you. 

 

B. REVIEW AGENCIES 

1. Adams County Office of Planning and Development Review: The application was submitted to 
the Adams County Office of Planning and Development on April 16, 2024.  A review letter dated May 
9, 2024 was received by the Planning Commission on May 9, 2024. 

2. Borough Engineer’s Review: A review memo dated May 14, 2024 has been distributed to Planning 
Commission members. 

3. Other Review Agencies: Copies of the plan were distributed to the Gettysburg Municipal Authority 
and the Gettysburg Fire Department.  As of the date of this memorandum, the Borough Planning 
Department has not received comments from either organization. 

15



  SLD-240001 / Gettys Golf LLC / 533 Steinwehr Avenue Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan 
May 16, 2024 

2 of 6 
 

 

C. SALDO COMPLIANCE  

I have reviewed the proposed plan against the standards of the SALDO and provide comments relating to 
compliance below in bold.  This plan was accepted by the Planning Commission for review on April 15, 
2024, on the recommendation from staff that it was a complete submission.  The second review for 
completeness relied heavily on the Preliminary and Final Plan checklist submitted by the plan preparer, 
in which the necessary plan items were noted as being submitted, not applicable, or pending.  Several 
items on the Engineer’s report and in my comments below from §22- 603 relate to items marked 
‘submitted’ by the plan preparer, but that we were unable to locate on the submitted plan.   

1. §22-107.1 Modifications and Exemptions.  An applicant seeking a modification or exception to this 
Chapter shall submit to Borough staff a request in writing that states (i) the specific Chapter 
section(s) involved and (ii) the reason for the request.  Staff will provide said request to Planning 
Commission in advance of the next scheduled meeting at which the plan will be discussed.  
Subsection 2 of this section details the requirements that must be met by the applicant for Planning 
Commission to approve the request.    I recommend the Planning Commission require that relief 
from any of the items noted on the consistency review below, as well as the Adams County 
Office of Planning and Development review and the Borough Engineer’s review, be requested in 
a manner consistent with this section.   

2. §22-603.3.J.9 Final Plan Requirements. Square feet of paved area, including areas covered by gravel 
are to be provided on the plan.  I was unable to locate the total square footage of paved area on 
the plan, only the impervious surface coverage. Given the land use it would be preferable to 
have the calculations for paving. 

3. §22-1011.2 Dumpsters. All dumpsters shall be screened on three or four sides by walls or evergreen 
landscaping from view of existing dwellings, adjacent undeveloped residentially zoned lots and 
public streets.   Detail for dumpster screening consistent with this section should be included 
on the plan.  

4. §22-1014.1 Sidewalks. Sidewalks shall be required for safe pedestrian movement The applicant has 
proffered a development strategy whereby the development of sidewalks along Johns Avenue would 
occur once other development of adjacent connected/network sidewalks is planned. The proffer 
should be noted on the plan documents. 

5. §22-1103.3.A A minimum of one planting unit provided for each 20-linar feet of centerline along 
adjacent streets. The applicant requests modification as Steinwehr Avenue has already been 
planned and developed with an existing landscaping regime for the streetscape.   

6. §22-1103.3.C A minimum ten-foot-wide planting area shall be provided along all property lines 
which abut residential districts or uses. No less than one planting unit per 25 linear feet of such 
property lines shall be provided, consisting of materials which will create a vegetative dense screen 
year-round and which can be reasonably expected to attain a height of six feet by the third year after 
planting.  The Landscaping Plan does not show plantings occurring along Johns Avenue and will 
need to be shown in the plan. 

7. §22-1103.4.A(1) Each terminal landscaped island shall contain at least one major deciduous tree or 
two minor deciduous trees, with the remainder of the island landscaped with appropriate ground 
cover or grass.  Ground cover is defined in this section as “a low perennial with a mature height of 
three inches to 18 inches, excluding crown vetch, annuals and turf grasses.”   The submitted plan 
proposes a planting that is not properly defined on the landscape plan. The plan should be 
updated to reflect what the NS planting will be, or confirm if it is the IBP, Black Gum tree 
identified on the plan. 

16



  SLD-240001 / Gettys Golf LLC / 533 Steinwehr Avenue Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan 
May 16, 2024 

3 of 6 
 

8. §22-1103.4.B(1 & 2)  Perimeter landscaped areas shall be provided around the perimeter of all 
parking areas, except where a side of the parking area is bounded by a principal nonresidential 
structure.  The minimum width of the perimeter landscaping area around a parking area shall be no 
less than 10 feet, measured outward from the edge of the parking lot.   The Landscaping Plan does 
not show plantings occurring along Johns Avenue and will need to be shown in the plan. 

D. ZONING ORDINANCE COMPLIANCE 

At a hearing held on February 13, 2024 the Gettysburg Borough Zoning Hearing Board granted a special 
exception to permit the use of Outdoor Commercial Recreation for the subject property.  In comparing 
the schematic and elevation submitted to the Zoning Hearing Board and the current plan submission, the 
only observable change is a decrease in proposed automobile parking and rendering of the clubhouse 
accessory structure.  

The zoning requirements applicable to this plan that must be resolved prior to approval are as follows in 
bold: 

1. §27- 503.G The Zoning Hearing Board approval for the Special Exception of February 13, 2024, 
should be included on the cover sheet. 

2. §27- 1510(1) A buffer yard at least five feet wide in the commercial or industrial district and along 

the property line separating the two districts shall be suitably planted with trees and shrubs and 
maintained at all times. The Landscaping Plan does not show plantings occurring along Johns 
Avenue and will need to be shown in the plan. 

3. §27- 1524.2-(N)(1) The use shall have a total building coverage of less than 15%.  This is achieved. 

4. §27- 1526.D Build-To-Lines. Whenever the majority of the existing buildings on a block face have 
nonconforming build-to lines, the build-to line for new buildings may be modified to conform to 
such majority at the discretion of the Borough Zoning Officer. In no case shall the build-to line be 
less than that of any adjacent building. This is achieved due to the design of the development. 

5. §27- 1526.E Build-To-Lines    The build-to line may vary with a recess or setback to the building, or to 
the build-to line itself, of up to four feet. However, the build-to line may have a greater recess or a 
setback to a building when: topographic or hydrologic conditions on a lot warrant same; an ADA-
accessible ramp is needed; or § 27-1511 is employed.   

6. §27- 1903.5.C The minimum height of any new building shall be 24 feet. This is achieved due to the 
design of the development’s structure not meeting the threshold of a principal building, 
instead being an accessory component of the Outdoor Commercial Recreation land use. If the 
Planning Commission disagrees with this determination, a modification would be required.  

7. §27- 1302 Parking Space Requirements.  The proposed parking plan includes sixteen (16) parking 
spaces that are 18-feet long by 9-feet wide. One van accessible parking space is provided directly 
adjacent to the clubhouse. Additional light parking is anticipated along Johns Avenue, however the 
parking lot appears to meet the need of the use. 

8. §27- 1301.I  Off-street parking areas of more than four spaces shall be screened with hedges, walls, 
fences or other landscaping at least 30 inches in height if located in front or to the side of a building. 

 The proposed parking areas are located to the rear of the parcel accessible from Johns Avenue. 

9. §27- 1903.3.C Existing off-street parking shall be screened with hedges, walls, fences or other 
landscaping at least 30 inches in height if located in front of or to the side of a building. 

      The proposed parking areas are located to the rear of the parcel accessible from Johns Avenue. 

10. §27- 1903.8.E  Planting buffers shall be installed to screen off-street parking lots. 

17

https://ecode360.com/27361178#27361178
https://ecode360.com/27359482#27359482


  SLD-240001 / Gettys Golf LLC / 533 Steinwehr Avenue Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan 
May 16, 2024 

4 of 6 
 

Parking lot lighting is achieved with placement in a landscape buffer between the parking rows. 

11. §27- 1903.9.D  Fences, Walls, and Hedges A thirty-inch high wall, fence or hedge shall be used at 
the build-to line to screen existing off-street parking located in front or to the side of a building.   

     The proposed parking areas are located to the rear of the parcel accessible from Johns Avenue. 

§27- 1903.9.C  Fences, Walls, and Hedges. Low walls, fences and/or hedges shall be placed to form the 
street wall whenever buildings do not adjoin the sidewalk or build-to line. The land use incorporates 
landscaping to achieve this effect. 

12. §27- 1517.4 Driveways shall be no wider than 30 feet.  Driveways appear to be 1 to 2 feet over this 
standard. A condition of approval recommended by staff is to ensure this standard is met.  

13. §27- 1903.1.G Unenclosed porches, stoops, and the like shall be built and maintained as 
transitional elements from the principal building to the streetscape. N/A 

 

E. STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the Planning Commission table the combined preliminary subdivision and final 
development applications to provide the applicant the opportunity to address all outstanding issues 
identified by borough staff and the Adams County Planning and Development Office. In the event that the 
Planning Commission wishes to approve the land development plan, staff recommends that items 
identified by the Zoning Officer, Borough Engineer, and Adams County planning staff be included as 
conditions for approval. 

 
 

 

18

https://ecode360.com/27361278#27361278


 

ADAMS COUNTY OFFICE OF 
PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 

 

670 Old Harrisburg Road, Suite 100 | Gettysburg, PA 17325 
Ph: 717-337-9824 | Fx: 717-334-0786 

Sherri Clayton-Williams, AICP, Director 
 
 
 
DATE: May 9, 2024 
 
TO:  Gettysburg Borough Planning Commission 
  Gettys Golf LLC 
  KPI Technology  
 
FROM: Jenna Smith 
  Comprehensive Planner 
 
SUBJECT: Preliminary Land Development Plan 
  Gettys Golf LLC  
  Parcel:    16015-0013---000 
  SLD #24-028 
 

In accordance with Section 502 of Act 247 of 1968, as amended, “the Pennsylvania 
Municipalities Planning Code”, and following an analysis of the Adams County Comprehensive Plan, 
municipal land use ordinances and plans, the Adams County Soil Survey, National Wetlands Inventory 
Maps, Federal Emergency Management Agency Flood Maps, applicable Historic Inventories and other 
pertinent reports and data, the Adams County Office of Planning and Development (ACOPD) offers the 
following review. 
 

This review refers to the Gettys Golf LLC plan with plan date of March 27, 2024 as submitted 
to this Office for review on April 16, 2024. If any significant changes to the plan are made, either 
initiated by the applicant or required by Gettysburg Borough, the revised plan including such changes 
must be submitted to this Office for review. Significant changes subject to further review include, but 
are not limited to, changes in lot lines, building placement, parking lot and loading area design, and 
landscaping design.  Failure to submit significant changes to this Office for review prior to plan 
approval will result in this Office being unable to sign the plan for recording. 
 

 
 
I. Introduction:  This plan proposes the construction of a mini golf course and clubhouse with an 
associated parking lot.  
 
II. Site Design: The Office of Planning and Development has reviewed the site design and related 
elements of the submitted plan and has no objections. 
 
III. Zoning Ordinance Review:  The subject property is in the Tourist Commercial (TC) District, 
the Historic Overlay District, and the Streetscape Enhancement Overlay District. We have reviewed the 

19



submitted plan against applicable requirements of the Gettysburg Borough Zoning Ordinance and offer 
the following comments. 
 
A. Advisory Review: Zoning compliance comments provided by the Adams County Office of 
Planning and Development are advisory only. The Gettysburg Borough Zoning Officer must be relied 
upon to confirm the interpretation and application of any standard in the Gettysburg Borough Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 
B. Zoning District Designations: It should be noted on the plan that the subject property is also 
located within the Streetscape Enhancement Overlay District and the Historic Overlay District, and that 
the standards of those districts also apply to this plan.  
 
C. Section 27-904.4: There are portions of the mini golf course that encroach the 10-foot required 
side yard. The Borough may want to consider whether this is appropriate within the context of the 
ordinance and the surrounding built environment.  
 
D. Section 27-905.1 & 27-1903.5.C: These sections state that the minimum building height in the 
TC District and the Streetscape Enhancement Overlay District is 24 feet. It cannot be immediately 
determined through the information provided that the proposed clubhouse building will meet this 
standard.  
 
E. Section 27-1302.2: Parking requirements for the proposed use are not listed specifically by the 
ordinance. Therefore, a parking report should have been submitted to the Borough Zoning Officer by the 
applicant to assist in their determination of the appropriate number of spaces to be included for this use. 
Given that the Borough has determined that the number of spaces provided is appropriate, we do not 
have any objections.   
 
IV.  Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance Review:  We have reviewed the submitted 
plan against applicable requirements of the Gettysburg Borough Subdivision and Land Development 
Ordinance and offer the following comments. 
 
A. Section 22-503.3.F: This section outlines requirements for demonstrating zoning ordinance 
compliance on a preliminary plan submission. Not all applicable zoning districts have been shown, nor 
has the minimum required lot area standard been indicated. 
 
B. Section 22-1103.3.A: We note the request for modification of these landscaping requirements for 
nonresidential development. However, it does appear that the required number of plantings have been 
shown on the landscaping plan. If the applicant can meet the ordinance requirements for landscaping, 
the note regarding this modification should be removed from the plan.  
 
V. Summary: The Office of Planning and Development has no objections to the proposed project in 
this setting. There are, however, a few minor ordinance compliance issues that the applicant and 
borough should address prior to plan approval.   
 
cc. John Whitmore, Planning Director 
 Chad Clabaugh, C.S. Davidson, Inc., Borough Engineer 
 
 
 

20



21



22



23



© 2024 Microsoft Corporation © 2024 TomTom 

CLUBHOUSE
20' x 20'

F.F.E
586.89

88

X X

X

XXX
X

X

X

JO
H

N
S 

   
AV

EN
U

E

ST
EI

N
W

EH
R

   
 A

VE
N

U
E

STOCKADE FENCE

SPLIT-RAIL FENCE

SPLIT-RAIL FENCE

SPLIT-RAIL FENCE

SP
LI

T-
R

AI
L 

FE
N

C
E

SP
LI

T-
R

AI
L 

FE
N

C
E

SP
LI

T-
R

AI
L 

FE
N

C
E

( 3
0'

 C
AR

TW
AY

 - 
 5

0'
 R

/W
) ( 3

1'
 C

AR
TW

AY
 - 

 5
0'

 R
/W

)

DUMPSTER
     PAD

583
584

U
C Lh
B

G
ET

TY
S 

G
O

LF
 L

LC

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

LA
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

G
et

ty
sb

ur
g 

Bo
ro

ug
h

SHEET:

PROJECT NO.

DATE:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

D
AT

E
N

O
.

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

Ad
am

s 
C

ou
nt

y,
 P

A

23-135-A

MW

BG

BG

03/27/24

CI
VI

L &
 E

NV
IR

ON
ME

NT
AL

 E
NG

IN
EE

RI
NG

 C
ON

SU
LT

AN
TS

TE
C

H
N

O
LO

G
Y

w
w

w
.k

pi
te

ch
no

lo
gy

.n
et

1 
Ea

st
 H

ar
ris

bu
rg

 S
t.

D
ills

bu
rg

,  
PA

  1
70

19
te

l: 
 (7

17
) 5

02
-0

88
4

fa
x:

  (
71

7)
 5

02
-0

94
5

EN
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
SU

R
VE

YI
N

G
PL

AN
N

IN
G

14
3 

C
ar

lis
le

 S
t.

G
et

ty
sb

ur
g,

 P
A 

 1
73

25
te

l: 
(7

17
) 3

39
-0

61
2

fa
x:

 (7
17

) 3
39

-0
71

7

20
0 

So
ut

h 
2n

d 
St

.
Su

nb
ur

y,
 P

A 
 1

78
01

te
l: 

(5
70

) 2
86

-3
17

6
fa

x:
 (5

70
) 2

86
-2

96
4

K
no

eb
el

, P
ic

ar
el

li,
 In

c.

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION C-1

SOURCE OF TITLE

DEED RECORDED IN THE ADAMS COUNTY COURTHOUSE

RECORD BOOK ________, PAGE _______

GENERAL CONSTRUCTION NOTES
1. THE LOCATION OF EXISTING UTILITIES SHOWN ON THESE

DRAWINGS IS APPROXIMATE ONLY.  THE UTILITY OWNERS AND
ENGINEER DO NOT WARRANT OR GUARANTEE THE VALIDITY OF
THE INFORMATION GIVEN. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THE
EXISTENCE, LOCATION, AND DEPTH OF ANY EXISTING UTILITIES,
AND SHALL TAKE NECESSARY PRECAUTION TO PROTECT THE
EXISTING UTILITIES AND TO MAINTAIN UNINTERRUPTED SERVICE.
ANY DAMAGE INCURRED DUE TO THE CONTRACTOR'S OPERATION
SHALL BE REPAIRED IMMEDIATELY AT THE CONTRACTOR'S
EXPENSE.

2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL LOCATE EXISTING UTILITIES IN ADVANCE
OF CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS IN THE VICINITY OF THE
PROPOSED UTILITIES.

3. ALL UTILITIES SHALL BE CLEARED BY A MINIMUM OF 1'-0". ALL
UTILITY POLES SHALL BE CLEARED BY A MINIMUM OF 2'-0" OR
TUNNELED IF REQUIRED.  COST FOR TUNNELING OR BRACING
POLES SHALL BE INCLUDED IN THE LUMP SUM BID PRICE FOR THE
COMPLETED PROJECT.

4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT INTERRUPT EXISTING UTILITY
SERVICES WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION FROM THE OWNER OF
THE UTILITY.

5. IN FILL AREAS, THE COMPACTION SHALL BE FULL HEIGHT
COMPACTION TO THE SPECIFIED ELEVATION.  FILL SHALL BE
PLACED IN EIGHT (8) INCH (PLUS OR MINUS TWO (2) INCHES),
MEASURED LOOSE LIFTS AND EACH LIFT COMPACTED TO NOT LESS
THAN NINETY-SEVEN PERCENT (97%) OF STANDARD DENSITY AS
DETERMINED BY AASHTO METHODS T-99 (UNLESS SPECIFIED
OTHERWISE BY THE GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER).

6. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTE THAT IN CASE OF DISCREPANCIES
BETWEEN THE SCALED AND FIGURED DIMENSIONS SHOWN ON
THESE PLANS, THE FIGURED DIMENSIONS SHALL GOVERN. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR NOTIFYING THE
OFFICE OF THE ENGINEER OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN THE PLANS
OR IN THE RELATIONSHIP OF FINISHED GRADES TO EXISTING,
PRIOR TO BEGINNING WORK.

7. THE WORK SHOWN ON THESE DRAWINGS IS SUBJECT TO
INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE BY THE BOROUGH, PA.
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, ADAMS COUNTY
CONSERVATION DISTRICT, OFFICE OF THE MUNICIPAL ENGINEER,
AS APPLICABLE.

8. EXISTING PAVING DISTURBED BY THE CONTRACTOR'S OPERATIONS
SHALL BE REPLACED WITH MATERIAL EQUAL TO OR EXCEEDING
THAT WHICH WAS DISTURBED, OR AS SPECIFIED BY THE MUNICIPAL
APPROVING AUTHORITY, AS APPLICABLE.

9. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR MAINTENANCE OF
TRAFFIC AND TRAFFIC CONTROL, AS APPLICABLE.  THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE ANY TEMPORARY ROAD
CLOSING WITH THE MUNICIPALITY, ADAMS COUNTY CONTROL FOR
A PRE-CONSTRUCTION / PRE-CLOSING MEETING AT LEAST TWO (2)
WEEKS IN ADVANCE OF ANY PROPOSED ROAD CLOSURE.

10. ALL CONSTRUCTION SHOWN ON THESE PLANS SHALL BE
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE STANDARDS AND
SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE MUNICIPALITY, PA. D.E.P., PENNDOT,
ACCD, AND ALL ADDENDA AND ERRATA TO ANY AND ALL OF THE
ABOVE.

11. IT SHALL BE DISTINCTLY UNDERSTOOD THAT FAILURE TO MENTION
SPECIFICALLY ANY WORK WHICH WOULD NATURALLY BE
REQUIRED TO COMPLETE THE PROJECT SHALL NOT RELIEVE THE
CONTRACTOR OF HIS RESPONSIBILITY TO PERFORM SUCH WORK.

12. THE CONTRACTOR'S EQUIPMENT MUST BE MONITORED AS NOT TO
TRACK MUD ON THE STREET LEADING INTO THE SITE.  IT IS THE
CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO KEEP THE STREET CLEARED
AND THE SITE IN AN APPROPRIATE WORKING-LIKE MANNER.

13. ANY EXCESS OF MATERIAL SHALL BE USED FOR ON-SITE GRADING.
IF MATERIAL IS EXPORTED FROM THIS SITE, AN APPROVED
EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN WILL BE REQUIRED FOR
THE RECEIVING SITE.

14. PROPERTY IS NOT WITHIN THE 100-YEAR FLOODPLAIN.
       ACCORDING TO FEMA MAPPING THE SUBJECT.

PENNSYLVANIA ACT 287 (1974) AS AMENDED BY PENNSYLVANIA ACT 199 (2004)
REQUIRES NO LESS THAN THREE (3) WORKING DAYS AND NO MORE THAN (10) WORKING

DAYS NOTICE TO UTILITIES BEFORE YOU EXCAVATE, DRILL, BLAST OR DEMOLISH.
PA ONE-CALL SERIAL NO. 20240020202-000 HAS BEEN ASSIGNED TO THIS PROJECT.

b

Know what's
Callbefore you dig.

below.

GETTYS GOLF LLC
PRELIMINARY LAND DEVELOPMENT PLAN

GETTYSBURG BOROUGH, ADAMS COUNTY, PA
FEBRUARY, 2024

ENGINEERS CERTIFICATE

I, BRANDON L. GUIHER, A PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER IN
THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA HEREBY
CERTIFY TO THE BEST OF MY PROFESSIONAL
KNOWLEDGE, THAT ALL INFORMATION SHOWN ON THIS
PLAN IS CORRECT AND ACCURATE

_________________________              _______________
   PE078692    (AGENT)                                   DATE

REVIEWED BY THE ADAMS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION

___________________________________     __________
                 SIGNATURE         DATE

REVIEWED BY THE BOROUGH ENGINEER

___________________________________     __________
                 BOROUGH ENGINEER                    DATE

REVIEWED BY THE GETTYSBURG PLANNING COMMISSION

___________________________________     __________
                               CHAIR                              DATE

___________________________________
                           SECRETARY

APPROVED BY MOTION OF THE GETTYSBURG PLANNING
COMMISSION AND ACCEPTED FOR RECORDING

___________________________________     __________
                               CHAIR                              DATE

___________________________________
                           SECRETARY

REGISTER AND RECORDER

THIS PLAN IS RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE
RECORDER OF DEEDS IN ADAMS COUNTY, THIS _____ DAY

OF ________, 20___, IN MAP BOOK ______, PAGE ______.

_______________________________________
REGISTER AND RECORDER

CERTIFICATION & OWNERSHIP AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF PLAN

ON THIS, THE ________________ DAY OF _______________, 20___,
BEFORE ME, THE UNDERSIGNED OFFICER, PERSONALLY

APPEARED ___________________, WHO BEING DULY SWORN
ACCORDING TO LAW, DEPOSES AND SAYS THEY ARE THE

OWNER AND/OR EQUITABLE OWNER OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN
ON THIS PLAN, THAT THEY ACKNOWLEGE THE SAME TO BE THEIR

ACT AND PLAN, AND DESIRE THE SAME TO BE RECORDED AS
SUCH ACCORDING TO LAW.

__________________________________________________________
                  OWNER

WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL ON THIS DAY WRITTEN ABOVE.

_____________________________
            NOTARY PUBLIC

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES  __________________, 20___.

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

I, TIMOTHY C. BLACK, A REGISTERED SURVEYOR OF THE
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA, DO HEREBY CERTIFY
THAT THE PLAN, PREPARED FROM A FIELD SURVEY ON
______, 20______ CORRECTLY REPRESENTS THE PROPERTY
BOUNDARY OF THE PROPOSED SUBDIVISION OR LAND
DEVELOPMENT

____________              ___________________________________
DATE                             REGISTERED SURVEYOR'S SIGNITURE

LOCATION  MAP
SCALE:  1"= 400'

OVERALL SITE AND DEVELOPMENT DATA:
1. PROPERTY OWNER/DEVELOPERINFORMATION:     GETTYS GOLF LLC

533 STEINWEHR  AVE.
                                                  GETTYSBURG, PA 17325

2. TAX PARCEL ID: 16015-0013---000
DEED REFERENCE NO.: 7065-0207
GROSS AREA: 0.94 ACRES

        NET AREA:
3. ZONING DISTRICT: TOURIST COMMERCIAL (TC)
4. LAND USES:  - COMMERCIAL
5. WATER SUPPLY: PUBLIC - GETTYSBURG MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY
6. WASTEWATER DISPOSAL: PUBLIC - GETTYSBURG MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY
7. LOT COVERAGE REQUIREMENTS:

MINIMUM GREEN SPACE REQUIRED: 15%
EXISTING GREEN SPACE: 6.7%
PROPOSED GREEN SPACE SHOWN: 42.8%
MAXIMUM IMPERVIOUS COVERAGE: 85%,
EXISTING IMPERVIOUS COVERAGE 93.3%
PROPOSED BUILDING COVERAGE: 0.98%
PROPOSED SURFACE COVERAGE: 56.2%
TOTAL PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS COVERAGE: 57.2%

8. SETBACKS:
BUILD-TO LINE: 15'
SIDE YARD: 10'
REAR YARD: 10'

0

SCALE IN FEET
1"= 

50' 25' 50'

50'

SHEET INDEX
SHEET NUMBER SHEET TITLE

C-1 COVER SHEET
C-2 EXISTING CONDITIONS
C-3 SITEPLAN
C-4 GRADING & UTILITY PLAN
C-5 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS
LS-1 LANDSCAPE PLAN
LT-1 LIGHTING PLAN
ES-1 EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN
ES-2 E&S NOTES & DETAILS

C
O

VE
R

 S
H

EE
T

UTILITY LIST
COLOMBIA GAS OF PA INC
1600 DUBLIN RD
COLUMBUS, OH. 43215
ATTN: LISA COLLINS
idugan@nisource.com

GETTYSBURG BOROUGH
59 E HIGH STREET
GETTYSBURG, PA. 17325
ATTN: ROBERT HARBAUGH
rharbaugh@gettysburgpa.gov

GETTYSBURG MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY
601 E MIDDLE ST
GETTYSBURG, PA. 17325
ATTN: ROBERT SHRADER
rshrader@gettysburgma.com

COMCAST
ATTN: WILLIAM MAYS

MED ED FIRSTENERGY
2800 POTTSVILLE PIKE
READING, PA. 19605
ATTN: MELLYSSA ADAMS

BRIGHTSPEED
250 LINCOLN WAY E
CHAMBERSBURG, PA. 17201
ATTN: CASE WELLS

SITE

PLAN PURPOSE
TO DEVELOP THE CURRENT VACANT LOT INTO A MINI-GOLF COURSE.

VARIANCES:
ON 2/13/2024 THE ZONING HEARING BOARD GRANTED SPECIAL EXCEPTION FOR THE MINI GOLF COURSE.

MODIFICATION REQUEST:
22-1103.3.A QUANTITY OF LANDSCAPING
PLANNING COMMISSION APPROVED THIS MODIFICATION ON ____________

24

AutoCAD SHX Text
E



X X X X X

X
X

X

X
XXXXX

X
X

X

XXX
X

X

XXX

MACADAM

MACADAM

MACADAM

MACADAM

MACADAM

JO
H

N
S 

   
AV

EN
U

E

LE
G

AL
 R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
 L

IN
E

LR
G

AL
 R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
 L

IN
E

LE
G

AL
 R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
 L

IN
E

LE
G

AL
 R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
 L

IN
E

ST
EI

N
W

EH
R

   
 A

VE
N

U
E

CONCRETE RETAINING WALL

STOCKADE FENCE

SPLIT-RAIL FENCE

SPLIT-RAIL FENCE

SPLIT-RAIL FENCE

SP
LI

T-
R

AI
L 

FE
N

C
E

SP
LI

T-
R

AI
L 

FE
N

C
E

SP
LI

T-
R

AI
L 

FE
N

C
ES61° 56 53"E     121.61'

N28° 14' 10"E     30.00'

S61° 56' 53"E     180.00'

S28° 14' 10"W
     110.00'

S61° 56' 53"E     180.00'

S28° 14' 10"W
     94.57'

N61° 56' 53"W     121.23'
N

28
° 0

6'
 4

4"
E 

   
 1

74
.5

6'

REBAR/CAP
     (FND)

MAG NAIL
  (FND)

MAG NAIL
  (FND)

REBAR/CAP
     (FND 0.22 FROM CORNER)

6" WHITE PINE

8" TREE

     4"
TREE

     6"
TREE

REBAR
 (SET)

DRILL HOLE
      (FND

DRILL HOLE
      (SET)

REBAR
 (SET)

( 3
0'

 C
AR

TW
AY

 - 
 5

0'
 R

/W
) ( 3

1'
 C

AR
TW

AY
 - 

 5
0'

 R
/W

)

RIM 582.57
INV. 577.67

R
IM

 5
90

.6
1

                          N/F
AMERICAN BATTLEFIELD TRUST
                TM 16015-0010
               DB 7048 PG 387

                          N/F
          ARI PROPERTIES, LLC
                TM 15015-0011
               DB 4121 PG 51

                          N/F
  MCDONALD'S CORPORATION
               TM 15015-0014
               DB 5813 PG 359

                               N/F
     GREGORY A. & DONNA R. SWEESY
                     TM 15015-009A
                     DB 484 PG674

DUMPSTER
     PAD

585

59
0

583
584

584

583

586

587

588

589

591

REBAR (FND)

30
.0

0'

MAG NAIL
   (FND)

MAG NAIL
   (SET)

MAG NAIL
   (FND 0.37
FROM CORNER)

MAG NAIL
   (SET)

     CENTURY LINK
          X4656-47

     ME 14413-17686

     ME 14406-17672

10' B.S.L.

10' B.S.L.

10
' B

.S
.L

.

10' B.S.L.

10' B.S.L.

15
' B

U
IL

D
 T

O
 L

IN
E

                          N/F
  GETTYSBURG NATURE ALLIANCE
               TM 15015-0013
               DB 7065 PG 207
   40,995 S.F.( 0.9411 ACRES)

U
C Lh
B

585.53

585.32

G
ET

TY
S 

G
O

LF
 L

LC

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

LA
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

G
et

ty
sb

ur
g 

Bo
ro

ug
h

SHEET:

PROJECT NO.

DATE:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

D
AT

E
N

O
.

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

Ad
am

s 
C

ou
nt

y,
 P

A

23-135-A

MW

BG

BG

03/27/24

CI
VI

L &
 E

NV
IR

ON
ME

NT
AL

 E
NG

IN
EE

RI
NG

 C
ON

SU
LT

AN
TS

TE
C

H
N

O
LO

G
Y

w
w

w
.k

pi
te

ch
no

lo
gy

.n
et

1 
Ea

st
 H

ar
ris

bu
rg

 S
t.

D
ills

bu
rg

,  
PA

  1
70

19
te

l: 
 (7

17
) 5

02
-0

88
4

fa
x:

  (
71

7)
 5

02
-0

94
5

EN
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
SU

R
VE

YI
N

G
PL

AN
N

IN
G

14
3 

C
ar

lis
le

 S
t.

G
et

ty
sb

ur
g,

 P
A 

 1
73

25
te

l: 
(7

17
) 3

39
-0

61
2

fa
x:

 (7
17

) 3
39

-0
71

7

20
0 

So
ut

h 
2n

d 
St

.
Su

nb
ur

y,
 P

A 
 1

78
01

te
l: 

(5
70

) 2
86

-3
17

6
fa

x:
 (5

70
) 2

86
-2

96
4

K
no

eb
el

, P
ic

ar
el

li,
 In

c.

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

GENERAL NOTES:
1. TOPOGRAPHIC CONDITIONS SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON A FIELD

SURVEY BY KPI TECHNOLOGY ON JANUARY 10, 2024.
2. UNDERGROUND UTILITIES ARE SHOWN BASED UPON SURFACE
    INDICATION, PRIOR PLANS PREPARED BY OTHERS, UTILITY
    COMPANY INFORMATION AND RECORDED INFORMATION, AS SUCH
    THESE LOCATIONS MUST BE CONSIDERED APPROXIMATE ONLY, AND
    MUST BE VERIFIED PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY ON THIS
    SITE.
3. VERTICAL DATUM SHOWN HEREON IS BASED ON NORTH AMERICAN
    VERTICAL DATUM (NAVD88).
4. THIS PLAN WAS PREPARED WITHOUT THE BENEFIT OF A TITLE
    REPORT AND IS SUBJECT TO ALL ASSOCIATED EASEMENTS AND
    DOCUMENTS (RECORDED AND UNRECORDED).
5. BENCHMARKS: TOP OF LIGHT POLE ANCHOR BOLT AT NORTHEAST
    CORNER OF PROPERTY. ELEVATION: 592.28
6. RIGHTS GRANTED TO METROPOLITAN EDISON COMPANY ARE
    BLANKET IN NATURE AND ALLOW FOR CUTTING, TRIMMING,
    REMOVING, OF TREES, UNDERBRUSH AND OTHER
    OBSTRUCTIONS WITHIN TEN (10) FEET OF ANY WIRE.

0

SCALE IN FEET
1"= 

20' 10' 20'

20'

C-2

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S

 & MANHOLE
- SANITARY SEWER 

- SANITARY SEWER CLEANOUT

- REBAR PROPERTY CORNER

- BOLT PROPERTY CORNER

- AXLE PROPERTY CORNER

- UTILITY POLE

- EVERGREEN TREE

- HANDICAP SPACE

- BENCHMARK

- DECIDUOUS TREE

- SIGN

AtB2
Le

 LEGEND

ppppp

- WATER LINE AND VALVE

- PROPERTY BOUNDARY LINE

- ADJOINER BOUNDARY

- BUILDING SETBACK LINE

- SOIL TYPE & BOUNDARY

- FENCE

- GAS LINE AND VALVE

- RIGHT OF WAY

- EX. STREAM

- CONCRETE

- TREE LINE

- EX. CONTOUR

- FLOOD PLAIN

- EX. WETLANDS

S

GV

511

X

- OVERHEAD UTILITIES

WV

- IRON PIPE PROPERTY CORNER

- PK NAIL PROPERTY CORNER

- TELEPHONE LINET

- ELECTRIC LINE

- STORM DRAIN LINE AND INLET

- GAS METER

- EASEMENT

- WATER METER

25

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
GM

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM



X X X X X

X
X

X

X
XXXXX

X
X

X

XXX

X
X

XXX

MACADAM

MACADAM

MACADAM

MACADAM

MACADAM

JO
H

N
S 

   
AV

EN
U

E

LE
G

AL
 R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
 L

IN
E

LR
G

AL
 R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
 L

IN
E

LE
G

AL
 R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
 L

IN
E

LE
G

AL
 R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
 L

IN
E

ST
EI

N
W

EH
R

   
 A

VE
N

U
E

CONCRETE RETAINING WALL

STOCKADE FENCE

SPLIT-RAIL FENCE

SPLIT-RAIL FENCE

SPLIT-RAIL FENCE

SP
LI

T-
R

AI
L 

FE
N

C
E

SP
LI

T-
R

AI
L 

FE
N

C
E

SP
LI

T-
R

AI
L 

FE
N

C
ES61° 56 53"E     121.61'

N28° 14' 10"E     30.00'

S61° 56' 53"E     180.00'

S28° 14' 10"W
     110.00'

S61° 56' 53"E     180.00'

S28° 14' 10"W
     94.57'

N61° 56' 53"W     121.23'

N
28

° 0
6'

 4
4"

E 
   

 1
74

.5
6'

REBAR/CAP
     (FND)

MAG NAIL
  (FND)

MAG NAIL
  (FND)

REBAR/CAP
     (FND 0.22 FROM CORNER)

6" WHITE PINE

8" TREE

     4"
TREE

     6"
TREE

REBAR
 (SET)

DRILL HOLE
      (FND

DRILL HOLE
      (SET)

REBAR
 (SET)

( 3
0'

 C
AR

TW
AY

 - 
 5

0'
 R

/W
) ( 3

1'
 C

AR
TW

AY
 - 

 5
0'

 R
/W

)

RIM 582.57
INV. 577.67

R
IM

 5
90

.6
1

                          N/F
AMERICAN BATTLEFIELD TRUST
                TM 16015-0010
               DB 7048 PG 387

                          N/F
          ARI PROPERTIES, LLC
                TM 15015-0011
               DB 4121 PG 51

                          N/F
  MCDONALD'S CORPORATION
               TM 15015-0014
               DB 5813 PG 359

                               N/F
     GREGORY A. & DONNA R. SWEESY
                     TM 15015-009A
                     DB 484 PG674

DUMPSTER
     PAD

585

59
0

583
584

584

583

586

587

588

589

591

REBAR (FND)

30
.0

0'

MAG NAIL
   (FND)

MAG NAIL
   (SET)

MAG NAIL
   (FND 0.37
FROM CORNER)

MAG NAIL
   (SET)

     CENTURY LINK
          X4656-47

     ME 14413-17686

     ME 14406-17672

10' B.S.L.

10' B.S.L.

10
' B

.S
.L

.

10' B.S.L.

10' B.S.L.

15
' B

U
IL

D
 T

O
 L

IN
E

                          N/F
  GETTYSBURG NATURE ALLIANCE
               TM 15015-0013
               DB 7065 PG 207
   40,995 S.F.( 0.9411 ACRES)

U
C Lh
B

585.53

585.32

CLUBHOUSE
20' x 20'

F.F.E
586.89

8

22'
MIN.

22
'

M
IN

.
8

TRAFFIC FLOW

18' 9'

22'
MIN.

22
'

M
IN

.

4' WIDE CONCRETE WALKWAY
(1' FROM PROPERTY LINE)

G
R

EE
N

SP
AC

E
AR

EA
 : 

14
28

.5
3

SQ
.F

T.

TOTAL AREA:
13330.36 SQ.FT.
(NEW MACADAM
APPROX 1178 SQ.FT.)

10'

8'

46'

R4'

R5'

P - Passenger Car

20'

16
'

5'

FUTURE SIDEWALK
(SEE NOTE)

587

588 58
9

590

59
0

59
1

59
2

58
9

58
9

590
591

588

S

R27
'

R27'

PUMP
PAD

PUMP
PAD

58
6

G
ET

TY
S 

G
O

LF
 L

LC

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

LA
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

G
et

ty
sb

ur
g 

Bo
ro

ug
h

SHEET:

PROJECT NO.

DATE:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

D
AT

E
N

O
.

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

Ad
am

s 
C

ou
nt

y,
 P

A

23-135-A

MW

BG

BG

03/27/24

CI
VI

L &
 E

NV
IR

ON
ME

NT
AL

 E
NG

IN
EE

RI
NG

 C
ON

SU
LT

AN
TS

TE
C

H
N

O
LO

G
Y

w
w

w
.k

pi
te

ch
no

lo
gy

.n
et

1 
Ea

st
 H

ar
ris

bu
rg

 S
t.

D
ills

bu
rg

,  
PA

  1
70

19
te

l: 
 (7

17
) 5

02
-0

88
4

fa
x:

  (
71

7)
 5

02
-0

94
5

EN
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
SU

R
VE

YI
N

G
PL

AN
N

IN
G

14
3 

C
ar

lis
le

 S
t.

G
et

ty
sb

ur
g,

 P
A 

 1
73

25
te

l: 
(7

17
) 3

39
-0

61
2

fa
x:

 (7
17

) 3
39

-0
71

7

20
0 

So
ut

h 
2n

d 
St

.
Su

nb
ur

y,
 P

A 
 1

78
01

te
l: 

(5
70

) 2
86

-3
17

6
fa

x:
 (5

70
) 2

86
-2

96
4

K
no

eb
el

, P
ic

ar
el

li,
 In

c.

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

0

SCALE IN FEET
1"= 

20' 10' 20'

20'

C-3

SI
TE

PL
AN

 

LEGEND

-PROP. CONCRETE

-PROP. GREENSPACE

-PROP. MACADAM

NOTE:
1. THE DEVELOPER AGREES TO INSTALL A 5' WIDE SIDEWALK ALONG
JOHNS AVENUE WITHIN ONE (1) YEAR OF NOTIFICATION BY THE
BOROUGH. THIS NOTIFICATION WILL BE ISSUED AT SUCH TIME THAT
PARCEL 16015-0009A-000, COMMONLY KNOWN AS 922 JOHNS AVENUE
WILL BE PROVIDING IMPROVEMENTS WHICH WILL INCLUDE THE
ADDITION OF A SIDEWALK ALONG JOHNS AVENUE.

-PROP. MAJOR CONTOUR

-PROP. MINOR CONTOUR

-PROP. A.D.A PARKING

-PROP.  GOLF GREEN590

591

26

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E



X X X X X

X
X

X

X
XXXXX

X
X

X

XXX

X
X

XXX

MACADAM

MACADAM

MACADAM

MACADAM

MACADAM

JO
H

N
S 

   
AV

EN
U

E

LE
G

AL
 R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
 L

IN
E

LR
G

AL
 R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
 L

IN
E

LE
G

AL
 R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
 L

IN
E

LE
G

AL
 R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
 L

IN
E

ST
EI

N
W

EH
R

   
 A

VE
N

U
E

CONCRETE RETAINING WALL

STOCKADE FENCE

SPLIT-RAIL FENCE

SPLIT-RAIL FENCE

SPLIT-RAIL FENCE

SP
LI

T-
R

AI
L 

FE
N

C
E

SP
LI

T-
R

AI
L 

FE
N

C
E

SP
LI

T-
R

AI
L 

FE
N

C
ES61° 56 53"E     121.61'

N28° 14' 10"E     30.00'

S61° 56' 53"E     180.00'

S28° 14' 10"W
     110.00'

S61° 56' 53"E     180.00'

S28° 14' 10"W
     94.57'

N61° 56' 53"W     121.23'

N
28

° 0
6'

 4
4"

E 
   

 1
74

.5
6'

REBAR/CAP
     (FND)

MAG NAIL
  (FND)

MAG NAIL
  (FND)

REBAR/CAP
     (FND 0.22 FROM CORNER)

6" WHITE PINE

8" TREE

     4"
TREE

     6"
TREE

REBAR
 (SET)

DRILL HOLE
      (FND

DRILL HOLE
      (SET)

REBAR
 (SET)

( 3
0'

 C
AR

TW
AY

 - 
 5

0'
 R

/W
) ( 3

1'
 C

AR
TW

AY
 - 

 5
0'

 R
/W

)

RIM 582.57
INV. 577.67

R
IM

 5
90

.6
1

                          N/F
AMERICAN BATTLEFIELD TRUST
                TM 16015-0010
               DB 7048 PG 387

                          N/F
          ARI PROPERTIES, LLC
                TM 15015-0011
               DB 4121 PG 51

                          N/F
  MCDONALD'S CORPORATION
               TM 15015-0014
               DB 5813 PG 359

                               N/F
     GREGORY A. & DONNA R. SWEESY
                     TM 15015-009A
                     DB 484 PG674

DUMPSTER
     PAD

585

59
0

583
584

584

583

586

587

588

589

591

REBAR (FND)

30
.0

0'

MAG NAIL
   (FND)

MAG NAIL
   (SET)

MAG NAIL
   (FND 0.37
FROM CORNER)

MAG NAIL
   (SET)

     CENTURY LINK
          X4656-47

     ME 14413-17686

     ME 14406-17672

10' B.S.L.

10' B.S.L.

10
' B

.S
.L

.

10' B.S.L.

10' B.S.L.

15
' B

U
IL

D
 T

O
 L

IN
E

                          N/F
  GETTYSBURG NATURE ALLIANCE
               TM 15015-0013
               DB 7065 PG 207
   40,995 S.F.( 0.9411 ACRES)

U
C Lh
B

585.53

585.32

CLUBHOUSE
20' x 20'

F.F.E
586.89

88

FUTURE SIDEWALK
(SEE NOTE)

587

588 58
9

590

59
0

59
1

59
2

58
9

58
9

590
591

588

586.52

586.52 586.82

586.82
586.78

586.59

586.00

586.78
586.71

S

PUMP
PAD

PUMP
PAD

58
6

G
ET

TY
S 

G
O

LF
 L

LC

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

LA
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

G
et

ty
sb

ur
g 

Bo
ro

ug
h

SHEET:

PROJECT NO.

DATE:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

D
AT

E
N

O
.

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

Ad
am

s 
C

ou
nt

y,
 P

A

23-135-A

MW

BG

BG

03/27/24

CI
VI

L &
 E

NV
IR

ON
ME

NT
AL

 E
NG

IN
EE

RI
NG

 C
ON

SU
LT

AN
TS

TE
C

H
N

O
LO

G
Y

w
w

w
.k

pi
te

ch
no

lo
gy

.n
et

1 
Ea

st
 H

ar
ris

bu
rg

 S
t.

D
ills

bu
rg

,  
PA

  1
70

19
te

l: 
 (7

17
) 5

02
-0

88
4

fa
x:

  (
71

7)
 5

02
-0

94
5

EN
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
SU

R
VE

YI
N

G
PL

AN
N

IN
G

14
3 

C
ar

lis
le

 S
t.

G
et

ty
sb

ur
g,

 P
A 

 1
73

25
te

l: 
(7

17
) 3

39
-0

61
2

fa
x:

 (7
17

) 3
39

-0
71

7

20
0 

So
ut

h 
2n

d 
St

.
Su

nb
ur

y,
 P

A 
 1

78
01

te
l: 

(5
70

) 2
86

-3
17

6
fa

x:
 (5

70
) 2

86
-2

96
4

K
no

eb
el

, P
ic

ar
el

li,
 In

c.

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

0

SCALE IN FEET
1"= 

20' 10' 20'

20'

C-4

G
R

AD
IN

G
 &

 U
TI

LI
TY

 P
LA

N
 

LEGEND

-PROP. MAJOR CONTOUR

-PROP. MINOR CONTOUR

- EX. CONTOUR524

-PROP. WATERLINEW

S -PROP. SEWER LINE

27

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E



G
ET

TY
S 

G
O

LF
 L

LC

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

LA
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

G
et

ty
sb

ur
g 

Bo
ro

ug
h

SHEET:

PROJECT NO.

DATE:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

D
AT

E
N

O
.

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

Ad
am

s 
C

ou
nt

y,
 P

A

23-135-A

MW

BG

BG

03/27/24

CI
VI

L &
 E

NV
IR

ON
ME

NT
AL

 E
NG

IN
EE

RI
NG

 C
ON

SU
LT

AN
TS

TE
C

H
N

O
LO

G
Y

w
w

w
.k

pi
te

ch
no

lo
gy

.n
et

1 
Ea

st
 H

ar
ris

bu
rg

 S
t.

D
ills

bu
rg

,  
PA

  1
70

19
te

l: 
 (7

17
) 5

02
-0

88
4

fa
x:

  (
71

7)
 5

02
-0

94
5

EN
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
SU

R
VE

YI
N

G
PL

AN
N

IN
G

14
3 

C
ar

lis
le

 S
t.

G
et

ty
sb

ur
g,

 P
A 

 1
73

25
te

l: 
(7

17
) 3

39
-0

61
2

fa
x:

 (7
17

) 3
39

-0
71

7

20
0 

So
ut

h 
2n

d 
St

.
Su

nb
ur

y,
 P

A 
 1

78
01

te
l: 

(5
70

) 2
86

-3
17

6
fa

x:
 (5

70
) 2

86
-2

96
4

K
no

eb
el

, P
ic

ar
el

li,
 In

c.

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION C-5

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
ET

AI
LS

 

MAXIMUM
FINE $___

NOTES:
1/2 - INCH PRE-MOLDED EXPANSION JOINT
FILLER MATERIAL PLACED AT 100' MAX. & AT
STRUCTURES, BETWEEN SIDEWALK AND CURB
AND AT THE END OF THE  WORK DAY.  CUT
MATERIAL TO CONFORM TO  CROSS
SECTIONAL AREA OF CURB.

JOINT SEALER

20
' M

AX. ; 
4 M

IN.

CONTRACTIO
N JO

INTS

CONTRACTION JOINT
3/16" WIDE, 2" DEEP

3/4" RADIUS

BASE

7" 1"

8"
 

16
"

SURFACE

SUBBASE

1/4" RADIUS

GRASS

STANDARD VERTICAL CONCRETE
CURB DETAIL

SCALE: N.T.S.

PENNDOT CLASS A CONCRETE

4" OF PENNDOT 2B
AGGREGATE (AASHTO #57)

SUITABLE SUBGRADE- REMOVE UNSUITABLE
MATERIAL AND BRING TO SUBGRADE ELEVATION
WITH COMPACTED SUBBASE MATERIAL.

6" COARSE AGGREGATE SUBBASE
          (PA 2A)

0-0.3 MILLION ESALs, 25mm
SUPERPAVE BINDER COURSE,
SRL-L, HMA PG. 64-22 (3" DEPTH)

ROADWAY/ PARKING SURFACE

9.5mm SUPERPAVE WEARING
COURSE, 0-0.3 MILLION ESALs,
SRL-L, HMA PG. 64-22 (1-1/2" DEPTH)

ON-SITE PAVEMENT
SECTION DETAIL

NOT TO SCALE

WHERE PAVING IS PLACED OVER UNDERGROUND
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT, PLACE A LAYER OF
MIRAFI 140N BETWEEN STORMWATER DRAINAGE
STONE AND PAVING STONE BASE.

NOTES:
1. ALL HANDICAP ACCESS FACILITIES SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN
    ACCORDANCE WITH ADA AND PENNDOT REQUIREMENTS.
2. THE MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE SLOPE ACROSS THE HANDICAP
    ACCESSABLE PARKING SPACES IS 1:48.

HANDICAP PARKING DETAIL
NOT TO SCALE

20
'

8' 8'
VAN ACCESSABLE

BOROUGH CURB / PAVEMENT
RESTORATION DETAIL

N.T.S.

WIDTH OF FULL DEPTH PAVEMENT
RESTORATION TO ACCOMMODATE
PROPOSED CURB CONSTRUCTION.
MINIMIZE ROADWAY DISTURBANCE.

EX. PAVEMENT
SECTION

SAW CUT EDGE OF PAVEMENT
SEAL SAW CUT AND VERTICAL
CONSTRUCTION WITH PG 64.22

FULL DEPTH RESTORATION AREA
(MACADAM PAVING SECTION)

1 12" 9.5mm SUPERPAVE WEAR COURSE
PG 64.22, 0.0 TO 0.3 MILLION ESAL'S, SRL-L

5" 25mm SUPERPAVE BASE COURSE
PG 64.22, 0.0 TO 0.3 MILLION ESAL'S, SRL-L

6" 2A COMPACTED STONE BASE COURSE

            CURB
(WHERE PRESENT)

1' CUTBACK INTO EXISTING
PAVING SECTION

NOTE:
TEMPORARY PAVING SHALL BE 2" OF COLD PATCH OR HMA.
THE BOROUGH SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR
MAINTENANCE UNTIL PERMANENT PAVING IS INSTALLED.

WIDTH VARIES (SEE PLAN)

SIDEWALK SECTION DETAIL
NOT TO SCALE

SUITABLE SUBGRADE- REMOVE UNSUITABLE
MATERIAL AND BRING TO SUBGRADE ELEVATION
WITH COMPACTED SUBBASE MATERIAL.

4" PREPARED PADOT
2B SUBBASE

4" CLASS AA
CONCRETE

2% MAX. SLOPE

R7-8
18"X12" SIGN

TYPICAL AT ALL
ACCESSIBLE

PARKING SPACES

12"X9" PENALTY SIGN
WITH WORDING AS

REQUIRED BY STATE
OR PER LOCAL CODE

GREEN LEGEND
WHITE SYMBOL ON BLUE
ON WHITE BACKGROUND

N.T.S.

7'
-0

"
3'

-0
" M

IN
.

POST TO BE 2" SQUARE
NON-PERFORATED STEEL
TUBE, POWDERCOATED
BLACK.

12" MIN

3500 PSI CONCRETE
FOOTING,
SET TOP OF FOOTING
BELOW CONCRETE
SIDEWALK PAVING

EXPANSION JOINT, TYP.

FINISHED GRADE

ACCESSIBLE PARKING SIGN
NOT TO SCALE

28



X X X X X

X
X

X

X
XXXXX

X
X

X

XXX

X
X

XXX

MACADAM

MACADAM

MACADAM

MACADAM

MACADAM

JO
H

N
S 

   
AV

EN
U

E

LE
G

AL
 R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
 L

IN
E

LR
G

AL
 R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
 L

IN
E

LE
G

AL
 R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
 L

IN
E

ST
EI

N
W

EH
R

   
 A

VE
N

U
E

STOCKADE FENCE

SPLIT-RAIL FENCE

SPLIT-RAIL FENCE

SPLIT-RAIL FENCE

SP
LI

T-
R

AI
L 

FE
N

C
E

SP
LI

T-
R

AI
L 

FE
N

C
E

SP
LI

T-
R

AI
L 

FE
N

C
ES61° 56 53"E     121.61'

N28° 14' 10"E     30.00'

S61° 56' 53"E     180.00'

S28° 14' 10"W
     110.00'

S61° 56' 53"E     180.00'

S28° 14' 10"W
     94.57'

N61° 56' 53"W     121.23'
N

28
° 0

6'
 4

4"
E 

   
 1

74
.5

6'

REBAR/CAP
     (FND)

MAG NAIL
  (FND)

MAG NAIL
  (FND)

REBAR/CAP
     (FND 0.22 FROM CORNER)

6" WHITE PINE

8" TREE

     4"
TREE

     6"
TREE

REBAR
 (SET)

DRILL HOLE
      (FND

DRILL HOLE
      (SET)

REBAR
 (SET)

( 3
0'

 C
AR

TW
AY

 - 
 5

0'
 R

/W
) ( 3

1'
 C

AR
TW

AY
 - 

 5
0'

 R
/W

)

RIM 582.57
INV. 577.67

R
IM

 5
90

.6
1

                          N/F
AMERICAN BATTLEFIELD TRUST
                TM 16015-0010
               DB 7048 PG 387

                          N/F
          ARI PROPERTIES, LLC
                TM 15015-0011
               DB 4121 PG 51

                          N/F
  MCDONALD'S CORPORATION
               TM 15015-0014
               DB 5813 PG 359

                               N/F
     GREGORY A. & DONNA R. SWEESY
                     TM 15015-009A
                     DB 484 PG674

DUMPSTER
     PAD

585

59
0

583
584

584

583

586

587

588

589

591

REBAR (FND)

30
.0

0'

MAG NAIL
   (FND)

MAG NAIL
   (SET)

MAG NAIL
   (FND 0.37
FROM CORNER)

MAG NAIL
   (SET)

     CENTURY LINK
          X4656-47

     ME 14413-17686

     ME 14406-17672

10' B.S.L.

10' B.S.L.

10
' B

.S
.L

.

10' B.S.L.

10' B.S.L.

15
' B

U
IL

D
 T

O
 L

IN
E

                          N/F
  GETTYSBURG NATURE ALLIANCE
               TM 15015-0013
               DB 7065 PG 207
   40,995 S.F.( 0.9411 ACRES)

585.53

585.32

88

FUTURE SIDEWALK
(SEE NOTE)

(588)

587

588 58
9

590

59
0

59
1

59
2

58
9

58
9

590
591

AR

AR

AR

AR

AR

AR

NSNSNS

NS

NS

NS
NS NS

JV
8

JV
12

CB

CK

CB

CB

CB

CBCB

CK
CK

CK

CK

CK

CK

KJ
9

IV
2

IV
2

CS
6

CS
6

IV
2

IV
2

CS
3

CS
3

G
ET

TY
S 

G
O

LF
 L

LC

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

LA
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

G
et

ty
sb

ur
g 

Bo
ro

ug
h

SHEET:

PROJECT NO.

DATE:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

D
AT

E
N

O
.

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

Ad
am

s 
C

ou
nt

y,
 P

A

23-135-A

MW

BG

BG

03/27/24

CI
VI

L &
 E

NV
IR

ON
ME

NT
AL

 E
NG

IN
EE

RI
NG

 C
ON

SU
LT

AN
TS

TE
C

H
N

O
LO

G
Y

w
w

w
.k

pi
te

ch
no

lo
gy

.n
et

1 
Ea

st
 H

ar
ris

bu
rg

 S
t.

D
ills

bu
rg

,  
PA

  1
70

19
te

l: 
 (7

17
) 5

02
-0

88
4

fa
x:

  (
71

7)
 5

02
-0

94
5

EN
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
SU

R
VE

YI
N

G
PL

AN
N

IN
G

14
3 

C
ar

lis
le

 S
t.

G
et

ty
sb

ur
g,

 P
A 

 1
73

25
te

l: 
(7

17
) 3

39
-0

61
2

fa
x:

 (7
17

) 3
39

-0
71

7

20
0 

So
ut

h 
2n

d 
St

.
Su

nb
ur

y,
 P

A 
 1

78
01

te
l: 

(5
70

) 2
86

-3
17

6
fa

x:
 (5

70
) 2

86
-2

96
4

K
no

eb
el

, P
ic

ar
el

li,
 In

c.

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

0

SCALE IN FEET
1"= 

20' 10' 20'

20'

LS-1

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

PL
AN

 

R
E

G
IS

TE
R

E
D

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
N0

. P
E-

07
88

03

TE
R

R
EN

C
E 

L.
 S

H
EL

D
O

N

29

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROFESSIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

JohnWhitmore
Distance Measurement
0.09   

JohnWhitmore
Distance Measurement
1.60   

JohnWhitmore
Distance Measurement
1.56   

JohnWhitmore
Distance Measurement
1.00   



X X X X X

X
X

X

X
XXXXX

X
X

X

XXX

X
X

XXX

MACADAM

MACADAM

MACADAM

MACADAM

MACADAM

JO
H

N
S 

   
AV

EN
U

E

LE
G

AL
 R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
 L

IN
E

LR
G

AL
 R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
 L

IN
E

LE
G

AL
 R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
 L

IN
E

LE
G

AL
 R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
 L

IN
E

ST
EI

N
W

EH
R

   
 A

VE
N

U
E

CONCRETE RETAINING WALL

STOCKADE FENCE

SPLIT-RAIL FENCE

SPLIT-RAIL FENCE

SPLIT-RAIL FENCE

SP
LI

T-
R

AI
L 

FE
N

C
E

SP
LI

T-
R

AI
L 

FE
N

C
E

SP
LI

T-
R

AI
L 

FE
N

C
ES61° 56 53"E     121.61'

N28° 14' 10"E     30.00'

S61° 56' 53"E     180.00'

S28° 14' 10"W
     110.00'

S61° 56' 53"E     180.00'

S28° 14' 10"W
     94.57'

N61° 56' 53"W     121.23'

N
28

° 0
6'

 4
4"

E 
   

 1
74

.5
6'

REBAR/CAP
     (FND)

MAG NAIL
  (FND)

MAG NAIL
  (FND)

REBAR/CAP
     (FND 0.22 FROM CORNER)

6" WHITE PINE

8" TREE

     4"
TREE

     6"
TREE

REBAR
 (SET)

DRILL HOLE
      (FND

DRILL HOLE
      (SET)

REBAR
 (SET)

( 3
0'

 C
AR

TW
AY

 - 
 5

0'
 R

/W
) ( 3

1'
 C

AR
TW

AY
 - 

 5
0'

 R
/W

)

RIM 582.57
INV. 577.67

R
IM

 5
90

.6
1

                          N/F
AMERICAN BATTLEFIELD TRUST
                TM 16015-0010
               DB 7048 PG 387

                          N/F
          ARI PROPERTIES, LLC
                TM 15015-0011
               DB 4121 PG 51

                          N/F
  MCDONALD'S CORPORATION
               TM 15015-0014
               DB 5813 PG 359

                               N/F
     GREGORY A. & DONNA R. SWEESY
                     TM 15015-009A
                     DB 484 PG674

DUMPSTER
     PAD

585

59
0

583
584

584

583

586

587

588

589

591

REBAR (FND)

30
.0

0'

MAG NAIL
   (FND)

MAG NAIL
   (SET)

MAG NAIL
   (FND 0.37
FROM CORNER)

MAG NAIL
   (SET)

     CENTURY LINK
          X4656-47

     ME 14413-17686

     ME 14406-17672

10' B.S.L.

10' B.S.L.

10
' B

.S
.L

.

10' B.S.L.

10' B.S.L.

15
' B

U
IL

D
 T

O
 L

IN
E

                          N/F
  GETTYSBURG NATURE ALLIANCE
               TM 15015-0013
               DB 7065 PG 207
   40,995 S.F.( 0.9411 ACRES)

585.53

585.32

CLUBHOUSE
20' x 20'

F.F.E
586.89

88

G
R

EE
N

SP
AC

E
AR

EA
 : 

14
28

.5
3

SQ
.F

T.

587

588 58
9

590

59
0

59
1

59
2

58
9

58
9

590
591

588

586.52

586.52 586.82

586.82
586.78

586.59

586.00

586.78
586.71

S

58
6

0.9

0.5

2.1

1.5

1.0

1.4

3.7

4.7

4.6

4.9

5.1

4.0

1.4

0.8

0.7

5.3

9.6

9.4

7.9

7.4

8.8

12.0

14.2

9.4

2.8

0.7

2.9

13.5

18.9

15.3

11.2

9.9

11.8

17.1

22.3

18.2

8.2

2.6

0.8

0.4

0.8

7.0

19.2

23.3

18.0

12.9

11.0

12.2

16.1

19.5

16.7

9.5

4.1

1.6

0.6

0.3

0.6

2.6

9.6

17.2

19.5

16.1

12.4

10.7

11.1

12.7

13.7

11.8

7.7

4.1

1.9

0.9

1.0

7.4

14.0

16.2

15.5

13.2

11.1

10.0

10.1

10.7

10.6

9.0

6.2

3.7

1.9

1.0

0.6

3.9

9.3

21.3

18.1

14.2

11.6

10.0

9.6

10.1

10.9

10.8

8.9

5.8

3.2

1.6

0.9

7.8

19.9

23.3

18.2

13.3

10.5

9.4

9.7

11.2

13.5

14.4

11.4

6.3

2.6

1.3

0.6

2.5

9.2

16.3

18.2

15.1

11.6

9.5

8.9

9.8

12.6

17.3

20.6

15.7

6.4

1.7

1.1

6.8

12.1

14.1

13.8

11.8

9.8

8.6

8.4

9.5

12.6

18.2

22.3

15.3

3.9

1.2

0.5

4.5

15.3

18.4

15.3

12.2

10.0

8.6

7.8

7.8

8.5

10.4

13.4

14.3

7.8

1.4

0.4

1.0

8.9

20.5

21.4

15.8

11.4

9.0

8.0

7.7

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.8

6.0

2.3

0.4

2.1

8.3

15.6

16.6

13.0

9.9

8.3

7.9

8.3

8.8

8.6

7.0

4.7

2.3

1.0

0.3

0.5

2.2

5.7

9.2

10.3

9.2

8.0

7.5

8.2

10.0

12.1

12.1

8.5

3.7

1.1

0.7

1.8

3.6

5.3

6.2

6.3

6.3

6.8

8.5

12.0

16.9

18.5

11.6

3.1

0.9

2.3

3.3

4.0

4.4

4.9

5.9

8.1

12.4

18.9

21.4

11.5

1.8

2.2

2.7

3.2

3.8

4.8

6.6

9.8

13.9

14.2

6.2

0.7

2.4

2.8

3.6

4.6

6.1

7.3

6.0

1.9

2.5

3.0

3.4

3.3

2.1

0.6

1.8

1.5

0.8

0.8

PROPOSED LIGHT
POLE & FIXTURE BY
OTHERS (TYP.)

G
ET

TY
S 

G
O

LF
 L

LC

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

LA
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

G
et

ty
sb

ur
g 

Bo
ro

ug
h

SHEET:

PROJECT NO.

DATE:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

D
AT

E
N

O
.

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

Ad
am

s 
C

ou
nt

y,
 P

A

23-135-A

MW

BG

BG

03/27/24

CI
VI

L &
 E

NV
IR

ON
ME

NT
AL

 E
NG

IN
EE

RI
NG

 C
ON

SU
LT

AN
TS

TE
C

H
N

O
LO

G
Y

w
w

w
.k

pi
te

ch
no

lo
gy

.n
et

1 
Ea

st
 H

ar
ris

bu
rg

 S
t.

D
ills

bu
rg

,  
PA

  1
70

19
te

l: 
 (7

17
) 5

02
-0

88
4

fa
x:

  (
71

7)
 5

02
-0

94
5

EN
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
SU

R
VE

YI
N

G
PL

AN
N

IN
G

14
3 

C
ar

lis
le

 S
t.

G
et

ty
sb

ur
g,

 P
A 

 1
73

25
te

l: 
(7

17
) 3

39
-0

61
2

fa
x:

 (7
17

) 3
39

-0
71

7

20
0 

So
ut

h 
2n

d 
St

.
Su

nb
ur

y,
 P

A 
 1

78
01

te
l: 

(5
70

) 2
86

-3
17

6
fa

x:
 (5

70
) 2

86
-2

96
4

K
no

eb
el

, P
ic

ar
el

li,
 In

c.

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION LT-1

LI
G

H
TI

N
G

 P
LA

N
 

ABOVE FINISHED
=  APPROX. 12"-24" 

BASE HEIGHT

POLE HEIGHT = 25'

ELEVATION

FIXTURE TILT 55
O

FITTER
ADJUSTABLE

GRADE

0

SCALE IN FEET
1"= 

20' 10' 20'

20'

LIGHT POLE DETAIL
NOT TO SCALE

FIXTURE DETAIL
NOT TO SCALE

30

AutoCAD SHX Text
E



X X X X X

X
X

X

X
XXXXX

X
X

X

XXX

X
X

XXX

MACADAM

MACADAM

MACADAM

MACADAM

MACADAM

JO
H

N
S 

   
AV

EN
U

E

LE
G

AL
 R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
 L

IN
E

LR
G

AL
 R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
 L

IN
E

LE
G

AL
 R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
 L

IN
E

LE
G

AL
 R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
 L

IN
E

ST
EI

N
W

EH
R

   
 A

VE
N

U
E

CONCRETE RETAINING WALL

STOCKADE FENCE

SPLIT-RAIL FENCE

SPLIT-RAIL FENCE

SPLIT-RAIL FENCE

SP
LI

T-
R

AI
L 

FE
N

C
E

SP
LI

T-
R

AI
L 

FE
N

C
E

SP
LI

T-
R

AI
L 

FE
N

C
ES61° 56 53"E     121.61'

N28° 14' 10"E     30.00'

S61° 56' 53"E     180.00'

S28° 14' 10"W
     110.00'

S61° 56' 53"E     180.00'

S28° 14' 10"W
     94.57'

N61° 56' 53"W     121.23'

N
28

° 0
6'

 4
4"

E 
   

 1
74

.5
6'

REBAR/CAP
     (FND)

MAG NAIL
  (FND)

MAG NAIL
  (FND)

REBAR/CAP
     (FND 0.22 FROM CORNER)

6" WHITE PINE

8" TREE

     4"
TREE

     6"
TREE

REBAR
 (SET)

DRILL HOLE
      (FND

DRILL HOLE
      (SET)

REBAR
 (SET)

( 3
0'

 C
AR

TW
AY

 - 
 5

0'
 R

/W
) ( 3

1'
 C

AR
TW

AY
 - 

 5
0'

 R
/W

)

RIM 582.57
INV. 577.67

R
IM

 5
90

.6
1

                          N/F
AMERICAN BATTLEFIELD TRUST
                TM 16015-0010
               DB 7048 PG 387

                          N/F
          ARI PROPERTIES, LLC
                TM 15015-0011
               DB 4121 PG 51

                          N/F
  MCDONALD'S CORPORATION
               TM 15015-0014
               DB 5813 PG 359

                               N/F
     GREGORY A. & DONNA R. SWEESY
                     TM 15015-009A
                     DB 484 PG674

DUMPSTER
     PAD

585

59
0

583
584

584

583

586

587

588

589

591

REBAR (FND)

30
.0

0'

MAG NAIL
   (FND)

MAG NAIL
   (SET)

MAG NAIL
   (FND 0.37
FROM CORNER)

MAG NAIL
   (SET)

     CENTURY LINK
          X4656-47

     ME 14413-17686

     ME 14406-17672

10' B.S.L.

10' B.S.L.
10

' B
.S

.L
.

10' B.S.L.

10' B.S.L.

15
' B

U
IL

D
 T

O
 L

IN
E

                          N/F
  GETTYSBURG NATURE ALLIANCE
               TM 15015-0013
               DB 7065 PG 207
   40,995 S.F.( 0.9411 ACRES)

U
C Lh
B

585.53

585.32

CLUBHOUSE
20' x 20'

F.F.E
586.89

88

FUTURE SIDEWALK
(SEE NOTE)

587

588 58
9

590

59
0

59
1

59
2

58
9

58
9

590
591

588

586.52

586.52 586.82

586.82
586.78

586.59

586.00

586.78
586.71

S

TOPSOIL

CONCRETE
WASHOUT
AREA

EXISTING MACADAM
DRIVEWAY TO BE
UTILIZED AS THE
CONSTRUCTION

ENTRANCE

PUMP
PAD

PUMP
PAD

58
6

G
ET

TY
S 

G
O

LF
 L

LC

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

LA
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

G
et

ty
sb

ur
g 

Bo
ro

ug
h

SHEET:

PROJECT NO.

DATE:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

D
AT

E
N

O
.

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

Ad
am

s 
C

ou
nt

y,
 P

A

23-135-A

MW

BG

BG

03/27/24

CI
VI

L &
 E

NV
IR

ON
ME

NT
AL

 E
NG

IN
EE

RI
NG

 C
ON

SU
LT

AN
TS

TE
C

H
N

O
LO

G
Y

w
w

w
.k

pi
te

ch
no

lo
gy

.n
et

1 
Ea

st
 H

ar
ris

bu
rg

 S
t.

D
ills

bu
rg

,  
PA

  1
70

19
te

l: 
 (7

17
) 5

02
-0

88
4

fa
x:

  (
71

7)
 5

02
-0

94
5

EN
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
SU

R
VE

YI
N

G
PL

AN
N

IN
G

14
3 

C
ar

lis
le

 S
t.

G
et

ty
sb

ur
g,

 P
A 

 1
73

25
te

l: 
(7

17
) 3

39
-0

61
2

fa
x:

 (7
17

) 3
39

-0
71

7

20
0 

So
ut

h 
2n

d 
St

.
Su

nb
ur

y,
 P

A 
 1

78
01

te
l: 

(5
70

) 2
86

-3
17

6
fa

x:
 (5

70
) 2

86
-2

96
4

K
no

eb
el

, P
ic

ar
el

li,
 In

c.

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

0

SCALE IN FEET
1"= 

20' 10' 20'

20'

ES-1

ER
O

SI
O

N
 &

 S
ED

IM
EN

T 
C

O
N

TR
O

L 
PL

AN
 

LEGEND
PROPOSED SILT SOXX (18")

PROPOSED STOCKPILE

PROPOSED MAJOR CONTOUR515

LIMIT OF DISTURBANCE (0.81 AC)

TOPSOIL

UC
LhB

EXISTING SOILS

PROPOSED MAJOR CONTOUR516

CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE
THE GENERAL SEQUENCE OF EARTH MOVING AND E/S CONTROL ACTIVITIES FOR PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS SHALL BE AS FOLLOWS:
1. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ESTABLISH THE LIMITS OF THE AREA TO BE DISTURBED, MARKING AND AVOIDING COMPACTION IN

PROPOSED INFILTRATION AREAS AS MUCH AS POSSIBLE.
2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL ALL E&S CONTROLS.
3. PERFORM CLEARING AND GRUBBING OPERATIONS ONLY AS NECESSARY.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL STRIP AND STOCKPILE

TOPSOIL AS NEEDED. ANY DISTURBED AREAS SHOULD BE IMMEDIATELY STABILIZED.
4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PERFORM ALL NECESSARY DEMOLITION IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SITE PLAN.
5. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ROUGH GRADE THE SITE.  USE TEMPORARY SEEDING/MULCHING TO STABILIZE THE SITE UNTIL FINAL

GRADING AND SEEDING ARE PERFORMED.
6. BEGIN CONSTRUCTION OF BUILDINGS, PARKING LOTS, AND UTILITY EXTENSIONS.
7. INSTALL STONE BASE FOR PARKING AREAS, AND SIDEWALKS.
8. INSTALL MINI-GOLF AREA WITH ASSOCIATED WATER FEATURES.
9. FINISH GRADE AND PERMANENTLY STABILIZE DISTURBED AREAS.  AN AREA SHALL BE CONSIDERED TO HAVE ACHIEVED FINAL

STABILIZATION WHEN IT HAS A MINIMUM UNIFORM 70% PERENNIAL VEGETATIVE COVER OR OTHER PERMANENT NON-VEGETATIVE
COVER WITH A DENSITY SUFFICIENT TO RESIST ACCELERATED SURFACE EROSION AND SUBSURFACE CHARACTERISTICS
SUFFICIENT TO RESIST SLIDING AND OTHER MOVEMENTS.

10. INSTALL PAVED AND CONCRETE AREAS.
11. FOLLOWING ESTABLISHMENT OF PERMANENT SEEDING TO A POINT WHERE MINIMUM UNIFORM 70% PERENNIAL VEGETATIVE

COVER HAS BEEN ESTABLISHED, NOTIFY THE COUNTY CONSERVATION DISTRICT A MINIMUM OF SEVEN (7) DAYS PRIOR TO
FINISHING CONSTRUCTION.

12. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE ALL TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROLS AFTER ALL DISTURBED AREAS HAVE
BEEN PERMANENTLY STABILIZED.

13. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL STABILIZE ALL AREAS DISTURBED DURING REMOVAL OF E & S CONTROL DEVICES.

31

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
SX18"

JohnWhitmore
Distance Measurement
0.90   

JohnWhitmore
Distance Measurement
1.00   

JohnWhitmore
Distance Measurement
0.51   

JohnWhitmore
Distance Measurement
2.60   

JohnWhitmore
Distance Measurement
20.04   



G
ET

TY
S 

G
O

LF
 L

LC

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

LA
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

G
et

ty
sb

ur
g 

Bo
ro

ug
h

SHEET:

PROJECT NO.

DATE:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

D
AT

E
N

O
.

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

Ad
am

s 
C

ou
nt

y,
 P

A

23-135-A

MW

BG

BG

03/27/24

CI
VI

L &
 E

NV
IR

ON
ME

NT
AL

 E
NG

IN
EE

RI
NG

 C
ON

SU
LT

AN
TS

TE
C

H
N

O
LO

G
Y

w
w

w
.k

pi
te

ch
no

lo
gy

.n
et

1 
Ea

st
 H

ar
ris

bu
rg

 S
t.

D
ills

bu
rg

,  
PA

  1
70

19
te

l: 
 (7

17
) 5

02
-0

88
4

fa
x:

  (
71

7)
 5

02
-0

94
5

EN
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
SU

R
VE

YI
N

G
PL

AN
N

IN
G

14
3 

C
ar

lis
le

 S
t.

G
et

ty
sb

ur
g,

 P
A 

 1
73

25
te

l: 
(7

17
) 3

39
-0

61
2

fa
x:

 (7
17

) 3
39

-0
71

7

20
0 

So
ut

h 
2n

d 
St

.
Su

nb
ur

y,
 P

A 
 1

78
01

te
l: 

(5
70

) 2
86

-3
17

6
fa

x:
 (5

70
) 2

86
-2

96
4

K
no

eb
el

, P
ic

ar
el

li,
 In

c.

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION ES-2

E&
S 

N
O

TE
S 

& 
D

ET
AI

LS
 

STANDARD E&S PLAN NOTES
1. ALL EARTH DISTURBANCES, INCLUDING CLEARING AND GRUBBING AS WELL AS CUTS AND FILLS SHALL BE DONE

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE APPROVED E&S PLAN. A COPY OF THE APPROVED DRAWINGS (STAMPED, SIGNED AND
DATED BY THE REVIEWING AGENCY) MUST BE AVAILABLE AT THE PROJECT SITE AT ALL TIMES. THE REVIEWING
AGENCY SHALL BE NOTIFIED OF ANY CHANGES TO THE APPROVED PLAN PRIOR TO IMPLEMENTATION OF THOSE
CHANGES. THE REVIEWING AGENCY MAY REQUIRE A WRITTEN SUBMITTAL OF THOSE CHANGES FOR REVIEW AND
APPROVAL AT ITS DISCRETION.

2. AT LEAST 7 DAYS PRIOR TO STARTING ANY EARTH DISTURBANCE ACTIVITIES, INCLUDING CLEARING AND
GRUBBING, THE OWNER AND/OR OPERATOR SHALL INVITE ALL CONTRACTORS, THE LANDOWNER, APPROPRIATE
MUNICIPAL OFFICIALS, THE E&S PLAN PREPARER, THE PCSM PLAN PREPARER, THE LICENSED PROFESSIONAL
RESPONSIBLE FOR OVERSIGHT OF CRITICAL STAGES OF IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PCSM PLAN, AND A
REPRESENTATIVE FROM THE LOCAL CONSERVATION DISTRICT TO AN ON-SITE PRECONSTRUCTION MEETING.

3. AT LEAST 3 DAYS PRIOR TO STARTING ANY EARTH DISTURBANCE ACTIVITIES, OR EXPANDING INTO AN AREA
PREVIOUSLY UNMARKED, THE PENNSYLVANIA ONE CALL SYSTEM INC. SHALL BE NOTIFIED AT 811 FOR THE
LOCATION OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.

4. ALL EARTH DISTURBANCE ACTIVITIES SHALL PROCEED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SEQUENCE PROVIDED ON THE
PLAN DRAWINGS. DEVIATION FROM THAT SEQUENCE MUST BE APPROVED IN WRITING FROM THE LOCAL
CONSERVATION DISTRICT OR BY THE DEPARTMENT PRIOR TO IMPLEMENTATION.

5. AREAS TO BE FILLED ARE TO BE CLEARED, GRUBBED, AND STRIPPED OF TOPSOIL TO REMOVE TREES,
VEGETATION, ROOTS AND OTHER OBJECTIONABLE MATERIAL.

6. CLEARING, GRUBBING, AND TOPSOIL STRIPPING SHALL BE LIMITED TO THOSE AREAS DESCRIBED IN EACH STAGE
OF THE CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE. GENERAL SITE CLEARING, GRUBBING AND TOPSOIL STRIPPING MAY NOT
COMMENCE IN ANY STAGE OR PHASE OF THE PROJECT UNTIL THE E&S BMPS SPECIFIED BY THE BMP SEQUENCE
FOR THAT STAGE OR PHASE HAVE BEEN INSTALLED AND ARE FUNCTIONING AS DESCRIBED IN THIS E&S PLAN.

7. AT NO TIME SHALL CONSTRUCTION VEHICLES BE ALLOWED TO ENTER AREAS OUTSIDE THE LIMIT OF
DISTURBANCE BOUNDARIES SHOWN ON THE PLAN MAPS.  THESE AREAS MUST BE CLEARLY MARKED AND
FENCED OFF BEFORE CLEARING AND GRUBBING OPERATIONS BEGIN.

8. TOPSOIL REQUIRED FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT OF VEGETATION SHALL BE STOCKPILED AT THE LOCATION(S)
SHOWN ON THE PLAN MAPS(S) IN THE AMOUNT NECESSARY TO COMPLETE THE FINISH GRADING OF ALL EXPOSED
AREAS THAT ARE TO BE STABILIZED BY VEGETATION.  EACH STOCKPILE SHALL BE PROTECTED IN THE MANNER
SHOWN ON THE PLAN DRAWINGS.  STOCKPILE HEIGHTS SHALL NOT EXCEED 35 FEET.  STOCKPILE SLOPES SHALL
BE 2H:1V OR FLATTER.

9. IMMEDIATELY UPON DISCOVERING UNFORESEEN CIRCUMSTANCES POSING THE POTENTIAL FOR ACCELERATED
EROSION AND/OR SEDIMENT POLLUTION, THE OPERATOR SHALL IMPLEMENT APPROPRIATE BEST MANAGEMENT
PRACTICES TO MINIMIZE THE POTENTIAL FOR EROSION AND SEDIMENT POLLUTION AND NOTIFY THE LOCAL
CONSERVATION DISTRICT AND/OR THE REGIONAL OFFICE OF THE DEPARTMENT.

10.ALL BUILDING MATERIALS AND WASTES SHALL BE REMOVED FROM THE SITE AND RECYCLED OR DISPOSED OF IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE DEPARTMENT'S SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT REGULATIONS AT 25 PA. CODE 260.1 ET
SEQ., 271.1, AND 287.1 ET. SEQ.  NO BUILDING MATERIALS OR WASTES OR UNUSED BUILDING MATERIALS SHALL
BE BURNED, BURIED, DUMPED, OR DISCHARGED AT THE SITE.

11.ALL OFF-SITE WASTE AND BORROW AREAS MUST HAVE AN E&S PLAN APPROVED BY THE LOCAL CONSERVATION
DISTRICT OR THE DEPARTMENT FULLY IMPLEMENTED PRIOR TO BEING ACTIVATED.

12.THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ENSURING THAT ANY MATERIAL BROUGHT ON SITE IS CLEAN FILL. FORM
FP-001 MUST BE RETAINED BY THE PROPERTY OWNER FOR ANY FILL MATERIAL AFFECTED BY A SPILL OR
RELEASE OF A REGULATED SUBSTANCE BUT QUALIFYING AS CLEAN FILL DUE TO ANALYTICAL TESTING.

13.ALL PUMPING OF WATER FROM ANY WORK AREA SHALL BE DONE ACCORDING TO THE PROCEDURE DESCRIBED IN
THIS PLAN, OVER UNDISTURBED VEGETATED AREAS.

14.UNTIL THE SITE IS STABILIZED, ALL EROSION AND SEDIMENT BMPS SHALL BE MAINTAINED PROPERLY.
MAINTENANCE SHALL INCLUDE INSPECTIONS OF ALL EROSION AND SEDIMENT BMPS AFTER EACH RUNOFF EVENT
AND ON A WEEKLY BASIS. ALL PREVENTATIVE AND REMEDIAL MAINTENANCE WORK, INCLUDING CLEAN OUT,
REPAIR, REPLACEMENT, REGRADING, RESEEDING, REMULCHING AND RENETTING MUST BE PERFORMED
IMMEDIATELY. IF THE E&S BMP'S FAIL TO PERFORM AS EXPECTED, REPLACEMENT BMP'S, OR MODIFICATIONS OF
THOSE INSTALLED WILL BE REQUIRED.

15.A LOG SHOWING DATES THAT E&S BMP'S WERE INSPECTED AS WELL AS ANY DEFICIENCIES FOUND AND THE DATE
THEY WERE CORRECTED SHALL BE MAINTAINED ON THE SITE AND BE MADE AVAILABLE TO REGULATORY AGENCY
OFFICIALS AT THE TIME OF INSPECTION.

16.SEDIMENT TRACKED ONTO ANY PUBLIC ROADWAY OR SIDEWALK SHALL BE RETURNED TO THE CONSTRUCTION
SITE BY THE END OF EACH WORK DAY AND DISPOSED IN THE MANNER DESCRIBED IN THIS PLAN.  IN NO CASE
SHALL THE SEDIMENT BE WASHED, SHOVELED, OR SWEPT INTO ANY ROADSIDE DITCH, STORM SEWER, OR
SURFACE WATER.

17.ALL SEDIMENT REMOVED FROM BMPS SHALL BE DISPOSED OF IN THE MANNER DESCRIBED ON THE PLAN
DRAWINGS.

18.AREAS WHICH ARE TO BE TOPSOILED SHALL BE SCARIFIED TO A MINIMUM DEPTH OF 3 TO 5 INCHES OR  6  TO
12 INCHES ON COMPACTED SOILS, PRIOR TO THE PLACEMENT OF TOPSOIL. AREAS TO BE VEGETATED SHALL
HAVE A MINIMUM 4 INCHES OF TOPSOIL IN PLACE PRIOR TO SEEDING AND MULCHING.  FILL OUT SLOPES SHALL
HAVE A MINIMUM OF 2 INCHES OF TOPSOIL.

19.ALL FILLS SHALL BE COMPACTED AS REQUIRED TO REDUCE EROSION, SLIPPAGE, SETTLEMENT, SUBSIDENCE OR
OTHER RELATED PROBLEMS. FILL INTENDED TO SUPPORT BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES AND CONDUITS, ETC. SHALL
BE COMPACTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL REQUIREMENTS OR CODES.

20.ALL EARTHEN FILLS SHALL BE PLACED IN COMPACTED LAYERS NOT TO EXCEED 9 INCHES IN THICKNESS.
21.FILL MATERIALS SHALL BE FREE OF FROZEN PARTICLES, BRUSH, ROOTS, SOD, OR OTHER FOREIGN OR

OBJECTIONABLE MATERIALS THAT WOULD INTERFERE WITH OR PREVENT CONSTRUCTION OF SATISFACTORY
FILLS.

22.FROZEN MATERIALS OR SOFT, MUCKY, OR HIGHLY COMPRESSIBLE MATERIALS SHALL NOT BE INCORPORATED
INTO FILLS.

23.FILL SHALL NOT BE PLACED ON SATURATED OR FROZEN SURFACES.
24.SEEPS OR SPRINGS ENCOUNTERED DURING CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE HANDLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE

STANDARD AND SPECIFICATION FOR SUBSURFACE DRAIN OR OTHER APPROVED METHOD.
25.ALL GRADED AREAS SHALL BE PERMANENTLY STABILIZED IMMEDIATELY UPON REACHING FINISHED GRADE. CUT

SLOPES IN COMPETENT BEDROCK AND ROCK FILLS NEED NOT BE VEGETATED.  SEEDED AREAS WITHIN 50 FEET
OF A SURFACE WATER, OR AS OTHERWISE SHOWN ON THE PLAN DRAWINGS, SHALL BE BLANKETED ACCORDING
TO THE STANDARDS OF THIS PLAN.

26.IMMEDIATELY AFTER EARTH DISTURBANCE ACTIVITIES CEASE IN ANY AREA OR SUBAREA OF THE PROJECT, THE
OPERATOR SHALL STABILIZE ALL DISTURBED AREAS.  DURING NON-GERMINATING MONTHS, MULCH OR
PROTECTIVE BLANKETING SHALL BE APPLIED AS DESCRIBED IN THE PLAN. AREAS NOT AT FINISHED GRADE,
WHICH WILL BE REACTIVATED WITHIN 1 YEAR, MAY BE STABILIZED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TEMPORARY
STABILIZATION SPECIFICATIONS.  THOSE AREAS WHICH WILL NOT BE REACTIVATED WITHIN 1 YEAR SHALL BE
STABILIZED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PERMANENT STABILIZATION SPECIFICATIONS.

27.PERMANENT STABILIZATION IS DEFINED AS A MINIMUM UNIFORM, PERENNIAL 70% VEGETATIVE COVER OR OTHER
PERMANENT NON-VEGETATIVE COVER WITH A DENSITY SUFFICIENT TO RESIST ACCELERATED EROSION.  CUT
AND FILL SLOPES SHALL BE CAPABLE OF RESISTING FAILURE DUE TO SLUMPING, SLIDING, OR OTHER
MOVEMENTS.

28.E&S BMPS SHALL REMAIN FUNCTIONAL AS SUCH UNTIL ALL AREAS TRIBUTARY TO THEM ARE PERMANENTLY
STABILIZED OR UNTIL THEY ARE REPLACED BY ANOTHER BMP APPROVED BY THE LOCAL CONSERVATION
DISTRICT OR THE DEPARTMENT.

29.UPON COMPLETION OF ALL EARTH DISTURBANCE ACTIVITIES AND PERMANENT STABILIZATION OF ALL DISTURBED
AREAS, THE OWNER AND/OR OPERATOR SHALL CONTACT THE LOCAL CONSERVATION DISTRICT FOR AN
INSPECTION PRIOR· TO' REMOVAL/CONVERSION OF THE E&S BMPS.

30.AFTER FINAL SITE STABILIZATION HAS BEEN ACHIEVED, TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENT BMPS MUST BE
REMOVED OR CONVERTED TO PERMANENT POST CONSTRUCTION STORMWATER MANAGEMENT BMPS. AREAS
DISTURBED DURING REMOVAL OR CONVERSION OF THE BMPS SHALL BE STABILIZED IMMEDIATELY.  IN ORDER TO
ENSURE RAPID REVEGETATION OF DISTURBED AREAS, SUCH REMOVAL/CONVERSIONS ARE TO BE DONE ONLY
DURING THE GERMINATING SEASON.

31.UPON COMPLETION OF ALL EARTH DISTURBANCE ACTIVITIES AND PERMANENT STABILIZATION OF ALL DISTURBED
AREAS, THE OWNER AND/OR OPERATOR SHALL CONTACT THE LOCAL CONSERVATION DISTRICT TO SCHEDULE A
FINAL INSPECTION.

32.FAILURE TO CORRECTLY INSTALL E&S BMPS, FAILURE TO PREVENT SEDIMENT-LADEN RUNOFF FROM LEAVING
THE CONSTRUCTION SITE, OR FAILURE TO TAKE IMMEDIATE CORRECTIVE ACTION TO RESOLVE FAILURE OF E&S
BMP'S MAY RESULT IN ADMINISTRATIVE, CIVIL, AND/OR CRIMINAL PENALTIES BEING INSTITUTED BY THE
DEPARTMENT AS DEFINED IN SECTION 602 OF THE PENNSYLVANIA CLEAN STREAMS LAW.  THE CLEAN STREAMS
LAW PROVIDES FOR UP TO $10,000 PER DAY IN CIVIL PENALTIES, UP TO $10,000 IN SUMMARY CRIMINAL
PENALTIES, AND UP TO $25,000 IN MISDEMEANOR CRIMINAL PENALTIES FOR EACH VIOLATION.

33. CONCRETE WASH WATER SHALL BE HANDLED IN THE MANNER DESCRIBED ON THE PLAN DRAWINGS.  IN NO CASE
SHALL IT BE ALLOWED TO ENTER ANY SURFACE WATERS OR GROUNDWATER SYSTEMS.

34. ALL CHANNELS SHALL BE KEPT FREE OF OBSTRUCTIONS INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO FILL, ROCKS, LEAVES,
WOODY DEBRIS, ACCUMULATED SEDIMENT, EXCESS VEGETATION, AND CONSTRUCTION MATERIAL/WASTES.

35. UNDERGROUND UTILITIES CUTTING THROUGH ANY ACTIVE CHANNEL SHALL BE IMMEDIATELY BACKFILLED AND
THE CHANNEL RESTORED TO ITS ORIGINAL CROSS-SECTION AND PROTECTIVE LINING.  ANY BASE FLOW WITHIN
THE CHANNEL SHALL BE CONVEYED PAST THE WORK AREA IN THE MANNER DESCRIBED IN THIS PLAN UNTIL SUCH
RESTORATION IS COMPLETE.

36. EROSION CONTROL BLANKETING SHALL BE INSTALLED ON ALL SLOPES 3H:1V OR STEEPER WITHIN 50 FEET OF A
SURFACE WATER AND ON ALL OTHER DISTURBED AREAS SPECIFIED ON THE PLAN MAPS AND/OR DETAIL SHEETS.

LAND GRADING SPECIFICATIONS

PERMANENT STABILIZATION SEEDING MIXTURES

1. ALL FILL SHALL BE TAKEN FROM ON-SITE MATERIAL UNLESS OTHERWISE DIRECTED. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL SPECIFY IN THE BID IF ANY MATERIAL IS TO BE BROUGHT IN FROM OFF SITE.

2. PRIOR TO PAVEMENT AND PAD SITE GRADING, TOPSOIL SHALL BE STRIPPED AND TEMPORARILY
STOCKPILED. FOLLOWING FILLING AND ROUGH GRADING OF LAWN AREAS, TOPSOIL SHALL BE
SPREAD AND VEGETATIVE COVER ESTABLISHED.

3. ANY FILL MATERIAL SHALL BE FREE OF BRUSH, WOOD, RUBBISH, LOGS, STUMPS, SOD AND
OTHER OBJECTIONABLE MATERIAL.

4. PLACE FILL IN (1) FOOT LIFTS AND PROVIDE COMPACTION BY RUNNING EQUIPMENT OVER FILL. IN
PLACING FILL, THE HEIGHT OF THE GRADE SHALL BE INCREASED BY THE AMOUNT NEEDED TO
ENSURE THAT THE DESIGN FINISHED GRADE WILL BE OBTAINED AFTER SETTLEMENT HAS TAKEN
PLACE. THIS INCREASE IN FILL PLACEMENT HEIGHT SHALL BE APPROXIMATELY 10%.

5. REPLACE TOPSOIL ON ALL DISTURBED AREAS TO A MINIMUM OF 6" IN DEPTH.

     SPECIES                                            SEEDING RATE (LB/AC)
 ANNUAL WINTER RYE GRASS                           40
 TALL FESCUE                                                       60
 FINE RED FESCUE                                               35
 PERENNIAL RYE                                                  15
 FERTILIZER (10-20-20)                                      1000
 AGRICULTURAL GRADE LIME                      6 TON/AC
 STRAW MULCH                                              3 TON/AC

CONTRACTOR MAY PROVIDE A SUITABLE ALTERNATE TO THE SPECIFIED
SEED MIXTURE. THE SEED MIXTURE SHALL MEET THE SPECIFICATIONS OF
THE PENN STATE AGRONOMY GUIDE. ANY ALTERNATIVES SHALL ALSO BE
APPROVED BY THE OWNER AND/OR ADAMS COUNTY CONSERVATION DISTRICT.
IN THE EVENT THAT VEGETATIVE COVER IS NOT ESTABLISHED, THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE BIODEGRADABLE STABILIZATION MATTING
TO HOLD SLOPES UNTIL VEGETATIVE COVER IS ESTABLISHED. ANCHOR MULCH
BY CRIMPING UNDER A TRACTOR DRAWN IMPLEMENT ON CONTOUR.

VEGETATIVE STABILIZATION

VEGETATIVE STABILIZATION -- SEED MIXTURES AND SPECIFICATIONS

CONTROL OF CARRY OVER SEDIMENT

CONTROL OF WIND AND DUST

DEWATERING TRENCHES AND EXCAVATION PITS

PERMANENT SOIL EROSION & SEDIMENTATION CONTROL MEASURES

TEMPORARY EROSION & SEDIMENT POLLUTION CONTROL MEASURES

EROSION & SEDIMENT POLLUTION CONTROL PLAN
BRIEF DESCRIPTION

1. REMOVE COARSE FRAGMENTS FROM SURFACE.
2. SOIL SHALL BE LOOSENED TO A DEPTH OF 3 INCHES BY RAKING, DISCING OR OTHER ACCEPTABLE

MEANS PRIOR TO SEEDING.
3. SEEDING: APPLY SEED UNIFORMLY AT THE SPECIFIED RATE WITH A CYCLONE SEEDER, DRILL,

CULTIPACKER SEEDER OR HYDROSEEDER. WHEN NOT USING A HYDROSEEDER, SEED SHOULD BE
APPLIED TO A MAXIMUM DEPTH OF 1/4 INCH ON CLAYEY SOILS AND 1/2 INCH ON SANDY SOILS. WHEN
USING A HYDROSEEDER, THE SEED AND FERTILIZER SHALL BE MIXED ON SITE AND THE SEEDING
SHALL BE IMMEDIATE WITHOUT INTERRUPTION.

4. DO NOT SOW IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING RAIN OR WHEN GROUND IS TOO DRY DURING WINDY PERIODS.
5. ALL SEED SPECIFICATIONS SUCH AS PURITY, READY GERM, TOTAL GERM, ETC.,SHALL BE IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE PENN STATE UNIVERSITY AGRONOMY GUIDE.
6. IF AREAS ARE TO REMAIN DISTURBED FROM NOVEMBER 1 THROUGH MARCH 1 (NON-GROWING

SEASON), THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT SAID AREAS BY SEEDING AND MULCHING, SODDING, OR
BY PLACEMENT OF MATTING AS NECESSARY. THIS WORK SHALL BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
SEQUENCE. MULCHING SHALL BE DONE AT RATE AS LISTED BELOW.

7. TEMPORARY STABILIZATION: SITE PREPARATION SHALL CONSIST OF APPLYING (1) TON OF LIME PER
ACRE AND 600 LB. PER ACRE OF 10-10-10 FERTILIZER. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE ANNUAL
RYEGRASS AT A RATE OF 40 LB/AC. AND MULCH WITH HAY OR STRAW AT A RATE OF 3 TONS PER ACRE.
ANCHOR MULCH BY CRIMPING UNDER A TRACTOR DRAWN IMPLEMENT ON CONTOUR.

ALL DISTURBED AREAS SHALL BE IMMEDIATELY STABILIZED, TEMPORARILY OR PERMANENTLY.

THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ENSURING THAT SEDIMENT IS NOT TRANSPORTED FROM
THE CONSTRUCTION SITE AT THE END OF EACH DAY. ALL SEDIMENT DEPOSITED ON PAVED
ROADWAYS SHALL BE REMOVED AND RETURNED TO THE CONSTRUCTION SITE.

WHERE WIND AND DUST EROSION IS A PROBLEM, THE UNSTABLE SURFACE SHALL BE SPRINKLED OR
A DUST SUPPRESSOR WILL BE APPLIED. PROMPT ESTABLISHMENT OF VEGETATIVE SOIL COVER AND
PLACEMENT OF GRAVEL IN SPECIFIED AREAS WILL MINIMIZE WIND EROSION AND DUST PROBLEMS.

SHOULD THE OCCASION ARISE THAT EXCAVATIONS WOULD NEED TO BE DEWATERED BY PUMPING
SO THAT CONSTRUCTION CAN RESUME,THE FOLLOWING METHOD SHOULD BE UTILIZED:

   PUMP SEDIMENT LADEN WATER THROUGH PREFABRICATED
   FILTER DEVICE(S) (I.E. "PUMPED WATER FILTER BAG")

PERMANENT SEEDING SHALL BE PERFORMED AS OUTLINED UNDER PERMANENT  SEEDING MIXTURES.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAKE AN ATTEMPT TO DISTURB AS LITTLE AREA AS POSSIBLE IN AN
EFFORT TO LESSEN EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION PROBLEMS. ALL TEMPORARILY STOCKPILED FILL
AT THE SITE SHALL BE COVERED OR OTHERWISE STABILIZED TO PREVENT EROSION. THE FOLLOWING
TEMPORARY METHODS TO CONTROL EROSION ARE TO BE FOLLOWED:

1. SILT SOCK SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED ALONG THE DOWNSLOPE TO FILTER ANY SILT-LADEN
RUNOFF FROM THE CONSTRUCTION AREA. TEMPORARY STOCKPILED TOPSOIL OR OTHER SOIL
MATERIAL SHALL BE PLACED UPSLOPE OF EROSION CONTROL MEASURES. THE SILT SOCK
SHALL ALSO BE PLACED AT LOCATIONS AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS.

2. TEMPORARY SEEDING SHALL BE PERFORMED AS OUTLINED UNDER VEGETATED STABILIZATION.

IN GENERAL, SEDIMENT AND POLLUTION CONTROL FOR THE PROJECT WILL BE ACCOMPLISHED WITH
THE USE OF SILT SOCK, A CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE, AND TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT SEEDING.

DESIGN

1.  BEFORE REMOVING A BAG FROM THE HOSE, THE BAG MUST BE TIED OFF BELOW THE END OF
THE HOSE, ALLOWING THE BAG TO DRAIN.  DRAINAGE SHOULD NOT BE ALLOWED THROUGH THE 

BE PROVIDED.  BAGS SHALL NOT BE PLACED ON SLOPES GREATER THAN 5%.

MAINTENANCE

INLET HOLE.

1.  BAGS SHALL BE LOCATED IN WELL-VEGETATED (GRASSY) AREA, AND DISCHARGE ONTO STABLE,
EROSION RESISTANT AREAS.  WHERE THIS IS NOT POSSIBLE, A GEOTEXTILE FLOW PATH SHALL

2.  TO AVOID RUPTURING THE BAG, THE BAG SHOULD BE ATTENDED AND PUMPING RATES MONITORED.

PUMPED WATER FILTER BAG
NOT TO SCALE

CONSTRUCTION

1. FILTER BAGS SHALL BE MADE FROM NON-WOVEN GEOTEXTILE MATERIAL SEWN IN
HIGH STRENGTH, DOUBLE STITCHED "J" TYPE SEAMS.  THEY SHOULD BE CAPABLE OF
TRAPPING PARTICLES LARGER THAN 150 MICRONS.
2. A SUITABLE MEANS OF ACCESSING THE BAG WITH MACHINERY REQUIRED FOR
DISPOSAL PURPOSES MUST BE PROVIDED.  FILTER BAGS SHALL BE REPLACED WHEN
THEY BECOME 1/2 FULL.  SPARE  BAGS SHALL BE KEPT AVAILABLE FOR REPLACEMENT
OF THOSE THAT HAVE FAILED OR ARE FILLED.
3. THE PUMP DISCHARGE HOSE SHALL BE INSERTED INTO THE BAGS IN THE MANNER
SPECIFIED BY THE MANUFACTURER AND SECURELY CLAMPED.
4. THE PUMPING RATE SHALL BE NO GREATER THAN 750 GPM OR 1/2 THE MAXIMUM
SPECIFIED BY THE MANUFACTURER, WHICHEVER IS LESS.  PUMP INTAKES SHOULD BE
FLOATING AND SCREENED.

WELL VEGETATED,
GRASSY AREA

HOSE

GRASSY AREA

DISCHARGE

CLAMP

PUMP

WELL VEGETATED,

FILTER BAG

PLAN VIEW

PUMP

WELL VEGETATED, GRASSY AREA

FILTER BAG4'(MAX.)

13'

15'

15'

CLAMP

HOSE

CLAMP

DISCHARGE
HOSE

INTAKE HOSE

CLAMP
INTAKE 

SCALE: NTS

NOTES:
SEED AND SOIL AMENDMENTS SHALL BE APPLIED ACCORDING TO THE RATES IN THE PLAN DRAWINGS PRIOR TO
INSTALLING THE BLANKET.

PROVIDE ANCHOR TRENCH AT TOE OF SLOPE IN SIMILAR FASHION AS AT TOP OF SLOPE.

SLOPE SURFACE SHALL BE FREE OF ROCKS, CLODS, STICKS, AND GRASS.

BLANKET SHALL HAVE GOOD CONTINUOUS CONTACT WITH UNDERLYING SOIL THROUGHOUT ENTIRE LENGTH. LAY
BLANKET LOOSELY AND STAKE OR STAPLE TO MAINTAIN DIRECT CONTACT WITH SOIL. DO NOT STRETCH
BLANKET.

THE BLANKET SHALL BE STAPLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS.

BLANKETED AREAS SHALL BE INSPECTED WEEKLY AND AFTER EACH RUNOFF EVENT UNTIL PERENNIAL
VEGETATION IS ESTABLISHED TO A MINIMUM UNIFORM 70% COVERAGE THROUGHOUT THE BLANKETED AREA.
DAMAGED OR DISPLACED BLANKETS SHALL BE RESTORED OR REPLACED WITHIN 4 CALENDAR DAYS.

BLANKET EDGES
STAPLED AND
OVERLAPPED
(4 IN. MIN.)

INSTALL BEGINNING OF ROLL
IN 6 IN. x 6 IN. ANCHOR
TRENCH, STAPLE, BACKFILL
AND COMPACT SOIL

STARTING AT TOP OF
SLOPE, ROLL BLANKETS IN
DIRECTION OF WATER FLOW

PREPARE SEED BED
(INCLUDING APPLICATION OF LIME,
FERTILIZER AND SEED) PRIOR TO
BLANKET INSTALLATION

REFER TO MANUF. RECOMMENDED
STAPLING PATTERN FOR
STEEPNESS AND LENGTH OF
SLOPE BEING BLANKETED

THE BLANKET SHOULD
NOT BE STRETCHED;
IT MUST MAINTAIN
GOOD SOIL CONTACT

OVERLAP BLANKET ENDS 6 IN. MIN.
WITH THE UPSLOPE BLANKED
OVERLYING THE DOWNSLOPE BLANKET
(SHINGLE STYLE). STAPLE SECURELY.

EROSION CONTROL BLANKET INSTALLATION

100
101

102

NOTES:
SOCK FABRIC SHALL MEET STANDARDS OF TABLE 4.1 OF THE PA DEP EROSION
CONTROL MANUAL.  COMPOST SHALL MEET THE STANDARDS OF TABLE 4.2 OF THE PA
DEP EROSION CONTROL MANUAL.
COMPOST FILTER SOCK SHALL BE PLACED AT EXISTING LEVEL GRADE. BOTH ENDS OF
THE BARRIER SHALL BE EXTENDED AT LEAST 8 FEET UP SLOPE AT 45 DEGREES TO
THE MAIN BARRIER ALIGNMENT. MAXIMUM SLOPE LENGTH ABOVE ANY BARRIER
SHALL NOT EXCEED THAT SPECIFIED FOR THE SIZE OF THE SOCK AND THE SLOPE OF
ITS TRIBUTARY AREA.
TRAFFIC SHALL NOT BE PERMITTED TO CROSS COMPOST FILTER SOCKS.
ACCUMULATED SEDIMENT SHALL BE REMOVED WHEN IT REACHES 1/2 THE ABOVE
GROUND HEIGHT OF THE BARRIER AND DISPOSED IN THE MANNER DESCRIBED
ELSEWHERE IN THE PLAN.
COMPOST FILTER SOCKS SHALL BE INSPECTED WEEKLY AND AFTER EACH RUNOFF
EVENT. DAMAGED SOCKS SHALL BE REPAIRED ACCORDING TO MANUFACTURER'S
SPECIFICATIONS OR REPLACED WITHIN 24 HOURS OF INSPECTION.
BIODEGRADABLE COMPOST FILTER SOCKS SHALL BE REPLACED AFTER 6 MONTHS;
PHOTODEGRADABLE SOCKS AFTER 1 YEAR.  POLYPROPYLENE SOCKS SHALL BE
REPLACED ACCORDING TO MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS.
UPON STABILIZATION OF THE AREA TRIBUTARY TO THE SOCK, STAKES SHALL BE
REMOVED. THE SOCK MAY BE LEFT IN PLACE AND VEGETATED OR REMOVED. IN THE
LATTER CASE, THE MESH SHALL BE CUT OPEN AND THE MULCH SPREAD AS A SOIL
SUPPLEMENT.

UNDISTURBED AREA
DISTURBED AREA

BLOWN/PLACED
FILTER MEDIA

COMPOST FILTER SOCK 2 IN. x 2 IN. WOODEN STAKES
PLACED 10 FT ON CENTER

2 IN. x 2 IN. WOODEN STAKES
PLACED 10 FT ON CENTER

COMPOST
FILTER

SOCK

EXISTING
CONTOURS

PLAN VIEW

SECTION

UNDISTURBED AREA

DISTURBED AREA

FLO
WFL

OW

STANDARD CONSTRUCTION DETAIL #4-1
COMPOST FILTER SOCK

NTS

EROSION CONTROL FACILITIES TEMPORARY MAINTENANCE
SCHEDULE
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL IMPLEMENT THE FOLLOWING MAINTENANCE SCHEDULE AT A MINIMUM.
MAINTENANCE SHALL BEGIN IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING INSTALLATION OF THE EROSION AND
SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES AND SHALL BE FOLLOWED UNTIL THE FACILITY IS REMOVED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THIS PLAN. A WRITTEN REPORT DOCUMENTING EACH INSPECTION REPAIR OR
REPLACEMENT AND / OR MAINTENANCE PERFORMED SHALL BE COMPLETED AND KEPT ON SITE FOR
USE UPON REQUEST OF THE CONSERVATION DISTRICT.

                                                  INSPECTION
 MEASURE                                SCHEDULE                   DESCRIPTION

SILT SOCKS                           DAILY OR AFTER           INSPECT, REPLACE OR RESECURE WHEN NEEDED.
    ALL STORM EVENTS       REMOVE SEDIMENT WHEN ACCUMULATION

      REACHES 1/2 HEIGHT OF SOCK (ABOVE GROUND).

SEEDED/MULCHED                  WEEKLY                      INSPECT, REPLACE ANY MATERIALS AREAS 
                     AS NECESSARY; RE-SEED AS REQUIRED

TEMPORARILY                  WEEKLY AND AFTER        INSPECT, RE-SEED, STOCKPILE WHERE
STOCKPILED    ALL STORM EVENTS       NECESSARY. REPAIR SILT SOCK IF
SOIL MATERIAL          NECESSARY

NOTE: UNTIL THE SITE IS STABILIZED, ALL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL BMP'S MUST BE
MAINTAINED PROPERLY.  MAINTENANCE MUST INCLUDE INSPECTIONS OF ALL EROSION AND
SEDIMENT CONTROL BMP'S AFTER EACH RUNOFF EVENT AND ON A WEEKLY BASIS.  ALL
PREVENTATIVE AND REMEDIAL MAINTENANCE WORK, INCLUDING CLEAN OUT, REPAIR, REPLACEMENT,
REGRADING, RESEEDING, REMULCHING AND RENETTING MUST BE PERFORMED IMMEDIATELY.  IF
EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL BMP'S FAIL TO PERFORM AS EXPECTED, REPLACEMENT BMP'S,
OR MODIFICATIONS OF THOSE INSTALLED WILL BE REQUIRED.

18" DIAMETER FILTER SOCK

18" DIAMETER FILTER SOCK

2" X 2" X 36"
WOODEN STAKES
PLACED 5' O.C.

2" X 2" X 36"
WOODEN STAKES
PLACED 5' O.C.

MAXIMUM DEPTH OF CONTAMINATED
WATER IS 50% OF CONCRETE WASHOUT
HEIGHT

PUMP CONTAMINATED WATER
INTO CONCRETE WASHOUT

SECTION
NTS

PLAN
NTS

NOTES:
1.  INSTALL ON FLAT GRADE FOR OPTIMUM 

PERFORMANCE
2.  CONCRETE WASHOUT MAY BE STACKED IN A

PYRAMIDAL CONFIGURATION FOR ADDED 
HEIGHT AND STABILITY

3. CONCRETE WASHOUT MAY BE DIRECT 
SEEDED AT THE TIME OF INSTALLATION

12" MIN

 CONCRETE WASHOUT
N.T.S.

N.T.S.

STANDARD CONSTRUCTION DETAIL #3-1
ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE

100' MIN.

3
FT.

EXISTING ROADWAY

EARTH FILL
PIPE AS NECESSARY

GEOTEXTILE
EXISTING
GROUND

MIN 8" AASHTO #1

MOUNTABLE
BERM (6 IN. MIN.)*

10
'

M
IN

.
10

'
M

IN
.

20
'

M
IN

.

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 R

O
AD

W
AY

PROFILE

PLAN VIEW

NOTES:
1. REMOVE TOPSOIL PRIOR TO INSTALLATION OF ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE.
    EXTEND ROCK OVER FULL WIDTH OF ENTRANCE.
2. RUNOFF SHALL BE DIVERTED FROM ROADWAY TO A SUITABLE SEDIMENT REMOVAL
    BMP PRIOR TO ENTERING ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE.
3. MOUNTABLE BERM SHALL BE INSTALLED WHEREVER OPTIONAL CULVERT PIPE IS
    USED AND PROPER PIPE COVER AS SPECIFIED BY MANUFACTURER IS NOT
    OTHERWISE PROVIDED. PIPE SHALL BE SIZED APPROPRIATELY FOR SIZE OF DITCH
    BEING CROSSED.
4. MAINTENANCE: ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE THICKNESS SHALL BE CONSTANTLY
    MAINTAINED TO THE SPECIFIED DIMENSIONS BY ADDING ROCK. A STOCKPILE SHALL
    BE MAINTAINED ON SITE FOR THIS PURPOSE. ALL SEDIMENT DEPOSITED ON PAVED
    ROADWAYS SHALL BE REMOVED AND RETURNED TO THE CONSTRUCTION SITE
    IMMEDIATELY. IF EXCESSIVE AMOUNTS OF SEDIMENT ARE BEING DEPOSITED ON
    ROADWAY, EXTEND LENGTH OF ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE BY 50 FOOT
    INCREMENTS UNTIL CONDITION IS ALLEVIATED OR INSTALL WASH RACK. WASHING
    THE ROADWAY OR SWEEPING THE DEPOSITS INTO ROADWAY DITCHES, SEWERS,
    CULVERTS, OR OTHER DRAINAGE COURSES IS NOT ACCEPTABLE.

* MOUNTABLE BERM USED TO PROVIDE PROPER COVER FOR PIPE

STOCKPILE MATERIAL

TYPICAL STOCKPILE DETAIL
STANDARD SYMBOL

*FILTER FABRIC

OF FILTER FABRIC FENCE
* SEE DETAILS FOR INSTALLATION

3
1 1

3

35' (MAX.)

N.T.S.
TOPSOIL

32



33



 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. SUPPORTING DATA 1-25 

 
A. USGS Quad Map 2 

 
B. Aerial/Topography Map 3 
 
C. Soil Report 4-23 

 
D. Project Narrative 24 

 
E. April 2016 Google Earth Aerial Map 25 

34



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

I. 

SUPPORTING DATA 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

35



Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, Intermap, increment P Corp., GEBCO, USGS,
FAO, NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL, Ordnance Survey, Esri
Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and
the GIS User Community

Legend

Project Location

STEINWEHR MINI-GOLF COURSE
533 STEINWEHR AVE

GETTYSBURG BOROUGH
QUAD MAP

Ê
2,000 0 2,0001,000

Feet

1 inch = 2,000 feet 36



5
8
6

587

5
8
5

58
4

588

5
8
9

590

583

5
9
1

582

5
9
2

5
9
3

5
8
1

5
9
4

5
9
5

580

5
8
6

5
8
1

584

587

586

584

588

58
6

587

5
9
0

59
0

Esri, HERE, Garmin, (c) OpenStreetMap contributors

Legend

Project Location

STEINWEHR MINI-GOLF COURSE
533 STEINWEHR AVE

GETTYSBURG BOROUGH
AERIAL MAP

Ê
80 0 8040

Feet

1 inch = 80 feet 37



United States
Department of
Agriculture

A product of the National
Cooperative Soil Survey,
a joint effort of the United
States Department of
Agriculture and other
Federal agencies, State
agencies including the
Agricultural Experiment
Stations, and local
participants

Custom Soil Resource 
Report for

Adams County, 
Pennsylvania

Natural
Resources
Conservation
Service

March 26, 202438



Preface
Soil surveys contain information that affects land use planning in survey areas. 
They highlight soil limitations that affect various land uses and provide information 
about the properties of the soils in the survey areas. Soil surveys are designed for 
many different users, including farmers, ranchers, foresters, agronomists, urban 
planners, community officials, engineers, developers, builders, and home buyers. 
Also, conservationists, teachers, students, and specialists in recreation, waste 
disposal, and pollution control can use the surveys to help them understand, 
protect, or enhance the environment.

Various land use regulations of Federal, State, and local governments may impose 
special restrictions on land use or land treatment. Soil surveys identify soil 
properties that are used in making various land use or land treatment decisions. 
The information is intended to help the land users identify and reduce the effects of 
soil limitations on various land uses. The landowner or user is responsible for 
identifying and complying with existing laws and regulations.

Although soil survey information can be used for general farm, local, and wider area 
planning, onsite investigation is needed to supplement this information in some 
cases. Examples include soil quality assessments (http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/
portal/nrcs/main/soils/health/) and certain conservation and engineering 
applications. For more detailed information, contact your local USDA Service Center 
(https://offices.sc.egov.usda.gov/locator/app?agency=nrcs) or your NRCS State Soil 
Scientist (http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/soils/contactus/?
cid=nrcs142p2_053951).

Great differences in soil properties can occur within short distances. Some soils are 
seasonally wet or subject to flooding. Some are too unstable to be used as a 
foundation for buildings or roads. Clayey or wet soils are poorly suited to use as 
septic tank absorption fields. A high water table makes a soil poorly suited to 
basements or underground installations.

The National Cooperative Soil Survey is a joint effort of the United States 
Department of Agriculture and other Federal agencies, State agencies including the 
Agricultural Experiment Stations, and local agencies. The Natural Resources 
Conservation Service (NRCS) has leadership for the Federal part of the National 
Cooperative Soil Survey.

Information about soils is updated periodically. Updated information is available 
through the NRCS Web Soil Survey, the site for official soil survey information.

The U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) prohibits discrimination in all its 
programs and activities on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, disability, 
and where applicable, sex, marital status, familial status, parental status, religion, 
sexual orientation, genetic information, political beliefs, reprisal, or because all or a 
part of an individual's income is derived from any public assistance program. (Not 
all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) Persons with disabilities who require 

239

http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/main/soils/health/
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/main/soils/health/
https://offices.sc.egov.usda.gov/locator/app?agency=nrcs
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/soils/contactus/?cid=nrcs142p2_053951
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/soils/contactus/?cid=nrcs142p2_053951


alternative means for communication of program information (Braille, large print, 
audiotape, etc.) should contact USDA's TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice 
and TDD). To file a complaint of discrimination, write to USDA, Director, Office of 
Civil Rights, 1400 Independence Avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or 
call (800) 795-3272 (voice) or (202) 720-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity 
provider and employer.

340



Contents
Preface.................................................................................................................... 2
How Soil Surveys Are Made..................................................................................5
Soil Map.................................................................................................................. 8

Soil Map................................................................................................................9
Legend................................................................................................................10
Map Unit Legend................................................................................................ 11
Map Unit Descriptions.........................................................................................11

Adams County, Pennsylvania......................................................................... 13
Uc—Urban land...........................................................................................13

Soil Information for All Uses...............................................................................14
Suitabilities and Limitations for Use....................................................................14

Building Site Development..............................................................................14
Shallow Excavations................................................................................... 14

References............................................................................................................19

441



How Soil Surveys Are Made
Soil surveys are made to provide information about the soils and miscellaneous 
areas in a specific area. They include a description of the soils and miscellaneous 
areas and their location on the landscape and tables that show soil properties and 
limitations affecting various uses. Soil scientists observed the steepness, length, 
and shape of the slopes; the general pattern of drainage; the kinds of crops and 
native plants; and the kinds of bedrock. They observed and described many soil 
profiles. A soil profile is the sequence of natural layers, or horizons, in a soil. The 
profile extends from the surface down into the unconsolidated material in which the 
soil formed or from the surface down to bedrock. The unconsolidated material is 
devoid of roots and other living organisms and has not been changed by other 
biological activity.

Currently, soils are mapped according to the boundaries of major land resource 
areas (MLRAs). MLRAs are geographically associated land resource units that 
share common characteristics related to physiography, geology, climate, water 
resources, soils, biological resources, and land uses (USDA, 2006). Soil survey 
areas typically consist of parts of one or more MLRA.

The soils and miscellaneous areas in a survey area occur in an orderly pattern that 
is related to the geology, landforms, relief, climate, and natural vegetation of the 
area. Each kind of soil and miscellaneous area is associated with a particular kind 
of landform or with a segment of the landform. By observing the soils and 
miscellaneous areas in the survey area and relating their position to specific 
segments of the landform, a soil scientist develops a concept, or model, of how they 
were formed. Thus, during mapping, this model enables the soil scientist to predict 
with a considerable degree of accuracy the kind of soil or miscellaneous area at a 
specific location on the landscape.

Commonly, individual soils on the landscape merge into one another as their 
characteristics gradually change. To construct an accurate soil map, however, soil 
scientists must determine the boundaries between the soils. They can observe only 
a limited number of soil profiles. Nevertheless, these observations, supplemented 
by an understanding of the soil-vegetation-landscape relationship, are sufficient to 
verify predictions of the kinds of soil in an area and to determine the boundaries.

Soil scientists recorded the characteristics of the soil profiles that they studied. They 
noted soil color, texture, size and shape of soil aggregates, kind and amount of rock 
fragments, distribution of plant roots, reaction, and other features that enable them 
to identify soils. After describing the soils in the survey area and determining their 
properties, the soil scientists assigned the soils to taxonomic classes (units). 
Taxonomic classes are concepts. Each taxonomic class has a set of soil 
characteristics with precisely defined limits. The classes are used as a basis for 
comparison to classify soils systematically. Soil taxonomy, the system of taxonomic 
classification used in the United States, is based mainly on the kind and character 
of soil properties and the arrangement of horizons within the profile. After the soil 

542



scientists classified and named the soils in the survey area, they compared the 
individual soils with similar soils in the same taxonomic class in other areas so that 
they could confirm data and assemble additional data based on experience and 
research.

The objective of soil mapping is not to delineate pure map unit components; the 
objective is to separate the landscape into landforms or landform segments that 
have similar use and management requirements. Each map unit is defined by a 
unique combination of soil components and/or miscellaneous areas in predictable 
proportions. Some components may be highly contrasting to the other components 
of the map unit. The presence of minor components in a map unit in no way 
diminishes the usefulness or accuracy of the data. The delineation of such 
landforms and landform segments on the map provides sufficient information for the 
development of resource plans. If intensive use of small areas is planned, onsite 
investigation is needed to define and locate the soils and miscellaneous areas.

Soil scientists make many field observations in the process of producing a soil map. 
The frequency of observation is dependent upon several factors, including scale of 
mapping, intensity of mapping, design of map units, complexity of the landscape, 
and experience of the soil scientist. Observations are made to test and refine the 
soil-landscape model and predictions and to verify the classification of the soils at 
specific locations. Once the soil-landscape model is refined, a significantly smaller 
number of measurements of individual soil properties are made and recorded. 
These measurements may include field measurements, such as those for color, 
depth to bedrock, and texture, and laboratory measurements, such as those for 
content of sand, silt, clay, salt, and other components. Properties of each soil 
typically vary from one point to another across the landscape.

Observations for map unit components are aggregated to develop ranges of 
characteristics for the components. The aggregated values are presented. Direct 
measurements do not exist for every property presented for every map unit 
component. Values for some properties are estimated from combinations of other 
properties.

While a soil survey is in progress, samples of some of the soils in the area generally 
are collected for laboratory analyses and for engineering tests. Soil scientists 
interpret the data from these analyses and tests as well as the field-observed 
characteristics and the soil properties to determine the expected behavior of the 
soils under different uses. Interpretations for all of the soils are field tested through 
observation of the soils in different uses and under different levels of management. 
Some interpretations are modified to fit local conditions, and some new 
interpretations are developed to meet local needs. Data are assembled from other 
sources, such as research information, production records, and field experience of 
specialists. For example, data on crop yields under defined levels of management 
are assembled from farm records and from field or plot experiments on the same 
kinds of soil.

Predictions about soil behavior are based not only on soil properties but also on 
such variables as climate and biological activity. Soil conditions are predictable over 
long periods of time, but they are not predictable from year to year. For example, 
soil scientists can predict with a fairly high degree of accuracy that a given soil will 
have a high water table within certain depths in most years, but they cannot predict 
that a high water table will always be at a specific level in the soil on a specific date.

After soil scientists located and identified the significant natural bodies of soil in the 
survey area, they drew the boundaries of these bodies on aerial photographs and 

Custom Soil Resource Report

643



identified each as a specific map unit. Aerial photographs show trees, buildings, 
fields, roads, and rivers, all of which help in locating boundaries accurately.

Custom Soil Resource Report

744



Soil Map
The soil map section includes the soil map for the defined area of interest, a list of 
soil map units on the map and extent of each map unit, and cartographic symbols 
displayed on the map. Also presented are various metadata about data used to 
produce the map, and a description of each soil map unit.

845



9

Custom Soil Resource Report
Soil Map

44
09

87
0

44
09

89
0

44
09

91
0

44
09

93
0

44
09

95
0

44
09

97
0

44
09

85
0

44
09

87
0

44
09

89
0

44
09

91
0

44
09

93
0

44
09

95
0

44
09

97
0

308490 308510 308530 308550 308570 308590 308610 308630 308650 308670

308490 308510 308530 308550 308570 308590 308610 308630 308650 308670

39°  49' 5'' N
77

° 
 1

4'
 1

5'
' W

39°  49' 5'' N

77
° 
 1

4'
 7

'' W

39°  49' 1'' N

77
° 
 1

4'
 1

5'
' W

39°  49' 1'' N

77
° 
 1

4'
 7

'' W

N

Map projection: Web Mercator   Corner coordinates: WGS84   Edge tics: UTM Zone 18N WGS84
0 40 80 160 240

Feet
0 10 20 40 60

Meters
Map Scale: 1:895 if printed on A landscape (11" x 8.5") sheet.

Soil Map may not be valid at this scale.

46



MAP LEGEND MAP INFORMATION

Area of Interest (AOI)
Area of Interest (AOI)

Soils
Soil Map Unit Polygons

Soil Map Unit Lines

Soil Map Unit Points

Special Point Features
Blowout

Borrow Pit

Clay Spot

Closed Depression

Gravel Pit

Gravelly Spot

Landfill

Lava Flow

Marsh or swamp

Mine or Quarry

Miscellaneous Water

Perennial Water

Rock Outcrop

Saline Spot

Sandy Spot

Severely Eroded Spot

Sinkhole

Slide or Slip

Sodic Spot

Spoil Area

Stony Spot

Very Stony Spot

Wet Spot

Other

Special Line Features

Water Features
Streams and Canals

Transportation
Rails

Interstate Highways

US Routes

Major Roads

Local Roads

Background
Aerial Photography

The soil surveys that comprise your AOI were mapped at 
1:24,000.

Warning: Soil Map may not be valid at this scale.

Enlargement of maps beyond the scale of mapping can cause 
misunderstanding of the detail of mapping and accuracy of soil 
line placement. The maps do not show the small areas of 
contrasting soils that could have been shown at a more detailed 
scale.

Please rely on the bar scale on each map sheet for map 
measurements.

Source of Map: Natural Resources Conservation Service
Web Soil Survey URL: 
Coordinate System: Web Mercator (EPSG:3857)

Maps from the Web Soil Survey are based on the Web Mercator 
projection, which preserves direction and shape but distorts 
distance and area. A projection that preserves area, such as the 
Albers equal-area conic projection, should be used if more 
accurate calculations of distance or area are required.

This product is generated from the USDA-NRCS certified data as 
of the version date(s) listed below.

Soil Survey Area: Adams County, Pennsylvania
Survey Area Data: Version 21, Sep 4, 2023

Soil map units are labeled (as space allows) for map scales 
1:50,000 or larger.

Date(s) aerial images were photographed: Sep 23, 2020—Nov 
20, 2020

The orthophoto or other base map on which the soil lines were 
compiled and digitized probably differs from the background 
imagery displayed on these maps. As a result, some minor 
shifting of map unit boundaries may be evident.

Custom Soil Resource Report

1047



Map Unit Legend

Map Unit Symbol Map Unit Name Acres in AOI Percent of AOI

Uc Urban land 1.7 100.0%

Totals for Area of Interest 1.7 100.0%

Map Unit Descriptions
The map units delineated on the detailed soil maps in a soil survey represent the 
soils or miscellaneous areas in the survey area. The map unit descriptions, along 
with the maps, can be used to determine the composition and properties of a unit.

A map unit delineation on a soil map represents an area dominated by one or more 
major kinds of soil or miscellaneous areas. A map unit is identified and named 
according to the taxonomic classification of the dominant soils. Within a taxonomic 
class there are precisely defined limits for the properties of the soils. On the 
landscape, however, the soils are natural phenomena, and they have the 
characteristic variability of all natural phenomena. Thus, the range of some 
observed properties may extend beyond the limits defined for a taxonomic class. 
Areas of soils of a single taxonomic class rarely, if ever, can be mapped without 
including areas of other taxonomic classes. Consequently, every map unit is made 
up of the soils or miscellaneous areas for which it is named and some minor 
components that belong to taxonomic classes other than those of the major soils.

Most minor soils have properties similar to those of the dominant soil or soils in the 
map unit, and thus they do not affect use and management. These are called 
noncontrasting, or similar, components. They may or may not be mentioned in a 
particular map unit description. Other minor components, however, have properties 
and behavioral characteristics divergent enough to affect use or to require different 
management. These are called contrasting, or dissimilar, components. They 
generally are in small areas and could not be mapped separately because of the 
scale used. Some small areas of strongly contrasting soils or miscellaneous areas 
are identified by a special symbol on the maps. If included in the database for a 
given area, the contrasting minor components are identified in the map unit 
descriptions along with some characteristics of each. A few areas of minor 
components may not have been observed, and consequently they are not 
mentioned in the descriptions, especially where the pattern was so complex that it 
was impractical to make enough observations to identify all the soils and 
miscellaneous areas on the landscape.

The presence of minor components in a map unit in no way diminishes the 
usefulness or accuracy of the data. The objective of mapping is not to delineate 
pure taxonomic classes but rather to separate the landscape into landforms or 
landform segments that have similar use and management requirements. The 
delineation of such segments on the map provides sufficient information for the 
development of resource plans. If intensive use of small areas is planned, however, 
onsite investigation is needed to define and locate the soils and miscellaneous 
areas.

Custom Soil Resource Report

1148



An identifying symbol precedes the map unit name in the map unit descriptions. 
Each description includes general facts about the unit and gives important soil 
properties and qualities.

Soils that have profiles that are almost alike make up a soil series. Except for 
differences in texture of the surface layer, all the soils of a series have major 
horizons that are similar in composition, thickness, and arrangement.

Soils of one series can differ in texture of the surface layer, slope, stoniness, 
salinity, degree of erosion, and other characteristics that affect their use. On the 
basis of such differences, a soil series is divided into soil phases. Most of the areas 
shown on the detailed soil maps are phases of soil series. The name of a soil phase 
commonly indicates a feature that affects use or management. For example, Alpha 
silt loam, 0 to 2 percent slopes, is a phase of the Alpha series.

Some map units are made up of two or more major soils or miscellaneous areas. 
These map units are complexes, associations, or undifferentiated groups.

A complex consists of two or more soils or miscellaneous areas in such an intricate 
pattern or in such small areas that they cannot be shown separately on the maps. 
The pattern and proportion of the soils or miscellaneous areas are somewhat similar 
in all areas. Alpha-Beta complex, 0 to 6 percent slopes, is an example.

An association is made up of two or more geographically associated soils or 
miscellaneous areas that are shown as one unit on the maps. Because of present 
or anticipated uses of the map units in the survey area, it was not considered 
practical or necessary to map the soils or miscellaneous areas separately. The 
pattern and relative proportion of the soils or miscellaneous areas are somewhat 
similar. Alpha-Beta association, 0 to 2 percent slopes, is an example.

An undifferentiated group is made up of two or more soils or miscellaneous areas 
that could be mapped individually but are mapped as one unit because similar 
interpretations can be made for use and management. The pattern and proportion 
of the soils or miscellaneous areas in a mapped area are not uniform. An area can 
be made up of only one of the major soils or miscellaneous areas, or it can be made 
up of all of them. Alpha and Beta soils, 0 to 2 percent slopes, is an example.

Some surveys include miscellaneous areas. Such areas have little or no soil 
material and support little or no vegetation. Rock outcrop is an example.

Custom Soil Resource Report

1249



Adams County, Pennsylvania

Uc—Urban land

Map Unit Setting
National map unit symbol: l9sr
Mean annual precipitation: 36 to 50 inches
Mean annual air temperature: 46 to 59 degrees F
Frost-free period: 120 to 215 days
Farmland classification: Not prime farmland

Map Unit Composition
Urban land: 90 percent
Minor components: 10 percent
Estimates are based on observations, descriptions, and transects of the mapunit.

Description of Urban Land

Setting
Down-slope shape: Linear
Across-slope shape: Linear
Parent material: Pavement, buildings and other artifically covered areas

Properties and qualities
Slope: 0 to 8 percent
Depth to restrictive feature: 10 inches to densic material
Runoff class: Very high

Interpretive groups
Land capability classification (irrigated): None specified
Land capability classification (nonirrigated): 8s
Hydric soil rating: No

Minor Components

Udorthents, steep
Percent of map unit: 10 percent
Landform: Mountains
Landform position (two-dimensional): Summit, backslope
Landform position (three-dimensional): Mountaintop
Down-slope shape: Convex
Across-slope shape: Convex
Hydric soil rating: No

Custom Soil Resource Report

1350



Soil Information for All Uses

Suitabilities and Limitations for Use
The Suitabilities and Limitations for Use section includes various soil interpretations 
displayed as thematic maps with a summary table for the soil map units in the 
selected area of interest. A single value or rating for each map unit is generated by 
aggregating the interpretive ratings of individual map unit components. This 
aggregation process is defined for each interpretation.

Building Site Development

Building site development interpretations are designed to be used as tools for 
evaluating soil suitability and identifying soil limitations for various construction 
purposes. As part of the interpretation process, the rating applies to each soil in its 
described condition and does not consider present land use. Example 
interpretations can include corrosion of concrete and steel, shallow excavations, 
dwellings with and without basements, small commercial buildings, local roads and 
streets, and lawns and landscaping.

Shallow Excavations

ENG - Engineering

Shallow excavations are trenches or holes dug to a maximum depth of 5 or 6 feet 
for graves, utility lines, open ditches, or other purposes. The ratings are based on 
the soil properties that influence the ease of digging and the resistance to 
sloughing. Depth to bedrock or a cemented pan, hardness of bedrock or a 
cemented pan, the amount of large stones, and dense layers influence the ease of 
digging, filling, and compacting. Depth to the seasonal high water table, flooding, 
and ponding may restrict the period when excavations can be made. Slope 
influences the ease of using machinery. Soil texture, depth to the water table, and 
linear extensibility (shrink-swell potential) influence the resistance to sloughing.

The ratings are both verbal and numerical. Rating class terms indicate the extent to 
which the soils are limited by all of the soil features that affect the specified use. 
"Not limited" indicates that the soil has features that are very favorable for the 
specified use. Good performance and very low maintenance can be expected. 
"Somewhat limited" indicates that the soil has features that are moderately 

1451



favorable for the specified use. The limitations can be overcome or minimized by 
special planning, design, or installation. Fair performance and moderate 
maintenance can be expected. "Very limited" indicates that the soil has one or more 
features that are unfavorable for the specified use. The limitations generally cannot 
be overcome without major soil reclamation, special design, or expensive 
installation procedures. Poor performance and high maintenance can be expected.

Numerical ratings indicate the severity of individual limitations. The ratings are 
shown as decimal fractions ranging from 0.01 to 1.00. They indicate gradations 
between the point at which a soil feature has the greatest negative impact on the 
use (1.00) and the point at which the soil feature is not a limitation (0.00).

The map unit components listed for each map unit in the accompanying Summary 
by Map Unit table in Web Soil Survey or the Aggregation Report in Soil Data Viewer 
are determined by the aggregation method chosen. An aggregated rating class is 
shown for each map unit. The components listed for each map unit are only those 
that have the same rating class as listed for the map unit. The percent composition 
of each component in a particular map unit is presented to help the user better 
understand the percentage of each map unit that has the rating presented.

Other components with different ratings may be present in each map unit. The 
ratings for all components, regardless of the map unit aggregated rating, can be 
viewed by generating the equivalent report from the Soil Reports tab in Web Soil 
Survey or from the Soil Data Mart site. Onsite investigation may be needed to 
validate these interpretations and to confirm the identity of the soil on a given site.

Custom Soil Resource Report

1552



16

Custom Soil Resource Report
Map—Shallow Excavations

44
09

87
0

44
09

89
0

44
09

91
0

44
09

93
0

44
09

95
0

44
09

97
0

44
09

85
0

44
09

87
0

44
09

89
0

44
09

91
0

44
09

93
0

44
09

95
0

44
09

97
0

308490 308510 308530 308550 308570 308590 308610 308630 308650 308670

308490 308510 308530 308550 308570 308590 308610 308630 308650 308670

39°  49' 5'' N
77

° 
 1

4'
 1

5'
' W

39°  49' 5'' N

77
° 
 1

4'
 7

'' W

39°  49' 1'' N

77
° 
 1

4'
 1

5'
' W

39°  49' 1'' N

77
° 
 1

4'
 7

'' W

N

Map projection: Web Mercator   Corner coordinates: WGS84   Edge tics: UTM Zone 18N WGS84
0 40 80 160 240

Feet
0 10 20 40 60

Meters
Map Scale: 1:895 if printed on A landscape (11" x 8.5") sheet.

Soil Map may not be valid at this scale.

53



MAP LEGEND MAP INFORMATION

Area of Interest (AOI)
Area of Interest (AOI)

Soils
Soil Rating Polygons

Very limited

Somewhat limited

Not limited

Not rated or not available

Soil Rating Lines
Very limited

Somewhat limited

Not limited

Not rated or not available

Soil Rating Points
Very limited

Somewhat limited

Not limited

Not rated or not available

Water Features
Streams and Canals

Transportation
Rails

Interstate Highways

US Routes

Major Roads

Local Roads

Background
Aerial Photography

The soil surveys that comprise your AOI were mapped at 
1:24,000.

Warning: Soil Map may not be valid at this scale.

Enlargement of maps beyond the scale of mapping can cause 
misunderstanding of the detail of mapping and accuracy of soil 
line placement. The maps do not show the small areas of 
contrasting soils that could have been shown at a more detailed 
scale.

Please rely on the bar scale on each map sheet for map 
measurements.

Source of Map: Natural Resources Conservation Service
Web Soil Survey URL: 
Coordinate System: Web Mercator (EPSG:3857)

Maps from the Web Soil Survey are based on the Web Mercator 
projection, which preserves direction and shape but distorts 
distance and area. A projection that preserves area, such as the 
Albers equal-area conic projection, should be used if more 
accurate calculations of distance or area are required.

This product is generated from the USDA-NRCS certified data as 
of the version date(s) listed below.

Soil Survey Area: Adams County, Pennsylvania
Survey Area Data: Version 21, Sep 4, 2023

Soil map units are labeled (as space allows) for map scales 
1:50,000 or larger.

Date(s) aerial images were photographed: Sep 23, 2020—Nov 
20, 2020

The orthophoto or other base map on which the soil lines were 
compiled and digitized probably differs from the background 
imagery displayed on these maps. As a result, some minor 
shifting of map unit boundaries may be evident.

Custom Soil Resource Report

1754



Tables—Shallow Excavations

Map unit 
symbol

Map unit name Rating Component 
name (percent)

Rating reasons 
(numeric 
values)

Acres in AOI Percent of AOI

Uc Urban land Not rated Urban land (90%) 1.7 100.0%

Udorthents, 
steep (10%)

Totals for Area of Interest 1.7 100.0%

Rating Acres in AOI Percent of AOI

Null or Not Rated 1.7 100.0%

Totals for Area of Interest 1.7 100.0%

Rating Options—Shallow Excavations

Aggregation Method: Dominant Condition

Component Percent Cutoff: None Specified 

Tie-break Rule: Higher

Custom Soil Resource Report

1855



References
American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO). 
2004. Standard specifications for transportation materials and methods of sampling 
and testing. 24th edition.

American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM). 2005. Standard classification of 
soils for engineering purposes. ASTM Standard D2487-00.

Cowardin, L.M., V. Carter, F.C. Golet, and E.T. LaRoe. 1979. Classification of 
wetlands and deep-water habitats of the United States. U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service FWS/OBS-79/31.

Federal Register. July 13, 1994. Changes in hydric soils of the United States.

Federal Register. September 18, 2002. Hydric soils of the United States.

Hurt, G.W., and L.M. Vasilas, editors. Version 6.0, 2006. Field indicators of hydric 
soils in the United States.

National Research Council. 1995. Wetlands: Characteristics and boundaries.

Soil Survey Division Staff. 1993. Soil survey manual. Soil Conservation Service. 
U.S. Department of Agriculture Handbook 18. http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/
nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_054262 

Soil Survey Staff. 1999. Soil taxonomy: A basic system of soil classification for 
making and interpreting soil surveys. 2nd edition. Natural Resources Conservation 
Service, U.S. Department of Agriculture Handbook 436. http://
www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_053577 

Soil Survey Staff. 2010. Keys to soil taxonomy. 11th edition. U.S. Department of 
Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service. http://
www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_053580 

Tiner, R.W., Jr. 1985. Wetlands of Delaware. U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and 
Delaware Department of Natural Resources and Environmental Control, Wetlands 
Section.

United States Army Corps of Engineers, Environmental Laboratory. 1987. Corps of 
Engineers wetlands delineation manual. Waterways Experiment Station Technical 
Report Y-87-1.

United States Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service. 
National forestry manual. http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/soils/
home/?cid=nrcs142p2_053374 

United States Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service. 
National range and pasture handbook. http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/
detail/national/landuse/rangepasture/?cid=stelprdb1043084 

1956

http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_054262
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_054262
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_053577
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_053577
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_053580
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_053580
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/soils/home/?cid=nrcs142p2_053374
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/soils/home/?cid=nrcs142p2_053374
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/landuse/rangepasture/?cid=stelprdb1043084
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/landuse/rangepasture/?cid=stelprdb1043084


United States Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service. 
National soil survey handbook, title 430-VI. http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/
nrcs/detail/soils/scientists/?cid=nrcs142p2_054242 

United States Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service. 
2006. Land resource regions and major land resource areas of the United States, 
the Caribbean, and the Pacific Basin. U.S. Department of Agriculture Handbook 
296. http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?
cid=nrcs142p2_053624 

United States Department of Agriculture, Soil Conservation Service. 1961. Land 
capability classification. U.S. Department of Agriculture Handbook 210. http://
www.nrcs.usda.gov/Internet/FSE_DOCUMENTS/nrcs142p2_052290.pdf 

Custom Soil Resource Report

2057

http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/soils/scientists/?cid=nrcs142p2_054242
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/soils/scientists/?cid=nrcs142p2_054242
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_053624
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/soils/?cid=nrcs142p2_053624
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/Internet/FSE_DOCUMENTS/nrcs142p2_052290.pdf
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/Internet/FSE_DOCUMENTS/nrcs142p2_052290.pdf


 

 

  

PROJECT NARRATIVE 

 

This project is located at 533 Steinwehr Ave, Gettysburg Borough, Adams County, 
Pennsylvania.  The proposal is to develop the 0.94 acre (40,998 SF) property into a mini 
golf course. The property is located in the Tourist Commercial District (TC). 
 
The lot has been entirely developed since at least the 1990s. This site has been a 
combination of different restaurants over the past couple decades. Dating back to April 
2016, the entire site was developed with a majority of the property as a macadam 
parking lot along with the restaurant building. For stormwater management, the site was 
analyzed from April 2016 aerial (see attached Google Earth map) to determine how 
much of the site was impervious at that time. This impervious value was used as the 
existing conditions value to calculate the 20% impervious reduction needed in order to 
be exempt from stormwater. Total existing impervious for the site was calculated to be 
38,254 SF. This means that the maximum impervious area that can be proposed for this 
project is 30,603 SF. In post development conditions, the site will contain 23,470 SF of 
impervious area. This is a reduction of 14,784 SF (approx. 39% reduction) from pre to 
post conditions through the addition of islands and landscaping throughout the mini-golf 
course. The existing flow of the parking lot will be maintained to reduce the effect of this 
development. Additionally, no curbing is proposed in the parking lot to allow runoff to 
sheet flow into the pervious area.  
 
By reducing the impervious area and maintaining the pre-development flow pattern, it is 
anticipated that this development will reduce runoff flows to adjacent properties.

58



S
te

in
w

eh
r 

M
in

i G
ol

f L
D

 P
la

n 
Ae

ria
l d

at
ed

 4
/2

01
6 

of
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t s
ite

. 

Le
ge

nd
   

 

P
er

vi
ou

s

10
0 

ft

N➤➤ N

81
 S

F

47
 S

F

26
3 

SF
40

2 
SF

73
9 

SF
17

 S
F

13
9 

SF

22
9 

SF

56
0 

SF

26
7 

SF

59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



SLD-240002 

 

SPECTRA KOTE 

 

301 EAST WATER STREET 

 

LAND DEVELOPMENT PLAN  

71



PROJECT SITE

XR
EF

S:
 2

4-
01

93
-0

01
-tb

-L
D

 [.
.\.

.\D
ra

w
in

g 
Ba

se
s\

24
-0

19
3-

00
1-

tb
-L

D
.d

w
g]

 2
4-

01
93

-0
01

-rd
-L

eg
en

d 
[..

\..
\D

ra
w

in
g 

Ba
se

s\
24

-0
19

3-
00

1-
rd

-L
eg

en
d.

dw
g]

D
R

AW
IN

G
 R

EF
ER

EN
C

E:
L:

\P
ro

je
ct

s\
24

\2
4-

01
93

-0
01

 - 
Sp

ec
tra

 K
ot

e\
C

AD
D

\P
la

n 
Sh

ee
ts

\F
in

al
\2

4-
01

93
-0

01
-0

1-
C

ov
er

.d
w

g
5/

10
/2

02
4,

 1
2:

03
PM

 T
im

 F
in

k
PR

IN
TE

D
:

INDEX OF DRAWINGS
SHEET NO. TITLE

C-100   COVER SHEET

C-101   GENERAL NOTES & CONSTRUCTION DETAIL

C-200   OVERALL EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN

C-201   EXISTING CONDITIONS & DEMOLITION PLAN

C-300   SITE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

5 SHEETS IN SET

UNIFORM PARCEL IDENTIFIER
# 16007-0142--000

N

CALL BEFORE YOU DIG
PENNSYLVANIA LAW REQUIRES
(3) WORKING DAYS NOTICE FOR

CONSTRUCTION PHASE AND (10) WORKING
DAYS IN DESIGN STAGE - STOP CALL

EB

N

1-800-242-17760

Y

T

S

AV

P

L
P

S

EN
N

-C
LA

ANI

L

O

UO
EF RO

Y

S
M

TE

ID
G

YS
ALE C L

,INC.

! S
U

R
V

E Y I N G P L A
N

N
I N

G

L
A

N D L A

N
D

C

I V I L   E N G I N E E R I N G

LOCATION MAP
SCALE: 1" = 2000'

I, JOSHUA C. GEORGE, A PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER IN THE COMMONWEALTH OF
PENNSYLVANIA HEREBY CERTIFY TO THE BEST OF MY PROFESSIONAL KNOWLEDGE, THAT ALL
INFORMATION SHOWN ON THIS PLAN IS CORRECT AND ACCURATE.

DATE JOSHUA C. GEORGE, P.E.      REG. NO. 056897-E

FINAL LAND DEVELOPMENT PLAN
FOR

SPECTRA KOTE BUILDING ADDITION
FOR

SPECTRA KOTE CORPORATION
GETTYSBURG BOROUGH, ADAMS COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA

MAY 10, 2024

ENGINEER'S CERTIFICATION

__________ ______________________________                            ______________________________
SIGNATURE                                                                                          DATE

REVIEWED BY THE ADAMS COUNTY PLANNING COMISSION

REVIEWED BY THE GETTYSBURG PLANNING COMMISSION

REVIEWED BY THE BOROUGH ENGINEER

APPROVED BY MOTION OF THE GETTYSBURG
COMMISSION AND ACCEPTED FOR RECORDING

THIS PLAN IS RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE RECORDER OF DEEDS IN ADAM COUNTY, THIS
____________ DAY OF ____________, 20_____, IN MAP BOOK_________, PAGE__________.

_____________________________
REGISTER AND RECORDER

REGISTER AND RECORDER

LANDWORKS CIVIL DESIGN, LLC HEREBY STATES THAT, PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF ACT 287 OF 1974,
OF THE PENNSYLVANIA LEGISLATURE, IT HAS PERFORMED THE FOLLOWING IN PREPARING THESE
DRAWINGS REQUIRING EXCAVATION OR DEMOLITION WORK AT SITES WITHIN THE POLITICAL
SUBDIVISION(S) SHOWN ON THESE DRAWINGS:

1. PURSUANT TO SECTION 4, CLAUSE (2) OF SAID ACT, LANDWORKS CIVIL DESIGN, LLC REQUESTED FROM
EACH USER'S OFFICE DESIGNATED ON SUCH LIST PROVIDED BY THE ONE CALL SYSTEM NOTIFICATION,
THE INFORMATION PRESCRIBED BY SECTION 2, CLAUSE (4) OF SAID ACT, NOT LESS THAN (10) NOR
MORE THAN (90) WORKING DAYS BEFORE FINAL DESIGN IS TO BE COMPLETED.

2. PURSUANT TO SECTION 4, CLAUSE (5) OF SAID ACT, LANDWORKS CIVIL DESIGN, LLC HAS MET THEIR
OBLIGATIONS OF CLAUSE (2) BY CALLING THE ONE CALL SYSTEM SERVING THE LOCATION WHERE
EXCAVATION IS TO BE PERFORMED.

3. PURSUANT TO SECTION 4, CLAUSE (3) OF SAID ACT, LANDWORKS CIVIL DESIGN, LLC HAS SHOWN UPON
THESE DRAWINGS "THE POSITION AND TYPE OF EACH LINE, AS DERIVED PURSUANT TO THE REQUEST
MADE AS REQUIRED BY CLAUSE (2), THE SERIAL NUMBER PROVIDED BY THE ONE CALL SYSTEM, THE
TOLL-FREE ONE CALL SYSTEM PHONE NUMBER, AND THE NAME OF THE USER, THE USER'S DESIGNATED
OFFICE ADDRESS AND PHONE NUMBER AS SHOWN ON THE LIST REFERRED TO IN SECTION 4, CLAUSE
(5) OF SAID ACT."

AND LANDWORKS CIVIL DESIGN, LLC DOES NOT MAKE ANY REPRESENTATION, WARRANTY, ASSURANCE OR
GUARANTEE THAT THE INFORMATION RECEIVED PURSUANT TO SAID REQUEST AND AS REFLECTED ON
THESE DRAWINGS IS CORRECT OR ACCURATE, BUT LANDWORKS CIVIL DESIGN, LLC IS REFLECTING SAID
INFORMATION ON THESE DRAWINGS ONLY DUE TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE SAID ACT NO. 181 OF 2006.

ONE CALL SYSTEM SERIAL NO. NOTIFICATION:
DATE:
ONE CALL SYSTEM SERIAL NUMBER:

SHEET #
24-0193-001

ACT 287

C-100
PROJECT NO.

SPECTRA KOTE
PROJECT NAME

land   development   consultants IVIL      ESIGN, LLCC D
ANDWORKSL

www.landworkscd.comp  (866)  LNDWRKS
1406 3RD AVENUE, SUITE 200 YORK, PA 17403

__________ ______________________________                            ______________________________
BOROUGH ENGINEER                                                                         DATE

_____________________________________                            ______________________________
CHAIR                                                                                                   DATE

__________ __________________________                            ______________________________
SECRETARY                                                                                        DATE

_____________________________________                            ______________________________
CHAIR                                                                                                   DATE

__________ __________________________                            ______________________________
SECRETARY                                                                                        DATE

ON THIS, THE _______ DAY OF ______________, 20_____, BEFORE ME, THE UNDERSIGNED OFFICER,
PERSONALLY APPEARED________________, WHO BEING DULY SWORN ACCORDING TO LAW,
DEPOSES AND SAYS THEY ARE THE OWNER AND/OR EQUITABLE OWNER OF THE PROPERTY
SHOWN ON THIS PLAN, THAT THEY ACKNOWLEDGE THE SAME TO BE THEIR ACT AND PLAN, AND
DESIRE THE SAME TO BE RECORDED AS SUCH ACCORDING TO LAW.

OWNER

WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL ON THIS DAY WRITTEN ABOVE.

________________________________________________________
NOTARY PUBLIC

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES  ______________________ , 20 _________.

CERTIFICATION & OWNERSHIP AND ACKOWLEDGMENT OF PLAN

72



C-101

G
EN

ER
AL

 N
O

TE
S 

& 
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
 D

ET
AI

LS

N.T.S.

SHEET

XR
EF

S:
D

R
AW

IN
G

 R
EF

ER
EN

C
E:

L:
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

24
\2

4-
01

93
-0

01
 - 

Sp
ec

tra
 K

ot
e\

C
AD

D
\P

la
n 

Sh
ee

ts
\F

in
al

\2
4-

01
93

-0
01

-0
1-

C
ov

er
.d

w
g

SCALE:
DATE:

PROJECT NO.

DESIGN -

PROJ. MGR. -

CHECKED -

CADD -

24-0193-001
05/10/24

N
O

.
D

AT
E

R
EV

IS
IO

N

SP
EC

TR
A 

K
O

TE
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G 
AD

D
IT

IO
N

FO
R

SP
EC

TR
A 

KO
TE

 C
O

R
PO

R
AT

IO
N

AD
AM

S 
C

O
U

N
TY

, P
EN

N
SY

LV
AN

IA

FO
R

BY

5/
10

/2
02

4,
 1

2:
03

PM
 T

im
 F

in
k

PR
IN

TE
D

:

G
ET

TY
SB

U
R

G
 B

O
R

O
U

G
H

SURV

E
Y

IN
G

P
L

A
N

N I N G

LA

N
D

L
A

N
D

C
I V

I L
  

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

IN
G

la
nd

   
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t  
 c

on
su

lta
nt

s
 IV

IL
    

  E
SI

GN
, L

LC
C

D
AN

DW
OR

KS
L

 2
4-

01
93

-0
01

-tb
-L

D
 [.

.\.
.\D

ra
w

in
g 

Ba
se

s\
24

-0
19

3-
00

1-
tb

-L
D

.d
w

g]
 2

4-
01

93
-0

01
-rd

-L
eg

en
d 

[..
\..

\D
ra

w
in

g 
Ba

se
s\

24
-0

19
3-

00
1-

rd
-L

eg
en

d.
dw

g]

JCG

TCK

TCK

JCG

w
w

w
.la

nd
w

or
ks

cd
.co

m
p 

 (8
66

)  
LN

DW
RK

S
14

06
 3

RD
 A

VE
N

UE
, S

UI
TE

 2
00

YO
RK

, P
A 

17
40

3

1. BOUNDARY AND TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY INFORMATION DEPICTED ON THIS PLAN HAS BEEN DERIVED FROM A FIELD
SURVEY BY JAMES C. HOCKENBERRY, PLS, PERFORMED IN FEBRUARY OF 2024.

2. HORIZONTAL DATUM: NAD 83 (PA SOUTH ZONE GRID)

3. VERTICAL DATUM: NAVD 88

4. THE TOTAL AREA OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY IS 8.023 ACRES.

5. THE LOCATION OF UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAN IS BASED ON ABOVE GROUND INDICATIONS, FIELD
OBSERVATIONS, RECORD DRAWINGS AND THE RESULT OF A PA ONE CALL. AS SUCH, THE ACTUAL LOCATION OF
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES MAY VARY FROM THAT SHOWN ON THE PLAN.

6. PRIOR TO ANY EARTHMOVING ACTIVITIES ON THE PROPERTY, IT SHALL BE THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY
TO CONTACT ALL UTILITY COMPANIES IN ACCORDANCE WITH ACT 287 TO VERIFY THE EXACT LOCATION OF ALL
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.

7. ONLY THOSE PROPERTY CORNERS THAT WERE FOUND OR SET AS PART OF THIS SURVEY ARE NOTED AS SUCH ON
THE SURVEY PLAN.

8. EXISTING FEATURES WITHIN THE PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION LIMITS SHALL BE REMOVED AND/OR RELOCATED AS
REQUIRED.

9. ALL EXISTING TREES, VEGETATION, PAVEMENTS, GRAVEL, STRUCTURES AND ORGANIC TOPSOIL SHALL BE
STRIPPED AND REMOVED FROM NEW CONSTRUCTION AREAS UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

10. THERE ARE NO KNOWN DEED RESTRICTIONS ASSOCIATED WITH THIS PARCEL.

11. THE PURPOSE OF THIS PLAN IS TO DEPICT A BUILDING ADDITION (TOTALING ±1,122 S.F.) AND RELATED SITE
IMPROVEMENTS.

12. A COPY OF THE APPROVED DRAWINGS (STAMPED SIGNED AND DATED BY THE REVIEWING AGENCY) MUST BE
AVAILABLE AT THE PROJECT SITE AT ALL TIMES.

13. THE CONTRACTOR IS SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR THE CONSTRUCTION MEANS, METHODS, TECHNIQUES,
SEQUENCES, PROCEDURES AND SAFETY PRECAUTIONS AND PROGRAMS.

14. ALL DIMENSIONS SHOWN ON THIS PLAN SHALL BE FIELD VERIFIED BY THE CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION
ACTIVITIES.

15. ALL SITE DIMENSIONS ARE REFERENCED TO THE FACE OF CURB OR EDGE OF PAVING UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
ALL BUILDING DIMENSIONS ARE REFERENCED TO THE OUTSIDE FACE OF STRUCTURES. ALL ANGLES ARE 90
DEGREES UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

16. BUILDING DIMENSIONS SHOWN ON THIS PLAN ARE FOR LAND DEVELOPMENT APPROVAL PURPOSES ONLY. REFER
TO BUILDING ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS APPROVED AS PART OF THE BUILDING PERMIT PROCESS FOR EXACT
BUILDING DIMENSIONS AND CONTROLS.

17. CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO OTHER PLANS WITHIN THIS CONSTRUCTION SET FOR OTHER PERTINENT
INFORMATION.

18. NO SIGNS HAVE BEEN APPROVED BY THIS PLAN. ALL PROPOSED SIGNAGE WILL BE APPROVED AT A LATER DATE
AND SHALL CONFORM TO SHREWSBURY TOWNSHIP AND PENNDOT REQUIREMENTS.

19. ALL SITE WORK SHALL BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS PREPARED BY LANDWORKS CIVIL DESIGN, LLC,
THE CURRENT REQUIREMENTS OF SHREWSBURY TOWNSHIP, AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH PENNDOT
SPECIFICATIONS, PUBLICATION 408 AND THE ROADWAY CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS (RC STANDARDS), CURRENT
EDITIONS, AND ALL OTHER PERTINENT FEDERAL AND STATE LAWS.

20. CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO THE BUILDING ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR THE EXACT LOCATION OF BUILDING
EXIT DOORS, EXIT RAMPS, BOLLARDS, AND RELATED ITEMS.

21. ALL AREAS NOT PAVED OR STONED SHALL BE TOPSOILED, SEEDED, MULCHED OR LANDSCAPED UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED ON THE CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS, SITE SPECIFICATIONS OR INSTRUCTED BY THE
DEVELOPER.

22. FOR ANY ITEMS NOT COVERED BY DETAILS OR SPECIFICATIONS, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE SHOP
DRAWINGS FOR THE DEVELOPER'S AND ENGINEER'S REVIEW PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

23. CONTRACTOR SHALL MONITOR CONSTRUCTION VEHICLES AS REQUIRED TO AVOID TRACKING MUD AND DEBRIS
ONTO ANY PAVED STREETS. IT IS THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO KEEP THE STREET(S) AND/OR ACCESS
DRIVE(S) CLEARED AND THE SITE IN AN APPROPRIATE WORKMAN-LIKE MANNER.

24. ALL EXISTING LAWN AREAS DISTURBED BY PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE RESTORED TO PROVIDE A
MINIMUM NINE INCHES (9") TOPSOIL, GRADED TO SMOOTH, TRUE LINES AND SEEDED AND MULCHED PER
SPECIFICATION HEREIN.

25. ANY LAND AREA THAT CANNOT BE ADEQUATELY STABILIZED WITH SEEDING AND MULCHING SHALL BE STABILIZED

WITH AN EROSION CONTROL OR TURF REINFORCEMENT MATTING.

26. FIELD ADJUSTMENTS SHALL BE MADE AS NECESSARY TO PROVIDE A SMOOTH TRANSITION BOTH HORIZONTALLY
AND VERTICALLY FROM THE EXISTING TO PROPOSED STONE AREAS.

27. FAILURE TO SPECIFICALLY MENTION ANY WORK WHICH WOULD NORMALLY BE REQUIRED TO COMPLETE THE
PROJECT SHALL NOT RELIEVE THE CONTRACTOR OF HIS RESPONSIBILITY TO PERFORM SUCH WORK.

28. NO BUILDING CONSTRUCTION MAY OCCUR WITHOUT PERMITS FIRST BEING ISSUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
ORDINANCES OF SHREWSBURY TOWNSHIP.

29. ALL SPOT ELEVATIONS ARE REFERENCED TO THE FINISHED PAVEMENT OR GROUND SURFACE UNLESS
OTHERWISE INDICATED.

30. ALL FINAL SITE GRADING SHALL BE SMOOTH AND EVEN AND WITHOUT ABRUPT BREAKS OR CHANGES IN GRADE.
FINISHED EARTHEN SLOPES SHALL BE ROUNDED TO PROVIDE A UNIFORM AND AESTHETIC LANDSCAPE.

31. NO WORK SHALL OCCUR OUTSIDE OF THE PROPERTY OR RIGHT-OF-WAY LINES UNLESS COVERED BY GRADING OR
CONSTRUCTION EASEMENTS.

32. BEFORE EXCAVATION, ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHALL BE LOCATED IN THE FIELD IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL
APPLICABLE REGULATIONS OF ACT 287 - PA ONE CALL NOTIFICATION OF UTILITIES. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
NOTIFY PA ONE CALL AT 1-800-242-1776. THE LOCATION OF ALL UTILITIES AND UNDERGROUND STRUCTURES ARE
APPROXIMATE AND MAY NOT ALL BE SHOWN. IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO DETERMINE THE
EXISTENCE AND EXACT LOCATION OF ALL UTILITIES AND UNDERGROUND STRUCTURES.

33. ALL SLOPES SHALL BE 3:1 (HORIZONTAL:VERTICAL) MAXIMUM IN FILL AREAS AND 2:1 MAXIMUM IN CUT AREAS
UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

34. THE PROPERTY OWNER(S), THEIR SUCCESSOR(S) AND/OR ASSIGN(S) SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE
MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION OF ALL STORMWATER MANAGEMENT FACILITIES (SWALES, PIPING, BASINS, ETC.)
AND OTHER BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMPS) CONSTRUCTED ON THE PROPERTY. SHREWSBURY TOWNSHIP
SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT, BUT NOT THE DUTY, TO INSPECT THE FACILITIES AT ANY TIME, TO REQUIRE THE PRIVATE
ENTITY A REASONABLE TIME PERIOD FOR ALL NECESSARY ACTION AND TO AUTHORIZE MAINTENANCE TO BE DONE
AND LIEN ALL COSTS OF THE WORK AGAINST THE PROPERTY.

35. ALL INLETS SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH STRUCTURAL STEEL BICYCLE SAFE GRATES UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

36. ALL STORM INLETS OR MANHOLES OVER 4 FEET IN DEPTH SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH MANHOLE STEPS.

37. ALL STORM PIPING, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, SHALL BE DUAL-WALLED, CORRUGATED HIGH DENSITY
POLYETHYLENE PIPE (HDPE) AS MANUFACTURED BY ADVANCED DRAINAGE SYSTEM (ADS) OR APPROVED EQUAL.

38. ALL PIPE LENGTHS AND SLOPES SHOWN HEREON ARE COMPUTED FROM CENTER TO CENTER OF STRUCTURE
UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. CONSTRUCT PIPE LENGTH BASED ON ACTUAL STRUCTURE DIMENSIONS.

39. ALL INLET BOXES SHALL BE STANDARD PRECAST CONCRETE BOXES PER PADOT RC STANDARDS UNLESS NOTED
OTHERWISE.

40. ALL PIPES SHALL ENTER THE END OR SIDE OF BOXES. NO CORNER CONNECTIONS SHALL BE PERMITTED.

41. THE OWNER HEREBY GRANTS SHREWSBURY TOWNSHIP OR IT'S REPRESENTATIVE A GENERAL ACCESS EASEMENT
ACROSS THE ENTIRE LOT FOR ACCESS TO THE STORMWATER MANAGEMENT FACILITIES.

42. ALL EXTERIOR LIGHTING SHOULD BE SO ARRANGED AND/OR SHIELDED SO AS NOT TO CAST OBJECTIONABLE
ILLUMINATION OR GLARE UPON ADJOINING PROPERTIES.

43. ALL WORK SHALL BE IN CONFORMANCE WITH SHREWSBURY TOWNSHIP'S CONSTRUCTION AND MATERIALS
SPECIFICATIONS.

44. THE DEVELOPER SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING AS-BUILT PLANS OF ALL STORMWATER MANAGEMENT
BMPS INCLUDED IN THE APPROVED PLAN. THE AS-BUILT PLANS AND AN EXPLANATION OF ANY DISCREPANCIES
WITH THE CONSTRUCTION PLANS SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO SHREWSBURY TOWNSHIP WITHIN SIX MONTHS AFTER
COMPLETION OF THE FACILITY.

45. ROOF LEADERS SHOULD NOT BE TIED INTO THE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM.

46. ANY PROPOSED FLOOR DRAINS OR SUMP PUMPS SHALL NOT BE CONNECTED ANY STORM SEWER OR
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT FACILITY.

47. THE TOWNSHIP SHALL BE PERMITTED TO ENTER AND INSPECT FACILITIES AS OFTEN AS MAY BE NECESSARY TO
DETERMINE COMPLIANCE WITH DISCHARGE REGULATIONS. IF A DISCHARGER HAS SECURITY MEASURES IN FORCE
WHICH REQUIRE PROPER IDENTIFICATION AND CLEARANCE BEFORE ENTRY INTO ITS PREMISES, THE DISCHARGER
SHALL MAKE NECESSARY ARRANGEMENTS TO ALLOW ACCESS TO REPRESENTATIVES OF THE TOWNSHIP.

NOTES LEGEND
EXISTING BOUNDARY LINE
EXISTING ADJOINER BOUNDARY LINE
EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE
EXISTING PAVEMENT

EXISTING OVERHEAD ELECTRIC LINE

EXISTING CONTOUR LINE
EXISTING STREAM
MUNICIPAL BOUNDARY LINE

EXISTING GRAVEL DRIVE
EXISTING TREELINE
EXISTING FENCE

EXISTING UTILITY POLE

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE
EXISTING SANITARY SEWER LINE

EXISTING STORM INLET

EXISTING STORM PIPE

OE

S
S

18" RCP

WEXISTING WELL
EXISTING SPOTLIGHT 

500

LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE
NPDES PERMIT BOUNDARY

PROPOSED CONCRETE

PROPOSED GRAVEL

PROPOSED CONTOUR LINE 500

PROPOSED FINISH FLOOR ELEVATION FFE=500.00

PROPOSED STORM MANHOLE

PROPOSED STORM INLET

PROPOSED STORM PIPE

PROPOSED STORM STRUCTURE LABEL INLET
I-5

TEMPORARY FILTER SOCK FS

ZONE: INDUSTRIAL (IND)

EXISTING USE: MANUFACTURING

PROPOSED USE: MANUFACTURING

MINIMUM LOT AREA: NONE

EXISTING LOT AREA: 8.02 ACRES

MINIMUM LOT WIDTH: 100' AT BUILD-TO LINE

EXISTING LOT WIDTH: APPROXIMATELY 207' ALONG WATER STREET
APPROXIMATELY 294' ALONG NORTH FOURTH STREET

FRONT SETBACK: 35'
SIDE SETBACK: 10'
REAR SETBACK: 30'

MAXIMUM LOT COVERAGE: 85%

MINIMUM GREEN AREA: 15%

IMPERVIOUS AREA INCREASE: 312 SF

LOT DATA

102

101

100

2" x 2" WOODEN STAKES
PLACED 10' O.C.

UNDISTURBED
AREA

PLAN VIEW

DISTURBED
AREA

COMPOST
FILTER SOCK

EXISTING
CONTOURS

SECTION VIEW

FL
O

W FLO
W

12" MIN

UNDISTURBED AREADISTURBED AREA

BLOWN/PLACED FILTER MEDIA COMPOST FILTER SOCK

2"x2" WOODEN STAKES PLACED 10' O.C.

GENERAL NOTES:

1. SOCK FABRIC SHALL MEET STANDARDS OF TABLE 4.1. COMPOST SHALL MEET THE STANDARDS OF TABLE
4.2.

2. COMPOST FILTER SOCK SHALL BE PLACED AT EXISTING LEVEL GRADE. BOTH ENDS OF THE SOCK SHALL
BE EXTENDED AT LEAST 8 FEET UP SLOPE AT 45 DEGREES TO THE MAIN SOCK ALIGNMENT (FIGURE 4.1).
MAXIMUM SLOPE LENGTH ABOVE ANY SOCK SHALL NOT EXCEED THAT SHOWN ON FIGURE 4.2. STAKES
MAY BE INSTALLED IMMEDIATELY DOWNSLOPE OF THE SOCK IF SO SPECIFIED BY THE MANUFACTURER.

3. TRAFFIC SHALL NOT BE PERMITTED TO CROSS FILTER SOCKS.

4. ACCUMULATED SEDIMENT SHALL BE REMOVED WHEN IT REACHES HALF THE ABOVEGROUND HEIGHT OF
THE SOCK AND DISPOSED IN THE MANNER DESCRIBED ELSEWHERE IN THE PLAN.

5. SOCKS SHALL BE INSPECTED WEEKLY AND AFTER EACH RUNOFF EVENT. DAMAGED SOCKS SHALL BE
REPAIRED ACCORDING TO MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS OR REPLACED WITHIN 24 HOURS OF
INSPECTION.

6. BIODEGRADABLE FILTER SOCKS SHALL BE REPLACED AFTER 6 MONTHS; PHOTODEGRADABLE SOCKS
AFTER 1 YEAR. POLYPROPYLENE SOCKS SHALL BE REPLACED ACCORDING TO MANUFACTURER'S
RECOMMENDATIONS.

7. UPON STABILIZATION OF THE AREA TRIBUTARY TO THE SOCK, STAKES SHALL BE REMOVED. THE SOCK
MAY BE LEFT IN PLACE AND VEGETATED OR REMOVED. IN THE LATTER CASE, THE MESH SHALL BE CUT
OPEN AND THE MULCH SPREAD AS A SOIL SUPPLEMENT.

COMPOST FILTER SOCK
NOT TO SCALE

STONE AREA
NOT TO SCALE

8" COMPACTED SUBBASE MATERIAL (#2A)

COMPACTED SUBGRADE

73



Met Ed
14660
18282

Met Ed
214659
C18250

Met Ed
14667
18288

UTC
12

Met Ed
14681
18292

UTC
13

Met Ed
14686
18284

UTC
14

Met Ed
14696
18295

Met Ed
14661
18265

Met Ed
214663
C18236

214665
C18227

Met Ed
Pole
Met Ed
14695
18260

Iron Pin
(Fnd.)

Iron Pin
(Fnd.)

Conc. Mon.
(Fnd.)

Iron Pin
(Fnd.)

Iron Pin
(Fnd.)

Spike
(Fnd.)

Drill Hole
(Fnd.)

Common Area 2

Unit 4

Unit 3

Unit 1

Unit 2

Spectra Kote Corp.
Deed Book 6324, Page 255

Lot 1 Plan Book 83-27
Tax Parcel No. 16007-0142

Unit 5

Spectra-Kote
Sign

Mason-Dixon
Distillery Sign

Direction
Sign

Visitor Parking
Signs

TG 503.30
Inv. 502.14

6"
 P

VC

6" PVC

6" PVC

6" PVC

6" PVC

12" HDPE

12" Steel

15" C
M

P

TG 503.35
Inv. 501.64

Downspout
(Typ.)

TG 513.90
Inv. 511.32

Downspout
(Typ.)

Approx. Location 12" CMP

Inv. 498.68

Inv. 498.85

Lawn

Lawn

Lawn

Small
 Trees & Brush

ConcreteConcrete

Conc. Wall

Pavement

Pavement

Pavement
Concrete

Steps
Down

Dashed Parking
Stripes Faded

Bicycle Trail
Easement
(DB 6549-49)

Metal
Box

Lawn

Conc.
Ramp

Stone
Area

Bicycle Trail
Easement
(DB 6549-49)

Stone
Area

Chemical
Tanks

Wall

OH
Door

OH
Door

OH
Door

Dock

Stevens Run

Bridge
N/F

South Central
Community Action

DB 3286-77

N/F
South Central

Community Action
DB 1346-280

N/F
South Central

Community Action
DB 5291-217

N/F
Blue Mountain Group

of Shippensburg
DB 6596-126

Lot 2-PB 83-27

N/F
Blue Mountain Group

of Shippensburg
DB 6596-126

Lot 2-PB 83-27

Water Street

Soil Piles

N48° 00' 53"E   163.26'

N77° 29' 18"E   147.42'

S22° 10' 02"E
25.36'

S14° 10' 12"E   175.44'

N77° 33' 33"E   175.02'

N72° 30' 53"E   198.82' N64° 01' 48"E   186.21'

S26° 48' 02"E   291.74'

S64° 09' 03"W   510.61'

S67° 29' 28"W   323.42'

N
12

° 0
2'

 1
2"

W
   

29
1.

71
'

N88° 34' 18"E
46.89'

UE
O

E
O

E
O

E

OT

OT

OT

OT

OT

OE

OE

OE

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

S
S

S

S

S

G

G

G

W

W

Inv. 510.85

Inv. 511.53

Inv. 492.80

516
515

514

516
515

51
4

51
4

51
3512

51
1

51
0

50
9

50
8

509

51
0

51
2

509

508

50
5

50
5

50
4

50
7

507

506

505

503

502

501

504

505

501
500

500
499

498

497
496

SITE AREA

C-200

O
VE

R
AL

L 
EX

IS
TI

N
G

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
 P

LA
N

1" = 40'

SHEET

XR
EF

S:
D

R
AW

IN
G

 R
EF

ER
EN

C
E:

L:
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

24
\2

4-
01

93
-0

01
 - 

Sp
ec

tra
 K

ot
e\

C
AD

D
\P

la
n 

Sh
ee

ts
\F

in
al

\2
4-

01
93

-0
01

-0
2-

Ex
is

tin
g 

C
on

 P
la

n.
dw

g

SCALE:
DATE:

PROJECT NO.

DESIGN -

PROJ. MGR. -

CHECKED -

CADD -

24-0193-001
05/10/24

N
O

.
D

AT
E

R
EV

IS
IO

N

SP
EC

TR
A 

K
O

TE
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G 
AD

D
IT

IO
N

FO
R

SP
EC

TR
A 

KO
TE

 C
O

R
PO

R
AT

IO
N

AD
AM

S 
C

O
U

N
TY

, P
EN

N
SY

LV
AN

IA

FO
R

BY

5/
10

/2
02

4,
 1

2:
03

PM
 T

im
 F

in
k

PR
IN

TE
D

:

G
ET

TY
SB

U
R

G
 B

O
R

O
U

G
H

SURV

E
Y

IN
G

P
L

A
N

N I N G

LA

N
D

L
A

N
D

C
I V

I L
  

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

IN
G

la
nd

   
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t  
 c

on
su

lta
nt

s
 IV

IL
    

  E
SI

GN
, L

LC
C

D
AN

DW
OR

KS
L

 2
4-

01
93

-0
01

_x
ba

se
 [.

.\.
.\D

ra
w

in
g 

Ba
se

s\
24

-0
19

3-
00

1_
xb

as
e.

dw
g]

 2
4-

01
93

-0
01

-tb
-L

D
 [.

.\.
.\D

ra
w

in
g 

Ba
se

s\
24

-0
19

3-
00

1-
tb

-L
D

.d
w

g]

JCG

TCK

TCK

JCG

w
w

w
.la

nd
w

or
ks

cd
.co

m
p 

 (8
66

)  
LN

DW
RK

S
14

06
 3

RD
 A

VE
N

UE
, S

UI
TE

 2
00

YO
RK

, P
A 

17
40

3

GRAPHIC SCALE
0'

SCALE: 1"  =

40' 20' 40'

40'

74



Iron Pin
(Fnd.)

Spectra Kote Corp.
Deed Book 6324, Page 255

Lot 1 Plan Book 83-27
Tax Parcel No. 16007-0142

6" PVC

6" PVC

12" HDPE

12" Steel

Downspout
(Typ.)

TG 513.90
Inv. 511.32

Downspout
(Typ.)

Small
 Trees & Brush

Metal
Box

Conc.
Ramp

Stone
Area

Bicycle Trail
Easement

(DB 6549-49)
Stone
Area

OH
Door

OH
Door

Dock

N/F
South Central

Community Action
DB 5291-217

Soil Piles

N
12

° 0
2'

 1
2"

W
   

29
1.

71
'

Inv. 510.85

Inv. 511.53

516

515

514

516
515

51
4

51
451
3

512

51
1

51
0

50
9

50
8

509

51
0

51
2

509

508

50
5

50
5

50
4

50
7

507

506

Iron Pin
(Fnd.)

Spectra Kote Corp.
Deed Book 6324, Page 255

Lot 1 Plan Book 83-27
Tax Parcel No. 16007-0142

6" PVC

6" PVC

12" HDPE

12" Steel

Downspout
(Typ.)

TG 513.90
Inv. 511.32

Downspout
(Typ.)

Small
 Trees & Brush

Metal
Box

Conc.
Ramp

Stone
Area

Bicycle Trail
Easement

(DB 6549-49)
Stone
Area

OH
Door

OH
Door

Dock

N/F
South Central

Community Action
DB 5291-217

Soil Piles

Inv. 510.85

Inv. 511.53

516

515

514

516
515

51
4

51
451
3

512

51
1

51
0

50
9

50
8

509

51
0

51
2

509

508

50
5

50
5

50
4

50
7

507

506

LIMITS OF STONE REMOVAL

STONE AREA TO BE REMOVED

CONCRETE AREA
TO BE REMOVED

LIMITS OF STONE REMOVAL

C-201

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

 &
 D

EM
O

LI
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N

1" = 20'

SHEET

XR
EF

S:
D

R
AW

IN
G

 R
EF

ER
EN

C
E:

L:
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

24
\2

4-
01

93
-0

01
 - 

Sp
ec

tra
 K

ot
e\

C
AD

D
\P

la
n 

Sh
ee

ts
\F

in
al

\2
4-

01
93

-0
01

-0
2-

Ex
is

tin
g 

C
on

 P
la

n.
dw

g

SCALE:
DATE:

PROJECT NO.

DESIGN -

PROJ. MGR. -

CHECKED -

CADD -

24-0193-001
05/10/24

N
O

.
D

AT
E

R
EV

IS
IO

N

SP
EC

TR
A 

K
O

TE
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G 
AD

D
IT

IO
N

FO
R

SP
EC

TR
A 

KO
TE

 C
O

R
PO

R
AT

IO
N

AD
AM

S 
C

O
U

N
TY

, P
EN

N
SY

LV
AN

IA

FO
R

BY

5/
10

/2
02

4,
 1

2:
03

PM
 T

im
 F

in
k

PR
IN

TE
D

:

G
ET

TY
SB

U
R

G
 B

O
R

O
U

G
H

SURV

E
Y

IN
G

P
L

A
N

N I N G

LA

N
D

L
A

N
D

C
I V

I L
  

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

IN
G

la
nd

   
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t  
 c

on
su

lta
nt

s
 IV

IL
    

  E
SI

GN
, L

LC
C

D
AN

DW
OR

KS
L

 2
4-

01
93

-0
01

_x
ba

se
 [.

.\.
.\D

ra
w

in
g 

Ba
se

s\
24

-0
19

3-
00

1_
xb

as
e.

dw
g]

 2
4-

01
93

-0
01

-tb
-L

D
 [.

.\.
.\D

ra
w

in
g 

Ba
se

s\
24

-0
19

3-
00

1-
tb

-L
D

.d
w

g]

JCG

TCK

TCK

JCG

w
w

w
.la

nd
w

or
ks

cd
.co

m
p 

 (8
66

)  
LN

DW
RK

S
14

06
 3

RD
 A

VE
N

UE
, S

UI
TE

 2
00

YO
RK

, P
A 

17
40

3

GRAPHIC SCALE
0'

SCALE: 1"  =

20' 10' 20'

20'

EXISTING CONDITION PLAN DEMOLITION PLAN

75



Iron Pin
(Fnd.)

Spectra Kote Corp.
Deed Book 6324, Page 255

Lot 1 Plan Book 83-27
Tax Parcel No. 16007-0142

6" PVC

6" PVC

12" HDPE

12" Steel

Downspout
(Typ.)

TG 513.90
Inv. 511.32

Downspout
(Typ.)

Small
 Trees & Brush

Conc.
Ramp

Stone
Area

Bicycle Trail
Easement

(DB 6549-49)

OH
Door

OH
Door

Dock

N/F
South Central

Community Action
DB 5291-217

Soil Piles

N
12

° 0
2'

 1
2"

W
   

29
1.

71
'

Inv. 510.85

Inv. 511.53

516

515

514

516
515

51
4

51
451
3

512

51
1

51
0

50
9

50
8

509

51
0

51
2

509

508

50
5

50
5

50
4

50
7

507

506

49.21'

22.67'

O.H.
DOOR

M
AN

D
O

O
R

CONCRETE TRUCK
UNLOADING AREA

CONCRETE WALLS

BUILDING ADDITION
1,116 SF

23'

53.5'

2' COVERED
OVERHANG

NEW STONE AREA

Iron Pin
(Fnd.)

Spectra Kote Corp.
Deed Book 6324, Page 255

Lot 1 Plan Book 83-27
Tax Parcel No. 16007-0142

6" PVC

6" PVC

12" HDPE

12" Steel

Downspout
(Typ.)

TG 513.90
Inv. 511.32

Downspout
(Typ.)

Small
 Trees & Brush

Conc.
Ramp

Stone
Area

Bicycle Trail
Easement

(DB 6549-49)

OH
Door

OH
Door

Dock

N/F
South Central

Community Action
DB 5291-217

Soil Piles

Inv. 510.85

Inv. 511.53

516

515

514

516
515

51
4

51
451
3

512

51
1

51
0

50
9

50
8

509

51
0

51
2

509

508

50
5

50
5

50
4

50
7

507

506

509.00

12" FILTER SOCK

BUILDING ADDITION
1,116 SF

508.67

509.50
509.50

SUMP PIT
@ 506.67

508.67

FS
FS

FS

FS

FS

FS

FS

FS

513.50512.75

513.70

514.17

C-300

SI
TE

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS
 P

LA
N

1" = 20'

SHEET

XR
EF

S:
D

R
AW

IN
G

 R
EF

ER
EN

C
E:

L:
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

24
\2

4-
01

93
-0

01
 - 

Sp
ec

tra
 K

ot
e\

C
AD

D
\P

la
n 

Sh
ee

ts
\F

in
al

\2
4-

01
93

-0
01

-0
3-

Si
te

 P
la

n.
dw

g

SCALE:
DATE:

PROJECT NO.

DESIGN -

PROJ. MGR. -

CHECKED -

CADD -

24-0193-001
05/10/24

N
O

.
D

AT
E

R
EV

IS
IO

N

SP
EC

TR
A 

K
O

TE
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G 
AD

D
IT

IO
N

FO
R

SP
EC

TR
A 

KO
TE

 C
O

R
PO

R
AT

IO
N

AD
AM

S 
C

O
U

N
TY

, P
EN

N
SY

LV
AN

IA

FO
R

BY

5/
10

/2
02

4,
 1

2:
04

PM
 T

im
 F

in
k

PR
IN

TE
D

:

G
ET

TY
SB

U
R

G
 B

O
R

O
U

G
H

SURV

E
Y

IN
G

P
L

A
N

N I N G

LA

N
D

L
A

N
D

C
I V

I L
  

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

IN
G

la
nd

   
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t  
 c

on
su

lta
nt

s
 IV

IL
    

  E
SI

GN
, L

LC
C

D
AN

DW
OR

KS
L

 2
4-

01
93

-0
01

_x
ba

se
 [.

.\.
.\D

ra
w

in
g 

Ba
se

s\
24

-0
19

3-
00

1_
xb

as
e.

dw
g]

 2
4-

01
93

-0
01

_p
ba

se
 [.

.\.
.\D

ra
w

in
g 

Ba
se

s\
24

-0
19

3-
00

1_
pb

as
e.

dw
g]

 2
4-

01
93

-0
01

-rd
-G

nU
 [.

.\.
.\D

ra
w

in
g 

Ba
se

s\
24

-0
19

3-
00

1-
rd

-G
nU

.d
w

g]
 2

4-
01

93
-0

01
-tb

-L
D

 [.
.\.

.\D
ra

w
in

g 
Ba

se
s\

24
-0

19
3-

00
1-

tb
-L

D
.d

w
g]

JCG

TCK

TCK

JCG

w
w

w
.la

nd
w

or
ks

cd
.co

m
p 

 (8
66

)  
LN

DW
RK

S
14

06
 3

RD
 A

VE
N

UE
, S

UI
TE

 2
00

YO
RK

, P
A 

17
40

3

GRAPHIC SCALE
0'

SCALE: 1"  =

20' 10' 20'

20'

SITE PLAN GRADING AND EROSION & SEDIMENTATION CONTROL PLAN

76



ZHB-240001 

 

GETTYSBURG 

WELCOME 

CENTER 

 

340 BALTIMORE STREET 

 

ZONING HEARING BOARD 
REVIEW  

77



 

1 
 

  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
To: Gettysburg Borough Planning Commission 
 
From:  John Whitmore, AICP, Zoning Officer and Director of Planning, Zoning, and Code Compliance 
 
CC:  Adam Boyer, Solicitor 
 Peter Griffioen, Assistant Zoning Officer & Code Compliance Officer 
   
Date: May 14, 2024 
 
RE: ZHB-240001/ 340 Baltimore Street, Gettysburg, PA 17325 
 Special Exception and Variance Application 
 
The following memorandum provides background information regarding a request for Variances and 
Special Exception from the owner of the above-referenced property.   

PROJECT INFORMATION 

Name of Project:  Gettysburg Welcome Center 

Type of Project: Special Exception per Section 27-803(E) 

 Variance per Section 27-804.2  

 Zoning Hearing Board Development Review per Section 27-1403.1 

Project Address: 340 Baltimore Street 

Case Number: ZHB-240001 

Zoning: (RO) Residential Office District 
(HD) Historic District 

 (SEO) Streetscape Enhancement Overlay 
     
Property Owner(s): Borough of Gettysburg 
 59 East High Street 
 Gettysburg, PA 17325 
     
Applicant: Charles Gable, Borough Manager 
 59 East High Street 
 Gettysburg, PA 17325 
 
Applicant’s Attorney: Harry Eastman, Esquire 
 123 Baltimore Street, Suite 101 
 Gettysburg, PA 17325 
 
Submission Date:  A complete application was submitted to the Zoning Officer on April 29, 2024. 

78



ZHB-240001 - 340 BALTIMORE STREET, GETTYSBURG, PA 17325 
May 22, 2024 

 

2 
 

 

MPC Timeline:  

• The applicant was notified of the hearing date via First Class Mail/email communication by the 
ZHB Solicitor. 

• The hearing was advertised in the Gettysburg Times in accordance with the Pennsylvania 
Sunshine Law and Municipal Planning Code. 

• The adjacent property owners were notified of the hearing via letter mailed first class by 
Tuesday, May 14, 2024. 

• The property was clearly posted with signage on Tuesday, May 14, 2024. 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

1. PROPOSED ACTION 
§ 27-803(E) Uses Permitted by Special Exception. 

Uses which, in the opinion of the Zoning Hearing Board, are of the same general character as the 
above uses in § 27-803 and which will not be detrimental to the intended purpose of this chapter. 
Applicant seeks to use the site as a Welcome Center, a quasi-governmental building that is not 
provided as a permitted land use in any zoning district. 

 
§ 27-804.2 Lot Requirements. 

Minimum area, nonresidenital uses: 5,000 square feet, unless larger area is required in another 
section. The parcel area is approximately 4,356 square feet. 

   

§ 27-1403.1 Nonconforming Lots. 
Held in Single and Separate Ownership. A building may be erected or altered on any lot held at the 
time this Part becomes effective (October 23, 1975) in single and separate ownership which is not 
of the required minimum area or width or is of such unusual dimensions or shape that the owner 
would have difficulty in providing the required open spaces for the district in which such lot is 
located, provided that the plans for the proposed building shall be approved by the Zoning 
Hearing Board after review of the plans to assure reasonable compliance with the intent of the 
regulations for the district. 

 
2. SITE HISTORY 

The Borough of Gettysburg entered into a purchase agreement for 340 Baltimore Street, 
Gettysburg, PA 17325 in December of 2019. The property is approximately 4,356 sq. ft. in area and 
is located within the RO (Residential Office), the H (Historic), and the SE (Streetscape 
Enhancement Overlay) Districts.    
  
Prior Use(s): 
Municipal records dating back to 1998 indicate that this property had at one time been the site of 
a retail sales establishment, but has been vacant since at least 2018. 

79

https://ecode360.com/27360402#27360402


ZHB-240001 - 340 BALTIMORE STREET, GETTYSBURG, PA 17325 
May 22, 2024 

 

3 
 

 
Recent Permitting and License History: 
06/20/2018 COA-18-16 Demolition application for the structure – Application found to be 
incomplete. 
 
Prior Zoning Hearing Board Decision(s): A Zoning Hearing Board application related to a miniature 
golf course to be located on the site was located from 2016 but no action related to the case was 
found and it appears the application became inactive. 
 

3. RELEVANT ZONING SECTIONS 
a) DEFINITIONS 

AUDITORIUM, COMMERCIAL A commercial area or structure involving indoor or outdoor 
space for exhibits, meetings, live performances or sports events, but not a use that meets the 
definition of a movie theater, adult live entertainment use or standard or fast-food restaurant. 

CULTURAL CENTER A building and/or land open to the public which primarily contains exhibits 
of clearly artistic or cultural interest, such as a museum, library, art gallery or indoor nature 
study area. This shall not include uses that are primarily commercial in nature. 

ESSENTIAL SERVICES Utility or municipal uses that are necessary for the preservation of the 
public health and safety and that are routine, customary and appropriate to the character of 
the area in which they are to be located. Essential services shall be limited to the following: 
utility lines, wells, stormwater management facilities and mailboxes. Essential services shall 
not include a central sewage treatment plant, a solid waste disposal area or facility, 
commercial communications towers, a power-generating station, septic or sludge disposal, 
offices, storage of trucks or equipment or bulk storage of materials. 

EVENT VENUE USE The commercial use of a building and related facilities for the purpose of 
leasing the same on a temporary basis for private functions, meetings, cultural or celebratory 
events or gatherings, family events or gatherings, artistic, educational, and similar functions. 
This use shall not include and, by this definition specifically excludes, functions that are solely 
outdoor music performances or concerts, and uses that meet the definition of "commercial 
auditorium," "social club or lodge," or "places of worship." 

RECREATION, COMMERCIAL Leisure-time uses that are principally operated for commercial 
purposes. 

SPECIAL EXCEPTION A use for which the Zoning Hearing Board may grant permission following 
a public hearing & findings of fact consistent with this chapter, provided that the use complies 
with the conditions & standards required by this chapter. 

b) PART 8 RESIDENTIAL OFFICE DISTRICT (RO) 
§ 27-801 Purpose. The purpose of this Part is to provide for offices, select businesses, 
residential uses and other compatible uses within the Baltimore Street/Carlisle Street 
Corridor and at other select locations in a manner that respects and preserves the special 
character of these areas. Adaptive reuses are encouraged that preserve the viability of the 
larger structures within these areas. 
 

80

https://ecode360.com/27358552#27358552
https://ecode360.com/27358586#27358586
https://ecode360.com/27358612#27358612
https://ecode360.com/42522658#42522658


ZHB-240001 - 340 BALTIMORE STREET, GETTYSBURG, PA 17325 
May 22, 2024 

 

4 
 

§ 27-802 Uses Permitted by Right 

The “Essential Services” and “Municipal or governmental buildings and uses” are identified as 
permitted land uses in the RO District.  

§ 27-903 Uses Permitted by Special Exception.  
The “Event Venue” land use and “Uses which, in the opinion of the Zoning Hearing Board, are 
of the same general character as the above uses in §27-803 and which will not be detrimental 
to the intended purpose of this chapter” are permitted by Special Exception in the RO District 
 

c) PART 17 ZONING HEARING BOARD 

§ 27-1704  Standards for Zoning Hearing Board Action. In any instance where the Zoning Hearing 
Board is required to consider a special exception or variance in accordance with the provisions 
of this Part, the applicant shall provide evidence to allow the Board to, among other things, 
consider the following standards. The Board shall hear requests for variances where it is alleged 
that the provisions of this chapter inflict unnecessary hardship upon the applicant. The Board 
may, by rule, prescribe the form of application & may require preliminary application to the 
Zoning Officer. The Board may grant a variance, provided that all of the following findings are 
made where relevant in a given case: 
 
A. For Variances: 

(1) That there are unique physical circumstances or conditions, including irregularity, 
narrowness, or shallowness of lot size or shape, or exceptional topographical or other 
physical conditions peculiar to the particular property and that the unnecessary hardship 
is due to such conditions and not the circumstances or conditions generally created by the 
provisions of this chapter in the neighborhood or district in which the property is located. 
 
(2) That, because of such physical circumstances or conditions, there is no possibility that 
the property can be developed in strict conformity with the provisions of this chapter and 
that the authorization of a variance is therefore necessary to enable the reasonable use of 
the property. 
 
(3) That such unnecessary hardship has not been created by the appellant. 
 
(4) That the variance, if authorized, will not alter the essential character of the 
neighborhood or district in which the property is located, nor substantially or permanently 
impair the appropriate use or development of adjacent property, nor be detrimental to the 
public welfare. 
 
(5) That the variance, if authorized, will represent the minimum variance that will afford 
relief and will represent the least modification possible of the regulation in issue. 

81

https://ecode360.com/27359910#27359916
https://ecode360.com/27361192#27361192
https://ecode360.com/27361193#27361193
https://ecode360.com/27361194#27361194
https://ecode360.com/27361195#27361195
https://ecode360.com/27361196#27361196
https://ecode360.com/27361197#27361197


ZHB-240001 - 340 BALTIMORE STREET, GETTYSBURG, PA 17325 
May 22, 2024 

 

5 
 

(6) In granting any variance, the Board may attach such reasonable conditions and 
safeguards as it may deem necessary to implement the purposes of the Pennsylvania 
Municipalities Planning Code and this chapter. 

 
B. For Special Exceptions: 

(1) The applicant shall provide evidence to indicate to the Zoning Hearing Board that: 
 
(a) The proposed use is consistent with the purpose of the Part whereby it is 
permitted and the overall purposes contained in Part 1. 
 
(b) The proposed use and its location are generally consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and the current Gettysburg Borough Zoning Map. 
 
(c) The proposed use complies with the lot requirements and the building height of 
the district where it is proposed. 
 
(d) The proposed use is consistent with the general and supplemental regulations 
set forth in Part 15, and the design standards of Part 19. 
 
(e) The proposed use will not substantially injure or detract from the use of 
neighboring property or from the character of the neighborhood and that the use of 
the adjacent property is adequately safeguarded. Further, the proposed use, 
located on the proposed property, with the present and proposed characteristics of 
each, and considering the present and proposed characteristics of the neighboring 
properties, will not cause negative impacts over and above those typically 
associated with such uses located and operated in a usual manner. 
 
(f) The proposed use will provide a fence or a planting screen and/or additional yard 
or open space area to reduce the effect of the proposed use upon adjacent 
properties. 
 
(g) The proposed use will promote preservation or adaptive reuse of the sites and 
structures identified by the Local Historic District Regulations [Chapter 11]. 
 
(h) The proposed use complies with the required off-street parking and loading 
regulations in Part 13. 
 
(i) The proposed use will provide safe and adequate access to streets and that the 
applicant will make any improvements needed to guarantee compatibility with 
adjacent streets as recommended by the Borough Engineer. 
(j) The proposed use will provide for pedestrian access to the site. 

82

https://ecode360.com/27361198#27361198
https://ecode360.com/27361199#27361199
https://ecode360.com/27361200#27361200
https://ecode360.com/27361201#27361201
https://ecode360.com/27361202#27361202
https://ecode360.com/27361203#27361203
https://ecode360.com/27361204#27361204
https://ecode360.com/27361205#27361205
https://ecode360.com/27361206#27361206
https://ecode360.com/27361207#27361207
https://ecode360.com/27353510#27353510
https://ecode360.com/27361208#27361208
https://ecode360.com/27361209#27361209
https://ecode360.com/27361210#27361210


ZHB-240001 - 340 BALTIMORE STREET, GETTYSBURG, PA 17325 
May 22, 2024 

 

6 
 

 
(k) The proposed use will not adversely affect public facilities and utilities, such as 
water, sewer, police and fire protection, schools, etc. 
 
(l) The proposed use will comply with the signage regulations of Chapter 19 of the 
Borough Code. 

 
(2) The Zoning Hearing Board may attach reasonable conditions as it deems necessary to 
assure compliance with this chapter. 

 

83

https://ecode360.com/27361211#27361211
https://ecode360.com/27361212#27361212
https://ecode360.com/27355876#27355876
https://ecode360.com/27361213#27361213


Application to Gettysburg Borough Zoning Hearing Board 

Special Exception / Variance 

Applications must be made to the Zoning Officer by the first of the month.  A hearing shall be 

scheduled only upon receipt of the following: 

1. The completed application (original). Submit only those pages that are applicable to the

type of application.

2. Fourteen (14) copies of the floor plan, plot plan and/or survey, images, and other relevant

information.  Each application must include at least one drawing and/or sketch indicating

the actual outline of the lot, setback requirements, and existing structures.

Where construction or renovation is proposed, drawings must also indicate changes to

existing structures, any new proposed structures or units, and type of construction.  All

plans must include dimensions, and if applicable must also show improvements, public

easements, individual easements, improvements to public right of ways, common areas

and any other items necessary to explain the reasons for the hearing application.

3. Fee of $ 1,000.00.

Additional notes regarding zoning hearings: 

• It is the Applicant’s responsibility to complete this application and provide all of the

required information. Failure to do so will delay the hearing date.

• Applicant should carefully review the Zoning Ordinance for complete information on

zoning regulations, zoning hearing procedures, and other pertinent information.

• Applicant or Applicant’s designated representative must attend the zoning hearing, and

should attend the Planning Commission meeting held prior to the hearing as well.

• At the hearing, the Applicant must provide the Zoning Board with “substantial evidence”

to allow it to make the findings required by the Zoning Ordinance.

• Specific legal standards must be met before the Zoning Board may approve a special

exception or variance. Although not required, Applicant is encouraged to consult with

legal counsel regarding those legal standards.

• Application materials, including plans, sketches, drawings and photographs, become

part of the permanent record and cannot be returned.

Failure to provide required information will delay your hearing 

84



Property Address: _________________________________ 

Zoning Hearing Board Application 
Revised June 2022 
page 2 of 9 

Application to Gettysburg Borough Zoning Hearing Board 

1. Type of Matter

*Complete and return only the pages relevant to the type of matter you are applying for.

A - Special Exception per Ordinance Section (s):  _____________________________

B – Variance from Section(s):  ____________________________________________

C – Change/expansion of nonconformity, Section(s):  __________________________

D – Zoning Appeal, Section(s): ___________________________________________

2.

3 

Applicant Name(s):  _______________________________________________________

Mailing Address:  __________________________________________________________

Phone: __________________________ Email  _________________________________

Property Owner(s):  _______________________________________________________

Mailing Address: __________________________________________________________

Phone: __________________________ Email:  _________________________________

4. Applicant’s Agent or Representative, if any:

Name _________________________________________________________________

Mailing Address: _________________________________________________________

Phone: __________________________ Email:  ________________________________

5. Applicant’s Legal Counsel, if any:

Name: __________________________________________________________________

Mailing Address: __________________________________________________________

Phone: __________________________ Email:  ________________________________

6. Property Covered By Application

Address or location of Property: ______________________________________________

Tax Map and Parcel # ______________________________________________________

(Attach copy of Tax Map)

Current Zoning District: _____________________________________________________

Applicable Zoning Overlays, if any:  ___________________________________________

340 Baltimore Street

§27-1403(1)

Borough of Gettysburg

59 East High Street, Gettysburg, PA 17325

(717) 334-1160 ext. 222

Borough of Gettysburg

59 East High Street, Gettysburg, PA 17325

(717) 334-1160 ext. 222

Jill Sellers; President & CEO, Main Street Gettysburg (MSG)

59 East High Street, Gettysburg, PA 17325

(717) 337-3491

Harold Eastman, Jr.; Borough Solicitor

123 Baltimore Street, Gettysburg, PA 17325

(717) 344-5165

340 Baltimore Street

16010-0382---000

RO; Residential Office District

H / SE

CGable@GettysburgPA.gov

CGable@GettysburgPA.gov

HEastman@Barley.com

X

X

X

§27-803(E)

§27-804(2)

85



P dd 340 Baltimore Street 
roperty A ress: ____________ _ 

7. Property Characteristics

Describe the present use of the property: 

The property is a vacant single-family dwelling that has not been in use since at 
least 2018. Signage on site identifies this parcel as the location of the future 
Gettysburg Welcome Center (GWC). 

Describe the existing structures on property, if any: 

A single-family dwelling based structure, approximately 2.5 stories tall is currently 
on-site. 

8. Applicant's Interest In The Property

[Z] Own Property

□ Lease Property

□ To Purchase

□ Other

9. Applicant's Verification

17 December 2019 
Date title acquired: ____________ _ 

Term of Lease: n/a --------------

Date contract: _n_l_a ____________ _ 
Explain: 

Gettysburg Welcome Center (GWC) 

I verify that the statements made in the foregoing application are true and correct. 

understand that false statements herein are made subject to the penalties of 18 Pa.C.S.A. 

§4904, relating to unsworn falsification to authorities.

Signature o� i. �oi,.L Title Borough Manager 
- =z.:::=== 

For Office Use Only (do not write in this box) 

Date Accepted and Filed _________ Filing Fee $1,000 Received D 

Scheduled Dates: Planning Commission: _________ _ 

Zoning Hearing Board: __________ _ 

Date Received: _____ _ 

Zoning Hearing Board Application 

Revised June 2022 

page 3 of 9 

Zoning Officer Signature: ___________ _ 

5/20/24

5/22/24

4/29/24

4/29/24 N/A

86



Property Address: _________________________________ 

Zoning Hearing Board Application 
Revised June 2022 
page 4 of 9 

Grounds For Hearing 

A. Special Exception

Purpose and Applicability A Special Exception is permission to use land in a zoning district for a 

purpose or land use that is permitted only if certain specific criteria are met.  There are twelve general 

criteria contained in Part 17 of the Ordinance, and specific criteria in the Ordinance, particularly in 

Parts 13 and 15; ALL must be met for a special exception to be approved.  

1. Please describe the proposed use of the land and structures:

2. What is the special request that you wish the Board to consider?

The property is proposed to be developed into the Gettysburg Welcome Center. The Gettysburg Welcome Center is a 
public facility project, which will create greater accessibility and walkability throughout the historic district. The project is 
in the center of downtown and will provide tourism, transportation, event, and volunteer information, as well as public 
restrooms. Plans include ADA-compliant facilities.

The need for the Welcome Center was identified through a series of community meetings starting in 2017, which 
included more than 80 local officials, businesses, organizations, and residents. In response, the property at 340 
Baltimore Street was generously donated to the Borough of Gettysburg for the specific purpose of creating a welcome 
center in the heart of Gettysburg’s historic downtown. Because Gettysburg’s major economic driver is tourism, focused 
on history in particular, Baltimore Street plays a major role in moving people to experience the historic attractions and 
unique places of interest and education, and therefore, its health is critical to economic survival. The Gettysburg 
Welcome Center is an essential component of Baltimore Street to help attract new businesses, increase local jobs, 
create access to transportation, and also improve the economy of adjacent, low-income neighborhoods. The welcome 
center project will create 5-10 full-time jobs or 15-20 part-time jobs, as well as contracted support for custodial and 
maintenance requirements. 

The current minimum threshold for a commercial structure and use in the RO zoning district is 5000 sq. ft. The parcel 
located at 340 Baltimore Street is 4756 sq. ft. Multiple parcels in the RO Zoning District fall below the 5000 sq. ft. 
minimum threshold. - which was not the intent of the RO District. The RO District is meant to incentive mixed uses - 
both commercial and residential. The 5000 sq. ft. minimum threshold for a commercial use is limiting, precluding 
multiple parcels from investment and redevelopment.

§27-1403 Nonconforming Lots, provides that "A building may be erected or altered on any lot held at the time this Part 
becomes effective (October 23, 1975) in single and separate ownership which is not of the required minimum area or 
width or is of such unusual dimensions or shape that the owner would have difficulty in providing the required open 
spaces for the district in which such lot is located, provided that the plans for the proposed building shall be approved 
by the Zoning Hearing Board after review of the plans to assure reasonable compliance with the intent of the 
regulations for the district."

The intent of the RO District is "is to provide for offices, select businesses, residential uses and other compatible uses 
within the Baltimore Street/Carlisle Street Corridor and at other select locations in a manner that respects and 
preserves the special character of these areas. Adaptive reuses are encouraged that preserve the viability of the larger 
structures within these areas."

The Borough seeks the Zoning Hearing Board's approval of the building plans presented and the land use as 
presented, as the proposal will allow for the construction of a Welcome Center that is integral to the RO District and 
wider community.

340 Baltimore Street

87



Property Address: _________________________________ 

Zoning Hearing Board Application 
Revised June 2022 
page 5 of 9 

3. Please answer the following questions regarding the property:

a. Yes No

b. Yes No

c. Yes No

d. Yes No

e. Yes No

The proposed use is consistent with the Purpose of the Part whereby it is 

permitted, and the overall purposes contained in the Borough’s Zoning 

Ordinance Chapter 27, Part 1 Community Development Objectives. 

 The proposed use and its location is generally consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan, and the current Gettysburg Borough Zoning Map. 

The proposed use meets with the lot requirements and the building 

height of the district where it is proposed. §27-1403

The proposed use is meets ALL applicable General and Supplemental 

Regulations set forth in the Zoning Ordinance, Part 13, Part 15, and, if 

applicable, the Design Standards, Part 19.  

The proposed use will not substantially detract from the use of 
neighboring property or from the character of the neighborhood, and that 
the use of the adjacent property is adequately safeguarded. Further, the 
proposed use, located on the proposed property, with the present and 
proposed characteristics of each, and considering the present and 
proposed characteristics of the neighboring properties, will not cause 
negative impacts over and above those typically associated with such 
uses located and operated in a usual manner. 

f. Yes No  N/A The proposed use will provide a fence or a planting screen and/or

additional yard or open space area to reduce the effect of the proposed 
use upon adjacent properties. 

g. Yes No N/A The proposed use will promote preservation or adaptive reuse of the site

and structures identified by the Borough Historic District regulations. 

h. Yes No N/A The proposed use complies with the required off-street parking and

loading regulations in the Zoning Ordinance, Part 13. 

i. Yes No The proposed use will provide safe and adequate access to streets and 

that the Applicant will make any improvements needed to guarantee 
compatibility with adjacent streets as recommended by the Borough 
Engineer. 

j. Yes No The proposed use will provide for pedestrian access to the site. 

k Yes No The proposed use will not adversely affect public facilities and utilities 

such as water, sewer, police and fire protection, schools, etc. 

I. Yes No  N/A The proposed use will comply with the signage regulations of Chapter 19

of the Borough’s Code of Ordinances. 

Unless the answer is “Yes” or “Not Applicable” to ALL of the above, and evidence in the form of 
testimony or documentation is provided, the Zoning Board cannot grant a special exception. In some 
cases, an Applicant might seek a variance to correct a specific item listed above.  

340 Baltimore Street

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

88



���������	

�������

�������������������
�	�����������������
�����������������������

 !"#$%#&'()*$+,-(�#&.�/++0%'#1%0%234�5�67897:;<�9=�8<>9<?�?8@A�7�=B<;9?9;�B8@69=9@:�@?�CD<�E@:9:F�G8H9:7:;<I���E@:9:F�G8H9:7:;<�8<JK98<A<:C=�7BB>L�7;8@==�7:�<:C98<�H9=C89;CI��M<;7K=<�<7;D�9:H969HK7>�B8@B<8CL�9=�K:9JK<N�9C�9=�B@==9O><�CD7C�7�=B<;9?9;�E@:9:F�G8H9:7:;<�8<JK98<A<:C�;@K>H�9AB7;C�7�B8@B<8CL�9:�7:�K:<JK7>N�K:?798�@8�78O9C878L�A7::<8N�9I<I�9:�7�P7L�H9??<8<:C�?8@A�@CD<8�B8@B<8C9<=�9:�CD<�H9=C89;CI��Q?�CD<�E@:9:F�G8H9:7:;<�9AB@=<=�7:�RK::<;<==78L�D78H=D9BS�@:�CD<�B8@B<8CLN�7=�H<C<8A9:<H�OL�CD<�?@>>@P9:F�?96<�=B<;9?9;�;89C<897N�CD<�E@:9:F�M@78H�9=�B<8A9CC<H�C@�F87:C�7�67897:;<I�T><7=<�7:=P<8�CD<�?@>>@P9:F�JK<=C9@:=�8<F78H9:F�CD<�B8@B<8CLU�VIW��X<=�W��Y@ ZD<8<�78<�K:9JK<�@8�B<;K>978�BDL=9;7>�;98;KA=C7:;<=�@8�;@:H9C9@:=�9:;>KH9:F�988<FK>789CLN�:788@P:<==N�@8�=D7>>@P:<==�@?�>@C�=9[<�@8�=D7B<N�@8�<\;<BC9@:7>�C@B@F87BD9;7>�@8�@CD<8�BDL=9;7>�;@:H9C9@:=�B<;K>978�C@�CD<�B78C9;K>78�B8@B<8CLN�7:H�CD<�K::<;<==78L�D78H=D9B�9=�HK<�C@�=K;D�;@:H9C9@:=N�7:H�:@C�CD<�;98;KA=C7:;<=�@8�;@:H9C9@:=�F<:<87>>L�;8<7C<H�OL�CD<�B8@69=9@:=�@?�CD<�G8H9:7:;<�9:�JK<=C9@:�CD7C�78<�:@C�=D78<H�OL�@CD<8�B8@B<8C9<=�9:�CD<�69;9:9CLI��]<=;89O<�PDL�CD<�B8@B<8CL�9=�H9??<8<:C�?8@A�CD<�@CD<8�B8@B<8C9<=�9:�CD<�H9=C89;CU�
ÎW��X<=�W��Y@ ZD7C�O<;7K=<�@?�=K;D�K:9JK<�@8�B<;K>978�BDL=9;7>�;@:H9C9@:=N�CD<8<�9=�:@�B@==9O9>9CL�CD7C�CD<�9:6@>6<H�B8@B<8CL�;7:�O<�H<6<>@B<H�9:�=C89;C�;@:?@8A9CL�P9CD�CD<�B8@69=9@:=�@?�CD9=�@8H9:7:;<N�7:H�CD7C�CD<�7KCD@89[7C9@:�@?�7�67897:;<�9=�:<;<==78L�C@�<:7O><�8<7=@:7O><�K=<�@?�CD<�B8@B<8CLU��]<=;89O<�PDL�CD<�B8@B<8CL�;7::@C�O<�K=<H�9:�;@:?@8A9CL�P9CD�CD<�G8H9:7:;<U�

_̀a�bcdefghij�keijje

l
lmn�hopjiqfnr�esj�_aatbdhuv�hw�bcdefghij�keijjex�yzt{ciujdp�cij�cij�f|jnefwfj|}�~w�esj�yzt{ciujdpx�_�cij�rijceji�escn�zxaaa�p��cij�wjje�hw�cijc}���ehecd�hw���{ciujdp�scqj�nhnijpf|jnefcd�dcn|��pjp�hw��sfus�̀�{ciujdp�cij�djpp�escn�zxaaa�p��cij�wjje�fn�cijc}��sj�hqjicdd�o�fde�cn|�p�o|fqf|j|�{ih{jie��jnqfihngjne�hw�bcdefghij�keijje�|hjp�nhe�rjnjicdd��gjje�esj�rhcdp�hw�esj��~x��jpf|jnefcd�~wwfuj��fpeifuex�cp�esj�{�i{hpj�hw�esj�|fpeifue�fp�eh�{ihqf|j�c�gf��hw�ijpf|jnefcdx�hwwfujx�cn|�o�pfnjpp��pjpx��sfdj�ghpe�{ciujdp�cij�hw�c�pf�j�esce��h�d|�hnd��{jigfe�ijpf|jnefcd�dcn|��pjp}�

�sj�{ih{jie��fp�c{{ih�fgcejd��̀x_z��p��cij�wjje�fn�cijc}��dd�nhntijpf|jnefcd�dcn|��pjp�cij�nhe�{jigfeej|�{ji�esj�gfnfg�g�dhi�cijc�ij��fijgjne}��sfp�{ih{jie��fp�ce�c�uhg{jejefqj�|fpc|qcnecrj��sjn�uhg{cij|�eh�pfgfdci�{ih{jiefjp�cn|�fp�dfgfej|�fn�|jqjdh{gjne�eh�dh��fnejnpfe��dcn|��pjp��sfus�|h�nhe�gjje�esj�fnejne�hw�esj��hnfnr�~i|fncnuj�p��~x��jpf|jnefcd�~wwfuj��fpeifue}
89



���������	

�������

�������������������
�	�����������������
�����������������������

 !"��#$% "&' ()*+�%,-)�,..$-$%%*/0�)*/1%)23�)*%�.'+�4$$.�-/$*+$1�40�+)$�*3352-*.+6�7$%-/24$�)'8�+)$�)*/1%)23�8*%�-/$*+$16��
9!"��#$%�"��&' ()*+�+)$�:*/2*.-$�/$;,$%+$1<�2=�>/*.+$1<�8255�.'+�*5+$/�+)$�$%%$.+2*5�-)*/*-+$/�'=�+)$�.$2>)4'/)''1�'/�12%+/2-+�2.�8)2-)�+)$�3/'3$/+0�2%�5'-*+$1<�.'/�%,4%+*.+2*550�'/�3$/?*.$.+50�2?3*2/�+)$�*33/'3/2*+$�,%$�'/�1$:$5'3?$.+�'=�*1@*-$.+�3/'3$/+0<�.'/�4$�1$+/2?$.+*5�='/�3,452-�8$5=*/$!�7$%-/24$�)'8�+)$�:*/2*.-$�8255�2?3*-+�+)$�.$2>)4'/)''16�
A!"��#$% "&'���()*+�+)$�:*/2*.-$�/$;,$%+$1�/$3/$%$.+%�+)$�?2.2?,?�:*/2*.-$�+)*+�8255*=='/1�/$52$=�*.1�8255�/$3/$%$.+�+)$�5$*%+�?'12=2-*+2'.�3'%%245$�'=�+)$�B/12.*.-$6�7$%-/24$�8)0�+)2%�2%�+)$�5$*%+�3'%%245$�?'12=2-*+2'.�+'�+)$�B/12.*.-$6���
CDEFGG�HIF�JDGKFL�MG�NOFGP�HQ�RSS�QT�HIF�JUQVFW�JDX�FVMXFDYF�MD�HIF�TQLZ�QT�HFGHMZQD[�QL�1'-,?$.+*+2'.�2%�3/':21$1<�+)$�\'.2.>�]'*/1�-*..'+�>/*.+�*�:*/2*.-$!��

_̂̀�abcdefghi�jdhiidk
k
k

lmi�mbhnomep�eo�nqi�dg�dmi�meodgher�nisicgpfitd�pbddiht�gu�viddwoxqhyz�dmi�cefedbdegt�efpgoin�xw�dmi�{gtety�ghnetbtriz�btn�qti|qbc�gqdrgfio�grrqhety�gt�abcdefghi�jdhiid�}edm�hiopird�dg�tgthioenitdebc�cbtn�qoio~�
lmi�viddwoxqhy��icrgfi��itdih�}ecc�xi�nisicgpin~�lmeo�phg�ird�}ecc�phgseni�piniodhebt�cisic�etughfbdegtbc�oihserio�dg�dgqheodo�dg�micp�etrhiboi�rgffihrebc�brdesedw�et�xgdm�dmi��etrgct�j|qbhi�btn�jdiet}imh��sitqi�bhibo�xw�phgsenety�b�cet�byi�xid}iit�xgdm�rgffiherbc�itdihdbetfitd�neodherdo~
lmi�dgdbc�o|qbhi�uggdbyi�hi|qehin�ugh�b�rgffiherbc�itdihpheoi�bd�dmeo�cgrbdegt�}gqcn�xi��__�o|qbhi�uiid~�aw�phgsenety�dmi�sbhebtriz�b�sebxci�tgthioenitdebc�cbtn�qoi�rbt�grrqh�btn�hinisicgpfitd�gt�oedi�dg�b�phgnqrdesi�qoi�rbt�xi�brmeisin~�

90



Property Address: _________________________________ 

Zoning Hearing Board Application 
Revised June 2022 
page 8 of 9 

2. Describe why the expansion or change is not detrimental to the character of the district or the

interests of the Borough:

C. Expansion or Change of Nonconforming Land Use

Purpose and Applicability: In certain limited cases, a nonconforming use may be expanded, 

or a different nonconforming use may be made of a property. See Zoning Ordinance Part 14. 

1. Describe the proposed expansion or change in nonconforming use:

The Borough of Gettysburg seeks to develop a welcome center at 340 Baltimore Street. The RO, 
Residential Office District requires 5,000 square foot area parcels for nonresidential land uses in 
§27-804(2). As the parcel for 340 Baltimore Street is below 5,000 square feet in area, the Zoning
hearing Board per the Nonconforming Lot provisions of the Zoning Ordinance established in
§27-1403, is permitted to allow for construction of the Gettysburg Welcome Center to be located
at 340 Baltimore Street.

340 Baltimore Street

The need for this project was identified through a series of community meetings starting in 2017, which 
included more than 80 local officials, businesses, organizations, and residents. In response, the 
property at 340 Baltimore Street was generously donated to the Borough of Gettysburg for the specific 
purpose of creating a welcome center in the heart of Gettysburg’s historic downtown.

The district as provided on Baltimore Street, has multiple parcels that do not meet the required 
minimum area provisions for nonresidential land uses, and the use on this parcel would facilitate the 
other zoning district objectives related to commercial activity and tourist information services.

91



Property Address: _________________________________ 

Zoning Hearing Board Application 
Revised June 2022 
page 9 of 9 

D. Zoning Appeal

Purpose and Applicability: The Zoning Hearing Board shall have the powers and duties in 

accordance with the provisions of the Pennsylvania Municipalities Planning Code, as amended, 

including hearing and deciding appeals. 

You may want to also apply for a Variance, in the event the appeal is denied. 

1. Describe the purpose of appeal:

340 Baltimore Street

          N/A

92



0' - 0"
FIRST FLOOR

11' - 0"
SECOND FLOOR

20' - 0"
ROOF BEARING

29' - 0"
TOP OF ROOF

0' - 0"
FIRST FLOOR

11' - 0"
SECOND FLOOR

20' - 0"
ROOF BEARING

29' - 0"
TOP OF ROOF

0' - 0"
FIRST FLOOR

11' - 0"
SECOND FLOOR

20' - 0"
ROOF BEARING

29' - 0"
TOP OF ROOF

0' - 0"
FIRST FLOOR

11' - 0"
SECOND FLOOR

20' - 0"
ROOF BEARING

29' - 0"
TOP OF ROOF

PROJECT

PLOT SCALE:

FILENAME:

DATE:

01 MM-DD-YR DESCRIPTION OF CHANGESNAME

R E V I S I O N S

ALL REPORTS, PLANS SPECIFICATIONS AND COMPUTER FILES RELATING TO THIS 
PROJECT ARE THE PROPERTY OF CRABTREE, ROHRBAUGH & ASSOCIATES. 
CRABTREE ROHRBAUGH & ASSOCIATES RETAINS ALL COMMON LAW, STATUTE AND 
OTHER RESERVED RIGHTS INCLUDING THE COPYRIGHT THERETO. REPRODUCTION 
OF THE MATERIAL HEREIN OR SUBSTANTIAL USE WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION OF 
CRABTREE, ROHRBAUGH & ASSOCIATES VIOLATES THE COPYRIGHT LAWS OF THE 
UNITED STATES AND WILL BE SUBJECT TO LEGAL PROSECUTION.
© CRABTREE, ROHRBAUGH & ASSOCIATES, INC 2023

C
R
A
B
TR
EE
 R
O
H
R
B
A
U
G
H
 &
 A
SS
O
C
IA
TE
S 
- A
R
C
H
IT
EC
TS

w
w
w
.c
ra
-a
rc
hi
te
ct
s.
co
m

TO
W
SO
N,
 M
AR
YL
AN
D

CH
AR
LO
TT
ES
VI
LL
E,
 V
IR
GI
NI
A

W
HI
TE
 SU
LP
HU
R 
SP
RI
NG
S,
 W
ES
T 
VI
RG
IN
IA

40
1 
EA
ST
 W
IN
DI
N
G
 H
IL
L 
RO
AD

M
EC
HA
N
IC
SB
U
RG
  P
A 
17
05
5

71
7-
45
8-
02
72
 

 1/4" = 1'-0"

OVERALL EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS

4-25-2024

3656

A2.1

BO
RO
U
GH
 O
F 
GE
TT
YS
BU
RG

GE
TT
YS
BU
RG
 W
EL
CO
M
E 
CE
N
TE
R

34
0 
BA
LT
IM
O
RE
 S
TR
EE
T 
GE
TT
YS
BU
RG
, P
A 
17
32
5

3656

N
O
T 
FO
R 
CO
N
ST
RU
CT
IO
N

 1/4" = 1'-0"A2.1
1 NORTH ELEVATION

 1/4" = 1'-0"A2.1
2 EAST ELEVATION

 1/4" = 1'-0"A2.1
3 SOUTH ELEVATION

 1/4" = 1'-0"A2.1
4 WEST ELEVATION

93



GETTYSBURG WELCOME CENTER
340 BALTIMORE STREET

PROPOSED RENDERING

94



2023-2024 

REZONING  

95



 
 

Borough of Gettysburg 
Adams County, PA 

 
DRAFT – 15 MAY 2024 

 
Zoning 

Chapter 27 of the Code of Ordinances 
 

 
 
 

ENACTED:  
EFFECTIVE:  

 
 
 
 
 

96



 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS ii 

 

BOROUGH OF GETTYSBURG ZONING ORDINANCE 
CHAPTER 27 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 

 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

Mayor and Borough Council 

Mayor Rita C. Frealing 

Matthew Moon, President, Ward Two 

Judith (Judie) Butterfield, Vice President, Ward One 

Patricia Lawson, Member, Ward One 

Chris Berger, Member, Ward Two 

Alisha Sanders, Member, Ward Three 

Peter Bales, Member, Ward One 

Chad-Alan Carr, Member, At-Large 

Borough Manager / Treasurer 

Charles R. Gable, MPA 

Borough Solicitor 

Harold A. Eastman Jr., Esq. 

Planning Commission 

Charles Strauss,  Chair 

Nicholas Redman, Vice Chair 

Martin Jolin, Secretary 

Sarah Kipp, Member 

John Rice, Member 

Jenny Dumont, Alternate 

 

Zoning Officer 

John Whitmore, AICP 

 

Borough Engineer 

C.S. Davidson 

Zoning Ordinance Task Force 

 
Yeimi K. Bautista 

Gary Shaffer 

Sarah Kipp 

Nicholas Redman 

Matt Moon 

Robin Fitzpatrick 

Chad Clabaugh, P.E. 

Paul Witt 

Jenna Smith 

 

Consultant 

Michael Baker International, Inc. 

97



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Code, Chapter 27 

TABLE OF CONTENTS i 

Table of Contents 
PART 1 GENERAL ZONING PROVISIONS ..................................................................................................................... 4 

§ 27-101 Short Title .................................................................................................................................................. 4 

§ 27-102 Purpose ..................................................................................................................................................... 4 

§ 27-103 Authority ................................................................................................................................................... 4 

§ 27-104 Jurisdiction ................................................................................................................................................ 4 

§ 27-105 Applicability ............................................................................................................................................. 4 

§ 27-106 Statement of Community Development Objectives .......................................................................... 5 

§ 27-107 Interpretation ........................................................................................................................................... 5 

§ 27-108 Severability .............................................................................................................................................. 5 

§ 27-109 Enforcement .............................................................................................................................................. 6 

§ 27-110 Zoning Officer Duties and Powers ....................................................................................................... 6 

§ 27-111 Zoning Permit ........................................................................................................................................... 6 

§ 27-112 Building Permits and Certificate of Occupancy ............................................................................. 10 

§ 27-113 Zoning Certification Letter .................................................................................................................. 10 

§ 27-114 Fees ......................................................................................................................................................... 10 

§ 27-115 Violations and Penalties ..................................................................................................................... 11 

§ 27-116 Appeals and Applications .................................................................................................................. 11 

§ 27-117 Zoning Hearing Board ........................................................................................................................ 12 

§ 27-118 Special Exception Use Procedures .................................................................................................... 17 

§ 27-119 Enforcement Notification ..................................................................................................................... 19 

§ 27-120 Amendments .......................................................................................................................................... 21 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS .......................................................................................................................................... 25 

§ 27-201 Establishment of Zoning Districts ....................................................................................................... 25 

§ 27-202 Zoning Map ........................................................................................................................................... 25 

§ 27-203 Rules for Interpretation of Zoning District Boundaries .................................................................. 25 

§ 27-204 Low Density Residential District (R-1) ............................................................................................... 27 

§ 27-205 Preservation Residential District (R-1A) ........................................................................................... 29 

§ 27-206 Moderate Density Residential District (R-2) .................................................................................... 31 

§ 27-207 Low Impact Neighborhood Commercial District (NC-1) ............................................................... 33 

§ 27-208 Historic Corridor Neighborhood Commercial District (NC-2) ...................................................... 35 

§ 27-209 Neighborhood Commercial District (NC-3) ..................................................................................... 37 

§ 27-210 General Commercial District (C-1) ................................................................................................... 39 

§ 27-211 Old Town District (OT) ........................................................................................................................ 41 

§ 27-212 Revitalization District (R) ..................................................................................................................... 44 

§ 27-213 Civic Institution District (CI).................................................................................................................. 47 

98



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

TABLE OF CONTENTS ii 

 

§ 27-214 Institution District (INS-1) ..................................................................................................................... 49 

§ 27-215 Healthcare District (HC) ...................................................................................................................... 51 

§ 27-216 Industrial District (IND)......................................................................................................................... 53 

§ 27-217 Floodplain Overlay District (FO)....................................................................................................... 54 

§ 27-218 Historic Overlay District (HO) ............................................................................................................ 57 

PART 3 ZONING USES ................................................................................................................................................... 59 

§ 27-301 General Provisions ............................................................................................................................... 59 

§ 27-302 Applicability .......................................................................................................................................... 59 

§ 27-303 Unlisted Uses ......................................................................................................................................... 59 

§ 27-304 Prohibited Uses ..................................................................................................................................... 60 

§ 27-305 Principal Uses ........................................................................................................................................ 65 

§ 27-307 Accessory Uses .................................................................................................................................... 132 

§ 27-307 Temporary Uses ................................................................................................................................. 142 

PART 4 SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS ................................................................................................................... 144 

§ 27-401 Access to Structures ............................................................................................................................ 144 

§ 27-402 Accessory Buildings and Structures ................................................................................................. 144 

§ 27-403 Build-To Lines ...................................................................................................................................... 145 

§ 27-404 Driveways ............................................................................................................................................ 145 

§ 27-405 Existing Single-Family Attached Dwellings ................................................................................... 145 

§ 27-406 Existing Single-Family Semidetached Dwellings .......................................................................... 146 

§ 27-407 Fences ................................................................................................................................................... 146 

§ 27-408 Maintenance of Common Areas, Facilities and Open Spaced ................................................. 146 

§ 27-409 Nonconformities .................................................................................................................................. 146 

§ 27-410 On-Lot Storage in Residential Districts .......................................................................................... 148 

§ 27-411 Performance Standards .................................................................................................................... 148 

§ 27-412 Parking, Loading, and Unloading ................................................................................................... 149 

§ 27-413 Private Swimming Pools .................................................................................................................... 160 

§ 27-414 Recreational Vehicle, Storage ......................................................................................................... 160 

§ 27-415 Satellite Antennas .............................................................................................................................. 161 

§ 27-416 Screens and Buffers ........................................................................................................................... 162 

§ 27-417 Side and Rear Yard Requirements ................................................................................................. 162 

§ 27-418 Streetscape Design ............................................................................................................................ 162 

§ 27-419 Transit Bus Stops ................................................................................................................................. 168 

§ 27-420 Two or More Principal Buildings or Structures on One Lot ........................................................ 169 

§ 27-421 Visual Obstructions ............................................................................................................................ 169 

§ 27-422 Yards .................................................................................................................................................... 169 

99



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

TABLE OF CONTENTS iii 

 

PART 5 DEFINITIONS .................................................................................................................................................... 170 

§ 27-501 Rules of Interpretation ....................................................................................................................... 170 

§ 27-501 Defined Words and Terms ............................................................................................................... 170 

EXHIBIT A – ZONING MAP .......................................................................................................................................... 184 

APPENDIX A – SMALL WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY DESIGN MANUAL ..................................... 185 

 
 

100



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Code, Chapter 27 

PART 1 GENERAL ZONING PROVISIONS Page 4 of 192 

PART 1 GENERAL ZONING PROVISIONS 
 
§ 27-101 Short Title 
 
This Chapter shall be known and may be cited as “Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Code”, Chapter 27 of the 
Code of Ordinances of the Borough of Gettysburg and hereinafter referred to as “Chapter”. 
 
ENACTED: [SPECIFY DATE OF ENACTMENT] 
EFFECTIVE: [SPECIFY EFFECTIVE DATE OF ORDINANCE] 
 
§ 27-102 Purpose 
 
The purpose of the Chapter is: 
 
(A) To promote, protect and facilitate the public health, safety and general welfare, coordinated and 

practical community development, proper density of population, emergency management 
preparedness and operations, the provision of adequate light and air, access to incident solar 
energy, police protection, vehicle parking and loading space, transportation, water, sewerage, 
schools, recreational facilities, public grounds, the provision of a safe, reliable and adequate water 
supply for domestic, commercial, or industrial use, and other public requirements; as well as the 
preservation of the natural, scenic and historic values in the environment and preservation of 
wetlands and floodplains. 

 
(B) To prevent the overcrowding of land, blight, danger and congestion in travel and transportation, 

and loss of health, life, or property from fire, flood, panic or other dangers. 
 
(C) To provide for the use of land for residential housing of various dwelling types encompassing all 

basic forms of housing, including single-family and two-family dwellings, and a reasonable range 
of multifamily dwellings in various arrangements. 

 
(D) To accommodate reasonable overall community growth, including population and employment 

growth, and opportunities for development of a variety of residential dwelling types and 
nonresidential uses. 

 
§ 27-103 Authority 
 
This Chapter is enacted and ordained under the grant of powers by the General Assembly of the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Act 247, “The Pennsylvania Municipalities Planning Code,” Act 247 of 1968, 
P.L. 805; 53 P.S. § 10101, hereinafter referred to as “MPC” or “PA MPC”. 
 
§ 27-104 Jurisdiction 
 
This Chapter shall apply to all properties and uses located within the corporate limits of the Borough of 
Gettysburg, Pennsylvania, hereinafter referred to as the “Borough.” 
 
§ 27-105 Applicability 
 
(A) The terms of this Chapter shall be applied in consideration of the Comprehensive Plan and to the 

Statement of Community Development Objectives specified under § 27-106 of this Chapter. 
 
(B) The Borough’s Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance [Chapter 22 of the Code of 

Ordinances of the Borough of Gettysburg] shall provide design standards and other regulations 
pertaining to the development of land, whereas the Zoning Ordinance, this Chapter, provides 
parameters on the use of land.  Both documents correlate with each other to provide the overall 

101



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 1 GENERAL ZONING PROVISIONS Page 5 of 192 

 

regulations administered by the Borough Council, Zoning Officer, and/or Zoning Hearing Board, as 
specified in said Ordinances. 

 
§ 27-106 Statement of Community Development Objectives 
 
The Borough’s community development objectives are as follows: 
 
(A) To have a better quality of life for all of those living, working, shopping, learning, etc., within the 

community. 
 
(B) To maintain an attractive place to live, visit, and do business to support a financially viable, 

prosperous community.  
 
(C) To protect natural and historic resources from exploitation and desecration. It has been determined 

that our most important resources are the physical aspects of the land, that is, the overall 
appearance of the area, and our historical heritage — the Gettysburg Address and other historical 
events and places.  With the proper planning, these resources can be protected and preserved. 

 
(E) To develop in the proper areas and regulate development so that it does not adversely impact our 

natural and historic resources. 
 
(F) To improve the commercial areas to provide a unique and pleasant experience for residents and 

visitors through reduced traffic congestion, well-planned off-Street parking, and the activation of 
the rear of buildings in the downtown core. 

 
(G) To protect and enhance this historic area. Efforts should be made to install authentic period 

ornamental lighting, plant trees and develop landscaped mini-parks. Entrances should be made 
more attractive. Unsightly objects, such as TV antennas, and unnecessary traffic signs should be 
eliminated.   

 
(H) To encourage the development of affordable/attainable housing, housing for age-qualified 

persons, and market-rate housing to meet housing demand.  
 
(I) To promote commercial and residential development that is in keeping with the Borough’s historic 

character, while meeting community needs and market trends. 
 
(J) To help achieve the specific goals listed in the Comprehensive Plan, titled Central Adams Joint 

Comprehensive Plan, adopted April 2019 (as may be amended). 
 
§ 27-107 Interpretation 

 
(A) The regulations specified within this Chapter shall be considered minimum regulations and all 

provisions shall be applied uniformly for each class of uses or structures as prescribed by Section 
605 of the MPC. 

 
(B) To determine the extent of the restriction upon the use of the property, the language shall be 

interpreted, where doubt exists as to the intended meaning of the language written and enacted 
by the Borough, in favor of the property Owner and against any implied extension of the restriction. 

 
§ 27-108 Severability 
 
Should a court of competent jurisdiction declare any part, subpart, or provision of this Chapter invalid or 
unconstitutional, this decision shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of this Chapter as a whole, or 
any part thereof, other than the part so declared to be invalid or unconstitutional. 

102



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 1 GENERAL ZONING PROVISIONS Page 6 of 192 

 

§ 27-109 Enforcement 
 
This Chapter shall be administered by the Borough Zoning Officer, who shall administer and enforce this 
Chapter in accordance with its literal terms and shall not have the authority to permit any construction or any 
use or change of use which does not conform to the provisions of this Chapter. 
 
§ 27-110 Zoning Officer Duties and Powers 
 
With respect to the administration and enforcement of this Chapter, the duties of the Zoning Officer shall be 
as follows:  
 
(A) To receive and review all applications for Zoning and Building Permits, Special Exception Permits, 

Variances, and any other requests on matters relative to the administration of this Chapter. 
 
(B) To maintain a complete record of all applications and plans for permits and the action taken on 

each. 
 
(C) To make inspections or investigations to determine compliance or noncompliance with the provisions 

of this Chapter.  
 
(E) To notify, in writing, the appropriate person or persons when any violation of this Chapter has 

occurred, indicating the nature of the violation and ordering its discontinuance or correction through 
the issuance of a stop order. If any such person or persons does not comply with the notice of violation 
within five days, the Zoning Officer shall take necessary legal action. 

 
(F) To keep this Chapter and the Zoning Map up to date to reflect all amendment actions of the Borough 

Council. 
 
(G) To gather and present any facts, records, or other information to the Planning Commission or Zoning 

Hearing Board when requested to do so. 
 
§ 27-111 Zoning Permit 
 
(A) General. 
 

1. Zoning Permit Required. A Zoning Permit is required prior to the following activities occurring:  
 
a. The Use or change in the use of a Building, Structure or Land; 
 
b. The alteration or expansion of a Parcel, Structure, or Use as regulated under § 27-

409, Nonconformities, and as defined in Part 5 of this Chapter; 
 
c. Earth Disturbance Activities as defined in Part 5 of this Chapter; and 
 
d. Installation or alteration of driveways or parking areas. 
 

2. Penalties. It shall be unlawful for any Person to commence work for any of the activities 
specified under subpart (A)1 above until a Zoning Permit has been duly issued. 

 
a. Where a permit is required, but the work is commenced or the Use is commenced 

or changed prior to obtaining such permit, the fees set by ordinance or resolution 
of the Borough Council for such permit shall be doubled.  

 

103



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 1 GENERAL ZONING PROVISIONS Page 7 of 192 

 

b. The doubling of the permit fee shall be required to reflect the additional expense 
incurred by the Borough resulting from the need to inspect the property, issue any 
enforcement notices and/or process the application as soon as it is received.  

 
c. The payment of such increased permit fee shall not relieve any Person from 

complying with all requirements of this Chapter or any other applicable Borough 
Code regulations or ordinances or from any penalties or enforcement actions 
authorized by this Chapter.  

 
(B) Application. 
 

1. Every application for a Zoning Permit shall contain, in addition to other applicable 
requirements that may be specified in this Chapter, the following information: 

 
a. The application shall be made by the Owner or lessee of any Building or Structure, 

or the agent of either; provided, however, that if the application is made by a 
Person other than the Owner or lessee, it shall be accompanied by a written 
authorization of the Owner or the qualified Person making an application, that the 
proposed work is authorized by this Owner. The full names and addresses of the 
Owner, lessee, Applicant, and of the responsible officers, if the Owner or lessee is 
a corporate body, shall be stated in the application. 

 
b. The Property Identification Number as it appears on the latest tax records. 

 
d. The required fee as established under § 27-114 of this Chapter. 
 
e. Site Plan Requirements.  A site plan drawn to scale, one (1) inch to equal one hundred 

(100) feet and signed by the Person responsible for such drawing. In all cases, the 
site plan shall include the following: 

 
(1) North arrow, written and graphic, scale, and date of site plan. 
 
(2) A location map showing the location of the proposed activity or 

development within the Borough. 
 
(3) The actual shape, dimensions, radii, angles, and area of the Parcel on which 

the Structure is proposed to be erected, or the Parcel in which it is situated 
if in an existing Building. 

 
(4) The exact size and locations of the proposed Building, Structure or 

Structures on the Parcel, or alteration of an existing Building or Structure, 
and of other existing Building or Structure on the same Parcel. 

 
(5) The dimensions of all yards in relation to the subject Building or Structures 

and the distances between such Structure and any other existing Building 
or Structures on the same Parcel. 

 
(6) The existing and intended use of all Building or Structures, existing or 

proposed, the use of land, and the number of families or dwelling units the 
Building is designed to accommodate. 

 

104



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 1 GENERAL ZONING PROVISIONS Page 8 of 192 

 

(7) Such topographic or other information about the Building, Structure, the 
Parcel, or neighboring Parcel that may be necessary to determine that the 
proposed construction shall conform to the provisions of this Chapter. 

 
(8) Proposed access driveway(s) showing all pertinent details including but not 

limited to driveway type, slope, property setbacks, connecting public 
roadway name, drainpipes, culverts, property lines, width, type of surface, 
and Clear Sight Distances.  Proof of a Highway Occupancy (including a 
Minimum Use Driveway) Permit is required for driveway access off state-
owned rights-of-way. 

 
(9) The location of all existing streets, drives, or other accessways. 
 
(10) The location of surface water bodies, the 100-year floodplain, and 

jurisdictional wetlands. 
 
(11) Other relevant information necessary to determine compliance with this 

Chapter and all other Borough ordinances and codes. 
 
(C) Review and Issuance. 
 

1. The Zoning Officer will either issue or deny a Zoning Permit after the filing of a complete 
and properly prepared application. If a Zoning Permit is denied the Zoning Officer shall 
state in writing to the Applicant the reasons for such denial, and the Applicant shall be 
informed of their right to appeal to the Zoning Hearing Board. 

 
2. The Zoning Officer may call upon other Borough staff and/or Borough-appointed 

consultants in the review of submitted materials for applications. 
 
3. No Zoning Permit shall be issued unless the proposed activity is in full conformity with all the 

provisions of this Chapter, and the following: 
 

a. Any conditions imposed upon the site or upon the Use by the Zoning Hearing Board 
or Borough Council; 

 
(b) Any recorded Subdivision or Land Development Plan; and  
 
(c) The requirements of other applicable Borough ordinances and codes. 
 

4. Acces. No Zoning Permit shall be issued for any Building or Structure upon a Parcel without 
access to a public Street or road, or an acceptable private Street or road for which access 
rights are documented. 

 
5. Conditions of Permit. 
 

(a) No Zoning Permit shall be issued until the required fees prescribed under § 27-114 
of this Part shall be paid to the Borough. The payment of fees under this Part shall 
not relieve the Applicant or holder of said Zoning Permit from payment of other 
fees that may be required by this Chapter or by any other ordinances or law. 
 

(b) The Zoning Permit shall be a license to proceed with the work and shall not be 
construed as authority to violate, cancel, or set aside any of the provisions of this 
Chapter, except as stipulated by the Zoning Hearing Board. 

 

105



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 1 GENERAL ZONING PROVISIONS Page 9 of 192 

 

(c) All work or uses shall conform to the approved application and plans for which the 
Zoning Permit has been issued, as well as the approved Site Plan or Land 
Development Plan. 

 
6.  Expiration & Extension. Every Zoning Permit shall expire after one (1) year from the date of 

issuance. If no zoning amendments or other codes or regulations affecting subject property 
have been enacted in the interim, the Zoning Officer may authorize in writing the extension 
of either above periods of an additional six (6) months, following which no further work is 
to be undertaken without a new Zoning Permit. Permit extension requests shall be made in 
writing to the Zoning Officer.  

 
7. Display. The Applicant shall prominently display all approved Zoning Permits on the subject 

property during construction, renovation, reconstruction, repair, remodeling, or the conduct 
of other site improvements. The Applicant shall display the Zoning Permit within five (5) days 
of permit issuance or prior to the commencement of actual work on the site, whichever occurs 
first. The Applicant shall continuously display the Zoning Permit until the permitted work is 
completed. 

 
8. Revocation of Permit. A Zoning Permit for any Structure or Use shall be revoked by the 

Zoning Officer or authorized representative if the holder of such permit has failed to comply 
with the requirements of this Chapter or with any conditions attached to the issuance of the 
permit. Upon revocation of a permit, the holder may also be subject to the enforcement 
remedies and penalties provided by this Chapter, by the other provisions of Borough 
enacted ordinances, and by state and federal law. 

 
(D) Temporary Uses.  
 

1. The Borough recognizes that there are certain uses and structures, of a temporary nature, 
which are generally beneficial to the Borough and its residents, such as: 
 
a. The erection of a seasonal tent from which flowers, plants, produce, Christmas trees 

or fireworks are sold prior to observed holidays (permits evaluation shall consider 
impacts to the required parking, i.e., number of spaces reduced based on location 
and placement of temporary tent Structure.) 

 
b. Dumpsters or storage pods. 
 
c. Construction job site office trailers. 
 
d. Temporary or portable restroom facilities. 

 
2. It is the intention of the Borough to allow such temporary uses in accordance with the 

requirements of this Chapter. 
 
3. Where the proposed temporary Use is permitted within the zoning district, the Applicant 

shall apply to the Zoning Officer for a Zoning Permit. Any Zoning Permit shall specify the 
dates upon which the temporary Use may be operated, the temporary Structures which may 
be erected, and the Temporary Signs which may be erected. 

 
4. The Zoning Hearing Board, by Special Exception, may authorize a temporary use in a 

district where such Use is not authorized if the Applicant meets the general requirements for 
a Special Exception and demonstrates evidence of the temporary Use requirements. If the 
Applicant demonstrates to the satisfaction Zoning Hearing Board that its application meets 
all five (5) of the below criteria, the Zoning Hearing Board may, by Special Exception, 

106



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 1 GENERAL ZONING PROVISIONS Page 10 of 192 

 

authorize each such temporary Use. The decision of the Zoning Hearing Board shall identify 
the specific dates upon which the Use may be conducted and the specific parcel or portion 
of the parcel upon which the temporary Use may be conducted. Temporary uses may not 
exceed fifteen (15) days at any single time or thirty (30) days in any calendar year. 

 
5. The Applicant for a temporary use, shall present evidence of the following: 

 
a. Adequate off-street parking is provided. 
 
b. Any signs are temporary in nature and do not exceed the number or area which 

would be permitted for a permanent use.  
 
c. Other facilities, including but not limited to sewage disposal facilities and trash 

disposal are available for persons reasonably anticipated to attend the temporary 
Use. 

 
d. A plan for addressing traffic to be generated by the temporary use. If necessary, 

the Applicant shall arrange for the provision of fire police or other persons to direct 
traffic to the temporary off-Street parking facilities. 

 
e. The temporary use shall contribute to the welfare of the Borough and its residents, 

and shall not adversely affect the health, safety or welfare of adjoining residents 
or the uses permitted within the zone in which the temporary Use is proposed. 

 
6. Failure to cease operation on the date specified in the temporary Zoning Permit or failure 

to remove all temporary Structures and Temporary Signs shall constitute a violation of this 
Chapter. 

 
§ 27-112 Building Permits and Certificate of Occupancy 
 
(A) Building Permits.  A building permit shall be obtained from the Zoning Officer, or designee, for any 

construction, addition, alteration, relocation, or conversion or removal or demolition of any building 
or structure, or the installation of equipment for the operation of a building or structure. 

 
(B) Certificate of Occupancy.  No building or structure shall be occupied or used, and no change in use 

shall occur in whole or in part, until a Certificate of Occupancy is obtained from the Borough or 
designee. 

 
§ 27-113 Zoning Certification Letter 

 
(A) A Zoning Certification Letter shall be issued upon a request to certify the correct zoning classification 

and if the proposed use is permitted within the zoning district(s). 
 
(B) Requests for a Zoning Certification Letter shall be accompanied by a Site Plan, as defined under § 

27-111(B)1d., of this Chapter, when, in the opinion of the Zoning Officer, such information is required 
to accurately certify the requested documentation.  

 
(C) Payment of Fees. No Zoning Certification Letter shall be issued until the fees prescribed under § 27-

114 of this Chapter are paid to the Borough. 
 
§ 27-114 Fees 
 

107



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 1 GENERAL ZONING PROVISIONS Page 11 of 192 

 

(A) Borough Council may, by resolution, establish fees for the administration of this Chapter. All fees 
shall be determined by a schedule that is made available to the general public. Borough Council 
may reevaluate the fees schedule and make necessary alterations to it. Such alterations shall not be 
considered an amendment to this Chapter and may be adopted at any public meeting of the 
Borough Council. 

 
(B) Such fees shall be payable to the Borough. Until all applicable fees, charges and expenses have 

been paid in full, the applications shall be considered incomplete, and no action shall be taken on 
any application or appeal. 

 
§ 27-115 Violations and Penalties 
 
(A) Any Person, partnership, or corporation who or which has violated the provisions of this Chapter or 

of the MPC, as amended, upon being found liable thereof in a civil enforcement proceeding 
commenced by the Borough, shall pay a judgment of not less than one hundred dollars ($100.00) 
but no more than five hundred dollars ($500.00) plus court costs, including reasonable attorney fees 
incurred by the Borough as a result thereof. No judgment shall commence or be imposed, levied, or 
payable until the date of the Determination of a violation by the District Justice. If the defendant 
neither pays nor timely appeals the judgment, the Borough may enforce the judgment pursuant to 
the applicable rules of civil procedure. Each day that a violation continues shall constitute a separate 
violation, unless the district justice determining that there has been a violation further determines that 
there was a good faith basis for the Person, partnership or corporation violating the ordinance to 
have believed that there was no such violation, in which event there shall be deemed to have been 
only one such violation until the fifth (5th) day following the date of the determination of a violation 
by the district justice and thereafter each day that a violation continues shall constitute a separate 
violation. All judgments, costs, and reasonable attorney fees collected for the violation of this 
Chapter shall be paid over to Borough. 

 
(B) The Court of Common Pleas, upon petition, may grant an order to stay, upon cause shown, tolling 

the per diem fine, pending a final adjudication of the violation and agreement. 
 
(C) Nothing contained in this Chapter shall be construed or interpreted to grant any Person or entity 

other than the Borough the right to commence any action for enforcement of this Chapter. 
 
§ 27-116 Appeals and Applications 

 
(A) An appeal or application for an amendment or variance from the terms of this Chapter shall be 

filed with the Zoning Officer and shall contain the following information: 
 
1. The name, address, and contact information of the Applicant. 
 
2. The name, address, and contact information of the Owner of the real estate to be affected 

by such proposal. 
 
3. A brief description and location of the real estate to be affected by such proposal. 
 
4. A statement of the present zoning classification of the real estate in question, the 

improvements thereon, and the present Use. 
 
5. A statement of the Part of this Chapter under which the appeal or application is filed and 

reasons why it should be granted or a statement of the Part of this Chapter governing the 
situation in which the alleged erroneous ruling is being appealed and reasons for the 
appeal.  

108



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 1 GENERAL ZONING PROVISIONS Page 12 of 192 

 

 
6. An accurate description of the present improvements and the additions intended to be made 

under the application, indicating the size and use of such proposed improvements and 
general construction thereof.  In addition, there shall be attached a site plan of the real 
estate to be affected, as required to accompany applications for permits as outlined in § 
27-111(B)1d., of this Chapter. 

 
§ 27-117 Zoning Hearing Board  
 
(A) Creation and Appointment.   
 

1. Members.  Pursuant to Article IX of the MPC, the Borough Council hereby creates a Zoning 
Hearing Board and appoints five (5) members who shall be residents of the Borough. 
Members of the Zoning Hearing Board shall be appointed by resolution of the Borough 
Council. Their terms of office shall be five (5) years and shall be so fixed that the term of 
office of one (1) member shall expire each year. Members of the Zoning Hearing Board 
shall hold no other office, elected, or appointed, in the Borough.   

 
2. Alternates.  Pursuant to Article 903(b) of the MPC, Borough Council may appoint by 

resolution at least one (1) but no more than three (3) residents of the Borough to serve as 
alternate members of the Zoning Hearing Board. The term of office of an alternate member 
shall be three (3) years.  Alternates shall hold no other office, elected, or appointed, in the 
Borough. 

 
(B) Removal of Members. Any Zoning Hearing Board member may be removed for malfeasance, 

misfeasance, or nonfeasance in office or for other just cause by a majority vote of the Borough 
Council which appointed the member, taken after the member has received fifteen (15) days 
advance notice of the intent to take such a vote. A hearing shall be held in connection with the vote 
if requested in writing. 

 
(C) Organization of Zoning Hearing Board. The Zoning Hearing Board shall elect from its own 

membership its officers who shall serve annual terms as such and may succeed themselves. For the 
conduct of any hearing and the taking of any action, a quorum shall be not less than a majority of 
all the members of the Zoning Hearing Board, but where two (2) members are disqualified from 
acting in a particular matter, the remaining member may act for the Zoning Hearing Board. The 
Zoning Hearing Board may appoint a hearing officer from its own membership to conduct any 
hearing on its behalf, and the parties may waive further action by the Zoning Hearing Board as 
provided in § 27-117(E) of this Chapter. The Zoning Hearing Board may make, alter, and rescind 
rules and forms for its procedure, consistent with ordinances of the Borough and laws of the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.  The Zoning Hearing Board shall keep full public records of its 
business and shall submit a report of its activities to the Borough Council as requested. 

 
(D) Expenditures for Services. Within the limits of funds appropriated by the Borough Council, the Zoning 

Hearing Board may employ or contract for secretaries, clerks, legal counsel, consultants, and other 
technical and clerical services. Members of the Zoning Hearing Board may receive compensation for 
the performance of their duties, as may be fixed by the Borough Council, but in no case shall it 
exceed the rate of compensation authorized to be paid to members of the Borough Council. 

 
(E) Hearings. A hearing conducted by the Zoning Hearing Board shall be held within sixty (60) days 

from the date of the Applicant’s request unless the Applicant has agreed in writing to an extension 
of time. The Zoning Hearing Board shall conduct hearings and make decisions in accordance with 
the following requirements. 

 

109



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 1 GENERAL ZONING PROVISIONS Page 13 of 192 

 

1. Notice. Public Notice shall be given, and written notice shall be given to the Applicant, the 
Borough Secretary, the Borough Planning Commission, and to any Person who has made 
timely request for the same.  Written notices shall be given at such time and in such a manner 
as shall be prescribed by the Zoning Hearing Board and the requirements of the MPC 53 
P.S. §10101 et seq., provided that the notices conform to the following: 
 
a. Written notices shall state the time, date, and location of the proposed hearing, 

along with a description of the nature of the of the matter to be considered. 
 
b. Written notice shall be conspicuously posted on the affected parcel of land at least 

seven (7) calendar days prior to the hearing.   
 
c. At least seven (7) business days prior to the hearing, the Borough shall provide 

written notice by U.S. Mail to all Landowners within two hundred (200) feet of the 
affected parcel of land. Landowners are determined by the then-current Adams 
County tax records. Provided, however, that failure to give notice as required by 
this Part shall not invalidate any action taken by the Zoning Hearing Board. 

 
2. Conduct of Hearing. The hearings shall be conducted by the Zoning Hearing Board, or the 

Zoning Hearing Board may appoint any member as a hearing officer. The decision, or 
where no decision is called for, the findings shall be made by the Zoning Hearing Board, 
but the parties may waive the decision or findings by the Zoning Hearing Board and accept 
the decision or findings of the hearing officer as final. 

 
a. The parties to the hearing shall be Gettysburg Borough and any Person affected 

by the application who has made timely appearance of record before the Zoning 
Hearing Board, and any other Person including civic, or community organizations 
permitted to appear by the Zoning Hearing Board. The Zoning Hearing Board shall 
have the power to require that all persons who wish to be considered parties enter 
appearances in writing. 

 
b. The chairperson of the Zoning Hearing Board or the hearing officer presiding shall 

have the power to administer oaths and issue subpoenas to compel the attendance 
of witnesses and the production of relevant documents and papers, including 
witnesses and documents requested by the parties. 

 
c. The parties shall have the right to be represented by counsel and shall be afforded 

the opportunity to respond and present evidence and argument and cross-examine 
adverse witnesses on all relevant issues. 

 
d. Formal rules of evidence shall not apply, but irrelevant, immaterial, or unduly 

repetitious evidence may be excluded. 
 
e. The Zoning Hearing Board or the hearing officer shall keep a stenographic record 

of the proceedings. The appearance fee for a stenographer shall be shared 
equally by the Applicant and the Zoning Hearing Board.  The cost of the original 
transcript shall be paid by the Zoning Hearing Board if the transcript is ordered by 
the Zoning Hearing Board or hearing officer. It shall be paid by the Person 
appealing from the decision of the Zoning Hearing Board if such appeal is made, 
and in either event, the cost of additional copies shall be paid by the Person 
requesting such copy or copies. In other cases, the party requesting the original 
transcript shall bear the cost thereof. 

 

110



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 1 GENERAL ZONING PROVISIONS Page 14 of 192 

 

f. The Zoning Hearing Board or the hearing officer shall not communicate, directly or 
indirectly, with any party or his representatives in connection with any issue involved 
except upon notice and opportunity for all parties to participate, shall not take 
notice of any communication, reports, staff memoranda, or other materials unless 
the parties are afforded an opportunity to contest the material so noticed and shall 
not inspect the site or its surroundings after commencement of hearings with any 
party or his representative unless all parties are given an opportunity to be present. 

 
3. Decision.  
 

a. The Zoning Hearing Board or the hearing officer shall render a written decision or, 
when no decision is called for, make written findings on the application within forty-
five (45) calendar days after the last hearing before the Zoning Hearing Board or 
hearing officer.  

 
b. Each decision shall be accompanied by findings of fact and conclusions based 

thereon together with the reasons, therefore. Conclusions based on any provisions 
of this act or of any ordinance, rule, or regulation shall contain a reference to the 
provision relied on and the reasons why the conclusion is deemed appropriate in 
the light of the facts found.  

 
c. If the hearing is conducted by a hearing officer, and there has been no stipulation 

that the officer’s decision or findings are final, the Zoning Hearing Board shall make 
its report and recommendations available to the parties within forty-five (45) 
calendar days, and the parties shall be entitled to make written findings to the 
Zoning Hearing Board prior to final decision or entry of findings, and the Zoning 
Hearing Board’s decision shall be entered no later than thirty (30) calendar days 
after the decision of the hearing officer.  

 
d. Where the Zoning Hearing Board has power to render a report and the Zoning 

Hearing Board or the hearing officer as the case may be, fails to render the same 
within the period required by this subsection, or fails to hold the required hearing 
within sixty (60) calendar days from the date of the Applicant’s request for a 
hearing, the decision shall be deemed to have been rendered in favor of the 
Applicant unless the Applicant has agreed in writing to an extension of time.  

 
e. When a decision has been rendered in favor of the Applicant because of the failure 

of the Zoning Hearing Board to meet or render a decision, the Zoning Hearing 
Board shall give Public Notice of the said decision within ten (10) days from the last 
day it could have met to render a decision in the same manner as provided in § 27-
111(E)1., If the Zoning Hearing Board fails to provide such notice, the Applicant 
may do so. Nothing in this subsection shall prejudice the right of any party opposing 
the application to urge that such a decision is erroneous. 

 
f. A copy of the final decision, or where no decision is called for, of the findings shall 

be delivered to the Applicant personally or mailed to them not later than the next 
business day following its date. To all other persons who have filed their name and 
address with the Zoning Hearing Board not later than the last day of the hearing, 
the Zoning Hearing Board shall provide by mail or otherwise, brief notice of the 
decision or findings and a statement of the place at which the full decision or 
findings may be examined. 

 
(F) Jurisdiction.  The Zoning Hearing Board shall have exclusive Jurisdiction to hear and render final 

adjudications in the following matters: 

111



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 1 GENERAL ZONING PROVISIONS Page 15 of 192 

 

 
1. Substantive challenges to the validity of any land use ordinance, except those brought 

before the Borough Council pursuant to Sections 609.1 and 916.1 of the MPC. 
 
2. Appeals from the Determination of the Zoning Officer, including, but not limited to, the 

granting or denial of any permit, or failure to act on the application therefore, the issuance 
of any cease-and-desist order or the registration or refusal to register any Nonconforming 
Use, Structure or parcel. 

 
3. Appeals from a Determination by the Floodplain Administrator with reference to the 

administration of any floodplain or flood hazard ordinance or such provisions within a land 
Use ordinance. 

 
4. Applications for Variances from the terms of this Chapter pursuant to Article 910.2 of the 

MPC. 
 
5. Applications for Special Exceptions under this Chapter pursuant to Article 912.1 of the MPC. 
 
6. Appeals from the Zoning Officer’s Determination under Article 916.2 of the MPC. 
 
8. Appeals from the Determination of the Zoning Officer or the Borough Engineer in the 

administration of any land use ordinance or provision thereof with reference to 
sedimentation and erosion control and stormwater management insofar as the same relate 
to development not involving applications under Article V or VII of the MPC. 

 
(G) Borough Council. Borough Council shall have exclusive jurisdiction to and render final adjudications 

in the following matters: 
 

1. All applications for approvals of planned residential development under Article VII of the 
MPC pursuant to the provisions of Section 702 of the MPC. 

 
2. Applications for a curative amendment to this Chapter or pursuant to Sections 609.1 and 

916.1(a) of the MPC. 
   
3. All petitions for amendments to land use ordinances, pursuant to the procedures set forth in 

Article 609 of the MPC. 
 
4. Appeals from the Determination of the Zoning Officer or the Borough Engineer in the 

administration of any land Use ordinance or provisions thereof with reference to 
sedimentation and erosion control and stormwater management insofar as the same relate 
to applications for Land Development under Articles V and VII of the MPC. Where such 
Determination relates only to development not involving an Article V or VII application, the 
appeal from such Determination of the Zoning Officer or the Borough Engineer shall be to 
the Zoning Hearing Board pursuant to this Part. Where the applicable land Use ordinance 
vests jurisdiction for final administration of Subdivision and Land Development applications 
in the Planning Commission, all appeals from determinations under this subsection shall be 
to the Planning Commission, and all appeals from the decision of the Planning Commission 
shall be to court. 

 
(H) Zoning Hearing Board Functions. 
 

1. Variances. The Zoning Hearing Board shall hear requests for variances where it is alleged 
that the provisions of this Chapter inflict unnecessary hardship upon the Applicant. The 

112



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 1 GENERAL ZONING PROVISIONS Page 16 of 192 

 

Zoning Hearing Board may grant a variance provided the following findings are made 
where relevant in each case. 

 
a. That there are unique physical circumstances or conditions, including irregularity, 

narrowness, or shallowness of parcel size or shape, or exceptional topographical 
or other physical conditions peculiar to the particular property, and that the 
unnecessary hardship is due to such conditions, and not the circumstances or 
conditions generally created by the provisions of this Chapter in the zoning district 
in which the property is located. 

 
b. That because of such physical circumstances or conditions, there is no possibility that 

the property can be developed in strict conformity with the provisions of this 
Chapter and that the authorization of a variance is, therefore, necessary to enable 
the reasonable use of the property. 

 
c. That such necessary hardship has not been created by the appellant. 
 
d. That the variance, if authorized, shall not alter the essential character of the zoning 

district in which the property is located, nor substantially or permanently impair the 
appropriate Use or development of an adjacent property, nor be detrimental to 
the public welfare. 

 
e. That the variance, if authorized, shall represent the minimum variance that shall 

afford relief and shall represent the least modification possible of the regulation in 
issue. 

 
f. In granting any variance, the Zoning Hearing Board may attach such reasonable 

conditions and safeguards as it may deem necessary to implement the purposes of 
this act and this Chapter. 

 
2. A Variance shall be effective for a period of two (2) years from the date of its approval.  

An extension may be granted upon a determination by the Zoning Hearing Board provided 
that any conditions and safeguards that may have been prescribed by the Zoning Hearing 
Board in conjunction with the issuance of the original variance is being complied with. In such 
cases, a period of up to one (1) year shall be granted the applicant for full compliance 
prior to the revocation of said variance at the conclusion of the one (1) year extension if the 
variance has not been acted upon.   
 

3. Special Exceptions.  See § 27-118 of this Chapter.  
 
(I) Parties Appellant Before Zoning Hearing Board. Appeals under § 27-116 of this Chapter may be 

filed with the Zoning Hearing Board in writing by the landowner affected or any officer or agency 
of the Borough, or any Person aggrieved. Requests for a variance under § 27-117(H) and for 
Special Exceptions under § 27-118 of this Chapter may be filed with the Zoning Hearing Board by 
any landowner or any tenant with the permission of such landowner. 

 
(J) Time Limitations. The time limitations for raising certain issues and filing certain proceedings with the 

Zoning Hearing Board shall be the following: 
 

1. No Person shall be allowed to file any proceeding with the Zoning Hearing Board later than 
thirty (30) days after any application for development, preliminary or final, has been 
approved by an appropriate Borough officer, agency, or body if such proceeding is 
designed to secure reversal or to limit the approval in any manner unless such Person alleges 
and proves that they had no notice, knowledge, or reason to believe that such approval 

113



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 1 GENERAL ZONING PROVISIONS Page 17 of 192 

 

had been given. If such Person has succeeded their interest after such approval they shall 
be bound by the knowledge of their predecessor in interest. 
 

2. The failure of anyone other than the landowner to appeal from an adverse decision on a 
tentative plan, or from an adverse decision by a Zoning Officer on a challenge to the 
validity of this Chapter or Zoning Map shall preclude an appeal from a final approval 
except in the case where the final submission substantially deviates from the approved 
tentative approval. 

 
3. All appeals from determinations adverse to the landowners shall be filed by the landowner 

within thirty (30) days after notice of the determination is issued. 
 

(K) Stay of Proceedings. Upon filing of any proceeding with the Zoning Hearing Board and during its 
pendency before the Zoning Hearing Board all Land Development pursuant to any challenged 
ordinance, order or approval of the Zoning Officer or of any agency or body, and all official action 
thereunder shall be stayed unless the Zoning Officer or any other appropriate agency or body 
certifies to the Zoning Hearing Board facts indicating that such stay would cause imminent peril to 
life or property, in which case the development or official action shall not be stayed otherwise than 
by a restraining order, which may be granted by the Zoning Hearing Board or by the court having 
jurisdiction of zoning appeals on petition after notice to the Zoning Officer or other appropriate 
agency or body. When an application for development, preliminary or final, has been duly 
approved and proceedings designed to reverse or limit the approval are filed with the Zoning 
Hearing Board by persons other than the Applicant, the Applicant may petition the court having 
jurisdiction of zoning appeals to order such persons to post a bond as a condition to continuing the 
proceedings before the Zoning Hearing Board. The question of whether such petition should be 
granted, and the amount of the bond shall be within the sound discretion of the court. 

 
§ 27-118 Special Exception Use Procedures 
 
(A) General.  
 

1. It is the intent of this Section to provide special controls and regulations for particular uses 
which may, under certain conditions, be conducted within the various zoning districts 
established in Part 2 of this Chapter. 

 
2. Where the Borough Council has stated, under Part 3 of this Chapter, Special Exceptions to 

be granted or denied by the Zoning Hearing Board pursuant to the standards and criteria 
specified below, the Zoning Hearing Board shall hear and decide requests for such Special 
Exceptions in accordance with such standards and criteria.  In granting a Special Exception, 
the Zoning Hearing Board may attach such reasonable conditions and safeguards, in 
addition to those expressed in this Chapter, as it may deem necessary to implement the 
purposes of this Chapter. 

 
(B) Application.  Each application for a Special Exception use shall be accompanied by a proposed Site 

Plan as specified under § 27-111 of this Chapter.   
 
(C) Referral to Gettysburg Borough Planning Commission. 
 

1. In its review of the Special Exception application, the Borough Planning Commission shall 
take into consideration the public health, safety, and welfare, the comfort and convenience 
of the public in general and of the residents of the immediate neighborhood in particular, 
and may recommend appropriate conditions and safeguards as may be required in order 
that the result of its recommendation may, to the maximum extent possible, further the 

114



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 1 GENERAL ZONING PROVISIONS Page 18 of 192 

 

expressed intent of this Chapter and the accomplishment of the following objectives in 
particular.  

 
a. That all proposed structures, equipment, or material shall be readily accessible for 

fire and police protection. 
 
b. That the proposed use shall be of such location, size, and character that, in general, 

it will be in harmony with the appropriate and orderly development of the district 
in which it is proposed to be situated and will not be detrimental to the orderly 
development of adjacent properties in accordance with the zoning classification of 
such properties. 

 
c. That, in addition to the above, in the case of any use located in, or directly adjacent 

to, a Residential District:  
 

(1) The location and size of such use, the nature and intensity of operations 
involved in or conducted in connection therewith, its site layout and its 
relation to access streets shall be such that both pedestrian and vehicular 
traffic to and from the use and the assembly of persons in connection 
therewith will not be hazardous or inconvenient to, or incongruous with, said 
Residential District or conflict with the normal traffic of the neighborhood; 
and  

 
(2) The location and height of buildings, the location, nature and height of walls 

and fences, and the nature and extent of landscaping on the site shall be 
such that the use will not hinder or discourage the appropriate development 
and use of adjacent land and buildings.  

 
(3) Planning Commission Recommendation. Within thirty (30) calendar days of 

the submission of the Special Exception application to the Borough, the 
Planning Commission shall forward its written recommendations to the Zoning 
Hearing Board. The Commission may recommend approval, disapproval, or 
modification.  In the case of disapproval or modification the Commission shall 
set forth the reasons for the recommendation in writing. 

 
(D) Standards and Criteria.  In any instance where the Zoning Hearing Board is required to consider a 

Special Exception to this Chapter in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter, the Zoning 
Hearing Board shall, among other things, consider the following standards and conditions that have 
been provided in writing by the applicant to the Zoning Hearing Board: 
 
1. The proposed use is consistent with the purpose of the Part whereby it is permitted, and the 

overall purposes contained in Part 1 of this Chapter. 
 
2. The proposed use and its location are generally consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and 

the current Gettysburg Borough Zoning Map. 
 
3. The proposed use complies with the Lot requirements and the building height of the district 

where it is proposed. 
 
4. The proposed use is consistent with the general and supplemental regulations set forth in 

Part 15, and the design standards of Part 19 of the Code of Ordinances of the Borough of 
Gettysburg. 

 

115



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 1 GENERAL ZONING PROVISIONS Page 19 of 192 

 

5. The proposed use will not substantially injure or detract from the use of neighboring 
property or from the character of the neighborhood and that the use of the adjacent 
property is adequately safeguarded. Further, the proposed use, located on the proposed 
property, with the present and proposed characteristics of each, and considering the present 
and proposed characteristics of the neighboring properties, will not cause negative impacts 
over and above those typically associated with such uses located and operated in a usual 
manner. 

 
6. Where determined by the Zoning Hearing Board to be applicable, the proposed use will 

provide a fence or a planting screen and/or additional yard or open space area to reduce 
the effect of the proposed use upon adjacent properties. 

 
7. The proposed use will promote preservation or adaptive reuse of the sites and structures 

identified by the Local Historic District Regulations [Chapter 11 of the Code of Ordinances 
of the Borough of Gettysburg]. 

 
8. The proposed use complies with the required off-Street parking and loading regulations in 

Part 13 of the Code of Ordinances of the Borough of Gettysburg. 
 
9. The proposed use will provide safe and adequate access to streets and that the applicant 

will make any improvements needed to guarantee compatibility with adjacent streets as 
recommended by the Borough Engineer. 

 
10. The proposed use will provide for pedestrian access to the site. 
 
11. The proposed use will not adversely affect public facilities and utilities, such as water, sewer, 

police and fire protection, schools, etc. 
 
12 The proposed use will comply with the signage regulations of Chapter 19 of the Code of 

Ordinances of the Borough of Gettysburg. 
 

(E) Zoning Hearing Board Action. The Zoning Hearing Board shall conduct a public hearing on each 
application for a Special Exception use in accordance with the public hearing procedures outlined 
under § 27-117(E) of this Chapter.  

 
(F) Conditions and Safeguards of Special Exception Permits. A Special Exception use permit shall be 

effective for a period of two (2) years from the date of its issuance.  An extension may be granted 
upon a determination by the Zoning Hearing Board provided that any conditions and safeguards 
that may have been prescribed by the Zoning Hearing Board in conjunction with the issuance of the 
original permit are being complied with. In such cases, a period of up to one (1) year shall be 
granted the applicant for full compliance prior to the revocation of said permit at the conclusion of 
the one (1) year extension if the permit has not been acted upon.   

 
(G) Effect of Special Exception Approval. Any use for which a Special Exception use permit may be 

granted shall be deemed to be a conforming use in the zoning district in which such use is located 
provided that such permit shall be deemed to affect only the Lot or portion thereof for which such 
permit shall have been granted. 

 
§ 27-119 Enforcement Notification 
 
(A) Whenever the Zoning Officer or other authorized Borough representative determines that there are 

reasonable grounds to believe that there has been a violation of any provision of this Chapter, or 
of any regulation adopted pursuant thereto, the Zoning Officer shall initiate enforcement 
proceedings by sending an enforcement notice as provided in this Part. 

116



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 1 GENERAL ZONING PROVISIONS Page 20 of 192 

 

 
(B) The enforcement notice shall be sent to the Owner of record of the parcel on which the violation has 

occurred, to any Person who has filed a written request to receive enforcement notices regarding 
that parcel, and to any other Person requested in writing by the Owner of record. 

 
(C) An enforcement notice shall state at least the following: 
 

1. The name of the Owner of record and any other Person against whom the Borough intends 
to take action. 

 
2. The location of the property in violation. 
 
3. The specific violation with a description of the requirements which have not been met, citing 

in each instance the applicable provisions of this Chapter. 
 
4. The date before which the steps for compliance shall be commenced, not to exceed thirty 

(30) days from receipt of notice, and the date before which the steps shall be completed. 
 
5. An outline of remedial action which, if taken, shall affect compliance with the provisions of 

this Chapter, or any part thereof, and with any regulations adopted pursuant thereto. 
 
6. A statement indicating that the recipient of the notice has the right to appeal to the Zoning 

Hearing Board within a prescribed period of time, in accordance with procedures set forth 
elsewhere in this Chapter. 

 
7. A statement indicating that failure to comply with the notice within the time specified, unless 

extended by appeal to the Zoning Hearing Board, constitutes a violation, with possible 
sanctions clearly described. 

 
(D) In any appeal of an enforcement notice to the Zoning Hearing Board, the Borough shall have the 

responsibility of presenting its evidence first. 
 
(E) Any filing fees paid by a party to appeal an enforcement notice to the Zoning Hearing Board shall 

be returned to the appealing party by the Borough if the Zoning Hearing Board, or any court in a 
subsequent appeal, rules in the appealing party’s favor. 

 
(F) Causes of Action. In case any Building, Structure, landscaping, or land is, or is proposed to be, 

erected, constructed, reconstructed, altered, converted, maintained, or used in violation of any 
ordinance enacted by the Borough or prior enabling laws, the Borough Council or, with the approval 
of the Borough Council, an officer of the Borough, or any aggrieved Owner or tenant of real 
property who shows that his property or Person shall be substantially affected by the alleged 
violation, in addition to other remedies, may institute any appropriate action or proceeding to 
prevent, restrain, correct or abate such Building, Structure, landscaping or land, or prevent, in or 
about such premises, any act, conduct, business or Use constituting a violation. When any such action 
is instituted by a landowner or tenant, notice of that action shall be served upon the Borough at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the time the action is begun by serving a copy of the complaint to the 
Borough Council. No such action may be maintained until such notice has been given. 

 
(G) Supplementary Provisions. No Zoning Permit, Building Permit, Certificate of Use, or any other permit 

referenced in this Chapter shall be issued with respect to a property unless the Owner(s) of that 
property is/are in compliance with all other ordinances, laws, and regulations of federal and state 
government, the Borough, Gettysburg Municipal Authority, and Gettysburg Borough Storm Water 
Authority.  Additionally, no such permit shall be issued where a charge for drinking water, 

117



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 1 GENERAL ZONING PROVISIONS Page 21 of 192 

 

wastewater, and stormwater Use, real estate taxes, or other municipal charges associated with the 
Use or ownership of the property have not been paid and are past due. 

 
 
 
§ 27-120 Amendments 
 
(A) General. 
 

1. Borough Council Action.  
 

a. The Borough Council may, from time to time, amend, supplement, or repeal any of 
the regulations and provisions of this Chapter.  

 
b. Before voting on the enactment of an amendment, the Borough Council shall hold a 

Public Hearing thereon, pursuant to Public Notice. In addition, if the proposed 
amendment involves a Zoning Map change, notice of said Public Hearing shall be 
conspicuously posted by the Borough at points deemed sufficient by the Borough 
along the perimeter of the parcel to notify potentially interested citizens. The 
affected parcel or area shall be posted at least one (1) week prior to the date of 
the hearing. 

 
c. In the case of an amendment other than that prepared by the Planning Commission, 

the Borough Council shall submit each such amendment to the Planning Commission 
at least thirty (30) days prior to the hearing on such proposed amendment to 
provide the Planning Commission an opportunity to submit recommendations. 
 

2. Report of the Planning Commission. In making such report on a proposed amendment, the 
Planning Commission shall make inquiry and recommendation including the items specified 
below: 

 
a. Concerning a proposed amendment to or change in the text of this Chapter: 
 

(1) Whether such change is consistent with the aims and principles embodied in 
this Chapter as to the particular zoning district(s) concerned. 

 
(2) Which areas, land uses, Structures and establishments in the Borough shall 

be directly affected by such change, and in what way they shall be 
affected. 

 
(3) The indirect implications of such a change in its effect on other regulations. 
 
(4) Whether such proposed amendment is consistent with the aims of the 

Borough Comprehensive Plan. 
 
b. Concerning a proposed amendment involving a change in the Zoning Map: 
 

(1) Whether the uses permitted by the proposed change would be 
appropriate in the area concerned. 

 
(2) Whether adequate public-school facilities and other public services exist or 

can be created to serve the needs of any additional residences likely to be 
constructed because of such change. 

 

118



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 1 GENERAL ZONING PROVISIONS Page 22 of 192 

 

(3) Whether the proposed change is in accord with any existing or proposed 
plans in the vicinity. 

 
(4) The effect of the proposed amendment upon the growth of the Borough as 

envisioned by the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
(5) Whether the proposed amendment is likely to result in an increase or 

decrease in the total zoned residential capacity of the Borough and the 
probable effect thereof. 

 
3. Referral to County Planning Commission. Borough Council shall at least thirty (30) days prior 

to the Public Hearing, refer the proposed amendment to the Adams County Planning 
Commission for recommendations. 

 
4. Borough Council Public Hearing. By motion adopted at a public meeting of the Borough 

Council, the Borough Council shall fix the time and place of a Public Hearing on the proposed 
amendment pursuant to Public Notice. 

 
5. If, after any Public Hearing held upon an amendment, the proposed amendment is changed 

substantially, or is revised, to include land previously not affected by it, the Borough Council 
shall hold another Public Hearing, pursuant to Public Notice, before proceeding to vote on 
the amendment. 

 
6. Within thirty (30) days after enactment, a copy of the amendment to this Chapter shall be 

forwarded to the county planning agency. 
 
(B) Procedure for Landowner Curative Amendments. 
 

1. A landowner who desires to challenge on substantive grounds the validity of this Chapter 
or the Zoning Map or any provision thereof, which prohibits or restricts the Use or 
development of land in which the landowner’s interest may submit a curative amendment to 
the Borough Council with a written request that his challenge and proposed amendment be 
heard and decided as provided in Article 916.1 of the MPC. The curative amendment and 
challenge shall be referred to the Planning Commission, and the Adams County Planning 
Commission provided in MPC Section 609 and notice of the hearing thereon shall be given 
as provided in Articles 610 and 916.1 of the MPC. 

 
2. The hearing shall be conducted in accordance with Article 908 of the MPC and all references 

therein to the Zoning Hearing Board shall, for purposes of this Part, be references to the 
Borough Council. If the Borough does not accept a landowner’s curative amendment brought 
in accordance with this subsection and a court subsequently rules that the challenge has 
merit, the court’s decision shall not result in a declaration of invalidity of this Chapter and 
Zoning Map, but only for those provisions which specifically relate to the landowner’s 
curative amendment and challenge. 

 
3. Borough Council, if it determines that a validity challenge has merit, may accept a 

landowner’s curative amendment, with or without revision, or may adopt an alternative 
amendment that shall cure the challenged defects. Borough Council shall consider the 
curative amendments, plans, and explanatory material submitted by the landowner and 
shall consider: 

 
a. The impact of the proposal upon roads, sewer facilities, water supplies, schools, and 

other public service facilities. 
 

119



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 1 GENERAL ZONING PROVISIONS Page 23 of 192 

 

b. If the proposal is for residential Use, the impact of the proposal upon regional 
housing needs and the effectiveness of the proposal in providing housing units of a 
type available to and affordable by classes of persons otherwise unlawfully 
excluded by the challenged provisions of this Chapter or Zoning Map. 

 
c. The suitability of the site for the intensity of Use proposed by the site’s soils, slopes, 

woodlands, Wetlands, floodplains, aquifers, natural resources, and other natural 
features. 

 
d. The impact of the proposed Use on the site’s soils, slopes. woodlands, Wetlands, 

floodplains, natural resources, and natural features, the degree to which these are 
protected or destroyed, the tolerance of the resources to development, and any 
adverse environmental impacts. 

 
e. The impact of the proposal on the preservation of agriculture and other land uses, 

which are essential to public health and welfare. 
 
(C) Procedure for Municipal Curative Amendments. 
 

1. If the Borough determines that this Chapter, or any portion hereof, is substantially invalid, it 
shall take the following actions: 

 
a. The Borough shall declare by formal action, this Chapter or portions hereof 

substantially invalid, and propose to prepare a curative amendment to overcome 
such invalidity. Within thirty (30) days of such declaration and proposal, the 
Borough Council shall: 

 
(1) By resolution, make specific findings setting forth the declared invalidity of 

this Chapter which may include: 
 

(a) References to specific uses which are either not permitted or not 
permitted in sufficient quantity; 

 
(b) Reference to a class of Use or uses which requires revision; or, 
 
(c) Reference to this Chapter which requires revisions. 
 

(2) Begin to prepare and consider a curative amendment to this Chapter to 
correct the declared invalidity. 

 
2. Within one hundred eighty (180) days from the date of the declaration and proposal, the 

Borough shall enact a curative amendment to validate or reaffirm the validity of this 
Chapter pursuant to the provisions of Article 609 of the MPC, to cure the declared invalidity 
of this Chapter. 

 
3. Upon the initiation of the procedures, as set forth in § 27-120(C)1., the Borough Council shall 

not be required to entertain or consider any landowner’s curative amendment filed under 
Article 609.1 of the MPC, nor shall the Zoning Hearing Board be required to give a report 
requested under Article 909.1 or 916.1 of the MPC subsequent to the declaration and 
proposal based upon the grounds identical to or substantially similar to those specified in 
the resolution required by § 27-120(C)1.a.(1). Upon completion of the procedures as set 
forth in § 27-120.C.(1)and § 27-120(C)2.,, no rights to a cure pursuant to the provisions of 
Articles 609.1 and 916.1 of the MPC shall, from the date of the declaration and proposal, 

120



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 1 GENERAL ZONING PROVISIONS Page 24 of 192 

 

accrue to any landowner on the basis of the substantive invalidity of the unamended Zoning 
Ordinance for which there has been a curative amendment pursuant to this Part. 

 
4. The Borough, having utilized the procedures set forth in this Chapter, may not again utilize 

said procedure for a period of thirty-six (36) months following the date of enactment of a 
curative amendment or reaffirmation of the validity of this Chapter.  Provided, however, if 
after the date of declaration and proposal there is a substantially new duty imposed upon 
the Borough by virtue of a change in statute or a Pennsylvania Appellate Court decision to 
propose a curative amendment to this Chapter to fulfill said duty or obligation. 

 
(D) Applicability of Ordinance Amendments. When an application for a Special Exception has been 

respectively filed with the Zoning Hearing Board and the subject matter of such application would 
ultimately constitute either a Subdivision or Land Development as defined in Part 5 of this Chapter, 
no change or amendment of this Chapter shall affect the decision on such application adversely to 
the applicant and the applicant shall be entitled to a decision in accordance with the provisions of 
the governing ordinances or plans as they stood at the time the application was duly filed. Provided, 
further, should such an application be approved by the Zoning Hearing Board the applicant shall 
be entitled to proceed with the submission of either land development or subdivision plans within a 
period of six (6) months or longer as may be approved by the Zoning Hearing Board following the 
date of such approval in accordance with the provisions of the governing ordinances or plans as 
they stood at the time the application was duly filed before the Zoning Hearing Board. If either a 
land development or subdivision plan is so filed within said period, such plan shall be subject to the 
provisions of MPC Section 508(1) through (4), and specifically to the time limitations of MPC Section 
508(4) which shall commence as of the date of filing such land development or subdivision plan. 

121



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Code, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 25 of 192 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS 
 
§ 27-201 Establishment of Zoning Districts 
 
The following zoning districts are hereby established in the Borough. 
 

BASE ZONING DISTRICTS OVERLAY DISTRICTS 

RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS 
Low Density Residential (R-1) 
Preservation Residential (R-1A) 
Moderate Density Residential (R-2) 
 

MIXED USE DISTRICTS 
Low Impact Neighborhood Commercial (NC-1) 
Historic Corridor Neighborhood Commercial (NC-2) 
Neighborhood Commercial (NC-3) 
General Commercial (C-1) 
Old Town (OT) 
Revitalization (R) 

 
SPECIAL DISTRICTS 

Civic Institution (CI) 
Institution (INS-1) 
Healthcare (HC) 
Industrial (IND) 

Floodplain Overlay (FO) 
Historic Overlay (HO) 

 
§ 27-202 Zoning Map 
 
The base zoning districts established by § 27-201 are delineated on the Borough’s official Zoning Map, 
which is adopted, and incorporated herein in its entirety, as part of this Chapter and included hereto as 
Exhibit A. 
 
(A) Promptly following enactment of this Chapter, the Zoning Officer shall place the following legend 

on the official Zoning Map adopted as part of this Chapter, the Borough Council President shall 
execute the same on behalf of the Council and the Borough Manager shall attest to the same: “On 
<DATE>, by official action of Borough Council, the map bearing this legend was adopted as the 
official Zoning Map of the Borough by enactment of the Zoning Ordinance of Gettysburg Borough, 
Adams County, Pennsylvania.” 

 
(B) No changes of any nature shall be made in the official Zoning Map except in conformity with the 

procedures set forth in §27-120 Amendments of this Chapter.  Any unauthorized change of whatever 
kind by any Person or Persons shall be considered a violation of this Chapter. 

 
(C) A certified Zoning Map shall be filed with the Borough Manager, Borough Planning Commission, and 

the Adams County Planning Commission. 
 
§ 27-203 Rules for Interpretation of Zoning District Boundaries 
 
Where uncertainty exists as to the boundaries of zoning districts as shown on the official Zoning Map, the 
following rules shall apply: 
 
(A) Boundaries indicated as approximately following the centerlines of Streets, highways, and Alleys 

shall be construed to follow such centerlines. 

122



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 26 of 192 

 

 
(B) Boundaries indicated as approximately following the center of streams, rivers, canals, lakes, or other 

bodies of water shall be construed to follow such center lines. 
 
(C) Boundaries indicated as approximately following property lines or platted parcel lines, shall be 

construed as following such lines. 
 
(D) Boundaries indicated as approximately following Borough boundaries shall be construed as 

following Borough boundaries. 
 
(E) Boundaries that are in un-subdivided property or where a zoning district boundary divides a parcel 

shall be determined using the map scale as shown thereon. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INTENTIONALLY BLANK  

123



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 27 of 192 

 

§ 27-204 Low Density Residential District (R-1) 
 
(A) Purpose. 
 

The purpose of the R-1 District is to provide for certain areas of the Borough to be maintained as 
residential areas primarily for single-family detached housing. 
 

(B) Use Regulations.   
 

1. Permitted Uses and Use regulations are specified in Article 3 Zoning Uses. 
 
2. All uses permitted within this District shall also comply with the Supplemental Regulations 

contained in Article 4 of this Chapter. 
 

(C) Building Form Regulations.  Figure 204 specifies the district’s Building Form Regulations. 
  

124



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 28 of 192 

 

  

125



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 29 of 192 

 

§ 27-205 Preservation Residential District (R-1A) 
 
(A) Purpose. 
 

The purpose of the R-1A District is to provide for certain areas of the Borough that contain large 
residential dwellings to be maintained as single-family dwellings, but to allow bed-and-breakfast 
uses to be conducted in those buildings to provide income to maintain the large dwellings without 
conversion to other uses that are not owner-occupied, such as conversion apartments. 
 

(B) Use Regulations.   
 

1. Permitted Uses and Use regulations are specified in Article 3 Zoning Uses. 
 
2. All uses permitted within this District shall also comply with the Supplemental Regulations 

contained in Article 4 of this Chapter. 
 

(C) Building Form Regulations.  Figure 205 specifies the district’s Building Form Regulations. 

  

126



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 30 of 192 

 

  

127



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 31 of 192 

 

§ 27-206 Moderate Density Residential District (R-2) 
 
(A) Purpose. 
 

The purpose of the R-2 District is to provide for the development of certain areas of the Borough 
into residential neighborhoods that contain a mix of attached (two-family) and detached residential 
dwellings and create walkable access to goods and services in the Downtown and other destination 
areas within the Borough.  
 

(B) Use Regulations.   
 

1. Permitted Uses and Use regulations are specified in Article 3 Zoning Uses. 
 
2. All uses permitted within this District shall also comply with the Supplemental Regulations 

contained in Article 4 of this Chapter. 
 

(C) Building Form Regulations.  Figure 206 specifies the district’s Building Form Regulations. 
  

128



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 32 of 192 

 

  

129



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 33 of 192 

 

§ 27-207 Low Impact Neighborhood Commercial District (NC-1) 

 
(A) Purpose. 
 

The purpose of the NC-1 District is to provide for certain areas of the Borough that contain a mix of 
higher density attached (two-family) and detached residential dwellings with interspersed 
neighborhood scaled businesses.  Expansion of such businesses is to be limited to preserve the existing 
predominant residential character of these neighborhoods. 
 

(B) Use Regulations.   
 

1. Permitted Uses and Use regulations are specified in Article 3 Zoning Uses. 
 
2. All uses permitted within this District shall also comply with the Supplemental Regulations 

contained in Article 4 of this Chapter. 
 

(C) Building Form Regulations.  Figure 207 specifies the district’s Building Form Regulations. 

 
  

130



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 34 of 192 

 

  

131



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 35 of 192 

 

§ 27-208 Historic Corridor Neighborhood Commercial District (NC-2) 

 
(A) Purpose. 
 

The purpose of the NC-2 District is to provide for offices, select businesses, residential uses, and 
other compatible uses within the historic, mixed use Baltimore Street Corridor in a manner that 
respects and preserves the special character of this area.  Adaptive reuses that preserve the viability 
of the larger structures within these areas are encouraged. 
 

(B) Use Regulations.   
 

1. Permitted Uses and Use regulations are specified in Article 3 Zoning Uses. 
 
2. All uses permitted within this District shall also comply with the Supplemental Regulations 

contained in Article 4 of this Chapter. 
 

(C) Building Form Regulations.  Figure 208 specifies the district’s Building Form Regulations. 
  

132



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 36 of 192 

 

  

133



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 37 of 192 

 

§ 27-209 Neighborhood Commercial District (NC-3) 

 
(A) Purpose. 
 

The purpose of the NC-3 District is to provide for the development of compact segments of existing 
Street and road frontages for neighborhood-scaled commercial establishments and activities that 
are readily accessible by Motor Vehicles, while also maintaining safe pedestrian access and 
passage through a well-connected and maintained sidewalk network.   
 

(B) Use Regulations.   
 

1. Permitted Uses and Use regulations are specified in Article 3 Zoning Uses. 
 
2. All uses permitted within this District shall also comply with the Supplemental Regulations 

contained in Article 4 of this Chapter. 
 

(C) Building Form Regulations.  Figure 209 specifies the district’s Building Form Regulations. 

 
  

134



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 38 of 192 

 

  

135



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 39 of 192 

 

§ 27-210 General Commercial District (C-1) 

 
(A) Purpose. 
 

The purpose of the C-1 District is to provide for the commercial development of existing Street and 
road frontage for auto-oriented commercial establishments and activities, while accommodating 
safe pedestrian accessibility.  Such businesses serve the greater Gettysburg area and include larger 
commercial establishments including the tourism-based businesses along Steinwehr Avenue and 
service businesses along York St./Rd. 
 

(B) Use Regulations.   
 

1. Permitted Uses and Use regulations are specified in Article 3 Zoning Uses. 
 
2. All uses permitted within this District shall also comply with the Supplemental Regulations 

contained in Article 4 of this Chapter. 
 

(C) Building Form Regulations.  Figure 210 specifies the district’s Building Form Regulations. 

 
 
  

136



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 40 of 192 

 

 
 

137



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 41 of 192 

 

§ 27-211 Old Town District (OT) 

 
(A) Purpose. 
 

The purpose of the OT District is to continue and strengthen the role of Downtown Gettysburg as a 
diversified, multipurpose, people-oriented center. Retail stores, services, offices, and public activities 
in this district will serve local and regional residents, visitors, and businesses. Upper-floor apartments 
and other forms of housing will complement Downtown commerce and help support sustained 
economic activity. 
 

(B) Use Regulations.   
 

1. Permitted Uses and Use regulations are specified in Article 3 Zoning Uses. 
 
2. All uses permitted within this District shall also comply with the Supplemental Regulations 

contained in Article 4 of this Chapter. 
 

(C) Building Form Regulations.  Figures 211-A and 211-B specify the district’s Building Form Regulations. 

 
 
  

138



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 42 of 192 

 

  

139



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 43 of 192 

 

  

140



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 44 of 192 

 

§ 27-212 Revitalization District (R) 

 
(A) Purpose. 
 

The purpose of the R District is to promote the revitalization of existing structures and development 
of underutilized or vacant parcels adjacent to the Downtown core. The R District is sensitive to the 
Downtown area’s historic and pedestrian-oriented center and recognizes the linkage that the district 
has with the Downtown, Gettysburg College, and surrounding residential neighborhoods. 
 

(B) Use Regulations.   
 

1. Permitted Uses and Use regulations are specified in Article 3 Zoning Uses. 
 
2. All uses permitted within this District shall also comply with the Supplemental Regulations 

contained in Article 4 of this Chapter. 
 

(C) Building Form Regulations.  Figures 212-A and 212-B specifies the district’s Building Form 
Regulations. 

 
 
  

141



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 45 of 192 

 

  

142



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 46 of 192 

 

   

143



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 47 of 192 

 

§ 27-213 Civic Institution District (CI) 

 
(A) Purpose. 
 

The purpose of the CI district is to provide for the continued use and preservation of those areas of 
the Borough where major publicly owned and managed parklands are located.  Permitted uses 
under this district are those directly related to and necessary for the park facilities’ operations.  Uses 
include the Gettysburg Area Recreation Authority (GARA) parks and recreation facilities and the 
National Park Service Gettysburg National Military Park. 
 

(B) Use Regulations.   
 

1. Permitted Uses and Use regulations are specified in Article 3 Zoning Uses. 
 
2. All uses permitted within this District shall also comply with the Supplemental Regulations 

contained in Article 4 of this Chapter. 
 

(C) Building Form Regulations.  Figure 213 specifies the district’s Building Form Regulations. 

 
  

144



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 48 of 192 

 

  

145



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 49 of 192 

 

§ 27-214 Institution District (INS-1) 

 
(A) Purpose. 

 
The purpose of the INS-1 district is to provide for the continued use and preservation of those areas 
of the Borough where major private and publicly owned and managed educational institutional uses 
are located.  Permitted uses under this district are those directly related to and necessary for each 
institution’s operations, which include supporting residential and non-residential uses that are 
necessary to sustain their respective academic missions.  Uses include the Gettysburg College, 
Lutheran Theological Seminary, and Gettysburg Area School District. 

 
(B) Use Regulations.   
 

1. Permitted Uses and Use regulations are specified in Article 3 Zoning Uses. 
 
2. All uses permitted within this District shall also comply with the Supplemental Regulations 

contained in Article 4 of this Chapter. 
 

(C) Building Form Regulations.  Figure 214 specifies the district’s Building Form Regulations. 

  

146



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 50 of 192 

 

  

147



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 51 of 192 

 

§ 27-215 Healthcare District (HC) 

 
(A) Purpose. 
 

The purpose of this district is to provide for the continued maintenance of those areas of the Borough 
where campus-style health-care facilities are presently located and to provide for select residential 
and commercial uses that are compatible with existing uses in the area. 
 

(B) Use Regulations.   
 

1. Permitted Uses and Use regulations are specified in Article 3 Zoning Uses. 
 
2. All uses permitted within this District shall also comply with the Supplemental Regulations 

contained in Article 4 of this Chapter. 
 

(C) Building Form Regulations.  Figure 215 specifies the district’s Building Form Regulations. 

 
  

148



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 52 of 192 

 

  

149



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 53 of 192 

 

§ 27-216 Industrial District (IND) 

 
(A) Purpose. 
 

The purpose of the IND District is to provide for a limited range of industrial or manufacturing 
activities in areas that will be both suitable for the proposed use and compatible with the community. 
 

(B) Use Regulations.   
 

1. Permitted Uses and Use regulations are specified in Article 3 Zoning Uses. 
 
2. All uses permitted within this District shall also comply with the Supplemental Regulations 

contained in Article 4 of this Chapter. 
 

(C) Building Form Regulations.  Figure 216 specifies the district’s Building Form Regulations. 

 
  

150



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 54 of 192 

 

§ 27-

151



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 55 of 192 

 

217 Floodplain Overlay District (FO) 

 
(A) Purpose. The purpose of the Floodplain Overlay (FO) District is to: 

 
1. Regulate the permitted use of flood-prone areas. 
 
2. Where there happens to be any conflict between the provisions or requirements of any of 

the floodplain districts and those of any underlying district the more restrictive provisions 
and/or those pertaining to the floodplain districts shall apply.  

 
3. In the event any provisions concerning a floodplain district is declared inapplicable, as a 

result of any legislative or administrative actions or judicial discretion, the basic underlying 
district provision shall remain applicable. 

 
4. Require the utilization of appropriate construction practices and design standards in order 

to prevent or minimize flood damage in the future. 
 
5. Reduce financial burdens imposed on the community, its governmental units, and its residents, 

by preventing the unwise Use and development of property in areas subject to flooding. 
 

(B) Authority.  Subparagraphs 604 and 605 of the MPC and the Pennsylvania Floodplain Management 
Act (Act 166-1978) grant municipalities the authority to identify flood-prone areas subject to 
periodic flooding and regulate with specific control the Permitted Use, type of construction and 
Height of floor levels above base flood elevation permitted in the area to lessen or avoid the 
hazards to persons and damage to property resulting from the accumulation of storm or flood 
waters.  
 

(C) Applicability.  Except as modified by the FO, the provisions of the applicable base zoning district(s) 
shall apply to all development within the boundary of the designated area. If regulations conflict, 
the applicable FO regulations shall prevail.  Whenever the FO District is established, any subsequent 
application to change the base zoning district shall not be construed to be an application to eliminate 
the FO District for the property covered by the application. An intent to eliminate the FO District on 
a given property shall be expressly stated to be part of the application. 

 
(D) Floodplain Management Ordinance. Chapter 8 Floodplains of the Borough of Gettysburg Code of 

Ordinances establishes the requirements for floodplain management including general provisions, 
interpretations and definitions, establishes floodplain areas, boundary disputes, alternations, criteria 
for Building and site plan approval, administration, appeals and penalties, government actions, and 
municipal liability.  

 
(E) Boundaries of District.   
 

1. To the extent the Zoning Map and Chapter 8 Floodplains of the Borough of Gettysburg 
Code of Ordinances identifies areas prone to or otherwise at risk of flood, including without 
limitation by reference to a Flood Insurance Rate Map or FEMA Flood Insurance Study, such 
areas shall be deemed identified as flood-prone areas for purposes of this Chapter and 
included within the FO District. 

 
2. Boundaries indicated as approximately following the center lines of Street or Alley rights-

of-way shall be construed to follow such center lines; 
 
3. Boundaries indicated as parallel to, or extensions of features indicated in the above shall 

be so construed; 

152



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 56 of 192 

 

 
4. Where physical or cultural features existing on the ground are different with those shown 

on the Flood Insurance Rate Map, or in other circumstances not covered by the above, the 
Zoning Officer shall interpret the FO District boundaries; and 

 
5. Distances not specifically indicated on the Zoning Map shall be determined by the scale of 

the map. 
 

(F) Interpretation of Ordinance Provisions. In interpreting the language of the FO District and the extent 
of underlying zoning district regulation upon use of property, where doubt exists between 
regulations, the stricter regulation shall govern. Any challenges to the Borough’s interpretation of the 
applicability of the FO District shall be appealed in accordance with the requirements outlined in § 
27-116 Appeals and Applications of this Chapter and Article IX, Zoning Hearing Board and Other 
Administrative Proceedings, of the MPC. 

 
  

153



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 57 of 192 

 

§ 27-218 Historic Overlay District (HO) 

 
(A) Purpose. The purpose of the Historic Overlay (HO) District is to: 

 
1. To safeguard Gettysburg's historic identity as it is represented in structures, streetscapes 

and sites of historical, architectural and archaeological value within the Historic District. 
 
2. To awaken in residents an interest in Gettysburg's cultural, economic, social, political and 

architectural history, and consequently an understanding that the appearance of the Historic 
District is a valuable but fragile resource which must be protected and preserved. 

 
3. To stabilize and improve property values in the Historic District. 
 
4. To strengthen the Borough's economy through recognition that visitors are interested in 

Gettysburg's historic buildings and streetscapes as a part of the context of the Gettysburg 
National Military Park. 

 
5. To encourage proper enforcement of the Borough's building, housing and property 

maintenance codes, particularly as they apply to properties in the Historic District. 
 
6. To discourage demolition and other inappropriate changes to historic structures by providing 

advice or other assistance for their stabilization, preservation, rehabilitation or restoration 
so as to perpetuate their usefulness. 

 
7. To ensure that the size, scale, and design of new construction within the Historic District is in 

harmony with the old. 
 
8. To discourage excavations which could disturb potentially important archaeological sites. 
 

(B) Authority.  Article VI, Section 603(g)(2) of the MPC mandates that "zoning ordinances shall provide 
for the protection of natural and historic features and resources."   Article VI also provides for the 
regulation of “places having unique historical, architectural or patriotic interest or value” through the 
creation of specific zoning classifications.  

 
(C) Applicability.  This Section chapter applies to all properties located within the Historic Overlay District 

as further described below in Subsection (E) below. 
 
(D) Historic District Ordinance. Chapter 11 Historic District of the Borough of Gettysburg Code of 

Ordinances as authorized under Act 167, P.L. 252, No. 167, establishes the “Gettysburg Historic 
District” and among other provisions regulates the erection, reconstruction, alteration, restoration, 
demolition, or razing of buildings within the historic districts.   

 
(E) Boundaries of Historic Overlay District. 
 

1. The Gettysburg Historic District, as regulated under Chapter 11 of the Borough of 
Gettysburg Code of Ordinances and as delineated on the Zoning Map, is hereby adopted 
by reference and declared to be a part of this Chapter. 

 
2. The HO District shall function as an overlay zoning district to the existing zoning districts. All 

of the provisions of the underlying zoning districts shall remain in full effect, except that the 
additional procedures and requirements of this Section shall also apply. 

 

154



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 2 ZONING DISTRICTS Page 58 of 192 

 

3. If, in accordance with the Amendment procedures specified under § 27-120 of this Chapter, 
changes are made to the Gettysburg Historic District boundaries such changes shall be 
entered on the Zoning Map promptly after the amendment has been approved by Borough 
Council and certified by the Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Commission.   

 
4. Where uncertainty exists as to the boundaries of the Gettysburg Historic Districts as shown 

on the Zoning Map, the following rules shall apply:  
 

a. Boundaries indicated as approximately following the center lines of Street or Alley 
rights-of-way shall be construed to follow such center lines; 

 
c. Boundaries indicated as parallel to, or extensions of features indicated in the above 

shall be so construed; 

 
b. Boundaries indicated as approximately following plotted Lot lines shall be 

construed as following such Lot lines; and 
 
c. Distances not specifically indicated on the Zoning Map shall be determined by the 

scale of the map. 
 
(E) Boundaries of District.  The boundaries of the Gettysburg Historic District are specified under § 11-

103, Limits of the Historic District, and are depicted on the Zoning Map. 
 
(F) Interpretation of Ordinance Provisions. In interpreting the language of the HO District and the extent 

of underlying zoning district regulation upon use of property, where doubt exists between 
regulations, the stricter regulation shall govern. Any challenges to the Borough’s interpretation of the 
applicability of the HO District shall be appealed in accordance with the requirements outlined in § 
27-116 Appeals and Applications of this Chapter and Article IX, Zoning Hearing Board and Other 
Administrative Proceedings, of the MPC. 

155



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Code, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 59 of 192 

PART 3 ZONING USES 
 
§ 27-301 General Provisions 
 
The following general provisions apply to the uses outlined in this Article. 
 
(A) No residential parcel shall have erected upon it more than one (1) principal Building. 
 
(B) Unless otherwise prohibited by this Chapter, more than one (1) principal Mixed-Use or non-

residential use may be erected on a single parcel provided that all parcel and Yard requirements, 
standards, and other requirements of this Chapter shall be met for each Structure, as though it were 
on an individual parcel. 

 
(C) No Building, Structure, or Land shall be used in any way other than the uses permitted in the zoning 

district in which the Building, Structure, or Land is located, with the exception of the Continuation of 
Existing Uses specified in Paragraph (D) below. 

 
(D) Continuation of Existing Uses. The continuation of any Use existing and permitted at the time of 

adoption of these regulations is permitted, subject to the Nonconformities standards specified under 
§ 27-401, Nonconformities, of this Chapter. 

 
§ 27-302 Applicability 
 
(A) Table 3.01, Table of Uses, identifies the Principal, Accessory, and Temporary Uses allowed in each 

zoning district and are defined in this Chapter. 
 
(B) Principal, Accessory, and Temporary Uses are given one of the following designations specified in 

Table 3.01. 
 

1. Permitted by Right (“R”). These Uses are permitted automatically by right in the zoning 
districts in which they are listed are subject to the general regulations under this Chapter.   

 
2. Permitted by Special Exception (“SE”).  These Uses are not permitted by right but are subject 

to the Special Exception standards and criteria specified in § 27-118 of this Chapter. 
 
3. Uses Not Permitted in Specified Districts.  Uses not permitted (whether expressly permitted 

or permitted upon interpretation and classification by the Zoning Officer) within a zoning 
district shall be deemed excluded.  The Zoning Officer shall make a Determination of the 
classification of all land Uses within the context and intent of this Chapter and may issue a 
Determination regarding whether a particular Use is permitted or excluded in a zoning 
district, all in accordance with this Chapter. 

 
(C) Permitted Uses are grouped into general categories, which are further broken into subcategories 

and specific Use types that are specifically defined in this Chapter. 
 
§ 27-303 Unlisted Uses 
 
(A) If a Use is clearly not provided for in this Chapter, whether as Permitted by Right or Permitted by 

Special Exception, within any Zoning District within the Borough, then the proposed Use shall be 
considered a Special Exception and shall be approved pursuant to the requirements specified under 
§ 27-118 of this Chapter.  In addition to such requirements, the proposed Use shall also be approved 
based on the following Use character eligibility standards: 

 

156



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 60 of 192 

 

1. The proposed Use shall be consistent with and meet the stated purpose and intent of the 
zoning district within which the Use is being proposed. 

 
2. The proposed Use shall be consistent with and uphold the general form, function, and design 

character of the neighborhood within which the Use is being proposed.   
 
3. The Use shall be similar to and compatible with the permitted uses in the zone in which the 

subject property is located, is not permitted in any other zone under the terms of this 
Chapter, and in no way is in conflict with the general purposes and intent of this Chapter.  

 
4. The Use shall consider the community development goals and objectives of the Gettysburg 

Borough Comprehensive Plan. 
 
(B) The burden of proof shall be upon the Applicant to demonstrate that the proposed Use meets the 

foregoing criteria and would not be detrimental to the public health, safety, and welfare of the 
Borough and its residents.   

 
(C) For the purposes of this section, a specifically denied Use shall be considered a Use that is not a 

permitted Use in the zone in question but is a permitted Use in another zoning district. 
 
§ 27-304 Prohibited Uses 
 
(A) In no instance shall any use or activity be permitted which, by reason of noise, dust, odor, 

appearance, smoke or other objectionable factor, creates a nuisance, hazard, or other adverse 
effect upon the value or reasonable enjoyment of the surrounding properties. 

 
(B) In no instance shall the operation of any business, commonly known as a "head shop," which involves, 

in whole or in part, the sale, lease, trade or display for sale of any and all types of drug 
paraphernalia, as defined herein, be permitted in any district. 

 
(C) In no instance shall the operation of any business which has obscene materials, as defined herein, as 

a substantial or a significant portion of its stock-in-trade be permitted in any district. 
 
(D) In no instance shall the operation of a massage parlor in which any of the following activities are 

carried on be permitted in any district: 
 

1. The massage treatment of any person by one or more persons who do not belong to any 
nationally recognized massage therapy association or by persons who are not graduates 
of any recognized training school in massage therapy with a minimum of 500 hours of 
training, evidence of which shall be in the form of a certificate or diploma on display on the 
premises. The requirements of this provision shall not apply to treatments given in the 
residence of a patient, the office of a licensed physician, osteopath, or registered physical 
or massage therapist, or chiropractor, or in a regularly established and licensed hospital or 
sanitarium. 

 
2. The massage of, or physical contact with, the sexual or genital parts of one person by any 

other person. 
 
3. The exposure of the sexual or genital parts of the body of any person. 

 
 
 
 
 

157



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 61 of 192 

 

Table 3.01, Table of Uses. 

R = Permitted by Right 
SE = Permitted by Special 

Exception 
Blank Cell = Use Not Permitted 

in Specified District(s) 

MAPPED ZONING DISTRICTS 

R
-1

 

R
-1

A
 

R
-2

 

N
C

-1
 

N
C

-2
 

N
C

-3
 

C
-1

 

O
T
 

R
 

C
I 

IN
S
 

H
C

 

IN
D

 

PRINCIPAL USES (§ 27-305) 

RESIDENTIAL USES [§ 27-305 PARAGRAPH (A)] 

Community Residence, Group 
Home 

R R R R R R  R      

Community Residence, Sober 
Living Facility/Recovery House 

  SE R  R R R    R  

Dwelling, Multi-Family, Apartment   R R R R  R R     

Dwelling, Multi-Family Conversion SE SE R SE R R  SE      

Dwelling, Single Family Detached R R R R R R  R      

Dwelling, Single Family Semi-
Detached, Duplex 

SE SE R R R R  R      

Dwelling, Single Family Semi-
Attached, Townhouse 

  R R R R  R      

Dwelling, Staff Housing   R R R    R  R R  

Dwelling, Student Housing   SE SE SE   SE R  R  R 

Dwelling, Student Housing, 
Institutional 

  R R    R R  R   

Manufactured Home R R R R          

Manufactured Home Community   SE           

LODGING USES [§ 27-305 PARAGRAPH (B)] 

Bed and Breakfast  R R R R R R R      

Community Residence, Halfway 
House 

   SE SE         

Hotel       R R R     

Inn    R R R R R    R R 

Motel   SE   R R       

Rooming House / Boardinghouse    SE  SE  SE      

Vacation Rental  R   R R R R      

Temporary Shelter Facility   SE SE    SE      

CIVIC AND INSTITUTIONAL USES [§ 27-305 PARAGRAPH (C)] 

Assembly, Neighborhood  SE  SE  SE R R  R R   

Cemetery       R   R R   

Government Facility  SE SE SE SE SE SE R  R R   

158



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 62 of 192 

 

R = Permitted by Right 
SE = Permitted by Special 

Exception 
Blank Cell = Use Not Permitted 

in Specified District(s) 

MAPPED ZONING DISTRICTS 

R
-1

 

R
-1

A
 

R
-2

 

N
C

-1
 

N
C

-2
 

N
C

-3
 

C
-1

 

O
T
 

R
 

C
I 

IN
S
 

H
C

 

IN
D

 

Hospital            R  

Library/Museum    R R R R R R  R   

Places of Worship   R R R R R R   R   

Police/Fire/EMS R R R R R R R R R R R R R 

School, Public or Private            R   

Stadium/Arena           R   

FORESTRY AND OPEN SPACE USES [§ 27-305 PARAGRAPH (D)] 

Forestry R R R R R R R R R R R R R 

Recreation Facility, Commercial 
or Private 

          R  R 

Recreation Facility, Public   R       R R   

Shooting Range, Indoor       R      R 

COMMERCIAL USES [§ 27-305 PARAGRAPH (E)] 

Adult Day Care Center            R  

Adult Establishments       SE      SE 

Assisted Living Facility      SE SE     R  

Automobile / Truck Repair 
Garage 

      R      R 

Automobile Car Wash       R      R 

Automobile Fueling Service       R      R 

Betting Use, Large             SE 

Betting Use, Small    SE  SE SE SE SE     

Brew Pub    SE R R R R      

Child Care Center    R  R R R      

Commercial Equipment and 
Supply 

      R      R 

Community Service    R R R R R R     

Convenience Store      R R R R     

Drinking Place    SE R  R R R     

Eating Place w/Drive-Thru       R SE      

Eating Place w/o Drive-Thru    SE R SE R R R     

159



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 63 of 192 

 

R = Permitted by Right 
SE = Permitted by Special 

Exception 
Blank Cell = Use Not Permitted 

in Specified District(s) 

MAPPED ZONING DISTRICTS 

R
-1

 

R
-1

A
 

R
-2

 

N
C

-1
 

N
C

-2
 

N
C

-3
 

C
-1

 

O
T
 

R
 

C
I 

IN
S
 

H
C

 

IN
D

 

Electronic Cigarette / Vaporizer 
Store / Smoking Places 

   R   R R      

Event Venue  SE   R R R R R  R  R 

Extended Height Building (only 
applicable to any R zoned parcel 
located east of Carlisle St.) 

        R     

Farmers Market        R R R    

Family Child Care Home      R R SE      

Funeral Home     R  R R R      

General Commercial Service 
Uses 

   SE R R R R R     

Grocery Store      R R R R     

Group Child Care Home    SE   SE SE      

Kennel             R 

Long-Term Care Facility        R R   R  

Massage Establishment    R R R R R      

Medical Clinic    R  R      R  

Medical Marijuana Dispensary       R SE      

Methadone / Suboxone 
Treatment Facility 

   SE  SE SE       

Microbrewery / Microdistillery / 
Microwinery 

   SE R R R R     R 

Neighborhood Retail      R R R      

Neighborhood Service    R R R R R      

Office Uses   SE R R R R R R  R R  

Outdoor Sales       R      R 

Pawn Shop/Check Cashing 
Establishment 

   SE R SE R R      

Private Club    R R R R R      

Public Market       R R R     

Self-Storage Facility         SE    R 

Tattoo/Piercing Parlor    SE R R R R R     

Tour Operator     SE  SE    SE   

 

160



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 64 of 192 

 

R = Permitted by Right 
SE = Permitted by Special 

Exception 
Blank Cell = Use Not Permitted 

in Specified District(s) 

MAPPED ZONING DISTRICTS 

R
-1

 

R
-1

A
 

R
-2

 

N
C

-1
 

N
C

-2
 

N
C

-3
 

C
-1

 

O
T
 

R
 

C
I 

IN
S
 

H
C

 

IN
D

 

INFRASTRUCTURE USES [§ 27-305 PARAGRAPH (F)] 

Parking Structure       SE SE SE  SE SE SE 

Principal Solar Energy Systems 
(PSES) 

            R 

Transportation and Essential 
Services 

   R R R R R R R R R R 

Wireless Communications 
Facilities, Small Wireless 
Communications Inside the Public 
Rights-of-Way 

R R R R R R R R R R R R R 

Wireless Communications 
Facilities, Small Wireless 
Communications Outside the 
Public Rights-of-Way 

         SE R R R 

Wireless Communications 
Facilities, Tower-Based  

            SE 

INDUSTRIAL USES [§ 27-305 PARAGRAPH (G)] 

Automotive Dismantler and 
Recycler 

            SE 

Brewery, Distillery, Winery             R 

Craftsman Industrial       R      R 

Junkyards             SE 

Manufacturing             R 

Medical Marijuana Grower / 
Processor Facility 

            R 

Outdoor Storage Yard             R 

Truck Terminal              SE 

Truck Trailer Parking             SE 

Warehouse/Distribution             R 

Yard Waste Composting Facility             R 

ACCESSORY USES [§ 27-306) 

Accessory Dwelling Unit R R R R R R  R      

Child Care Center (as an 
Accessory Use to a Residential 
Use) 

R R R R R R        

Heliport/Vertiport             SE 

Helistop          SE  SE SE 

161



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 65 of 192 

 

R = Permitted by Right 
SE = Permitted by Special 

Exception 
Blank Cell = Use Not Permitted 

in Specified District(s) 

MAPPED ZONING DISTRICTS 

R
-1

 

R
-1

A
 

R
-2

 

N
C

-1
 

N
C

-2
 

N
C

-3
 

C
-1

 

O
T
 

R
 

C
I 

IN
S
 

H
C

 

IN
D

 

Home Occupation SE SE SE SE SE SE  SE SE     

Keeping of Chickens  R R            

Keeping of Honeybees R R R        R   

No-Impact Home-Based Business SE SE SE SE SE SE  SE SE     

Parking, Commercial Use Only    R R R R R R R R R R 

TEMPORARY USES (§ 27-307) 

Temporary Outdoor Event SE SE SE R R R R R R R R R R 

 
§ 27-305 Principal Uses 

 
(A) Residential Uses.  A category of Uses for residential accommodations. 
 

1. Community Residence, Group Home. A residential facility, also sometimes referred to as a 
“community living arrangement,” licensed by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, that 
provides a home for not more than ten (10) persons with a disability, as defined by the 
Fair Housing Amendments Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 3601 et seq., or elderly individuals, excluding 
staff who do not reside on the property, who live and cook together as a single 
housekeeping unit. This definition shall not include a facility housing persons released from 
or under the jurisdiction of a government bureau of corrections or similar institution. This 
definition does not include persons occupying a hotel, dormitory, lodge, halfway house, 
sober living facility/community residence, boarding house or institution. A Group Home 
shall be a stable living environment which anticipates, contemplates, expects, and projects 
that occupants thereof shall reside in the group home for a term of not less than one (1) 
year in duration. The following supplemental Use regulations shall apply:  
 
a. In a narrative form, a statement of the proposed use, including its location, number 

of residents, name, telephone number, and contact person of the sponsoring 
agency. 

 
b. A statement that all required approvals, permits, and licenses have been granted 

from the Federal, State, and County governments or other public agencies. 
 
c. Accommodations in a Group Home shall be provided for no more than the 

maximum number of occupants or residents as permitted by the applicable 
Building code, fire code, and any other similar code that sets forth a maximum 
occupancy limit for a dwelling or Building. Applications for a group home shall 
specify the maximum number of residents or occupants to be housed or cared for 
at the facility. 

 
d. The Group Home shall comply with all zoning regulations in the district in which the 

Group Home is located.  If the Group Home is within a residential district, the 
building shall be maintained and/or constructed to ensure that it is closely similar 
in appearance, condition and character to the other residential structures in the 

162



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 66 of 192 

 

area. No exterior signs or other features visible from the exterior shall identify the 
type of use. 

 
e. The Group Home shall maintain a similar appearance, condition, and character to 

the existing dwellings in the immediate vicinity of the Group Home. 
 
f. Occupants of the Group Home facilities shall live as a single housekeeping unit. 
 
g. Group Home facilities shall have twenty-four (24) hour-per-day on-site supervision 

by qualified staff. 
 
h. Off-Street parking areas of more than four (4) spaces shall be buffered from 

adjacent existing single-family dwellings by a planting screen suitably planted 
with trees and shrubs and maintained at all times. 

 
i. Under no circumstances shall any uses qualifying for or falling under the definition 

of halfway house or Sober Living Facility/Recovery House/recovery house be 
considered a Group Home. 

 
2. Community Residence, Sober Living Facility/Recovery House.  A residential facility used by 

four (4) or more individuals residing together voluntarily or by court requirement to recover 
from drug, alcohol, and/or substance abuse and that does not include the current illegal 
use of or addition to a controlled substance as defined in 21 U.S. Code §802. Such facilities 
must also serve as a transitional environment between rehabilitation facilities and 
reintegration into their future lives. This definition shall include sober houses, recovery 
houses, or sober living environments, but are not required to be licensed by Pennsylvania 
Department of Drug and Alcohol Programs. This term specifically excludes individuals and 
groups occupying: a boarding or rooming house, a lodging house; a club; a group home; 
a fraternity; a hotel; or a similar living environment. The following supplemental Use 
regulations shall apply.  

 
a. Registration with the Commonwealth and compliance with all regulations for 

licensure or certification as promulgated by the Department of Drug and Alcohol 
Programs in accordance with 71 P.S. § 613.13, as amended, or such other 
commonwealth agency or department as authorized by law. In the event that the 
Sober Living Facility/Recovery House is not registered and is not required to be 
licensed or certified by the Commonwealth, then the Sober Living Facility/Recovery 
House shall provide either: 
 
(1) Documentation that it would comply if subject to licensure and certification; 

or 
 
(2) Documentation that the Sober Living Facility/Recovery House is a member 

in good standing and in compliance with all rules and/or regulations of a 
recognized countywide, statewide, or nationwide Association of Recovery 
Homes or equivalent professional accrediting organization.  

 
b. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy by the Building Code Official, 

proof of licensure must be provided to the Zoning Officer. Additionally, and 
annually on January 31st of each year thereafter each operator must provide 
similar proof of Commonwealth registration and compliance or continued status as 
a member in good standing and in compliance with all the rules and/or regulations 
of a recognized county, state, or national professional association.  

 

163



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 67 of 192 

 

c. Residents of a Sober Living Facility/Recovery House shall maintain a single 
housekeeping unit with shared use of living areas, eating areas, bathrooms, food 
preparation, and serving areas and shall share mealtimes and housekeeping 
responsibilities. 

 
d. A Sober Living Facility/Recovery House shall be directly affiliated with a parent 

institution or organization who shall provide full-time supervision and 
administration to the residents of the house. 

 
e. Property shall be served by public water and public sewer. 
 
f. Accommodations in a Sober Living Facility/Recovery House shall be provided for 

no more than the maximum number of occupants or residents as permitted by the 
applicable Building code, fire code, and any other similar code that sets forth a 
maximum occupancy limit for a dwelling or Building. Applications for a Sober 
Living Facility/Recovery House shall specify the maximum number of residents or 
occupants to be housed or cared for at the facility. 

 
g. Off-Street parking must be adequate to accommodate the needs of the residents 

and staff of the Sober Living Facility/Recovery House. Parking shall be provided 
in accordance with the § 27-412 of this Chapter. 

 
h. A Sober Living Facility/Recovery House shall not alter the essential character of 

the neighborhood or district in which it is located. 
 
i. A minimum of four hundred (400) square feet of outdoor Open Space shall be 

provided per each resident. 
 
j. In addition to the Special Exception review requirements specified under § 27-118 

of this Chapter, each Special Exception application shall be accompanied with a 
statement describing the following:  
 
(1) The nature and character of the Sober Living Facility/Recovery House; 
 
(2) The policies and the goals of the Sober Living Facility/Recovery House;  
 
(3) The management and administration structure; 
 
(4) The history of the parent institution and the characteristics of the residents, 

along with the number of residents to be served; and 
 
(5) All other facts relevant to the operation of the Sober Living 

Facility/Recovery House. 
 

3. Dwelling Unit. One (1) or more rooms, with separate cooking and bath facilities, used or 
designed for use by one (1) or more persons maintaining a common household, with access 
directly from outdoors or through a common entrance.  The following are permitted Dwelling 
Unit types: 
 
a. Multi-Family Dwelling, Apartment. A Building used by three (3) or more families 

living independently of each other, with their own cooking and bath facilities, 
including apartment houses and Condominiums. The following supplemental Use 
regulations apply: 
 

164



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 68 of 192 

 

(1) Property shall be served by public water and public sewer. 
 
(2) A landscaping plan for the entire parcel shall be required. A landscape 

architect licensed by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania shall be retained 
to complete such a plan to ensure the proper species, use, and 
arrangement of plant materials. All areas of the development not covered 
by impervious surfaces shall be landscaped and maintained with suitable 
ground cover and plants. Existing vegetation is encouraged to be 
preserved for landscaping purposes. 

 
(3) The minimum separation between multi-family buildings shall be twenty 

(20) feet. 
 
(4) All multifamily buildings shall be designed to provide complex massing 

configurations with a variety of different wall planes and roof planes. 
Plain, monolithic structures with long, monotonous, unbroken wall and roof 
surfaces of fifty (50) feet or more are prohibited. At least every fifty (50) 
linear feet, wall and roof planes shall contain offsets or setbacks with a 
differential in horizontal plane of at least four (4) feet. 

 
(5) Multi-family Dwelling Accessory Buildings. 
 

(a) Detached garages and other accessory Structures, including, but 
not limited to, grouped mailboxes, storage and maintenance 
facilities, recreational facilities, picnic shelters, and gazebos, shall 
incorporate compatible materials and scale as the primary 
multifamily buildings, except that flat and shed roofs are 
prohibited. 

 
(b) Rear walls of detached garages and other accessory Structures 

as specified above that back onto the Street shall be articulated 
through the use of windows, trellises, or a variety of roof planes. 

 
(6) Adaptive Reuse.  The following requirements shall also apply for reusing a 

Building initially constructed and occupied for a nonresidential use: 
 
(a) The Building must be located within a Zoning District that permits 

residential housing. 
 
(b) The foregoing standards for multiple-family dwellings in this 

section shall apply, except that the number of dwelling units per 
Building shall be permitted not to exceed the maximum permitted 
density set forth in controlling zoning district(s). 

 
(c) A swimming pool, fitness center, or other indoor or outdoor areas 

of active or passive recreation shall be provided on the property. 
 
b. Multi-Family Conversion. An existing Single-Family Detached Dwelling that has 

been converted or shall be converted to individual dwellings for two (2) or more 
families without substantially altering the exterior of the Building.  The following 
supplemental Use regulations shall apply: 

 
(1) Minimum apartment size shall conform to the following scale: 
 

165



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 69 of 192 

 

(a) Number of Bedrooms | Usable Living Area 
1  500 Square Feet 
2  650 Square Feet 
3  850 Square Feet 

 
(2) Only existing, single-family detached dwellings may be converted for 

conversion apartment Use. 
 
(3) A maximum of four (4) units may be created by the conversion of a single-

family detached Structure. 
 

c. Single-Family Detached Dwelling. A Building used by one (1) Family, having only 
(1) Dwelling Unit and surrounded by Open Space or yards and which is not 
attached to any other Building by any means. Only one (1) Single-Family Detached 
Dwelling shall be permitted for each legally subdivided Building parcel. 

 
d. Single-Family Semi-Detached, Duplex.  One of two (2) Buildings arranged or 

designed as a Dwelling, located on abutting Lots and separated from each other 
by a solid partition—without openings—extending from the Basement floor to the 
highest point of the Roof along the dividing parcel line and separated from any 
other Building or Structures by space on all sides. 

 
e. Single-Family Semi-Attached, Townhouse.  A Single-Family Attached Dwelling unit 

in a row of at least three (3) such units in which each unit has its own front and rear 
access to the outside, no unit is located over another unit, and each is separated 
from any other unit by one (1) or more vertical common fire-resistant walls.  The 
following supplemental Use regulations shall apply: 
 
(1) Maximum number of continuous attached dwelling units: Seven (7). 
 
(2) Variety in Design. Developments of more than forty (40) dwelling units 

should include a variety of complimentary designs and colors between 
buildings or clusters of buildings to avoid extreme repetition. Extreme 
design and color variations on different parts of the same building are 
discouraged. Variation in rooflines of structures is strongly encouraged. 

 
(3) Changes in Facade. For every attached grouping of four (4) or more 

townhouses, a minimum of two changes in the front wall plane shall be 
provided. Such a change shall involve a minimum variation or offset of 
four (4) feet. This requirement may be met by differing setbacks between 
an attached garage and a dwelling, or differing setbacks among 
different dwellings, or differing setbacks along the front of a dwelling. 

 
(4) Buffer Yard. A ten (10) foot-wide buffer yard with screening shall be 

provided by the developer of the townhouses or low-rise apartments 
between any townhouse or low-rise apartment principal buildings and any 
of the following features that are at least partially within one hundred 
(100) feet of such buildings: 
 
(a) Any abutting existing Single-family Detached Dwelling; 
 
(b) The Right-of-Way of an expressway; or 
 

166



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 70 of 192 

 

(c) The Right-of-Way of an Arterial Street that abuts the rear of 
townhouse units. 

 
(5) To avoid incompatible structures in a higher-density environment, 

townhouse developers are strongly encouraged to establish deed 
restrictions or Homeowners' Association regulations controlling the general 
types and materials of attached decks, fences and accessory structures 
that may be added or constructed in the future. 

 
(6) Minimum Width of Townhouses. Each townhouse dwelling unit shall have a 

minimum width of eighteen (18) feet, except that the minimum width shall 
be twenty-four (24) feet for any townhouse that: 

 
(a) Has two (2) or more off-street parking spaces located within 

twenty (20) feet of the front of the townhouse. 
 
(b) Has garage door(s) for two (2) or more motor vehicles facing onto 

a Street. 
 
(7) Minimum Private Area. 
 

(a) For each townhouse, there shall be a yard, balcony, patio or other 
outdoor area other than a driveway immediately adjacent to the 
front, back or side of each dwelling of not less than two hundred 
(200) square feet for the exclusive use of the occupants of that 
dwelling.  If townhouses are subdivided into individual lots, the 
minimum lot area shall be the building footprint plus these two 
hundred (200) square feet. 

 
(b) Design measures shall be used to seek an appropriate level of 

privacy in any rear yards. Such measures might include landscape 
screening, compatible fencing or earthen berming. The intent is to 
avoid the placement of incompatible fencing by individual lot 
owners in the future. 

 
(c) Storage. If the maintenance of grass yards in front of or behind a 

townhouse were the responsibility of an individual homeowner, a 
small storage area suitable for storing lawn maintenance 
equipment shall be provided with appropriate outside access. 

 
(8) Architectural Renderings. Preliminary architectural renderings, models or 

photos are required for any garden apartment or townhouse development 
of more than fifteen (15) units. Such information shall be provided to the 
Planning Commission for an advisory review but shall not be the basis for 
any approval or denial by the Borough. 

 
(9) Paved Area Setback. All off-street parking spaces, except spaces on 

driveways immediately in front of a carport or garage entrance, of 
principal buildings approved after the adoption of this chapter shall be 
set back a minimum of eight feet from any dwelling. 

 
(10) Garages. It is strongly recommended that all townhouses be designed so 

that garages and/or carports are not an overly prominent part of the 
view from public streets. For this reason, parking courts, common garage 

167



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 71 of 192 

 

or carport structures or garages at the rear of dwellings are encouraged 
instead of individual garages opening onto the front of the building, 
especially for narrow townhouse units. 

 
(11) Mailboxes. Any mailboxes provided within the future Street Right-of-Way 

should be clustered together in an orderly and attractive arrangement or 
structure. Individual freestanding mailboxes of non-coordinated types at 
the curbside are discouraged. 

 
(12) Access. Vehicular access points onto all Arterial and Collector Streets shall 

be minimized to the lowest reasonable number. No townhouse dwelling 
within a tract of five or more dwelling units shall have its own driveway 
entering onto an arterial street. 

 
(13) Utilities. Both public sewage and public water service shall be provided to 

each dwelling unit. All utilities within the development, including cable 
television, shall be placed underground. 

 
f. Staff Housing.  Housing for bona-fide full-time employees of a college, university, 

seminary, or health-care facility. 
 
g. Student Housing.  A multifamily Dwelling with rooms for rental to students. The 

owner, or person responsible, 21 years of age or over, shall live on the premises.   
 

(1) Fraternity.  A form of student housing in which a group of male students, 
formally organized under a charter from a national or local Greek 
organization, holds regular meetings and has formal membership 
requirements. This form of student housing contains sleeping rooms, 
bathrooms, common rooms, and a central kitchen and dining room 
maintained exclusively for fraternity members and their guests and is 
affiliated with a college or like-type institution of higher learning. 

 
(2) Sorority.  A form of student housing in which a group of female students, 

formally organized under a charter from a national or local Greek 
organization, holds regular meetings and has formal membership 
requirements. This form of student housing contains sleeping rooms, 
bathrooms, common rooms, and a central kitchen and dining room 
maintained exclusively for sorority members and their guests and is 
affiliated with a college or like-type institution of higher learning. 

 
h. Student Housing, Institutional.  A Dwelling in accordance with § 27-1524: 

Additional Requirements for Certain Specific Principal Uses , § 27-1524(2)(II)(1), 
that is owned or managed by a public or private educational institution or school 
for academic instruction, with rooms for use by students, such as a dormitory, 
sorority or fraternity, whether located on-campus or off-campus. 

 
4. Manufactured Home. Any structure intended for or capable of permanent human habitation, 

with or without wheels, and capable of being transported or towed from one place to the 
next, in one or more pieces, by whatsoever name or title it is colloquially or commercially 
known but excluding transport trucks or vans equipped with sleeping space for a driver or 
drivers, and travel trailers.  Manufactured homes placed on fee-simple Lots shall be 
considered Single Family Detached Dwellings and be bound by the requirements there-
imposed.  The following supplemental Use regulations shall apply to a Manufactured Home 
placed on a single fee-simple lot or as part of a Manufactured Home Community. 

168



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 72 of 192 

 

 
a. Shall be constructed in accordance with Manufactured Home Safety and 

Construction Standards of the United States Department of Housing and Urban 
Development. 

 
b. Shall have a site graded to provide a level, stable and well-drained area. 
 
c. Shall have wheels, axles and hitch mechanisms removed. 
 
d. Foundation. The Manufactured Home shall be securely attached to the ground in 

such a way as to prevent overturning, shifting or uneven settling of the home. This 
shall involve the following method, unless the applicant proves to the satisfaction 
of the Zoning Officer that another method will be used that is recommended by 
the manufacturer of the home or by the manufactured housing industry or is 
specified by the Pennsylvania Uniform Construction Code: 

 
e. The foundation system shall consist of ten-inch diameter concrete piers, concrete 

footing perpendicular to the main longitudinal frame, or equivalent and shall be 
installed from ground level to below the frost line (36 inches minimum). This 
foundation system shall be placed on eight-foot centers (unless another length is 
specified by the manufacturer) along each of the two main longitudinal frames for 
each section of the home, with no more than three (3) feet of overhang at each 
end of the section. The Borough Building Inspector may approve other appropriate 
equivalent foundation methods, such as concrete trench piers placed perpendicular 
to the main longitudinal frame or concrete slabs under the entire home footprint. 

 
f. One-half-inch (1/2) diameter by twelve (12) inches long eyebolts, u-shaped bars 

or equivalent metal bars shall be cast in place at each corner and at two midpoints 
in the concrete piers, concrete footing, slab or equivalent. Concrete blocks shall be 
used to support the home on the foundation system, and wood shims may be used 
for final leveling. The concrete support blocks shall not be wider than the support 
foundation. 

 
g. Shall be securely anchored or tied down with cable and turn buckles or equivalent 

connecting the frame to the cast-in-place eyebolts on at least four (4) corners and 
two (2) midpoints. The tie-down shall also be in accordance with the manufacturer's 
recommendations furnished with each home. 

 
h. Shall not be placed more than four (4) feet above the supporting ground area. 
 
i. Shall be enclosed from the bottom of the home to the ground or stand using either: 

(1) Industry-approved skirting material compatible with the home; or 
 
(2) If a slab foundation is used, masonry walls underneath the home with soil 

backfill to result in the surrounding ground level to be flush or one normal 
step in height below the first-floor elevation. If this alternative is used, a 
service access area through the masonry wall shall be installed. 

 
j. Shall have a pitched instead of a flat roof. 
 
k. Shall be located with the longest side facing the public Street. 

 
5. Manufactured Home Community. A parcel of land under single ownership which has 

been planned and improved for the placement of two (2) or more manufactured 

169



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 73 of 192 

 

homes for non-transient residential use. The individual manufactured homes may 
be individually owned. A development of manufactured homes that is subdivided 
into individual Lots shall be regulated in the same manner as a subdivision of site-
built homes and shall not be considered to be a "Manufactured Home Community."  
The following supplemental Use regulations apply: 
 
a. A Manufactured Home Community shall comply with all of the provisions 

of the Code of Ordinances, Borough of Gettysburg, Chapter 22 
Subdivision and Land Development, including the submission, approval 
and improvements provisions, and other provisions. 

 
b. The placement of each manufactured home unit shall require a Building 

permit. 
 

(B) Lodging Uses.  A category of Uses for overnight accommodations. 
 

1. Bed and Breakfast. The use of a Single-family Detached Dwelling and/or accessory 
Structure which includes the rental of transient lodging accommodations and bathroom 
access, with a maximum of ten (10) rooms, which does not provide any cooking facilities or 
the provision of meals for guests other than breakfast, and which use is operated by a 
person or persons who maintain a permanent residency on or at the property, parcel or 
Lot where the use is conducted. The following supplemental Use regulations apply: 
 
a. The use shall have a residential appearance and character and shall not alter the 

residential nature of the neighborhood and/or the residential character of district.  
 
b. Kitchen facilities shall comply with 7 PA Code Ordinance 46, Pennsylvania Food 

Code, as administered by the Pennsylvania Department of Agriculture or its 
successor agency.  

 
c. Access to guestrooms shall be via a main entrance, lobby, or foyer within the 

Building. No guestroom shall have separate exterior access, except as may be 
required by applicable fire or Building codes.  

 
d. No employees who are not otherwise eligible to be a member of the same 

household with the Owner of the Bed and Breakfast may live on-site.  
 
e. The off-street parking spaces for the Bed and Breakfast shall be located: 

 
(1) To the rear of the principal building; 
 
(2) Screened from the Street and abutting dwellings by evergreen screening; 

or 
 
(3) On another Lot within the requirements of § 27-412, Parking, Loading, 

and Unloading Standards. 
 

f. At least one (1) full bathroom shall be provided for every four (4) sleeping rooms. 
 
g. The use shall be operated by permanent residents of the subject property. 
 
h. There shall not be separate cooking facilities in any guest room. Food shall only 

be served to guests who are staying overnight, unless a restaurant is also permitted 
by the district regulations. 

170



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 74 of 192 

 

 
i. The use of any amenities provided by the bed-and-breakfast, such as a swimming 

pool or tennis court, shall be restricted in use to the clientele and permanent 
residents of the establishment and their occasional invited guests, unless commercial 
recreation is also permitted by the district regulations. 

 
j. Any required exterior improvements to the building, such as those required to meet 

applicable fire safety requirements, shall be located to the rear of the building 
and shall not detract from the residential character of the building. 

 
k. The operator of a bed-and-breakfast use must demonstrate registration with the 

Adams County Treasurer's Office in compliance with County Ordinance No. 2 of 
2018, as amended, for the payment of hotel room rental tax. 

 
2. Community Residence, Halfway House. A dwelling occupied by not more than eight (8) 

transitionally institutionalized individuals that are inmates in prerelease status or inmates 
granted parole by the Pennsylvania Board of Probation and Parole who need specialized 
housing, treatment and/or counseling that provides supervised housing as an alternative to 
imprisonment, including but not limited to pre-release, work-release, probationary 
programs, or active criminal rehabilitation for the supervision of who have violated the law 
and who are sent to a halfway house upon release from, or in lieu of being sent to, a penal 
institution or juvenile detention center. The following supplemental Use regulations shall 
apply.    
 
a. A halfway house must be licensed where required by an appropriate government 

agency (agencies) and shall comply with all applicable rules and regulations of 
the licensing body (bodies). A copy of any required license must be delivered to 
the Borough before beginning the use. 

 
b. A halfway house shall be directly affiliated with a parent institution or 

organization that shall provide full-time supervision and administration to the 
residents of the house. 

 
c. A common cooking and eating area must be provided; no cooking or dining 

facilities shall be provided in individual rooms or suites. 
 
d. The residents of the halfway house shall reside on-premises to benefit from the 

services provided. 
 
e. Property shall be served by public water and public sewer. 
 
f. The halfway house shall not be located within 1,000 feet of any religious structure, 

public recreation facility, school facility, daycare center, or public library. 
 
g. The halfway house shall not be located with 1,000 feet from another halfway 

house. 
 
h. A minimum of four hundred (400) square feet of outdoor Open Space shall be 

provided per each resident. 
 
i. In addition to the Special Exception review requirements specified under § 27-118 

of this Chapter, each application shall be accompanied by a statement describing 
the following: 

 

171



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 75 of 192 

 

(1) The character of the halfway house; 
 
(2) The policies and goals of the halfway house and the means proposed to 

accomplish those goals; 
 
(3) The characteristics of the residents and the number of residents to be 

served; 
 
(4) The operating methods and procedures to be used; and 
 
(5) Any other facts relevant to the proposed operation of the halfway house. 
 

j. Any Special Exception granted for the halfway house shall be bound to the type 
and number of offenders listed on the application. Any change in the type or 
number of offenders being housed shall require a new Special Exception. 

 
3. Hotel. A Building consisting of individual rooms designed and used primarily for transient 

lodging, where such lodging is provided for compensation (with or without meals), in which 
provisions for cooking are generally not made in individual rooms or suites, and where 
individual rooms or suites are accessed from hallways internal to the building. Any such use 
that customarily involves the housing of persons for periods of time longer than thirty (30) 
days shall be considered a "Boarding House" and shall meet the requirements of that use 
as set forth herein.  See also a Bed and Breakfast use as defined herein. A Hotel may 
include a restaurant, convention center/meeting rooms, nightclub, newsstand or tavern, 
provided that such uses are clearly accessory to the principal use of overnight 
accommodations. The following supplemental Use regulations apply: 
 
a. Minimum Lot Size.  10,000 square feet.   
 
b. Recreational facilities limited to guests of the use. 
 
c. A private lobby shall be included. 
 
d. Rooms shall be accessed from the interior of the Building, including from interior 

courtyards, lobbies, or halls. 
 
e. The operator of a Motel must demonstrate registration with the Adams County 

Treasurer's Office in compliance with County Ordinance No. 2 of 2018, as may 
be amended, for the payment of hotel room rental tax. 

 
4. Inn.  A public accommodation that may or may not consist of a private dwelling, which 

contains twenty (20) or fewer bedrooms, used for providing transient lodging 
accommodations and which does not provide any cooking facilities for guests. A public 
accommodation that may or may not consist of a private dwelling, which contains twenty 
(20) or fewer bedrooms, used for providing transient lodging accommodations and which 
does not provide any cooking facilities for guests. The following supplemental Use 
regulations shall apply: 
 
a. The off-street parking spaces for an Inn use shall be: 
 

(1) Located to the rear of the principal Building; 
 
(2) Screened from the Street and abutting dwellings by evergreen screening; 

or 

172



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 76 of 192 

 

 
(3) On another Parcel consistent with the requirements of § 27-412, Parking, 

Loading, and Unloading. 
  
b. At least one (1) full bathroom shall be provided for every four (4) sleeping rooms. 
 
c. The Use shall have a residential appearance and character. 
 
d. The Use shall be operated by a person or persons who maintain a permanent 

residency on or at the property, parcel or Parcel where the use is conducted or 
who reside within a ten (10) mile radius of the facility, or alternatively, the Inn shall 
provide on-site staff and employee presence at all times when guests are present 
at the facility. 

 
e. There shall not be separate cooking facilities in any guest room. Food shall only 

be served to guests who are staying overnight, unless a restaurant is also permitted 
by the district regulations. 

 
f. The use of any amenities provided by the Inn, such as food service or meeting 

rooms, may be provided to the public if those or similar commercial uses, as 
determined by the Zoning Officer, are also permitted in the underlying zoning 
district. 

 
g. Any required exterior improvements to the building, such as those required to meet 

applicable fire safety requirements, shall be located to the rear of the building 
and shall not detract from the residential character of the building. 

 
h. The operator of an Inn must demonstrate registration with the Adams County 

Treasurer's Office in compliance with County Ordinance No. 2 of 2018, as may 
be amended, for the payment of hotel room rental tax. 

 
5. Motel.  A Building or group of Buildings, whether detached or in connected units, containing 

individual rooms designed and used primarily for transient lodging, together with 
accessory off-Street parking facilities, and where such individual rooms are accessed from 
the sidewalks or walkways on the exterior of the building. Any such use that customarily 
involves the housing of persons for periods of time longer than thirty (30) days shall be 
considered a "Boarding House" and shall meet the requirements of that use as set forth 
herein. See also Bed and Breakfast use as defined herein. A Motel may include a 
restaurant, nightclub, newsstand or tavern, provided that such uses are clearly accessory 
to the principal use of overnight accommodations. The following supplemental Use 
regulations shall apply: 
 
a. Minimum Lot Size.  10,000 square feet.   
 
b. Recreational facilities limited to guests of the use. 
 
c. A private lobby shall be included. 
 
d. Individual rooms shall be accessed from the sidewalks or walkways on the exterior 

of the Building. 
 
e. The operator of a Motel must demonstrate registration with the Adams County 

Treasurer's Office in compliance with County Ordinance No. 2 of 2018, as may 
be amended, for the payment of hotel room rental tax. 

173



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 77 of 192 

 

 
6. Rooming House (or) Boardinghouse. A residential use in which: 

 
a. Individual rooms that do not meet the definition herein of a dwelling unit are rented 

for habitation by a total of two (2) or more persons. 
 
b. A Dwelling unit that includes more than the permitted maximum number of 

unrelated persons. A boardinghouse shall not include a use that meets the definition 
of an Adult Day Care Center, Bed and Breakfast, Hotel, Assisted Living Facility, 
Group Home, Hotel, Motel, and Student Housing as defined herein. A Rooming 
House/Boardinghouse may either involve or not involve the providing of meals to 
residents. This use shall only involve renting living accommodations for minimum 
periods of thirty (30) consecutive days. The following supplemental Use regulations 
shall apply.  
 
(1) Minimum Lot Size. 20,000 square feet. 
 
(2) Minimum Front Yard Setback. 25 feet. Minimum setback from all other Lot 

lines shall be forty (40) feet. 
 
(3) Minimum Parcel Width. 125 feet. 
 
(4) Density.  A minimum of 2,000 square feet of Lot area per sleeping room 

or rental unit, whichever is more restrictive. 
 
(5) Each sleeping room shall be limited to two (2) persons each. A minimum of 

one (1) full bathroom shall be provided for every four (4) sleeping rooms. 
 
(6) A fifteen (15) foot wide buffer yard with screening meeting § 27-416, 

Screens and Buffers shall be provided between any Rooming 
House/Boardinghouse building and any abutting single-family detached 
dwelling that is within one hundred (100) feet of the proposed Rooming 
House/Boardinghouse Building. 

 
(7) Interior space: a minimum of two hundred fifty (250) square feet of interior 

floor area per resident. 
 
(8) Maximum Number of Residents. Twenty (20). 
 
(9) See also standards for personal care homes, which are a separate use. 
 
(10) Signs shall be limited to one (1) wall sign with a maximum of two (2) square 

feet per side. 
 
(11) Rooms shall be rented for a minimum period of thirty (30) consecutive 

days. 
 

7. Vacation Rental. The principal Use of a Building where, for compensation and where the 
Dwelling Unit is not concurrently occupied by the operator of the use Short Term Lodging 
is provided for transient guests and meals are not provided. The following Use regulations 
shall apply: 
 
a. The operator of a vacation rental use shall, at all times while the property is being 

used as a Vacation Rental, maintain a contact person/entity on record with the 

174



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 78 of 192 

 

Borough within a fifteen (15) minute drive of the property. The contact person or 
entity must be available via telephone twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) 
days per week, to respond to complaints regarding vacation rental use. 

 
b. A written notice shall be conspicuously posted inside each vacation rental unit 

setting forth the name, address and telephone number of the contact person 
required herein. The notice shall also set forth the address of the vacation rental 
use, the maximum number of vehicles permitted to park on-site, and the day(s) 
established for garbage collection. 

 
c. Only one (1) rental booking shall occur per dwelling unit per night. Multiple 

separate overnight accommodations in a single dwelling shall be prohibited. 
 
d. Food, drink, or meals shall not be provided for compensation. 
 
e. On-site advertising of a vacation rental use shall be limited to one sign with a 

maximum size of four (4) square feet. 
 
f. Any required exterior improvements to the building, such as those required to meet 

applicable fire safety requirements, shall be located to the rear of the building 
and shall not detract from the residential character of the building. 

 
g. The operator of a vacation rental use must demonstrate registration with the 

Adams County Treasurer’s Office in compliance with County Ordinance No. 2 of 
2018, as may be amended, for the payment of Hotel Room Rental Tax. 

 
8. Temporary Shelter Facility. A facility providing temporary, emergency housing, and social, 

health, and related services for families and/or individuals eighteen (18) years of age or 
older, who are without resources and access to shelter.  The following supplement Use 
regulations shall apply:  
 
a. The maximum number of residents of the lodging shall be based upon a ratio of 

one (1) person for every fifty (50) square feet of interior space devoted to 
sleeping area, not to exceed one hundred (100) residents total. 

 
b. The facility shall have staffing on-site during all hours of operation. 
 
c. At least one toilet and shower shall be provided for every fifteen (15) shelter 

beds. 
 
d. New Temporary Shelter facilities shall not be located within two thousand (2,000) 

feet of another Temporary Shelter, Group Home, Residential Board and Care 
Home, Rooming House/Boarding House, Medical Clinic, Hospital, School, or Park. 

 
e. The Temporary Shelter facility shall be open to the individuals it serves for twenty-

four (24) hours per day, including the provision of an indoor waiting area for Use 
by individuals when a portion of the facility is not open for operation. Lodging 
shall be provided on a reservation or referral basis so that clients shall not be 
required or allowed to queue for services outdoors. 

 
f. All functions associated with the Temporary Shelter facility, except for children’s 

play areas, outdoor recreation areas, and parking shall take place within the 
Building housing the shelter. 
 

175



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 79 of 192 

 

(C) Civic and Institutional Uses. A category of Uses related to fulfilling the needs of day-to-day 
community life including assembly, public services, educational facilities, and Hospitals.  
 
1. Assembly, Neighborhood. facility that has organized meetings, or programs to benefit, 

educate, or promote discourse amongst the residents of the community in a public or private 
setting. Includes such uses as community centers, auditoriums, civic centers, convention 
centers, performing arts facilities, and recreation centers.  This use shall not include and, by 
this definition specifically excludes Event Venues.  The following supplemental Use 
regulations apply: 
 
a. The use shall occupy a Building with ten thousand (10,000) square feet or less GFA.   

 
b. A forty (40) foot buffer yard shall completely separate the structure and all off-

Street parking areas from any Lot line of any residential use or undeveloped 
residentially zoned Lot. 

 
c. The Use shall have a minimum Lot size of one (1) acre for each one hundred and 

fifty (150) persons of capacity. 
 
d. Any such use that allows the consumption of alcohol and that has a capacity of two 

hundred fifty (250) or more persons shall be set back a minimum of three hundred 
(300) feet from any residential Lot line. 

 
2. Cemetery.  Land used or intended to be used for the burial or resting place of the deceased.  

The following Use regulations shall apply: 
 
a. All burial plots or structures shall be located at least twenty (20) feet from any 

property line or Street line. 
 
b. Documentation shall be provided that water supplies of surrounding properties 

shall not be contaminated by burial activity within the proposed cemetery. 
 
c. No burial plots or facilities are permitted in the 100-year flood zone. 
 

3. Government Facility. A single-purpose public facility used for civic functions, which includes 
a place for public assembly in a portion of the facility, for the executive, legislative, or 
judicial branches of the State or a political subdivision thereof. Includes Borough Hall, 
Board of Supervisors chambers, and courts. Does not include office Buildings occupied by 
a government entity that are also utilized by private or non-governmental occupants. 

 
4. Hospital. A Pennsylvania Department of Health-licensed institution providing medical care 

and health services to the community, primarily ill or injured patients. These services may 
be located in one Building or clustered in several Buildings, one of which shall provide 
emergency services, and may include additional hospital-affiliated Accessory Uses such as 
laboratories, in- and out-patient facilities, training facilities, medical offices, staff sleeping 
quarters (but not full-time residences), food service, heliports, pharmacies, laundry facilities, 
florists, vendors of medical equipment, opticians, and gift shops.  The following 
performance standards shall apply: 
 
a. The property shall front on an Arterial or Collector Street and shall be served by 

at least two (2) accessways or driveways with a minimum width of twenty (20) 
feet. One (1) of these accesses shall be from an arterial or collector Street. The 
second access may be limited to emergency vehicles. 

 

176



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 80 of 192 

 

b. Reasonable consideration shall be given to design methods that may be able to 
minimize serious noise conflicts from emergency sirens in the vicinity of a residential 
district. 

 
c. Where more than one Building occupies a parcel, the interior Yard requirements 

specified under § 27-424 of this Chapter shall apply. 
 
d. Emergency entrances shall be located on a Building wall which faces away from 

adjoining residences or residential zones or is set back a minimum of five hundred 
(500) feet from the residences or residential zones. 
 

e. The institution shall submit a copy of its emergency operations plan (EOP) to the 
Borough Emergency Management Agency or Coordinator. The EOP shall include 
detailed information regarding solid, medical and hazardous materials and waste 
handling including a listing of all medical and hazardous materials and wastes 
used and generated on site and evidence indicating the disposal of all materials 
and wastes shall be accomplished in a manner that compiles with State and 
Federal regulations. 
 

f. Screening shall be provided in accordance with the standards specified in § 27-
416 of this Chapter. 

 
5. Library/Museum. A use open to the general public that houses educational, cultural, artistic, 

or Historic information, resources, and exhibits. Includes such uses as libraries, museums, 
aquariums, planetariums, and exhibitions. May also include such accessory uses including, 
but not limited to, theater space, food service, gift shop, and meeting rooms. 

 
6. Places of Worship.  Any Building used for the purposes by an established religious 

organization where such Building is primarily intended to be used as a place of worship. 
The term includes, but is not necessarily limited to church, temple, synagogue, and mosque.    
The following supplemental Use regulations shall apply: 
 
a. Minimum Lot Size.  30,000 square feet. 
 
b. Weekly religious education rooms and meeting rooms are permitted accessory 

uses, provided that such uses are of such a character and intensity that they would 
be clearly customary and incidental to the place of worship. A primary or 
secondary school and/or a child or adult day-care center are permitted on the 
same Lot as a place of worship as long as requirements for such uses are also met. 
Noncommercial buses used primarily to transport persons to and from religious 
services or a permitted school on the parcel may be parked on the parcel, 
provided that the minimum number of required parking spaces are not impacted. 

 
c. One (1) dwelling unit may be accessory to a place of worship on the same parcel. 
 
d. All Places of Worship shall have vehicular access to an Arterial or Collector Street. 
 
e. All off-Street parking areas shall be in the rear yard, set back at least ten (10) 

feet from the closest property line and screened from adjoining properties. 
 
f. The Use of any Building for religious worship is not regulated under this Chapter 

and is permitted by right in all districts. 
 

177



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 81 of 192 

 

g. Places of Worship may be used as temporary shelters for the indoor, overnight 
housing of people that are homeless.  In no instance shall the grounds of a Place 
of Worship be used to establish temporary overnight housing in tents or other 
similar camping-style accommodations.  

 
h. Places of Worship-Related Residences (Rectories and Convents). 
 

(1) All residential uses shall be accessory and located upon the same parcel 
or directly adjacent to a parcel containing a house of worship. 

 
(2) All residential uses shall be governed by the location, Height and bulk 

standards imposed upon other residences within the underlying zoning 
district, except that any number of persons of a convent and/or seminary 
may share group quarters. 

 
i. Places of Worship-Related Cemeteries.  

 
(1) All burial plots or structures shall be located at least twenty (20) feet from 

any property line or Street line. 
 
(2) No burial plots or facilities are permitted in the 100-year flood zone. 

 
7. Police/Fire/EMS. A use from which public safety, and emergency operations and training 

services are delivered and may include storage space for emergency service vehicles.  
Training rooms, locker rooms, kitchens, and limited overnight accommodation may also be 
included within the facility.   

 
8. School, Public or Private. Buildings, including grounds, where there are training facilities for 

the teaching of students or offering instruction in a classroom or organized basis for any 
branch of knowledge, including public, private, parochial, eleemosynary, vocational or any 
institution intended, that offers teaching instruction for pre-school, kindergarten through 
12th grade, vocational educational training, and post-secondary education that grants 
associates, bachelors, masters, and/or doctoral degrees.  The following supplemental Use 
regulations shall apply: 

 
a. For public schools, the Applicant shall meet all requirements of the Commonwealth 

of Pennsylvania Code, Title 25, Ordinance 171, Schools and State and Federal 
requirements for the construction, remodeling or alteration, or conversion of an 
existing property to an educational facility. 

 
b. Minimum Lot Area.  30,000 square feet, unless a larger acreage is required by 

another section of this Chapter. 
 
c. No children's play equipment, basketball courts or illuminated recreation facilities 

shall be within twenty-five (25) feet of a residential Lot line or residential district. 
 

9. Stadium/Arena. A Building or Structure seating more than one thousand (1,000) spectators 
in tiered seating at sporting events, concerts, meetings, and gatherings of large groups. A 
stadium/arena may be in the open air or covered by either a fixed or retractable Roof.  
The following supplemental Use regulations apply: 

 
a. Major Entrances. A stadium/arena shall have multiple public entrances, including 

one major entrance on the Facade designated by the property Owner as the front 
setback. Such entrances shall be well-marked to cue access and Use through means 

178



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 82 of 192 

 

of enhancement that may include but are not limited to architectural, landscape, 
or graphic treatments. Where possible, major entrances shall take advantage of 
prominent intersection locations. 
 

d. School Stadium. A Stadium/Arena is a permitted Accessory Use to a School. 
 

(D) Forestry and Open Space Uses.  A category of Uses generally applicable to the use of the land and 
may not require Buildings or other facilities uses for forestry, and/or active or passive, public, or 
private, outdoor recreation, education, or entertainment. 

 
1. Forestry.  The management of forests and timberlands when practiced in accordance with 

accepted silvicultural principles, through developing, cultivating, harvesting, transporting, 
and selling trees for commercial purposes, which does not involve any land development.  
The following Use regulation shall apply: 

 
a. To encourage maintenance and management of forested or wooded Open Space 

and promote the conduct of forestry as a sound and economically viable use of 
forested land and forestry activities, including, but not limited to timber harvesting, 
and to be in compliance with the MPC, as amended, Forestry shall be a permitted 
Use by right in all zoning districts as stipulated in Table 3.01, Table of Uses.  

 
2. Recreation Facility, Commercial or Private. A privately-owned and operated indoor and/or 

outdoor facility used for arcade games, swimming, bowling, tennis club, rink, track, Alley, 
cage, course, field throwing, or other similar types of uses in which the patrons pay a fee 
and/or are members to participate in or view a recreational or entertainment physical 
activity, including activities which include motorized vehicles and the like. 

 
3. Recreation Facility, Public. A facility owned by the Borough, or a public or quasi-public body 

designed for the preservation of historic or scenic property or recreational use by the 
general public. Public recreation facilities include Open Space and parks for public access, 
public parks, public gathering spaces, and Borough-owned recreation areas and 
playgrounds.  

 
4. Shooting Range, Indoor. A commercial business where for a fee firearms and other 

projectile-type weapons (e.g., guns, rifles, shotguns, pistols, air guns, archery crossbows, 
etc.) can be shot indoors for recreation, competition, skill development, training, or any 
combination thereof.  May include Retail Sales.  The following Use regulations shall apply: 
 
a. The facility shall not be located within one hundred (100) feet of any residentially 

zoned property. 
 
b. The facility shall have frontage and access to an Arterial or Collector Street.   
 
c. The facility shall be designed according to the indoor range design criteria 

specified in the U.S. Department of Energy Office of Health, Safety and Security’s 
“Range Design Criteria” publication dated 6/4/2012.  These design criteria shall 
be the minimum criteria used to design a commercially owned and operated indoor 
shooting range. 

 

(E) Commercial Uses.  A category of Uses involving the sale of goods and provision of services to the 

public for personal or household consumption. Visibility and accessibility are important to these uses, 
as most businesses typically rely heavily on walk-in customers and scheduled appointments.   

 

179



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 83 of 192 

 

1. Adult Day Care Center. A Use providing supervised care and assistance primarily to people 
who, because of physical or mental infirmity, cannot themselves meet these needs, but who 
do not require twenty-four (24) hour nursing care. This Use does not include services 
provided for persons whose needs are such that they can only be met in a long-term care 
facility on an inpatient basis receiving professionally supervised nursing care and related 
medical and other health services.  In addition, the Use shall not include persons who need 
oversight because of behavior that is criminal or violent to others. This use may involve 
occasional overnight stays but shall not primarily be a residential use. The use shall involve 
typical stays of less than a total of sixty (60) hours per week per person.  The following 
supplemental Use regulations shall apply: 
 
a. The Use shall be fully licensed and permitted to operate by the Pennsylvania 

Department of Aging and any successor agency of the Commonwealth and a copy 
of such license shall be furnished to the Borough Zoning Officer. 

 
b. The Use shall include constant supervision during all hours of operation. 
 
c. The Use shall not meet the definition of a Group Home, Sober Living 

Facility/Recovery House, or Methadone / Suboxone Treatment Facility. 
 

2. Adult Establishments.  Shall be defined as any of the following: 
 

a. Any commercial establishment, including but not limited to Adult Book Stores, Adult 
Motion Picture Theaters, Adult Mini-Motion Picture Theaters, Adult Entertainment 
Cabaret, or other adult entertainment establishments, in which is offered for sale 
ten (10) percent or more of its stock in trade video cassettes, movies, books, 
magazines, or other periodicals or other media which are distinguished or 
characterized by their emphasis on nudity or sexual conduct or activities which if 
presented in live presentation would constitute adult entertainment. 

 
(1) Adult Bookstore. An establishment having as a substantial or significant 

portion of its stock in trade motion pictures, video recordings, books, 
magazines and other periodicals which are distinguished or characterized 
by their emphasis on matter depicting, describing or relating to Obscene 
activities for observation by patrons thereof or an establishment with a 
segment or section devoted to the sale, rental or display of such material. 
 

(2) Adult Cabaret. A nightclub, bar, Restaurant or similar establishment that 
regularly features live performances that are characterized by the 
exposure of specific anatomical areas or by Specified Sexual Activities, 
or films, motion pictures, video cassettes, slides or other photographic 
reproductions in which a substantial portion of the total presentation time 
is devoted to the showing of material that is characterized by any 
emphasis upon the depiction or description of specified activities or 
anatomical areas. 

 
(3) Adult Mini-Motion-Picture-Theater. An enclosed Building with a capacity 

for less than fifty (50) persons used for presenting material distinguished 
or characterized by an emphasis on matters depicting, describing, or 
relating to Obscene activities for observation by patrons therein. 

 
(4) Adult Motion Picture Theater. An enclosed Building with a capacity of fifty 

(50) or more Persons used for presenting material distinguished or 

180



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 84 of 192 

 

characterized by an emphasis on matters depicting, describing, or relating 
to Obscene activities for observation by patrons therein. 

 
b. Any commercial establishment that offers for a consideration physical contact in 

the form of wrestling or tumbling between Persons of the opposite sex. 
 
c. Any commercial establishment that offers for consideration activities between male 

and female Persons and/or Persons of the same sex when one or more Persons 
are nude or Semi-Nude. 

 
d. Any commercial establishment that offers for a consideration nude human 

modeling. 
 
e. The following supplemental Use regulations shall apply to an Adult Establishment: 
 

(1) Proximity to Certain Uses. No Building or Premises shall be used, and no 
Building shall be erected or altered, which is arranged, intended or 
designed to be used for an Adult Establishment if any part of such Building 
or Premises is situated on any part of a parcel within a five hundred (500) 
foot radius in any direction of any parcel used for, or upon which is located 
any Building used for any Residential Use; Places of Worship, Medical 
Clinic, medical office, Hospital, school, facility attended by Persons under 
the age of eighteen (18) (including but not limited to school programs, 
children’s museums, camps, and athletic leagues), or a public park.  The 
applicant shall provide receipts showing that they have mailed, by 
certified mail, a written notice of the proposed Special Exception hearing 
date to all property owners of record within five hundred (500) feet of 
the subject property at least ten (10) days prior to the hearing date. 

 
 
(2) No such use shall be located within 1,500 linear feet of any other existing 

or approved Adult Establishment. 
 

(3) No more than five (5) percent of the parcel may be covered by Buildings 
or accessory Buildings. 

 
(4) A thirty (30) foot buffer yard shall be provided, regardless of zoning 

district, along the side and rear lot lines in accordance with § 27-416, but 
with plantings of an initial minimum height of six feet. 

 
(5) No pornographic material, displays, or words shall be placed in view of 

persons who are not inside of the establishment. Definite precautions shall 
be made to prohibit minors from entering the premises. 

 
(6) The applicant must prove to the satisfaction of the Zoning Hearing Board 

that such use would not in any way adversely affect the character of the 
surrounding area, including property values. 

 
(7) No such use shall be used for any purpose that violates any federal, state 

or Borough law. Any violation of this zoning requirement involving a serious 
criminal offense that the proprietor has continuing knowledge of and 
allows to occur shall be sufficient reason for the Borough to revoke 
Borough permits. 

 

181



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 85 of 192 

 

(8) No such use shall be allowed in combination with the sale of alcoholic 
beverages. 

 
(9) The use shall not include the sale or display of obscene materials, as 

defined by state law, as may be amended by applicable court decisions. 
 
(10) These uses are specifically prohibited in all districts except where 

specifically permitted. 
 
(11) For public health reasons, private or semiprivate viewing booths of any 

kind are prohibited. This specifically includes but is not limited to booths 
for viewing adult movies or nude dancers. No room of any kind accessible 
to customers shall include less than one hundred fifty (150) square feet, 
other than the required restrooms. 

 
(12) No use may include live actual or simulated sex acts or any sexual contact 

between entertainers or between entertainers and customers. 
 
(13) Only lawful massages, as defined by state court decisions, shall be 

performed in a massage parlor. 
 
(14) All persons within any adult use other than a permitted adult live 

entertainment use shall wear nontransparent garments that cover their 
genitals and the female areola. 

 
(15) Adult Use Owners and Managers. The applicant shall submit a written list 

of all people having an ownership interest of more than one (1) percent 
in the business, including shareholders and partners of any corporation. 
The applicant shall also submit the name of the manager who is 
responsible for ensuring that all Borough and state regulations are 
enforced on a day-to-day basis. Such a manager shall reside within a 
twenty-five (25) mile radius of the use. Such information shall include the 
person's business and home addresses and phone numbers and shall be a 
matter of public record. Such information shall be kept up to date. Failure 
to keep such information up to date shall be a violation of this chapter 
and be reason for the suspension of Borough permits. 

 
3. Assisted Living Facility. A Use in which food, shelter, assisted living services, assistance or 

supervision and supplemental health care services are provided for a period exceeding 
twenty-four (24) hours for four (4) or more adults who are not relatives of the operator, 
who require assistance or supervision in matters such as dressing, bathing, diet, financial 
management, evacuation from the facility in the event of an emergency or medication 
prescribed for self-administration.  The following supplemental Use regulations shall apply: 

 
a. The Use shall be fully licensed and permitted to operate by the Pennsylvania 

Department of Human Services and any successor agency of the Commonwealth 
and a copy of such license shall be furnished to the Borough Zoning Officer. 

 
b. The Use shall include constant supervision during all hours of operation. 
 
c. The Use shall not meet the definition of a Group Home, Sober Living 

Facility/Recovery House, or Methadone Treatment Center. 
 

182



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 86 of 192 

 

4. Automobile / Truck Repair Garage.  A Building and/or land where repairs, improvements 
and installation of parts and accessories for Motor Vehicles and/or boats are conducted 
that involves work that is more intense in character than work permitted under the definition 
of "auto service station." An auto repair garage shall include but not be limited to any use 
that involves any of the following work: major mechanical or body work, straightening of 
body parts, painting, welding or rebuilding of transmissions. Any use permitted as part of 
an auto service station is also permitted as part of an auto repair garage. This use shall 
not include a use meeting the definition of a "Truck Stop."  The following supplemental Use 
regulations shall apply: 

 
a. All major repair, welding and paint work shall be performed within a building, with 

a fume collection and ventilation system that directs fumes away from any adjacent 
dwellings. 

 
b. All reasonable efforts shall be made to prevent or minimize noise, odor, vibration, 

light or electrical interference to adjacent Lots. 
 
c. Outdoor storage of autos and other vehicles shall be suitably screened and 

buffered in accordance with § 27-416.  Screens and Buffers and shall not be closer 
than twenty (20) feet from a Lot line of an existing dwelling. 

 
d. Overnight outdoor storage of junk, other than Nonrepairable Vehicles, shall be 

prohibited within view of a public Street or a dwelling. 
 
e. An individual Nonrepairable Vehicle shall not be stored within view of a public 

Street or a dwelling for a total of more than twenty (20) days. No Nonrepairable 
Vehicles shall be stored within twenty (20) feet of an existing Street right-of-way 
line. A maximum of six (6) Nonrepairable Vehicles may be parked on a Lot outside 
of an enclosed building at any one time. 

 
f. Service bay doors shall not face directly towards an abutting dwelling, not 

including a dwelling separated from the garage by a Street. 
 
g. A use that is primarily intended to serve trucks with three (3) or more axles or 

tractor-trailer trucks shall have a minimum Lot area of one (1) acre; and all areas 
used for repairs, fueling and serving of such vehicles shall be set back a minimum 
of two hundred fifty (250) feet from a residential Lot line. 

 
5. Automobile Car Wash.  A Building or Structure with accompanying open-air stations 

designed and used primarily for the automatic, semiautomatic, or hand washing, drying, 
polishing, and vacuuming of automobiles.  The following supplemental Use regulations shall 
apply: 

 
a. Car washes shall include a water reclamation system for the purpose of recycling 

water. 
 
b. Centralized sewage disposal facilities and centralized water supply facilities shall 

be provided.  Filtration of wastewater shall be conducted before discharge to a 
sanitary sewer system. 

 
c. A National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit from the 

Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection is required to discharge 
wastewater directly into a surface water body or to a storm sewer that discharges 
to a surface water body. 

183



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 87 of 192 

 

 
d. Residual sludge shall be disposed of in accordance with the Pennsylvania 

Department of Environmental Protection requirements and standards. 
 
e. On-site traffic circulation channels and parking areas shall be clearly marked. 
 
f. Adequate provision shall be made for the proper and convenient disposal of 

refuse. 
 
g. Water from the car wash operation shall not flow onto sidewalks or Streets, to 

prevent hazards from ice. 
 
6. Automobile Fueling Service. A Building and/or land where gasoline is sold, and where no 

repairs are conducted, except work that may be conducted that is closely similar in 
character to the following: sale and installation of oil, lubricants, batteries and belts and 
similar accessories and safety and emission inspections. This use may include the sale of 
ready-to-eat food for consumption off the Lot and of common household products as a 
clear accessory use. An accessory use providing only motor fuel to vehicles operated by 
that business shall not be considered to be an auto service station. This use shall not include 
a use meeting the definition of a "Truck Stop."  The following supplemental Use regulations 
shall apply: 
 
a. All repair, lubrication and other facilities, except fuel pumps, shall be completely 

enclosed within a Building. 
 
b. Fuel pumps shall be at least twenty-five (25) feet from the existing Street Right-

of-Way. The minimum Lot width shall be at least one hundred fifty (150) feet. 
 
c. Overnight outdoor storage of junk and Vehicle parts, other than permitted whole 

Nonrepairable Vehicles, shall be prohibited within view of a public Street or 
dwelling. 

 
d. An individual Nonrepairable Vehicle shall not be stored within view of a public 

Street or a dwelling for more than a total of twenty (20) days. No Nonrepairable 
Vehicles shall be stored within twenty (20) feet of an existing Street right-of-way. 
No more than three nonrepairable Vehicles shall be stored on the Lot outside of 
an enclosed building at any point in time. 

 
e. There shall be an ability for a minimum of three (3) vehicles to be serviced at each 

cluster of gasoline pumps, or to be lined up behind cars being serviced, without 
obstruction of access into or out of the driveways from public streets. 

 
f. Environmental Controls for Accessory Automobile Car Wash. 
 

(1) Automobile Car Washes, which shall be accessory to the principal Use, 
shall include a water reclamation system for the purpose of recycling 
water.   

 
(2) Centralized sewage disposal facilities and centralized water supply 

facilities shall be provided.  Filtration of wastewater shall be conducted 
before discharge to a sanitary sewer system. 

 
(3) A National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit from the 

Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection is required to 

184



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 88 of 192 

 

discharge wastewater directly into a surface water body or to a storm 
sewer that discharges to a surface water body. 

 
(4) Residual sludge shall be disposed of in accordance with the Pennsylvania 

Department of Environmental Protection requirements and standards. 
 
8. Betting Use, Large. A place where more than fifty (50) percent of the GFA of the Building is 

used for lawful gambling activities, including but not limited to off-track pari-mutuel betting 
and any use of electronic gambling devices. This term shall regulate state lottery sales or 
establishments having twenty (20) or more lawful games of chance.  The following 
supplemental Use regulations shall apply: 
 
a. Minimum Lot Size. One (1) acre. 
 
b. A Betting Use shall have frontage on either an Arterial or Collector Street. 

 
c. No Betting Use shall be located within five hundred feet (500) of another Betting 

Use.  
 
d. Betting Use shall be located within five hundred (500) feet of any parcel of land 

which contains any one or more of the following specified land uses:  
 
(1) Residential Use or District 
 
(2) Public Park, including Playgrounds 
 
(3) K-12 or Vocational School 
 

e. No more than one (1) Betting Use may be located within one Building or shopping 
center.  

 
f. The applicant must furnish expert evidence that the proposed use will not be 

detrimental to the use of adjoining properties due to hours of operation, light 
and/or litter.  
 

g. The applicant shall furnish expert evidence as to how the use will be controlled to 
not constitute a nuisance due to noise or loitering outside of the building.  
 

h. All Betting Uses shall comply with the Pennsylvania Horse and/or Harness Racing 
Commission’s Rules and Regulations pertaining to operation.  

 
8.  Betting Use, Small. A place where less than fifty (50) percent of the GFA of the Building is 

used for lawful gambling activities, including but not limited to off-track pari-mutuel betting 
and any use of electronic gambling devices. This term shall regulate state lottery sales or 
establishments having less than twenty (20) lawful games of chance.  The supplemental Use 
regulations specified for Betting Use, Large shall apply. 

 
9. Brew Pub. An Eating Place, as defined herein, that includes as an accessory use the on-

premises production of alcoholic beverages—including beer, wine, cider, and distilled 
liquors—and primarily sells its beverages on-site, either for on- or off-premises 
consumption. The area used for brewing, distilling, bottling, and kegging shall not exceed 
thirty (30) percent of the total gross leasable GFA.  The following supplemental Use 
regulations shall apply: 

 

185



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 89 of 192 

 

a. A Brew Pub shall be licensed by the Pennsylvania Liquor Control Board and any 
successor agency of the Commonwealth, and a copy of such license shall be 
furnished to the Borough Zoning Officer. 

 
10. Child Care Center.  A Use involving the supervised care of seven (7) or more children under 

age sixteen (16) at any one time who are not relatives of the primary operator of children 
outside of the children's own home primarily for periods of less than eighteen (18) hours 
during the average day. This use may also include educational programs that are 
supplementary to state-required education, including a nursery school.  The following 
supplemental Use regulations shall apply: 
 
a. A Child Care Center shall be licensed by the Pennsylvania Department of Human 

Services (DHS) and a copy of such license shall be provided to the Zoning Officer. 
 
b. The Use shall not meet the definition of a Family Child Care Home. 
 
c. Outdoor play areas shall not be located in the Front Yard. 
 
d. Outdoor play areas shall be screened from adjoining residentially zoned 

properties pursuant to the screen and buffer requirements specified under § 27-
416 of this Chapter.  

 
e. Any vegetative materials located within the outdoor play areas shall be of a non-

poisonous and non-invasive type. 
 
f. All outdoor play areas shall provide a means of shade, such as shade trees or 

pavilions. 
 

11. Commercial Equipment and Supply. A category of Use involving the large-scale sale of 
goods to residents or businesses within the region. The goods or merchandise sold may be 
of the same type or a variety of types and typically occupy a space greater than ten 
thousand (10,000) square feet GFA. This Use may include bulk sales and typically involves 
frequent commercial vehicle and consumer traffic. This Use is primarily located indoors but 
may also include accessory outdoor storage of goods. This includes such uses as those listed 
in Table 3.02, Typical Commercial Equipment and Supply Uses.   

 
Table 3.02, Typical Commercial Equipment and Supply Uses. 

Bottled Gas (such as propane) Sales and Supply 

Heating & Air Conditioning Supply, Sales and Service 

Building Materials, Hardware, and Lumber Supply Machine Sales and Rental 

Cabinet Supply (display only)  

Electrical Supply  

Plumbing Sales and Service 

Farm Equipment and Supply Wholesale Trade 

 
12. Community Service. A service or activity undertaken to advance the welfare of citizens in 

need that provides food and goods distribution to private citizens.  
 
13. Convenience Store.  Any retail store with a wide mix of goods typically used daily, including 

household goods, prepared and made-to-order foods, personal health items, cosmetics, 
Motor Vehicle products, candy, and tobacco products.  The use may or may not include 
Automobile Fueling Service. 

186



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 90 of 192 

 

 
14. Drinking Place. An established licensed and permitted location under the Pennsylvania 

Liquor Control Board to sell alcoholic beverages, including beer, wine, and liquor for on-
site consumption.  The following supplemental Use regulation shall apply: 

 
a. The Use shall not meet the definition of a Brew Pub or Eating Place. 

 
15. Eating Place with Drive-Thru. A public restaurant whose business features the sale of quickly 

prepared or ready-to-eat foods, primarily for takeout, as opposed to a restaurant that 
prepares food to order primarily for in-house consumption.  The following supplemental 
Use regulation shall apply: 

 
a. The Use shall not meet the definition of a Brew Pub or Drinking Place.  However, 

an Eating Place may sell alcoholic beverages, including beer, wine, and liquor for 
on-site consumption as permitted through the Pennsylvania Liquor Control Board or 
its successor agency. 

 
b. Dumpster and waste containers shall be suitably screened. 
 
c. If a drive-thru is provided, a maximum of two (2) outdoor menu boards are 

permitted, beyond the signs normally permitted, with a maximum sign area of 
forty (40) square feet each, if the words on such signs are not readable from 
beyond the Lot line. 

 
d. Traffic circulation onto, within and off the Lot shall be clearly marked. A drive-thru 

use shall be designed with space for an adequate number of waiting vehicles while 
avoiding conflicts with traffic onto, around and off of the site. 

 
e. The applicant shall provide the following information regarding the restaurant use: 

 
(1) Floor plan, which includes location of tables and seating areas and number 

of seats; 
 
(2) Number of employees; 
 
(3) Proposed delivery hours; and 
 
(4) Proposed hours of operation. 

 
f. The applicant shall provide sidewalks to accommodate pedestrian traffic and 

constructed according to requirements in Chapter 21: Streets and Sidewalks, Part 
2 Sidewalks of the Borough Code of Ordinances. 

 
g. The primary entrance to the restaurant shall be located in a manner that minimizes 

detrimental traffic impacts, both pedestrian and vehicular. 
 
h. The applicant shall meet the parking requirements under § 27-412 for a restaurant 

on the Lot. The applicant may fulfill the parking requirement subject to criteria in 
§ 27-412, Location of Parking.  If the applicant requests a Special Exception to 
meet the parking requirement under § 27-412, Location of Parking, that 
designated parking area or areas shall meet the parking requirement for all 
properties and uses the parking area serves.  

 

187



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 91 of 192 

 

16. Eating Place without Drive-Through. A public restaurant where the principal business is the 
sale of made to order food and beverages primarily for in-house consumption.  The 
following supplemental Use regulations shall apply: 

 
a. See supplemental Use regulations for Eating Place with a Drive-Thru. 

 
17. Electronic Cigarette / Vaporizer Store / Smoking Places.  A business establishment for which 

more than fifty (50) percent of the GFA is dedicated to the storage, mixing, display, on-
site consumption, and/or retail sale of tobacco products and/or electronic cigarette 
devices, nicotine-enriched solutions, and/or liquid products that are manufactured for Use 
with electronic cigarettes.  

 
18. Event Venue.  The commercial use of a Building and related facilities for the purpose of 

leasing the same on a temporary basis for private functions, meetings, cultural or 
celebratory events or gatherings, family events or gatherings, artistic, educational, and 
similar functions. This use shall not include and, by this definition specifically excludes 
functions that are solely outdoor music performances or concerts, and uses that meet the 
definition of General Assembly, Neighborhood Assembly, Private Club, or Places of 
Worship.  The following supplemental Use regulations shall apply: 

 
a. Minimum Parcel Size. All Event Venue uses shall be conducted on real property with 

a minimum parcel size of one half (.5) acres if there are to be any outdoor 
components to the accessory activities associated with the use.  

 
b. It is intended that an event venue use shall be conducted primarily within the 

principal building or buildings comprising the use, and that all outdoor activities 
associated with such use shall occur with less frequency than indoor events.  

 
c. Temporary Accessory Structures. All temporary accessory structures shall be subject 

to the following: ( 
 
(1) Front and Side Setback: Ten (10) feet with screening when adjacent to a 

residential use or district.  
 
(2) All tents, canopies, and similar temporary structures shall be erected no 

more than forty-eight (48) hours before an event and shall be dismantled 
and removed no more than forty-eight (48) hours after an event.  

 
d. Areas used for dumpsters and/or waste containers for the disposal of trash and 

recycling storage and pickup must be screened with a fence of no less than five 
(5) feet in height, or with plant material that will form a dense screen and which 
contains materials reasonably expected to attain a height of five (5) feet within 
three (3) years of planting. 

 
 
 
 
e. Operational Requirements. 
 

(1) There shall be employee presence during all times in which there is client 
or customer presence, during all loading and setup activities, and 
throughout all events.  

 

188



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 92 of 192 

 

(2) Maximum attendance for outdoor events shall be one hundred (100) 
people, including staff.  

 
(3) All outdoor activities associated with an event must cease by 11:00 PM 

prevailing time, including the setup and cleanup activities for the event.  
 
(4) No operating, playing, or permitting the operation or playing of any 

radio or audio equipment (including from a vehicle), sound amplifier, 
television, musical instrument, or similar device which produces, reproduces, 
or amplifies sound outdoors after 9:00 PM prevailing time on Sunday 
through Thursday, and after 10:00 PM prevailing time on Friday and 
Saturday.  

 
f. Standing Vehicles. Any vehicles used to transport or shuttle attendees may only 

make temporary stops on the public right of way for the limited purposes of 
loading and unloading passengers. Parking of transport and shuttle vehicles on the 
alley, Street, or in Street parking spaces dedicated for the Residential Parking 
Program shall be prohibited. 

 
19. Extended Height Building.  A vertically, mixed-use Building having two (2) or more different 

uses that is permitted, by Special Exception approval, to exceed the maximum permitted 
height of forty-eight (48) feet specified in the R District by meeting certain incentive-based 
criteria as set forth in the following supplemental Use regulations: 
 
a. An application for an Extended Height Building Use in the R District shall be made 

to the Zoning Hearing Board by submission to the Zoning Officer. After setting a 
date for the zoning hearing, the Zoning Officer shall concurrently refer the 
application for review to the Gettysburg Borough Council, the Gettysburg Borough 
Planning Commission, and the Gettysburg Historic Architectural Review Board for 
the issuance of a written report with recommendations from each body, if 
applicable. 

 
c. Increased Height Incentive. The maximum Building Height as set forth in the R District 

for an Extended Height Building use may be increased or extended up to a 
maximum of seventy-two (72) feet provided that any one of the site improvements 
specified under paragraphs (1) – (4) below are implemented.  
 
(1) Integrated Parking. To qualify for the increased or extended building 

height incentive, an applicant shall provide twenty-five (25) percent of the 
required parking area, pursuant to pursuant to § 27-412 of this Chapter, 
within a Building housing one (1) or more permitted uses. 

 
(2) If the existing transit center services operation and use is to be relocated, 

in order to qualify for the increased or extended building height incentive 
for this site improvement, an applicant must provide documentation and 
evidence at the Zoning Hearing Board hearing from the owner of the 
transit center services Lot confirming that an acceptable alternative site 
for the use has been ascertained and secured within the Borough on North 
Stratton Street south of Water Street or between Carlisle Street and North 
Stratton Street for the relocation of transit center services operations and 
public restrooms. 

 
(3) Green Area. In order to qualify for the increased or extended building 

height incentive for this site improvement, an applicant shall provide a 

189



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 93 of 192 

 

minimum of twenty-five (25) percent Green Area on the subject Lot for a 
publicly accessible use, such as a market, outdoor restaurant seating, 
public square, or other similar uses excluding parking. This minimum 
twenty-five (25) percent Green Area may consist of the following: 
 
(a) Landscaping; 
 
(b) Lawns; 
 
(c) Gardens; 
 
(d) Active and passive parks;  
 
(d) Vegetated surfaces, including vegetated stormwater 

management facilities; 
 
(e) Green roofs; and 
 
(f) Pervious surfacing or pavers. 

 
(4) Gettysburg Inner Loop. In order to qualify for the increased or extended 

building height incentive for this site improvement, an applicant shall 
construct any segment(s) of the Gettysburg Inner Loop Trail Network that 
is located on the parent parcel of a proposed building site within the NC-
1, NC-2, and NC-3 districts. Once constructed, the segment(s) of the Inner 
Loop Trail Network shall be dedicated to the Borough for public use. 
 

(5) Inclusionary Housing. In order to qualify for the increased or extended 
building height incentive for this site improvement, an applicant shall 
construct a minimum of one (1) affordable rental housing units for every 
ten (10) market rate units produced.  Applicants shall coordinate its 
Inclusionary Housing proposal with the Adams County Housing Authority 
before presenting its proposal to the Borough Zoning Officer.  

 
d. All Extended Height Buildings will be massed to fit harmoniously into its 

surroundings and will respect and improve local character. It will minimize the 
impact on nearby buildings and open space by: 
 
(1) Massing new buildings to frame adjacent streets and open spaces in a 

way that respects the existing and/or planned Street proportions; 
 
(2) Creating a transition in scale to nearby Buildings; 
 
(3) Providing adequate privacy, sunlight, and sky view ensuring adequate 

separation between building walls; and 
 
(4) Minimizing shadows and uncomfortable wind conditions on adjacent or 

nearby Lots and open spaces. 
 
e.  For any Building exceeding forty-eight (48) feet in height above the ground 

surface elevation, the additional Building Height shall be contained within an area 
defined by measuring a forty-five (45) degree angular plane at the forty-eight 
(48) feet height of all building sides. The purpose of this measurement is to mitigate 
the shadowing impacts of the additional building story or stories on neighboring 

190



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 94 of 192 

 

properties. Where this standard conflicts with other building height standards 
within this Chapter, the greater, more restrictive standard shall be applied. 

 
20. Farmers Market.  An indoor or outdoor market for the retail sale of new or used merchandise, 

produce or other farm products, whether operated by a single vendor or composed of stalls, 
stands or spaces rented or otherwise provided to vendors. The term does not include the 
outside display of merchandise as an incidental part of retail activities regularly conducted 
from a permanent Building or other areas immediately adjacent to, and upon the same 
Parcel as, such Building. The term also does not include merchandise sold at festivals or other 
special events, temporary in duration, at which the display and sale of merchandise is 
incidental to the primary cultural, informational, or recreational activities of such festival or 
special event.  The following Use regulations shall apply: 

 
a. A plan depicting the layout of the site, including dimensions, of the sales area, 

accessways, parking areas and location of trash receptacles; 
 
b. Specific days and hours of operation; and 
 
c. The means, such as stalls, tables or other structures, by which merchandise is to be 

displayed. 
 
d. Vehicle parking shall be provided on-site and shall comply with the Parking, 

Loading, and Unloading standards specified § 27-412 of this Chapter. 
 
e. There shall be no less than one (1) trash receptacle per one thousand (1,000) feet 

of sales area, all trash receptacles shall be emptied regularly so as not to overflow, 
and litter and debris shall not be permitted to accumulate. 

 
f. Merchandise, stalls or other materials shall not be stored outdoors when the use is 

not open for business. 
 
g. The operation shall not disturb the tranquility of residential areas or other areas in 

close proximity or otherwise interfere with the reasonable use and enjoyment of 
neighboring property by reason of excessive noise, traffic or overflow parking.  

 
h. A certificate of insurance shall be provided showing: (a) general liability insurance 

for bodily injury and property damage in the minimum amount of $250,000.00 per 
Person and $1,000,000.00 per occurrence to cover any loss that might occur as a 
result of the Permitted use of the local and state rights of way or private property 
that might otherwise arise out of or be connected with the Farmers Market; (b) 
occurrence-based coverage; and (c) the Borough and applicable public and private 
Landowners named as the additional insured. The Applicant warrants the 
information in the insurance certificate is accurate. 

 
j. A minimum Parcel Area of one hundred (100) square feet per stand shall be 

provided. 
 
k. Farmers Market vendors shall obtain a Retail Food License from the Pennsylvania 

Department of Agriculture to operate a food facility at a farmers’ market, whether 
the market is inside or outside. Each individual stand is considered its own retail 
food facility and shall obtain its own license to operate.   

 
21. Family Child Care Home.  A facility that provides services for which the Pennsylvania 

Department of Human Services (DHS) has promulgated licensure or approval regulations.  

191



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 95 of 192 

 

A Family Child Care Home is a facility in which four (4), five (5) or six (6) children unrelated 
to the operator receive childcare services. A family care home shall be located in a 
habitable residential Building that meets Borough Building and fire code regulations.  In 
addition to the requirements specified in DHS licensure or approval regulations.  The 
following Use regulations shall apply: 

 
a. A Family Child Care Home shall be located in a residential home and must have a 

certificate of compliance (license) from DHS in order to operate.  A copy of such 
license shall be provided to the Zoning Officer.  

 
b. The Use shall not meet the definition of a Child Care Center. 
 
c. Outdoor play areas shall not be located in the Front Yard. 
 
d. Outdoor play areas shall be screened from adjoining residentially zoned 

properties pursuant to the screening requirements specified in § 27-416 of this 
Chapter. 

 
e. Any vegetative materials located within the outdoor play areas shall be of a non-

poisonous and non-invasive type. 
 
f. All outdoor play areas shall provide a means of shade, such as shade trees or 

pavilions. 
 
g. Refuse shall be collected on a regular basis by a commercial waste contractor. 
 

22. Funeral Home.  A place or premise approved by the Pennsylvania State Board of Funeral 
Directors wherein a licensed funeral director conducts the professional practice of funeral 
directing including the care and preparation for burial, disposition, or transportation of 
dead human bodies, or any specifically designated location or address where any person 
or persons shall hold forth that he, she, or they are engaged in the licensed practice of 
mortuary science, embalming, cremation services, or funeral directing. A Funeral Home may 
include crematoriums, visitation rooms, and administrative offices. The following 
supplemental Use regulations shall apply: 
  
a. Parcel Size.  The minimum Parcel area shall be 30,000 square feet. 
 
b. Traffic circulation on the parcel shall be designed to provide for the queuing of 

vehicles on the property without obstructing the free flow of traffic on adjoining 
Streets. 

 
23. General Commercial Service Uses. A category of Uses for commercial retail and services for 

patrons’ personal use and consumption. The businesses typically rely on walk-in customers 
to sell and/or provide their respective goods and services. General Commercial Service 
Uses include Uses such as those listed in Table 3.03 Typical Commercial Service Uses.  In 
the event a specific General Commercial Service Use is not identified in Table 3.03, the 
Zoning Officer shall have the authority to review the proposed Use and the Applicant shall 
submit to the Zoning Officer such additional information as the Zoning Officer deems 
necessary to render a Zoning Certification Letter as specified under § 27-113 of this 
Chapter. 

 

Table 3.03, Typical Commercial Service Uses. 

192



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 96 of 192 

 

Antique Shop 

Apparel, Shoes, and/or Accessory Store 

Appliance Sales 

Aquatic Facilities 

Arcades and Billiards  

Art and/or Education Supplies Bakery with no 
distribution 

Art Gallery and Sales 

Automotive Supply (no service) 

Barber Shop, Beauty Salon, and Spas 

Batting Cages 

Beer/Wine/Liquor Sales 

Bicycle and Accessory Sales  

Boarding, Daycare, & Training (interior only)  

Book &/or Video Store 

Bowling Alleys 

Camera and Photo Supply Store 

China and/or Glassware 

Cigar, Cigarettes, Tobacco Shop 

Coffee Shop 

Coin and/or Philatelic Store 

Computer Software Sales and Leasing 

Craft Store 

Department Store 

Discount Variety Store (e.g., dollar stores or 
five and dime stores) 

Drug and/or Cosmetics Store, except Medical 
Marijuana Dispensary  

Dry Cleaning (pick-up/outlet only) 

Electronics Sales 

Fabric and Sewing Supply Store 

Financial Depository Institutions/Banks, chartered 

and excluding Check Cashing Establishments  

Firearms Sales and Service 

Fitness Club, Athletic Club, Dance Studio, Yoga 

Studio and Gym 

Florist 

Framing Shop 

Garden Supply and/or Nursery 

Gift, Novelty and Souvenir Shop 

Hardware Store 

Home Furnishings and Accessories 

Home Furniture and Equipment Repair 

Locksmith 

Luggage and/or Leather Goods  

Magazine and/or Newspaper Store 

Mailing and Delivery Services 

Medical Clinic 

Medical Marijuana Dispensary 

Medical Supply Store  

Miniature Golf Courses 

Motorcycle and Motor Scooter Sales, limited 
outdoor display 

Music and/or Musical Instruments 

Nursery 

Office Machines and Supply 

Optical Goods 

Outdoor Recreation Equipment 

Paint and Wallpaper Store 

Pet and/or Pet Supplies Shop 

Public Market 

Public Market 

Secondhand sales of any item permitted for 
sale new 

Small Appliance Store 

Specialty Food (Candy, Fish, Produce, Prepared 
Foods, etc.)  

Sporting Goods  

Stationery and Paper Store  

Motion Picture Theaters 

Pet Grooming 

Phone Sales and Service 

Photocopying and Printing 

Photography Studio with Supplies 

Post Office, limited distribution 

Recreation, Commercial Indoor 

Rental of any good permitted to be sold in the 

district 

Repair of any good permitted to be sold in the 

district 

Skating Rink 

Tailor or Seamstress 

Tanning Salon 

Therapeutic Massage establishment, licensed 

proprietor 

193



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 97 of 192 

 

Jewelry and/or Gem Store 

Laundromat 

Toy and/or Baby Supplies Travel Agency, 

Ticketing, 

Veterinary Services/Animal Hospital 

 
24. Grocery Store. Any store commonly known as a supermarket, food store, or grocery store, 

with at least sixty (60) percent of gross square footage dedicated to the retail sale of 
fresh and/or frozen meat, seafood, poultry, fruits, and vegetables; and dairy and bakery 
products.  The following supplemental Use regulation shall apply: 

 
a. The Use shall have frontage and access to an Arterial or Collector Street.   

 
25. Group Child Care Home.  A facility that provides services for which the Pennsylvania 

Department of Human Services (DHS) has promulgated licensure or approval regulations.  
A facility in which seven (7) to twelve (12) children unrelated to the operator receive Child 
Care services.  In addition to the requirements specified in DHS licensure or approval 
regulations, the following supplemental Use regulations shall apply: 
 
a. Outdoor play areas shall not be located in the Front Yard. 
 
b. Play areas shall be located and designed so as not to disrupt normal activities of 

adjoining uses permitted within the zoning district(s) identified in Table 2.01. 
 
c. Outdoor play areas shall be screened from adjoining residentially zoned 

properties pursuant to the screening requirements specified in § 27-416.  
 
d. Any vegetative materials located within the outdoor play areas shall be of a non-

poisonous and non-invasive type. 
 
e. All outdoor play areas shall provide a means of shade, such as shade trees or 

pavilions. 
 

26. Kennel.  Any establishment available to the general public where a dog or dogs are housed 
or trained for compensation by the day, week, or a specified or unspecified time. The term 
shall not include a kennel where the practice of veterinary medicine is performed if the 
kennel is covered by the provisions of the act of December 27, 1974 (P.L.995, No.326), 
known as the "Veterinary Medicine Practice Act." The term kennel shall include any 
establishment available to the general public that, for consideration, takes control of a dog 
from the owner for a portion of a day for the purposes of exercise, day care or 
entertainment of the dog. For the purpose of this term, each time a dog enters the kennel 
it shall be counted as one dog. This term does not include an establishment engaged only 
in dog grooming or dog training.  The term shall also include any kennel operated for the 
purpose of breeding, buying and selling or in any way transferring dogs for non-research 
purposes. The following supplemental Use regulations shall apply: 
 
a. All Kennels shall be licensed by the Pennsylvania Department of Agriculture and 

shall be constructed and maintained in accordance with the applicable standards.  
The Applicant shall demonstrate compliance with all State requirements. 

 
b. Minimum Lot Area. Two (2) acres. 
 
c. All buildings in which animals are housed and all runs shall be located at least one 

hundred fifty (150) feet from all residential Lot lines and thirty (30) feet from all 
other Lot lines. 

194



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 98 of 192 

 

 
d. Buildings shall be adequately soundproofed so that sounds generated within the 

buildings cannot routinely be heard within any adjacent dwelling. 
 
e. No animal shall be permitted to use outdoor runs from 8:00 PM to 8:00 AM 

prevailing time that are within three hundred (300) feet of an existing dwelling. 
Runs for dogs shall be separated from each other by visual barriers a minimum of 
four feet in height, to minimize dog barking. 

 
f. An evergreen screen shall be required between any outdoor animal runs and any 

residential Lot line. 
 

27. Long-Term Care Facility. A facility that provides either skilled or intermediate nursing care 
or both levels of care to two (2) or more patients, who are unrelated to the licensee, for a 
period exceeding twenty-four (24) hours. Intermediate care facilities exclusively for the 
mentally retarded, commonly called ICF/MR, shall not be considered Long-Term care 
nursing facilities for the purpose of this act and shall be licensed by the Department of 
Public Welfare.  The following supplemental Use regulations shall apply. 

 
a. The Use shall be fully licensed and permitted to operate by the Pennsylvania 

Department of Health and any successor agency of the Commonwealth and a copy 
of such license shall be furnished to the Borough Zoning Officer. 

 
b. A minimum of ten (10) percent of the Parcel shall be suitable and developed for 

passive recreation. This area shall include outdoor sitting areas and pedestrian 
walks. 

 
c. The maximum density shall not exceed more than one (1) resident or bed per one 

hundred (100) square feet of total Lot area. 
 
d. Principal and accessory Buildings shall be set back a minimum of twenty (20) feet 

from a residential Lot line. 
 
28. Massage Establishment.  Any establishment having a source of income or compensation 

derived from the practice of massage and which has a fixed place of business where a 
person who does not belong to any nationally recognized massage therapy association or 
is not a graduate of any recognized training school in massage therapy engages in or 
carries on the practice of massage. The following supplemental Use regulations shall apply: 
 
a. In no instance shall the operation of a Massage Establishment in which any of the 

following activities are carried on be permitted in any district: 
 

(1) The massage treatment of any person by one or more persons who do not 
belong to any nationally recognized massage therapy association or by 
persons who are not graduates of any recognized training school in 
massage therapy with a minimum of five hundred (500) hours of training, 
evidence of which shall be in the form of a certificate or diploma on 
display on the premises. The requirements of this provision shall not apply 
to treatments given in the residence of a patient, the office of a licensed 
physician, osteopath, or registered physical or massage therapist, or 
chiropractor, or in a regularly established and licensed hospital or 
sanitarium. 

 

195



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 99 of 192 

 

(2) The massage of, or physical contact with, the sexual or genital parts of 
one person by any other person. 

 
(3) The exposure of the sexual or genital parts of the body of any person. 
 

29. Medical Clinic.  A licensed institution providing same-day, walk-in, or urgent medical care 
and health services to the community, primarily ill or injured out-patients, which is not a 
hospital, and which is not a medical office, and which shall not include methadone or drug 
rehabilitation clinics. Provision of an indoor waiting area for use by individuals when a 
portion of the facility is not opened for operation is required, so that clients shall not be 
required or allowed to queue for services outdoors.   

 
30. Medical Marijuana Dispensary. A Person, including a natural Person, corporation, 

partnership, association, trustor other entity, or any combination thereof, which holds a 
permit issued by the Pennsylvania Department of Health to dispense medical marijuana 
pursuant to Pennsylvania’s Medical Marijuana Act, Act of April 17, 2016, P.L. 84, No. 16.  
The following use regulations apply: 

 
a. A Medical Marijuana Dispensary may only dispense medical marijuana in an 

indoor, enclosed, permanent, and secure Building and shall not be located in a 
trailer, cargo container, mobile or modular unit, mobile home, recreational vehicle 
or other Motor Vehicle. 

 
b. A Medical Marijuana Dispensary may not operate on the same site as a facility 

used for growing and processing medical marijuana. 
 
c. A Medical Marijuana Dispensary shall have a single secure public entrance and 

shall implement appropriate security measures to deter and prevent the theft of 
marijuana and unauthorized entrance into areas containing medical marijuana. 

 
d. Permitted hours of operation of a dispensary shall be 8:00 AM to 8:00 PM 

prevailing time (of the same calendar day). 
 
e. A Medical Marijuana Dispensary shall comply with the setback, parking, 

landscaping, coverage, and Building Height requirements of the applicable zoning 
district to determine the Building envelope and maximum allowable GFA. A 
Medical Marijuana Dispensary shall have an interior customer waiting area equal 
to a minimum of twenty-five (25) of the GFA. 

 
f. A Medical Marijuana Dispensary shall: 

 
(1) Not have outdoor seating areas; 
 
(2) Not have outdoor vending machines; 
 
(3) Prohibit the administering of, or the consumption of, medical marijuana on 

the premises; and 
 
(4) Not offer direct or home delivery service. 

 
g. A Medical Marijuana Dispensary may dispense only medical marijuana to certified 

patients and caregivers and shall comply with all lawful, applicable health 
regulations. 

 

196



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 100 of 192 

 

h. A Medical Marijuana Dispensary may not be located within 1,000 feet of the 
property line of a public, private or parochial school or a day-care center. This 
distance shall be measured in a straight line from the closest exterior wall of the 
Building or portion thereof in which the business is conducted or proposed to be 
conducted to the closest property line of the protected use, regardless of the 
municipality in which it is located. 

 
j. Any Medical Marijuana Dispensary lawfully operating shall not be rendered in 

violation of these provisions by the subsequent location of a public, private or 
parochial school or a day-care center. 

 
k. All external lighting serving a Medical Marijuana Dispensary must be shielded in 

such a manner to not allow light to be emitted skyward or onto adjoining 
properties. 

 
l. Parking requirements shall follow the parking schedule found in § 27-412 Parking, 

Loading, and Unloading of this Chapter. 
 
m.  Screening and buffering are required where a Medical Marijuana Dispensary 

adjoins a residential use or district.  The required screening and buffering shall be 
provided in accordance with § 27-416 of this Chapter.  

 
n. Entrances and driveways to a Medical Marijuana Dispensary must be designed to 

accommodate the anticipated vehicles used to service the facility. 
 
(1) All accesses must secure the appropriate highway occupancy permit (state 

or Borough). 
 
(2) The Visual Obstructions requirements specified under § 27-423 of this 

Chapter must be considered and maintained. 
 
(3) Driveways shall be constructed in accordance with the design and 

improvement standards specified under § 22-1012 of Chapter 22, 
Subdivision and Land Development, of the Borough Code of Ordinances. 

 
o. Loading and off-loading areas within the Building are preferred. If an external 

loading dock arrangement is designed, it should be from within a secure 
environment. 

 
31. Methadone / Suboxone Treatment Facility.  A facility licensed by the Department of Health 

to use the drug methadone/ suboxone in the treatment, maintenance, or detoxification of 
persons.  The following supplemental Use regulations shall apply: 
 
a. A Methadone / Suboxone Treatment Facility shall have frontage on and direct 

access to a principal Arterial or Collector Street. 
 
b. For any Building (or portion thereof) which is proposed to contain a Methadone / 

Suboxone Treatment Facility, the parcel upon which such Building (or portion 
thereof) sits shall not be located closer than five hundred (500) feet (or the then 
current Pennsylvania statutory- provided distance, whichever is greater) to a parcel 
utilized for an existing school, public playground, public park, residential housing 
area, residential parcel, single- family dwelling, Child Care facility, church, meeting 
house or other actual place of regularly scheduled religious worship established 
prior to the proposed methadone/ suboxone treatment. 

197



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 101 of 192 

 

 
c. Notwithstanding Subsection b. above, a Methadone / Suboxone Treatment Facility 

may be established and operated closer than five hundred (500) feet (or the then 
current Pennsylvania statutory-provided distance, whichever is greater) to a parcel 
utilized for an existing school, public playground, public park, residential housing 
area, residential parcel, single-family dwelling, Child Care facility, church, meeting 
house or other actual place of regularly scheduled religious worship established 
prior to the proposed methadone treatment, if, by majority vote, the governing 
body approves a use for said facility at such location. At least fourteen (14) days 
prior to any such vote by the governing body, one or more public hearings 
regarding the proposed Methadone / Suboxone Treatment Facility location shall 
be held within the municipality pursuant to public notice. All owners of real property 
located within five hundred (500) feet of the proposed location shall be provided 
written notice of said public hearing(s) at least thirty (30) days prior to said public 
hearing(s) occurring. 

 
d. All Buildings proposed to contain a Methadone / Suboxone Treatment Facility shall 

fully comply with the requirements of the PA Uniform Construction Code. 
 
e. In addition to the otherwise required number of parking spaces specified by § 27-

412 of this Chapter, additional parking shall be required specifically for the 
Methadone / Suboxone Treatment Facility at a rate of one additional parking 
space for each two hundred (200) feet of area devoted to the Methadone / 
Suboxone Treatment Facility. 

 
f. Each Building or portion thereof proposed for use as a Methadone / Suboxone 

Treatment Facility shall have a separate and distinct entrance utilized solely for 
direct entrance into the Methadone / Suboxone Treatment Facility. Access to the 
Methadone / Suboxone Treatment Facility shall not be permitted via a shared 
Building entrance or from a shared interior corridor within the Building in which it is 
located. 

 
32. Microbrewery / Microdistillery / Microwinery.  A facility for the production, packaging and 

sampling of alcoholic beverages—including beer, wine, cider, mead, and distilled 
liquors—for retail or wholesale distribution, for sale or consumption on- or off -premises, 
and which produces less than 100,000 gallons of such beverages per year. It may include 
a restaurant (i.e., Eating Place), tasting room and retail space to sell the product on site. 
“Nanobreweries" shall be included under this definition. The Microbrewery / Microdistillery 
/ Microwinery shall be licensed by the Pennsylvania Liquor Control Board and any 
successor agency of the Commonwealth. 

 
33. Office Uses. A category of Uses for businesses that involve the transaction of affairs and/or 

the training of a profession, service, industry, or government. Patrons of these businesses 
usually have set appointments or meeting times; the businesses do not typically rely on 
walk-in customers. Office Uses include those listed in Table 3.04, Typical Employment Uses 
(Typical Office Uses).  In the event a specific Office Use is not identified in Table 3.04, the 
Zoning Officer shall have the authority to review the proposed Use and the Applicant shall 
submit to the Zoning Officer such additional information as the Zoning Officer deems 
necessary to render a Zoning Certification Letter as specified under § 27-113 of this 
Chapter. 

 

Table 3.04, Typical Office Uses. 

198



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 102 of 192 

 

Architecture/Engineering/Design 

Broadcasting, Recording, and Sound Studio 

Business Consulting 

Construction Trade and Contractor (office only) 

Charitable Institutions 

Computer Programming and Support 

Data Processing  

Detective Services 

Educational Services (tutor and testing) 

Employment Agency 

Financial and Insurance  

Government Offices and Facilities 

Laboratories, Medical, Dental, Optical 

Legal Services 

Management Services 

Medical and Dental Offices (other than in 

hospitals or on a hospital campus, and other 

than clinics) 

News Agency 

Physical Therapy/Physical Rehabilitation 

Public Relations and Advertising 

Property Development 

Real Estate and Apartment Finders 

Research and Development 

Research Agency 

Support Offices for other uses 

Surveying 

Trade Schools 

Training Center 

 
34. Outdoor Sales. A Use involving the sale of goods or merchandise to businesses and/or the 

general public, where the majority of the goods are stored or displayed outdoors. Outdoor 
Sales include such uses as: the sale and rental of automobiles, equipment, trucks, trailers, 
boats, and recreational vehicles; and the outdoor sale of Building materials, landscape 
materials, and garden supplies.  The following supplemental Use regulations apply: 
 
a. All Outdoor Sales Lots shall comply with applicable state laws including 49 Pa. 

Code § 19.19. Standards of Licensure for Retail or Public Auction. 
 
b. Any site used for the sale, parking and/or storage of more than one hundred fifty 

(150) vehicles shall front solely upon an Arterial or Collector Street. 
 
c. Driveways shall be in a safe relationship to sight distance and barriers to vision in 

accordance with the Visual Obstructions requirements specified under § 27-423 of 
this Chapter. 

 
d. Driveways shall be constructed in accordance with the design and improvement 

standards specified under § 22-1012 of Chapter 22, Subdivision and Land 
Development, of the Borough Code of Ordinances. 

 
e. Vehicles shall be parked and/or stored in a horizontally stacked configuration. 
 
f. All lighting shall be designed and constructed so as not to cast glare on adjoining 

Street and/or properties.  
 
g. The sales area shall be considered to be that of the smallest rectangle, or other 

regular geometric shape which encompasses all display areas, stands, booths, 
tables, or stalls, plus any adjoining aisles and/or walkways from which consumers 
can inspect items for sale.  

 
h. The retail sales area shall be set back at least fifty (50) feet from all residential 

199



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 103 of 192 

 

zoning district or residential use. 
 
i. Any exterior lighting and amplified public address system shall be arranged and 

designed to prevent impacts on adjoining properties. The Street Lighting standards 
specified under § 22-1015 of Chapter 22, Subdivision and Land Development, of 
the Borough Code of Ordinances shall apply.  

 
j. The reconditioning, demolition, or junking of vehicles is prohibited. 
 
k. The Applicant shall furnish evidence that the disposal of all materials shall be 

accomplished in a manner that complies with all applicable State and Federal 
regulations. 

 
35. Pawn Shop/Check Cashing Establishment. An establishment primarily engaged in the 

businesses of lending money on the security of pledged goods left in pawn; purchasing 
tangible personal property to be left in pawn on the condition that it may be redeemed 
or repurchased by the seller; or providing cash to patrons for, payroll, personal, and bank 
checks. 
 

36. Private Club. An establishment that operates for the good of the club’s membership for 
legitimate purposes of mutual benefit, entertainment, fellowship, or lawful convenience.  A 
Private Club shall reserve its facilities for members and shall have genuinely exclusive 
membership criteria.  A Private Club shall adhere to its constitution and bylaws, hold 
regular meetings open to its members, conduct its business through officers who are 
regularly elected, admit members by written application, investigation and ballot, charge 
and collect dues from elected members, and maintain records as required by law.  The 
sale of alcohol shall be secondary to the actual reason for the club's existence and be 
licensed by the Pennsylvania Liquor Control Board.  The Borough may conduct routine 
inspections of the Premises to ensure the absence of illegal activity on the Premises, 
adequate maintenance of the interior and exterior of the Premises, the absence of public 
disturbance or Nuisance, and compliance with the zoning and other applicable regulations.  
The following supplemental Use regulations shall apply: 

 
a. All Private Clubs shall front and have access to an Arterial or Collector Street. 
 
b. All off-Street parking shall be provided between the front face of the Building 

and a point twenty-five (25) feet from the Right-of-Way line of adjoining Street.  
Parking Lots shall also be set back a minimum of fifty (50) feet and screened from 
any parcel lines of adjoining residences. 

 
c. All outdoor recreation/activity areas shall be set back at least fifty (50) feet from 

any property line.  
 
d. A forty-foot buffer yard shall completely separate the structure and all off-Street 

parking areas from any Lot line of any residential use or undeveloped residentially 
zoned Lot. 

 
e. Any such use that allows the consumption of alcohol and that has a capacity of two 

hundred fifty (250) or more persons shall be set back a minimum of three hundred 
(300) feet from any residential Lot line. 

 
37. Public Market. An indoor or covered, open-air permanent Building dedicated to the sale of 

local and regional food, flowers, baked goods, and small crafts, excluding secondhand 
goods. 

200



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 104 of 192 

 

 
38. Self-Storage Facility.  Any real property designed and used for the purpose of renting or 

leasing individual storage space to occupants who are to have access to such space for the 
purpose of storing and removing personal property. No occupant shall use a self-service 
storage facility for residential purposes.  The following supplemental Use regulations shall 
apply: 

 
a. Minimum parcel area shall be not less than one (1) acre. 
 
b. At least forty (40) feet of clear, unobstructed driveway depth shall be provided 

from the road to the primary access gate or principal entry point of the facility. 
 
c. Interior drive aisle widths shall not be less than twenty-five (25) feet. 
 
d. Buildings shall be designed and located so that overhead doors and the interior 

driveways within such facilities are not visible from the adjacent public Right-of-
Way. This provision does not apply to overhead doors that are within an enclosed 
self-storage Building and that are visible only through windows of the Building. 

 
e. No door openings for any storage unit shall be visible at ground level from any 

residentially zoned property or residential use. 
 
f. All fences or walls visible from the public Right-of-Way shall be constructed of 

decorative Building materials such as slump stone masonry, concrete block, wrought 
iron, or other similar materials. 

 
g. Boats, campers, recreational vehicles, and travel trailers may be stored outside of 

an enclosed Building, but only in an area designated for such outside storage on 
an approved site plan and not visible from the public Right-of-Way or adjacent 
property when viewed from the ground level. 

 
h. The following uses are prohibited and all Self-Storage Facilities’ rental and/or use 

contracts shall specifically prohibit the same: 
 

(1) Residential use and/or occupancy. 
 
(2) Bulk storage of flammable, combustible, explosive, or hazardous 

materials.  Nothing in this Article is meant to prohibit the storage of Motor 
Vehicles, motor craft, or equipment that contain a normal supply of such 
fuels for their operation. 

 
(3) Repair, construction, reconstruction, or fabrication of any item, including 

but not limited to, any boats, engines, Motor Vehicles, lawn mowers, 
appliances, bicycles, or furniture. 

 
(4) Auctions, except as provided for the in the Self-Service Storage Facilities 

Act (Act of Dec. 20, 1982, P.L. 1404, No. 325), commercial wholesale or 
retail sales not related to the storage activity on the premises or garage 
sales.  Retail sales of supplies associated with the rental of storage units 
and/or rental of vehicles shall be permitted, such as boxes, packing tape, 
locks, and similar items. 

 
(5) The operation of power tools, spray-painting equipment, compressors, 

welding equipment, kilns, or other similar tools or equipment. 

201



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 105 of 192 

 

 
(6) Any business activity within the storage units. 
 

i. On-site management shall be provided for a minimum of twenty (20) hours per 
week, during the hours of 8:00 AM and 7:00 PM prevailing time.  Contact 
information for management during the remaining hours of the day shall be 
prominently posted on the premises. 

 
j. The maximum size for any storage unit shall be twenty (20) feet by forty (40) feet 

for a total maximum of eight hundred (800) square feet. 
 

39. Tattoo/Piercing Parlor. Establishments primarily in the business of applying lettering, art, 
and other images with permanent and semi-permanent inks, paints, pigments, or piercings 
to the body of patrons.  

 
40. Tour Operator.  Any Person, corporation, or other entity engaged in the business of 

providing tours to customers via means of Tour Guide lead or self-guided tours of the 
Borough and nearby attractions by means of walking, biking, Horse Drawn Carriages, 
Pedicabs, and/or Electrical Personal Assistive Mobility Device (EPAMD) to customers.  The 
following supplemental Use regulations shall apply: 

 
1. Minimum Lot Area.  7,000 sq. ft. 
 
2. Stabling of Livestock.  The facility from which the Tour Operator is conducted may 

not be used to stable livestock. 
 
3. Indemnification. A Tour Operator shall hold the Borough, its officers, agents, and 

employees harmless against any and all liability, loss, damages or expense which 
may accrue to the city by reason of negligence, default or misconduct of the 
company in connection with the rights granted to such company hereunder. Nothing 
in this article shall be considered to make the Borough, its officers, agents, servants 
or employees liable for damages because of any negligent act or omission or 
commission by any horse-drawn carriage company, its servants, agents, tour 
guides or other employees, during the operation by the company of a horse drawn 
carriage business or service, either in respect to injury to persons or with respect 
to damage to property which may be sustained.  
 

4. Insurance Required. A Tour Operator shall give and maintain a policy of indemnity 
from an insurance company authorized to do business in the Commonwealth state 
for each tour vehicle and/or apparatus in use. The minimum coverage shall be 
$100,000.00 for bodily injury to any one person, $300,000.00 for injury to more 
than one person which is sustained in the same accident, and $25,000.00 for 
property damage resulting from one accident. The indemnity insurance shall inure 
to the benefit of any person who shall be injured or who shall sustain damage to 
property caused by the negligence of a Tour Operator company, its employees 
or agents. 

 
5. Hours of Operation.  Tour operations shall be limited to the hours of 6 AM to 11 

PM, prevailing time, Sunday – Saturday. 
 
(F) Infrastructure Uses.  A category of Uses for the provision of public and private infrastructure to 

support other uses and/or the conveyance of people, goods, and services. Infrastructure Uses may 
not include a principal Building meeting the Building type requirements. Accessory Structures may 
be included. 

202



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 106 of 192 

 

 
1. Parking Structure. A Structure that is primarily used for the exclusive parking of vehicles, 

but may also integrate other non-parking uses, such as retail, office, and service uses.  The 
following supplemental Use regulations apply: 
 
a. Corner Parcel. A Corner parcel shall not be used solely for parking. 
 
b. Adjacent Parking Facilities. Two (2) principal parking facilities shall not be located 

directly adjacent to one another, except for a new Structured parking facility 
replacing an existing parking Lot. 

 
2. Principal Solar Energy System (PSES).  An area of land or other area used for a solar 

collection system principally used to capture solar energy, convert it to electrical energy 
or thermal power and supply electrical or thermal power primarily for off-site use.  A PSES 
is designed as the primary use on a parcel, wherein the power generated is used primarily 
for off-site consumption.  Principal solar energy systems consist of one (1) or more free-
standing ground, or roof mounted solar collector devices, solar related equipment and 
other accessory structures and Buildings including light reflectors, concentrators, and heat 
exchangers, substations, electrical infrastructure, transmission lines and other appurtenant 
structures.  The following Use regulations shall apply: 
 
a. Regulations Applicable to All Principal Solar Energy Systems.  
 

(1) A noise study shall be performed and included in the application. The noise 
study shall be performed by an independent noise study expert and paid 
for by the Applicant. Noise from a PSES shall not exceed 50 dBA, as 
measured at the property line. 

 
(2) The PSES Owner and/or operator shall maintain a phone number and 

identify a Person responsible for the public to contact with inquiries and 
complaints throughout the life of the project and provide this number and 
name to the Borough. The PSES Owner and/or operator shall make 
reasonable efforts to respond to the public’s inquiries and complaints.  

 
(3) Decommissioning. 
 

(a) The PSES Owner and/or operator is required to notify the 
Borough immediately upon cessation or abandonment of the 
operation. The PSES shall be presumed to be discontinued or 
abandoned if no electricity is generated by such a system for a 
period of twelve (12) continuous months.  

 
(b) The PSES Owner and/or operator shall then have twelve (12) 

months in which to dismantle and remove the PSES including all 
solar related equipment or appurtenances related thereto, 
including but not limited to Buildings, cabling, electrical 
components, roads, foundations and other associated facilities 
from the property. If the Owner fails to dismantle and/or remove 
the PSES within the established timeframes, the municipality shall 
complete the decommissioning at the Owner’s expense with the 
financial security posted.  

 
(c) At the time of issuance of the permit for the construction of the 

PSES, the Owner and/or operator shall provide financial security 

203



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 107 of 192 

 

in the form and amount acceptable to the Borough to secure the 
expense of dismantling and removing said PSES and restoration 
of the land to its original condition, including forestry plantings of 
the same type/variety and density as the original.  The financial 
security amount shall be based on a cost estimate provided by 
the Owner that is reviewed and approved by the Borough 
Engineer. 

 
(6) Land Development Plan.  
 

(a) PSES shall comply with the land development application and 
approval requirements of the Chapter 22, Subdivision and Land 
Development, of the Borough Code of Ordinances.  The 
installation of PSES shall comply with all applicable permit 
requirements, codes, and regulations.  

 
(b) The PSES Owner and/or operator shall repair, maintain, and 

replace the PSES and related solar equipment during the term of 
the permit as needed to keep the PSES in good repair and 
operating condition.  

 
b. Ground Mounted Principal Solar Energy Systems. 
 

(1) Minimum Lot Size. One (1) acre. 
 
(2) Setbacks.   
 

(a) A PSES shall comply with the setbacks of the underlying zoning 
districts for principal structures, except the Setbacks shall be a 
minimum of fifty (50) feet when adjacent to a residential use or 
residential district. 

 
(b) The PSES shall be set back a minimum of twenty-five hundred 

(2,500) feet from a Historic Resource, Historic Structure, or Historic 
Site; and Important Bird Areas as identified by Pennsylvania 
Audubon and at least five hundred (500) feet from identified 
wetlands. 

 
(3) Height.  Ground mounted PSES shall not exceed twenty (20) feet in Height.  
 
(4) Impervious Coverage.  The following components of a PSES shall be 

considered impervious coverage and calculated as part of the impervious 
coverage limitations for the underlying zoning district: 

 
(a) Foundation systems, typically consisting of driven piles or 

monopoles or helical screws with or without small concrete collars. 
 
(b) All mechanical equipment of PSES including any Structure for 

batteries or storage cells.  
 
(c) Gravel or paved access roads servicing the PSES. 
 

(5) Ground mounted PSES shall be screened from adjoining residential uses 
or zones according to the standards found in § 27-416 of this Chapter.  

204



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 108 of 192 

 

 
(6) Security. 
 

(a) All ground mounted PSES shall be completely enclosed by a 
minimum eight (8) foot high fence with a self-locking gate. 

 
(b) A clearly visible warning Sign shall be placed at the base of all 

pad-mounted transformers and substations and on the fence on 
the surrounding the PSES informing individuals of potential 
voltage hazards.  

 
(7) Access.   
 

(a) Vehicle access to the site shall be provided pursuant to Chapter 
22, Subdivision and Land Development, of the Borough Code of 
Ordinances.  The subject site shall have access to an Arterial or 
Collector Street. 

 
(b) A minimum twenty (20) foot wide Cartway shall be provided 

between the solar arrays to allow access for maintenance vehicles 
and emergency management vehicles including fire apparatus 
and emergency vehicles. Cartway width is the distance between 
the bottom edge of a solar panel to the top edge of the solar 
panel directly across from it.  

 
(8) The ground mounted PSES shall not be artificially lit except to the extent 

required for safety or applicable federal, state, or local authority.  
 

c. Roof and Wall Mounted Principal Solar Energy Systems. 
 

(1) For roof and wall mounted systems, the PSES Owner and/or operator shall 
provide evidence that the plans comply with the PA Uniform Construction 
Code and that the roof or wall is capable of holding the load imposed on 
the Structure.  

 
(2) PSES mounted on the roof or wall of any Building shall be subject to the 

maximum Height regulations of the underlying zoning district. 
 

3. Transportation and Essential Services. A Use that is primarily utilized for the public 
infrastructure needs and essential services. Transportation and Essential Services include 
such Uses as Street Rights-of-Way, rail Rights-of-Way, public transportation services, 
electric or gas services, sewage treatment, water treatment and storage, pumping stations, 
transmission and receiving stations, and energy conversion systems, and any equipment or 
facilities as defined under Title 66 Pa. C.S.A. Public Utilities.  Transportation includes the 
following public transportation service uses: 

 
a. Transit Bus Stops.  Uses include both sheltered and non-sheltered infrastructure 

facilities that provide passengers safe access to both fixed-route and demand 
responsive public transportation services.  The following Use regulations shall 
apply: 
 
(1) Bus stop infrastructure, including ADA loading pads, bus passenger 

benches, and bus shelters, as well as bus stop location Signs and bus stop 
passenger information Signs, shall be permitted by right in all zoning 

205



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 109 of 192 

 

districts and shall be considered an Accessory Use/Structure that can stand 
alone without the accompanying Principal Use. 

 
(2) Bus stop infrastructure shall be exempt from minimum parcel size, Open 

Space, yards, and setback requirements of the governing zoning district(s). 
 
(3) The location and design of the bus stop infrastructure shall be reviewed 

and approved by the applicable transit agency and Borough. The transit 
agency shall provide written documentation certifying that a location is an 
existing or potential future bus stop. 

 
(4) Whenever an ADA loading pad, bench for a bus stop, and/or bus shelter 

is provided, the applicable off-Street parking requirements for the 
parcel’s Principal Use may be reduced by one or more vehicular parking 
space(s) for each bus stop location. 

 
(5) Bus stop location Signs and bus stop passenger information Signs installed 

and maintained by the transit agency shall be permitted within the public 
Right-of-Way and on private property and shall be exempt from the sign 
requirements specified under Chapter 19 of the Borough Code of 
Ordinances. 

 
b. Transit Facility.  Any motor bus, rapid transit, or other ground transportation system 

having as its primary purpose the regularly scheduled movement of passengers 
and goods through fixed route, shared ride, non-medical assistance, or medical 
assistance transportation services between locations within the territorial 
boundaries of a regional transit authority, including all Rights-of-Way, rolling 
stock, equipment, machinery, terminals, buildings, administration and maintenance 
and repair facilities, and supporting parking energy facilities, that are reasonably 
necessary for the comfort and accommodation of the users of transit facilities; or 
any combination of the foregoing.   

 
4. Wireless Communications Facilities (WCF). An antenna facility or a wireless support Structure 

that is used for the provision of wireless service, whether such service is provided on a stand-
alone basis or commingled with other wireless communications services.  The following 
supplemental Use regulations shall apply: 
 
a. Purpose. 

 
(1) The purpose of these standards is to govern the use, construction, and 

location of wireless communications facilities in recognition of the nature of 
wireless communications systems and the Federal Telecommunications Act.  
These regulations are intended to: 

 
(a) Accommodate the need for wireless communications facilities to 

ensure the provision for necessary services while preserving the 
character of the Borough; 

 
(b) Minimize the adverse visual effects and the number of such facilities 

through proper design, locating, screening, material, color, and 
finish and by requiring that competing providers of wireless 
communications services collocate their telecommunication and 
wireless communications antennas and related facilities; 

 

206



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 110 of 192 

 

(c) Address new wireless technologies, including, but not limited to, 
distributed antenna systems, data collection units, and other WCFs; 

 
(d) Ensure the structural integrity of wireless communications facilities 

through compliance with applicable industry standards and 
regulations; and 

 
(e) Promote the health, safety, and welfare of the residents and 

property owners within the Borough. 
 

b. Regulations Applicable to All Wireless Communications Facilities. The following 
regulations shall apply to all Wireless Communications Facilities (WCFs).   

 
(1) Wireless communications facilities shall be permitted within the Borough as 

follows: 
 
(a) Tower-Based Wireless Communications Facilities shall be permitted 

as specified in Table 3.01, provided that the proposed Wireless 
Communications Facilities comply with the applicable requirements 
of this Chapter. 

 
(b) Small Wireless Communications Facilities Inside Public Rights-of-

Way shall be permitted as specified in Table 3.01, provided that 
the proposed Wireless Communications Facilities comply with the 
applicable requirements of this Chapter. 

 
(c) Small Wireless Communications Facilities Outside Public Rights-of-

Way shall be permitted as specified in Table 3.01, provided that 
the proposed Wireless Communications Facilities comply with the 
applicable requirements of this Chapter.   

 
(2) Standard of Care. All WCFs shall meet all applicable standards and 

provisions of the FAA, the FCC, and any other agency of the state or 
federal government with the authority to regulate wireless communications 
facilities, the latest National Electrical Safety Code (NESC), American 
National Standards Institute (ANSI) Code, and the structural standards of 
the American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials or 
any other industry standard applicable to the Structure.  In case of conflict, 
the most stringent requirements shall prevail. All necessary certifications 
shall be obtained by the WCF Applicant and provided to the Borough. 

  
(3) Engineer Signature.  All plans and drawings included in an application for 

a WCF shall contain a seal and signature of a Registered Design 
Professional. 

 
(4) Eligible Facilities Requests.   

 
(a) WCF Applicants proposing the Modification or Replacement of an 

existing WCF shall be required only to obtain a zoning permit from 
the Borough Zoning Officer.  In order to be considered for such a 
permit, the WCF Applicant shall submit a permit application to the 
Borough Zoning Officer in accordance with applicable permit 
policies and procedures.  Such permit application shall clearly state 
that the proposed Modification or Replacement constitutes an 

207



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 111 of 192 

 

Eligible Facilities Request pursuant to the requirements of 47 CFR 
§ 1.6100.  The permit application shall clearly detail all 
dimensional changes being made to the WCF and Wireless 
Support Structure and certify that such changes are in compliance 
with the requirements of 47 CFR § 1.6100.   

 
(5) Substantial Change. Any Substantial Change to a WCF shall be treated as 

an application for a new WCF in accordance with this Chapter and 
applicable FCC rules and orders.  Substantial Change shall be defined 
according to Section 6409(a) of the Spectrum Act, aka, Middle Class Tax 
Relief and Job Creation Act of 2012. 

 
(6) Aviation Safety. All WCFs shall comply with all federal and state laws and 

regulations concerning aviation safety.   
 
(7) Public Safety Communications. WCFs shall not interfere with public safety 

communications, or the reception of broadband, television, radio, or other 
communication services enjoyed by occupants of nearby properties.   

 
(8) Radio Frequency Emissions.  A WCF shall not, by itself or in conjunction with 

other WCFs, generate radio frequency emissions in excess of the standards 
and regulations of the FCC, including but not limited to, the FCC Office of 
Engineering Technology Bulletin 65 entitled “Evaluating Compliance with 
FCC Guidelines for Human Exposure to Radio Frequency Electromagnetic 
Fields,” as amended.  The WCF Applicant shall submit proof of compliance 
with all applicable standards relating to radio frequency emissions as part 
of any complete WCF application.   

 
(9) Noise. WCFs shall be operated and maintained so as not to produce noise 

in excess of applicable noise standards under state law and as stipulated 
in Section 4.20 of this Chapter, except in emergency situations requiring 
the use of a backup generator, where such noise standards may be 
exceeded on a temporary basis only as permitted by the Borough.  

 
(10) Non-conforming Wireless Support Structures.  WCFs shall be permitted to 

collocate upon existing non-conforming Wireless Support Structures.  
Collocation of WCFs upon existing Wireless Support Structures is 
encouraged even if the Wireless Support Structure is non-conforming as to 
use within a zoning district.  

 
(11) Permit Fees.  The Borough may assess appropriate and reasonable permit 

fees directly related to the Borough’s actual costs in reviewing and 
processing the application for approval of a WCF, as well as related 
inspection, monitoring, and related costs.  Such permit fees shall be 
established by the Borough fee schedule. 

 
(12) Indemnification.  Each Person that owns or operates a WCF shall, at its sole 

cost and expense, indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Borough, its 
elected and appointed officials, employees, and agents, at all times 
against any and all claims for personal injury, including death, and 
property damage arising in whole or in part from, caused by or connected 
with any act or omission of the Person, its officers, agents, employees or 
contractors arising out of, but not limited to, the construction, installation, 
operation, maintenance or removal of the WCF.  Each Person that owns or 

208



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 112 of 192 

 

operates a WCF shall defend any actions or proceedings against the 
Borough in which it is claimed that personal injury, including death or 
property damage, was caused by the construction, installation, operation, 
maintenance, or removal of a WCF.  The obligation to indemnify, hold 
harmless, and defend shall include, but not be limited to, the obligation to 
pay judgments, injuries, liabilities, damages, reasonable attorneys’ fees, 
reasonable expert fees, court costs, and all other costs of indemnification. 

 
(13) Non-commercial Usage Exemption.  Borough residents utilizing satellite 

dishes, citizen and/or band radios, and Antennas for the purpose of 
maintaining television, phone, and/or internet connections at their 
residences shall be exempt from the regulations enumerated in this Article. 

 
(14) Abandonment. In the event that the use of a WCF is to be discontinued, the 

Owner shall provide written notice to the Borough of its intent to discontinue 
use and the date when the use shall be discontinued.  A WCF not operated 
for a period of six (6) months shall be considered abandoned.  Discontinued 
or abandoned WCFs, or portions of WCFs, shall be removed as follows:   

 
(a) All abandoned or unused WCFs and Accessory Equipment shall be 

removed within ninety (90) days of the cessation of operations at 
the site or receipt of notice that the WCF has been deemed 
abandoned by the Borough unless a time extension is approved 
by the Borough.  

 
(b) If the WCF or Accessory Equipment is not removed within ninety 

(90) days of the cessation of operations at a site or receipt of 
notice that the WCF has been deemed abandoned by the Borough, 
or within any longer period approved by the Borough, the WCF 
and/or associated facilities and equipment may be removed by 
the Borough and the cost of removal assessed against the Owner 
of the WCF.  

 
(15) Maintenance.  The following maintenance requirements shall apply: 

 
(a) Structures and facilities deployed by a wireless provider shall be 

constructed, maintained and located in a manner as to not obstruct, 
endanger or hinder the usual travel or public safety on a Right-of-
Way, damage or interfere with other utility facilities located within 
a Right-of-Way or interfere with the other utility's use of the utility's 
facilities located or to be located within the Right-of-Way. 

 
(b) The construction and maintenance of structures and facilities by the 

wireless provider shall comply with the 2017 National Electrical 
Safety Code and all applicable laws, ordinances and regulations 
for the protection of underground and overhead utility facilities. 

 
(c) An Applicant or the Applicant's affiliate shall ensure that a 

contractor or subcontractor performing construction, reconstruction, 
demolition, repair or maintenance work on a small wireless facility 
deployed meets and attests to all of the following requirements: 

 
i. Maintain all valid licenses, registrations or certificates 

required by the Federal Government, the Commonwealth 

209



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 113 of 192 

 

or a local government entity that is necessary to do 
business or perform applicable work. 

 
ii. Maintain compliance with the Workers' Compensation Act, 

77 P.S. § 1, et seq., the Unemployment Compensation Law, 
43 P.S. § 751, et seq., and bonding and liability insurance 
requirements as specified in the contract for the project. 

 
iii. Has not defaulted on a project, declared bankruptcy, 

been debarred or suspended on a project by the Federal 
Government, the Commonwealth or a local government 
entity within the previous three years. 

 
iv. Has not been convicted of a misdemeanor or felony 

relating to the performance or operation of the business 
of the contractor or subcontractor within the previous 10 
years. 

 
v. Has completed a minimum of the United States 

Occupational Safety and Health Administration's 10-hour 
safety training course or similar training sufficient to 
prepare workers for any hazards that may be 
encountered during their work on the small wireless facility. 

 
(16) Landscaping.  The following landscaping shall be required to screen as much 

of the support structure as possible, the fence surrounding the support 
structure, and any other ground-level features (such as a building), and in 
general soften the appearance of the personal wireless service facility site.  
The Borough Board of Supervisors may permit any combination of existing 
vegetation, topography, walls, decorative fences, or other features instead 
of landscaping if they achieve the same degree of screening as the 
required landscaping.  If the antenna is mounted on an existing structure 
and other equipment is housed inside an existing structure, landscaping 
shall not be required. 
 
(a) An evergreen screen shall be required to surround the site.  The 

screen can be either a hedge (planted three (3) feet on center 
maximum) or a row of evergreen trees (planted ten (10) feet on 
center maximum).  The evergreen screen shall be a minimum height 
of six (6) feet at planting and shall grow to a minimum of fifteen 
(15) feet at maturity. 

 
(b) In addition, existing vegetation on and around the site shall be 

preserved to the greatest extent possible. 
 

c. Small Wireless Communications Facilities. The following regulations shall apply to 
Small Wireless Communications Facilities:    

 
(1) Application Requirements. 

 
(a) Small WCFs located inside public Rights-of-Way are a permitted 

use in all Borough zoning districts as specified under Table 3.01, 
subject to the requirements of this Chapter and generally 

210



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 114 of 192 

 

applicable permitting as required by the Borough.  Applications 
for Small WCFs shall be submitted to the Borough Zoning Officer. 

 
(b) Small WCFs located outside public Rights-of-Way are permitted 

by right in all Borough zoning districts except residential zoning 
districts as specified in Table 3.01, subject to the requirements of 
this Chapter and generally applicable permitting as required by 
the Borough.  Applications for Small WCFs shall be submitted to 
the Borough Zoning Officer. 

 
(c) An application for a Small WCF shall include the following: 

 
i. Documentation that includes construction and engineering 

drawings demonstrating compliance with the requirements 
of this Article; 

 
ii. Self-certification that the filing and approval of the 

application is required by the WCF Applicant to provide 
additional capacity or coverage for wireless services; 

 
iii. Documentation demonstrating compliance with the 

requirements of the Small Wireless Communications Facility 
Design Manual (See Appendix). 

 
iv. If the Small WCF shall require the installation of a new 

Wireless Support Structure, documentation showing that 
the WCF Applicant has made a good faith determination 
that it cannot meet the service reliability and functional 
objectives of the application by Collocating on an existing 
Wireless Support Structure.  Such determination shall be 
based on whether the WCF Applicant can meet the service 
objectives of the application by collocating on an existing 
Wireless Support Structure on which: 

 
[1] The WCF Applicant has the right to Collocation; 

 
[2] The Collocation is Technically Feasible and would 

not impose substantial additional cost; and 
 

[3] The Collocation would not obstruct or hinder travel 
or have a negative impact on public safety. 

 
v. Documentation showing that the Small WCF does not 

materially interfere with the safe operation of traffic 
control equipment, sight lines, or clear zones for 
transportation or pedestrians or compliance with the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (Public Law 101-
336, 104 Stat. 327) or similar Federal or State standards 
regarding pedestrian access or movement; and 

 
vi. A report prepared by a Registered Design Professional, 

which shows that the Small WCF shall comply with all 
applicable FCC regulations, including but not limited to 
those relating to radio frequency emissions.  

211



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 115 of 192 

 

 
(2) Applications Not Required.  The Borough shall not require an application 

for: 
 

(a) Routine maintenance or repair work; 
 

(b) The replacement of Small WCFs with Small WCFs that are 
substantially similar or the same size or smaller and still qualify as 
a Small WCF; or 

 
(c) The installation, placement, maintenance, operation, or 

replacement of Micro Wireless Facilities that are strung on cables 
between existing utility poles by or for a WCF Applicant that is 
authorized to occupy the ROW, in compliance with the National 
Electrical Safety Code. 

 
(3) Location and Development Standards.  

 
(a) All Small WCFs shall comply with the applicable requirements of 

the Americans with Disabilities Act and Borough Code of 
Ordinances. 

 
(b) No Small WCF shall be located on a private parcel in a residential 

district or on any single-family detached residences, single-family 
attached residences, semi-detached residences, duplexes, or any 
other residential Structure. 

 
(c) All Small WCFs shall be installed and maintained so as not to 

obstruct nor hinder travel or public safety within the ROW. 
 

(4) Design Standards.  All Small WCFs in the Borough shall comply with the 
requirements of the Borough Small Wireless Communications Facility Design 
Manual as provided in the appendix to this Chapter.  

 
(5) Time, Place, and Manner. The Borough shall determine the time, place, and 

manner of construction, maintenance, repair, and/or removal of all Small 
WCF in the ROW based on public safety, traffic management, physical 
burden on the ROW, and related considerations.   

 
(6) Private Property.  If a Small WCF is to be located outside of the public 

ROW, or if any part of a Small WCF located in the public ROW shall 
encroach upon private property, the WCF Applicant shall provide the 
Borough Zoning Officer with evidence that the Owner of such private 
property has granted permission for the construction of the Small WCF. 

 
(7) Minimum Setbacks.  The minimum distance between the base of a Small 

WCF, located outside of the public ROW, which requires the installation of 
a new Wireless Support Structure, and any adjoining property line or 
Street ROW line shall be equal to one hundred (100) percent of the Height 
of the Small WCF.  

 
(8) Historic Buildings. No Small WCF may be located within one hundred (100) 

feet of any property, or on a Building or Structure that is listed on either 
the National or Pennsylvania Registers of Historic Places, or eligible to be 

212



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 116 of 192 

 

so listed, located within the Borough of Gettysburg’s Historic District, or is 
included in the official historic structures list maintained by the Borough.  

 
(9) Third-Party Property. Where a Small WCF is proposed for Collocation on 

a Wireless Support Structure, located on private property, or other 
property that is not owned by the WCF Applicant, the WCF Applicant shall 
present evidence to the Zoning Officer that the Owner of the Wireless 
Support Structure has authorized construction of the proposed Small WCF. 

 
(10) Graffiti. Any graffiti on a Small WCF, including the Wireless Support 

Structure and any Accessory Equipment, shall be removed at the sole 
expense of the Owner within thirty (30) days of notification by the Borough.  

 
(11) Timing of Approval.   
 

(a) Within ten (10) calendar days of the date that an application for 
a Small WCF is filed with the Borough Zoning Officer, the Borough 
shall notify the WCF Applicant in writing of any information that 
may be required to complete such an application.   

 
(b) Within sixty (60) days of receipt of an application for Collocation 

of a Small WCF on a pre-existing Wireless Support Structure, and 
subject to applicable tolling procedures as established by federal 
law, the Borough Zoning Officer shall make a final decision on 
whether to approve the application and shall notify the WCF 
Applicant in writing of such decision.   

 
(c) Within ninety (90) days of receipt of an application for a Small 

WCF requiring the installation of a new or replacement Wireless 
Support Structure, and subject to applicable tolling procedures as 
established by federal law, the Borough Zoning Officer shall make 
a final decision on whether to approve the application and shall 
notify the WCF Applicant in writing of such decision. 

 
(d) If the Borough denies an application for a Small WCF, the Borough 

shall provide the WCF Applicant with written documentation of the 
basis for denial within five (5) business days of the denial.  

 
(e) The WCF Applicant may cure the deficiencies identified by the 

Borough and resubmit the application within thirty (30) days of 
receiving the written basis for the denial without being required to 
pay an additional application fee.  The Borough shall approve or 
deny the revised application within thirty (30) days of the 
application being resubmitted for review.   

 
(12) Consolidated Application.   

 
(a) A WCF Applicant may submit a consolidated application for 

Collocation of multiple Small WCFs.  The consolidated application 
shall not exceed twenty (20) Small WCFs.   

 
(b) A WCF Applicant may not submit more than one consolidated 

application in a single thirty (30) day period. 
 

213



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 117 of 192 

 

(c) If a WCF Applicant submits more than one consolidated 
application in a forty-five (45) day period, the applicable 
processing deadline shall be extended fifteen (15) days in 
addition to the processing deadline specified in Subparagraph 
(11) above.   

 
(13) Repair and Restoration.   

 
(a) The WCF Applicant shall repair all damage to the ROW or any 

other land so disturbed, directly caused by the activities of the 
WCF Applicant or the WCF Applicant’s contractors and return the 
ROW to as good of condition as it existed prior to any work being 
done in the ROW by the WCF Applicant or the WCF Applicant’s 
contractors.  

 
(b) If the WCF Applicant fails to make the repairs required by the 

Borough within thirty (30) days after written notice, the Borough 
may perform those repairs and charge the WCF Applicant the 
reasonable, documented cost of the repairs plus a penalty of 
$500.   

 
(c) The Borough may suspend the ability of the WCF Applicant to 

receive new permits until the WCF Applicant has paid the amount 
assessed for the repair costs and the assessed penalty.   

 
(14) Relocation or Removal of Facilities.  

 
(a) Within sixty (60) days of suspension or revocation of a permit due 

to noncompliance with the requirements of the Borough, the WCF 
Applicant shall remove the Small WCF and any Accessory 
Equipment, including the Wireless Support Structure, if the WCF 
Applicant’s WCF(s) are the only facilities on the Wireless Support 
Structure. 

 
(b) Within ninety (90) days of the end of a permit term, the WCF 

Applicant shall remove the Small WCF and any Accessory 
Equipment, including the Wireless Support Structure, if the WCF 
Applicant’s WCF(s) are the only facilities on the Wireless Support 
Structure. 

 
(c) Following written notice from the Borough, or such longer period as 

the Borough determines is reasonably necessary or such shorter 
period in the case of an emergency, the WCF Applicant shall, at 
its own expense, temporarily or permanently remove, relocate, 
change or alter the position of any Small WCF when the Borough, 
consistent with its police powers and applicable Public Utility 
Commission regulations, shall determine that such removal, 
relocation, change, or alteration is reasonably necessary under the 
following circumstances: 

 
i. The construction, repair, maintenance, or installation of any 

Borough or other public improvement in the ROW; 
 

214



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 118 of 192 

 

ii. The operations of the Borough or other governmental 
entity in the ROW; 

 
iii. Vacation of a Street or road or the release of a utility 

easement; or 
 

iv. An emergency as determined by the Borough. 
 

(15) Reimbursement for ROW Use.  In addition to permit fees as described in this 
section, every Small WCF in the ROW is subject to the right to fix annually 
a fair and reasonable fee as stipulated in the Borough’s adopted Fee 
Schedule to be paid for use and occupancy of the ROW.  Such 
compensation for ROW use shall be directly related to the Borough’s actual 
ROW management costs, including, but not limited to, the costs of the 
administration and performance of all reviewing, inspecting, permitting, 
supervising, and other ROW management activities by the Borough.  The 
Owner of each Small WCF shall pay an annual fee to the Borough to 
compensate the Borough for the Borough’s costs incurred in connection with 
the activities described above.   Such fees shall comply with the applicable 
requirements of the Federal Communications Commission. 

 
d. Tower-Based Wireless Communications Facilities.  The following regulations shall 

apply to all Tower-Based Wireless Communications Facilities.   
 

(1) Small WCF Exemption.  Tower-Based WCFs that meet the definition of a 
Small WCF shall be exempt from the requirements of this Section.  Such 
Small WCFs shall be subject only to applicable permitting and the 
requirements of Subparagraphs (H)6.b. and (H)6.e. 

 
(2) Special Exception Required. Tower-Based WCFs are permitted outside the 

public Rights-of-Way as a Special Exception and at a Height necessary to 
satisfy their function in the WCF Applicant's wireless communications system, 
subject to the requirements of this Article.  
 
(a) Upon submission of an application for a Tower-Based WCF and 

the scheduling of the public hearing upon the application, the WCF 
Applicant shall send via First Class Mail notice to all owners of 
every property within five hundred (500) feet of the proposed 
facility, advising of the subject matter and date of such hearing.  
Such notice shall be sent at least ten (10) days in advance of the 
scheduled public hearing.  The WCF Applicant shall provide proof 
of the notification to the Zoning Hearing Board along with the list 
of return receipts received. 

 
(b) The Special Exception application shall include a site plan, drawn 

to scale, showing property boundaries, power location, total 
Height of the Tower-Based WCF, guy wires and anchors, existing 
structures, elevation drawings, typical design of proposed 
structures, parking, fences, landscaping and existing uses on 
adjacent properties. 

 
(c) The Special Exception application shall be accompanied by a 

description of the type and manufacturer of the proposed 
transmission/radio equipment, the frequency range (megahertz 

215



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 119 of 192 

 

band) assigned to the WCF Applicant, the power in watts at which 
the WCF Applicant transmits, and any relevant related tests 
conducted by the WCF Applicant in determining the need for the 
proposed site and installation. 

 
(d) The Special Exception application shall include evidence that a 

significant gap in wireless coverage or capacity exists in the 
applicable area and that the type of WCF being proposed is the 
least intrusive means by which to fill that gap in wireless coverage. 
The existence or nonexistence of a gap in wireless coverage shall 
be a factor in the Zoning Hearing Board’s decision on an 
application for approval of Tower-Based WCF. 

 
(e) Where the Tower-Based WCF is located on a property that is not 

owned by the WCF Applicant, the Special Exception application 
shall include evidence to the Zoning Hearing Board that the Owner 
of the property has granted an easement or other property right, 
if necessary, for the proposed WCF and any vehicular access that 
shall be provided to the facility. 

 
(f) The Special Exception application shall include a written 

certification by a Registered Design Professional of the proposed 
WCF’s ability to meet the structural standards offered by either 
the Electronic Industries Association or the Telecommunication 
Industry Association and certify the proper construction of the 
foundation and the erection of the Structure.   

 
(g) The Special Exception application shall include evidence 

demonstrating that the proposed Tower-Based WCF cannot be 
accommodated on an existing Wireless Support Structure.  The 
Zoning Hearing Board may deny an application to construct a new 
Tower-Based WCF if the WCF Applicant has not made a good 
faith effort to mount the Antenna(s) on an existing Wireless Support 
Structure.  The WCF Applicant shall demonstrate that it contacted 
the owners of all potentially feasible structures, Buildings, and 
towers within a thousand (1,000) foot radius of the site proposed, 
sought permission to install an Antenna on those structures, 
Buildings, and towers, and was denied for one of the following 
reasons: 

 
i. The proposed WCF would exceed the structural capacity 

of the existing Building, Structure, or tower, and its 
reinforcement cannot be accomplished at a reasonable 
cost. 

 
ii. The WCF would cause radio frequency interference with 

other existing equipment for that existing Building, 
Structure, or tower, and the interference cannot be 
prevented at a reasonable cost. 

 
iii. Such existing Buildings, structures, or towers do not have 

adequate location, space, access, or Height to 
accommodate the proposed equipment or to allow it to 
perform its intended function. 

216



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 120 of 192 

 

 
iv. A reasonable agreement could not be reached with the 

Owner of such Building, Structure, or tower. 
 

(h) The Special Exception application shall also be accompanied by 
documentation demonstrating that the proposed Tower-Based 
WCF complies with all applicable provisions of this Chapter. 

 
(3) Development Regulations. 
 

(a) Tower-Based WCFs shall not be located in or within seventy-five 
(75) feet of an area in which all utilities are located underground. 

 
(b) Sole use on a Parcel.  A Tower-Based WCF may be permitted as 

the sole use on a parcel, provided the Tower-Based WCF and 
underlying parcel comply with all applicable requirements of this 
Chapter.    

 
(c) Combined with Another Use.  A Tower-Based WCF may be 

permitted on a property with an existing use, except residential, 
subject to the following conditions: 

 
i. The existing use of the property may be any permitted use 

in the applicable district and need not be affiliated with 
the WCF.  

 
ii. Minimum Lot Size.  The minimum parcel shall comply with 

the requirements for the applicable zoning district and 
shall be the area needed to accommodate the Tower-
Based WCF and Accessory Equipment, any guy wires, the 
equipment Building, security fence, and applicable 
screening.  

 
(4) Design Regulations. 
 

(a) Anti-Climbing Device.  A Tower-Based WCF shall be equipped with 
an anti-climbing device, as approved by the manufacturer. 

 
(b) Minimum Setbacks.  The minimum distance between the base of a 

Tower-Based WCF and any adjoining property line or Street 
ROW line shall be equal to one hundred (100) percent of the 
Height of the Tower-Based WCF. The underlying parcel shall be 
large enough to accommodate related equipment, stormwater 
runoff mechanisms, and all other features typically found within the 
immediate area of a telecommunications tower. 

 
(c) Surrounding Environs. 

 
i. The WCF Applicant shall ensure that the existing 

vegetation, trees, and shrubs located within proximity to 
the WCF Structure shall be preserved. 

 
(d) Fence/Screen.   

 

217



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 121 of 192 

 

i. A security fence with a maximum Height of eight (8) feet, 
with openings no greater than four (4) inches, shall 
completely surround any Tower-Based WCF, as well as 
guy wires or any Building housing Accessory Equipment. 

 
ii. The WCF Applicant shall comply with the screening 

requirements as specified § 27-416 of this Chapter. 
 

(e) Accessory Equipment. 
 

i. Ground-mounted Accessory Equipment associated or 
connected with a Tower-Based WCF shall not be located 
within fifty (50) feet of a parcel in a residential use. 

 
ii Accessory Equipment associated with a Tower-Based WCF 

shall be placed underground or screened from public 
view.  All ground-mounted Accessory Equipment, utility 
Buildings, and accessory structures shall be architecturally 
designed to be concealed from public view to the 
maximum extent possible and be compatible with the 
architecture of surrounding Buildings, structures, or 
landscape. 

 
iii Either one single-story wireless communications equipment 

Building not exceeding five hundred (500) square feet in 
area or its equivalent may be permitted for each 
unrelated company sharing Antenna space on the Tower-
Based WCF.   

 
(5) Additional Antennas.  As a condition of approval for all Tower-Based WCFs, 

the WCF Applicant shall provide the Zoning Hearing Board with a written 
commitment that it shall allow other service providers to Collocate WCFs 
on the Tower-Based WCF where technically and economically feasible.  To 
the extent permissible under state and federal law, the Owner of a Tower-
Based WCF shall not install any additional WCFs without complying with 
the applicable requirements of this Article.   

 
(6) FCC License.  Each Person that owns or operates a Tower-Based WCF shall 

submit a copy of its current FCC license, including the name, address, and 
emergency telephone number for the operator of the facility.  

 
(7) Signs.  All Tower-Based WCFs shall post a sign in a readily visible location 

identifying the name and phone number of a party to contact in the event 
of an emergency.  The only other signage permitted on the WCF shall be 
those required by the FCC or any other federal or state agency. 

 
(8) Lighting. No Tower-Based WCF shall be artificially lit, except as required 

by law.  If lighting is required, the WCF Applicant shall provide a detailed 
plan for sufficient lighting, demonstrating as unobtrusive and inoffensive an 
effect as is permissible under state and federal regulations. The WCF 
Applicant shall promptly report any outage or malfunction of FAA-
mandated lighting to the appropriate governmental authorities and to the 
Borough Secretary.    

 

218



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 122 of 192 

 

(9) Storage.  The storage of unused equipment, materials, or supplies is 
prohibited on any Tower-Based WCF site. 

 
(10) Repair of Non-Conforming Tower-Based WCF. Non-conforming Tower-

Based WCFs which are hereafter damaged or destroyed due to any 
reason or cause may be repaired and restored at their former location but 
shall otherwise comply with the terms and conditions of this Article.  The 
Collocation of Antennas is permitted on non-conforming structures.   

 
(11) Insurance.  Each Person that owns or operates a Tower-Based WCF shall 

provide the Borough Zoning Officer with a certificate of insurance 
evidencing general liability coverage in the minimum amount of 
$5,000,000 per occurrence and property damage coverage in the 
minimum amount of $5,000,000 per occurrence covering the Tower-Based 
WCF.   

 
(G) Industrial Uses.  A category of Uses for businesses involving assembly, production, storing, 

transferring and disposal of goods or products, and which may also include associated facilities such 
as offices, maintenance facilities, and fuel pumps and both indoor and outdoor activities and storage 
of goods.  

 
1. The following supplemental Use regulations shall apply to all permitted Industrial Uses as 

part of the Zoning Permit application.  
 

a. The Applicant shall provide a detailed written description of the proposed use in 
each of the following topics: 

 
b. The nature of on-site processing operations, the materials used in the process, the 

products produced, and the generation and methods of disposal for any wastes 
and/or by-products.  In addition, the Applicant shall furnish evidence that the 
storage and disposal of materials shall be accomplished in a manner that complies 
with all applicable state and federal regulations. 

 
c. The general scale of the operation in terms of its specific floor space requirements 

for each step of the industrial process, the total number of employees on each shift, 
and an overall needed site size. 

 
d. Identify any environmental impacts that are likely to be generated (e.g., odor, 

noise, smoke, dust, litter, glare, vibration, electrical disturbance, wastewater, 
stormwater, solid waste, etc.) and specific measures employed to mitigate or 
eliminate negative impacts.  The Applicant shall furnish expert evidence that the 
impacts generated by the proposed use fall within acceptable levels as regulated 
by applicable laws and ordinances, including but not limited to those administered 
and enforced by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency and PA DEP. 

 
e. The Zoning Officer may request additional information to ensure proper evaluation 

of such an application. Such information may include ventilation plans, materials 
characteristics, drainage plans, waste disposal plans, and chemical disposition 
plans. 

 
f. All outdoor storage associated with Industrial Uses shall adhere to the Outdoor 

Storage Yard provisions specified below. 
 

219



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 123 of 192 

 

2. Automotive Dismantler and Recycler.  Any establishment or place of business which is 
maintained, used, or operated for storing, keeping, buying or selling wrecked, scrapped, 
ruined or dismantled Motor Vehicles, or motor parts, or both.  The following performance 
standards shall apply. 
 
a. Minimum Lot Size shall be ten (10) acres. 
 
b. The outdoor area devoted to the storage of Junk shall be completely enclosed by 

an eight (8) foot high opaque fence which shall be set back at least fifty (50) feet 
from all property lines and one hundred (100) feet from residentially zoned or 
existing residential properties. 

 
c. The setback area between the fence and the Parcel lines shall be kept free of 

weeds and all scrub growth. 
 
d. All completely enclosed Buildings used to store Junk shall be set back at least fifty 

(50) feet from all property lines. 
 
e. No material may be stored or stacked so that it is visible from adjoining properties 

and roads. 
 
f. The operation shall be licensed pursuant to Title 67, PA Code, Ordinance 451, 

Control of Junkyards and Automotive Dismantlers and Recyclers and obtain and 
maintain all applicable permits. 

 
g. All junk shall be stored or arranged to permit access to firefighting equipment and 

to prevent the accumulation of water, and with no Junk piled to a Height greater 
than eight feet. 

 
h. No oil, grease, tires, gasoline, or other similar material shall be burned at any time. 
 
i. Any Automotive Dismantler and Recycler or Junkyard shall be maintained in such a 

manner as to cause no public or private nuisance, not to cause any offensive or 
noxious sounds or odors, nor to the breeding or harboring of rats, flies, mosquitoes, 
or other vectors. 

 
j. All junk vehicles shall be emptied of fuel, oil, and other liquids and batteries. 

 
3. Brewery, Distillery, Winery. A facility for the production, packaging and sampling of 

alcoholic beverages – including beer, wine, cider, mead and distilled liquors for retail or 
wholesale distribution, for sale or consumption on- or off-premises, and which produces 
100,000 gallons or more of such beverages per year.  The Brewery, Distillery, Winery 
shall be licensed by the Pennsylvania Liquor Control Board and any successor agency of 
the Commonwealth.  The following supplemental Use regulations apply: 
 
a. Minimum Lot Size. Five (5) acres. 
 
b. A Brewery, Distillery, Winery shall have at least one (1) loading berth, with an 

additional berth when the GFA exceeds 150,000 square feet. 
 
c. Identify the nature of the on-site operations, the materials used in the process, the 

products produced, and the generation and methods for disposal of any wastes 
and/or by-products. In addition, the Applicant shall furnish evidence that the 
storage and disposal of materials shall be accomplished in a manner that complies 

220



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 124 of 192 

 

with state and federal regulations. 
 
d. Identify any environmental impacts that are likely to be generated (e.g., odor, 

noise, smoke, dust, litter, glare, vibration, electrical disturbance, wastewater, 
stormwater, solid waste, etc.) and specific measures employed to mitigate or 
eliminate negative impacts. The Applicant shall provide evidence that the impacts 
generated by the proposed use fall within acceptable levels regulated by 
applicable laws and ordinances. 

 
e. Traffic Impact Study.  A traffic impact study prepared by a Registered Design 

Professional pursuant to the requirements specified under Chapter 22, Subdivision 
and Land Development, of the Borough Code of Ordinances shall be reviewed 
and approved by the Borough Engineer. 

 
4. Craftsman Industrial. A category of Uses that include a showroom or small retail outlet and 

production space, and involves small scale production, assembly, and/or repair with no 
noxious by-products. Craftsman Industrial includes such Uses as those found in Table 3.05, 
Typical Employment Uses (Typical Craftsman Industrial Uses). This Use may also include 
associated facilities such as offices and small-scale warehousing.  In the event a specific 
Craftsman Industrial Use is not identified in Table 3.05, the Zoning Officer shall have the 
authority to review the proposed Use and the Applicant shall submit to the Zoning Officer 
such additional information as the Zoning Officer deems necessary to render a Zoning 
Certification Letter as specified under § 27-113 of this Chapter. 

 
5. Junkyards. Any outdoor establishment, place of business, or activity which is maintained, used 

or operated for storing, keeping, buying or selling Junk; for the maintenance or operation 
of a garbage dump, sanitary landfill or scrap metal processor, or for the storage of ten or 
more junked vehicles.  The performance standards specified under Subparagraph (I)2c 
(Automotive Dismantler and Recycler) above shall apply. 

 

Table 3.05, Typical Craftsman Industrial Uses. 

Agricultural Growing, such as Aquaculture 

Apparel and Finished Fabric Products 

Botanical Products 

Brooms and Brushes 

Canning and Preserving Food 

Commercial Scale Copying and Printing 

Cut Stone and Cast Stone 

Electronics Assembly 

Electrical Fixtures 

Engraving 

Fabricated Metal Products 

Film Making 

Firearms and Ammunition 

Furniture and Fixtures 

Glass 

Ice 

Jewelry, Watches, Clocks, and Leather Products 

(no tanning) 

Meat and Fish Products, no processing 

Musical Instruments and Articles 

Pottery, Ceramics, and Related Products 

Printing, Publishing and Allied Industries 

Shoes and Boots 

Signs and Advertising 

Silverware 

Smithing 

Taxidermy (with incidental tanning) 

Textile, Fabric, Cloth 

Toys and Athletic Goods 

Upholstery 

221



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 125 of 192 

 

Household Textiles Woodworking 

 
6. Manufacturing - Light Industry. A Use involving the production of goods from raw materials 

or the assembly of finished products that can result in limited negative external effects, 
noise, and other non-noxious by-products. Light Industry Uses includes all Typical Light 
Industrial Uses identified in Table 3.06, Typical Industrial Uses.  The Zoning Officer may 
request additional information to ensure proper evaluation of such an application. These 
uses have less than one (1) million square feet of floor area.  Such information may include 
ventilation plans, materials characteristics, drainage plans, waste disposal plans, and 
chemical disposition plans. 

Table 3.06, Typical Industrial Uses. 

Typical Light Industrial Uses Typical Warehousing/Distribution Uses 

Any Craftsman Industrial Use with or without retail 
outlet and with significant distribution 

Agricultural Processing, unless otherwise listed 

Aircraft Assembly and Testing 

Apparel, Finished Products from fabric 

Automobile, Truck, Boat, Recreational Vehicle and 
Trailer Manufacturing 

Bicycle Manufacturing 

Biomaterials 

Contractor – Landscape and Construction 

Cotton Wadding 

Electrical Fixtures 

Electronic/Electrical Equipment/Component 
Manufacturing 

Engines and Motors Manufacturing/Rebuilding 

Lasers and Optics 

Laundering, Dry Cleaning, Dyeing 

Lumber Mill 

Machinery Manufacturing 

Medical Equipment Manufacturing 

Metal Products Manufacturing 

Mobile/Manufactured Homes Manufacturing 

Motor Testing 

Personal Storage 

Pharmaceuticals 

Plumbing and Heating Products 

Printing, Publishing and Allied Industries 

Stone Cutting and Distribution 

Tool and Die Shop 

Exterminating and Disinfecting Service 

Food Distribution Facility, with or without public 
market 

Freight Forwarding Service 

Fuel Distribution 

Mail and Parcel Sorting & Distribution 

Mail Order House and Warehousing 

Newspaper Distribution Facilities 

Packing and Crating 

Petroleum Bulk Station 

RV and Large Equipment Storage Yard 

Recycling Center (Collection & Sort) 

Tow or Impound Parcel 

Vehicle Staging and Storage (Ambulance, Bus, 
Limousine, Livery, Taxi, etc.) 

Warehousing and Storage (Refrigeration or 
General) 

Water Distribution 

Wholesale Trade of Goods 

 
7. Medical Marijuana Grower / Processor Facility.  A Person, including a natural Person, 

corporation, partnership, association, trustor other entity, or any combination thereof, which 
holds a permit from the Pennsylvania Department of Health (DOH) to grow and process 

222



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 126 of 192 

 

medical marijuana pursuant to Pennsylvania’s Medical Marijuana Act, Act of April 17, 
2016, P.L. 84, No. 16.  The following supplemental Use regulations apply: 
 
a. A Medical Marijuana Grower/Processor may only grow medical marijuana in an 

indoor, enclosed, and secure Building which includes electronic locking systems, 
electronic surveillance and other features required by the DOH. The 
grower/processor facility shall not be located in a trailer, cargo container, mobile 
or modular unit, mobile home, recreational vehicle or other Motor Vehicle. 

 
b. The GFA of a Medical Marijuana Grower/Processor shall include sufficient space 

for production, secure storage of marijuana seed, related finished product 
cultivation, and marijuana-related materials and equipment used in production and 
cultivation or for required laboratory testing. 

 
c. There shall be no emission of dust, fumes, vapors, odors, or waste into the 

environment from any facility where medical marijuana growing, processing or 
testing occurs. 

 
d. Marijuana remnants and by-products shall be secured and properly disposed of 

in accordance with the Pennsylvania Department of Health (DOH) policy and shall 
not be placed within any unsecure exterior refuse containers. 

 
e. The grower/processor shall provide only wholesale products to other medical 

marijuana facilities. Retail sales and dispensing of medical marijuana and related 
products is prohibited at Medical Marijuana Grower/Processor facilities. 

 
f. Growers/processors may not be located within one thousand (1,000) feet of the 

property line of a public, private, or parochial school or day-care center. 
 
g. All external lighting serving a Medical Marijuana Grower/Processor must be 

shielded in such a manner to not allow light to be emitted skyward or onto adjoining 
properties. 

 
h. Where a Medical Marijuana Grower/Processor adjoins a residential use or district, 

a buffer yard shall be required pursuant to the requirements of § 27-416 this 
Chapter.  

 
i. Entrances and driveways to a Medical Marijuana Grower/Processor must be 

designed to accommodate the anticipated vehicles used to service the facility. 
 
j. Loading and off-loading areas within the Structure are preferred. If an external 

loading dock arrangement is designed, it should be from within a secure 
environment. 

 
k. Medical Marijuana Transport Vehicle Service.  In addition to the above requirements, 

the following regulations shall also apply to medical marijuana transport vehicle 
services: 
 
(1) All external lighting serving a medical marijuana transport vehicle service 

must be shielded in such a manner to not allow light to be emitted skyward 
or onto adjoining properties. 

 

223



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 127 of 192 

 

(2) Entrances and driveways to a medical marijuana transport vehicle service 
must be designed to accommodate the anticipated vehicles used to enter 
and exit the premises. 

 
(3) All accesses must secure the appropriate highway occupancy permit 

(PennDOT or Borough). 
 
l. If for some reason a medical marijuana product is to be temporarily stored at a 

medical marijuana transport vehicle service facility, the facility must be secured to 
the same level as a medical marijuana grower/producer and dispensary. 

 
8. Outdoor Storage Yard. A Parcel used primarily for the outdoor storage of construction 

equipment parts, materials and supplies, and parking of wheeled construction equipment. 
This Use does include associated on-site offices and indoor storage as an accessory use to 
the principal use.  The following supplemental Use regulations apply: 
 
a. The Outdoor Storage Yard shall be secured and screened from view of the front 

Parcel line.  Level 3 screening shall be required pursuant to Section 4.03 of this 
Chapter.  

 
b. Loose materials shall not be stacked higher than twenty (20) feet. 
 
c. Loose materials shall at a minimum be stored in a three (3)-sided shelter and shall 

be covered. 
 
d. Materials shall be set back a minimum of five (5) feet from any Parcel line. 

 
9. Truck Terminal.  A facility to accommodate the fueling, routine maintenance and storage of 

trucks and other motorized equipment and trailers and that may provide warehousing and 
transfer facilities as accessory uses.  The following supplemental Use regulations apply: 
 
a. The site shall have frontage on and direct vehicular access to an Arterial Street. 
 
b. No point on the site boundary shall be located within three hundred (300) feet of 

any property line of a property containing a residential dwelling. 
 
c. Ingress, egress and internal traffic circulation shall be designed to ensure safety 

and minimize congestion. 
 
d. All materials and equipment shall be stored within a completely enclosed Building, 

as defined herein. 
 
e. No repair of vehicles shall be permitted outside a completely enclosed Building, 

as defined herein. 
 

10. Truck or Truck Trailer Parking.  A parcel of land, or portion thereof, used by commercial 
trucks for the purpose of dropping or picking up loaded and/or unloaded trailers, including 
the incidental short-term or daily storage of Trucks and storage of loaded and/or 
unloaded trailers, for transfer to other points or jurisdictions. The use may include an 
accessory guardhouse or similar type structure to allow for Trailers to be checked in and 
out. The use does not include the breakdown or aggregation into smaller or larger loads.  
Commonly referred to as a “Drop Lot.”  The following supplemental Use regulations apply: 
 
a. The Use shall be located on a parcel of no less than ten (10) acres in size. 

224



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 128 of 192 

 

 
b. The Use Shall have direct access to an Arterial Street and ingress, egress and 

internal traffic circulation shall be designed to ensure safety and minimize 
congestion. 

 
c. No point on the site boundary shall be located within three hundred (300) feet of 

any residential zoning district or residential property line. 
 
d. The applicant shall furnish a traffic impact study prepared in accordance with the 

requirements specified under Chapter 22, Subdivision and Land Development, of 
the Borough Code of Ordinances and be reviewed and approved by the Borough 
Engineer. 

 
e. The entire perimeter of the facility shall be lit according to the private lighting 

standards specified under § 22-1015 of the Borough Code of Ordinances.  
 
f. The Use shall be secured via a minimum twelve (12) foot high chain link fence and 

have a secure gated access that is accessible only by authorized users of the 
parking facility.  Authorized access shall include Borough officials, including 
designated zoning and code enforcement, police, fire, and EMS personnel.   

 
g. The owner/operator of the Use shall have a hazardous material spill plan 

approved by the Adams County Department of Emergency Services and a 
designated safety officer responsible for monitoring and reporting any suspected 
or known hazardous materials spills occurring from the use of the parking facility.  

 
h. The use shall not be used for overnight sleeping in Trucks or as a Truck Stop Rest 

area. 
 
i. Other than storage within Trailers using the parking facility, the site shall not have 

any Buildings or Structures used for the storage of materials.  
 
j. Overnight Truck idling is prohibited within the Borough limits. No person shall allow 

the primary propulsion engine of a Motor Vehicle to idle for more than ten (10) 
consecutive minutes when the Motor Vehicle is not in motion.  Truck stop facilities 
shall provide signage indicating overnight idling is prohibited. Such signage must 
be located at the entrance of overnight parking Lots in a visible manner to Truck 
drivers. 
 

11. Warehouse/Distribution. A Use involving large-scale indoor storage of goods, packaging 
of goods, and distribution typically between production and the market. May include a 
small ancillary retail facility. Warehouse/Distribution Uses also include substantial 
commercial vehicle access, storage, and intermodal exchanges.  Warehouse/Distribution 
Uses includes such Uses as those identified in Table 3.06, Typical Industrial Uses.  The 
following supplemental Use regulations apply: 
 
a. Minimum Lot Size.  The subject property shall have a minimum Parcel area of ten 

(10) acres and a minimum of three hundred (300) feet of frontage on an Arterial 
or Collector Road. 

 
b. Required Setback. Parking, staging, and loading/unloading areas, and Buildings 

shall be located no closer than five hundred (500) feet from a residential use or 
district and/or property containing a school, daycare facility, park, playground, 
library, hospital, or nursing or retirement home, except where such parking, 

225



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 129 of 192 

 

staging, and loading/unloading areas, and Buildings are separated from such 
other uses by an Interstate Highway. 

 
c. Maximum Parcel Coverage.  When served by public sewer and public water and 

any portion of the subject property is located less than 1,320 feet from an 
Interstate Highway interchange (as measured from the nearest highway ramp 
terminal to any contiguous portion of the property), a maximum Parcel coverage 
of fifty (50) percent and a maximum Impervious Coverage of sixty-five (65) 
percent shall be permitted. 

 
d. Buffer Screening.  Screen buffers shall be provided in accordance with § 27-416 

of this Chapter.  
 
e. Any exterior public address system shall be designed and operated so that the 

audible levels of any messages conveyed over the system will not exceed the 
amount of noise levels of the use, as measured at each Parcel lines. 

 
f. Electric hookups shall be installed to reduce idling of main auxiliary engines when 

Trucks are in a stationary position.  
 
g. Access, Parking, and Loading. 
 

(1) The use shall have direct access to an Arterial Street. 
 
(2) A minimum of five (5) percent of the required total Tractor and Trailer 

parking spaces shall be reserved for outbound trucks which are required 
to layover or rest due to federal hours of service regulations. Such spaces 
must be made available to tractor-trailers during and/or after the 
facility’s operating hours as necessary. 

 
(3) All trucks awaiting access to a loading/unloading dock/doorway shall 

park in the designated tractor trailer parking spaces unless all such spaces 
are already occupied. 

 
(4) The site shall be provided with sufficiently long stacking lanes and on-site 

loading/unloading facilities so that Trucks or Trailers or other vehicles 
waiting to park, or be loaded/unloaded, will not back up onto public 
Streets. 

 
(5) Each Warehouse/Distribution use shall provide off-street loading facilities 

which meet the minimum requirements of § 27-412 of this Chapter and 
are sufficient to accommodate the maximum demand generated by the 
use.  Each loading space and the needed maneuvering room shall be 
located entirely on the Parcel being served and be located outside of 
required buffer areas and Street Rights-of-Way.  Each loading space 
shall have sufficient maneuvering room to avoid conflicts with parking and 
traffic movements within and outside of the Parcel. No facility shall be 
designed or used in such a manner that it creates a safety hazard, public 
nuisance or an impediment to traffic off the Parcel. 

 
h. Where gates, guard shacks or checkpoints are proposed at the entrance(s) to the 

facility, adequate queuing space shall be provided within the property boundaries 
to prevent stacking of vehicles on or along public Streets.  Any entry gates into the 
loading dock/Truck court area shall be positioned after a minimum of one hundred 

226



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 130 of 192 

 

forty (140) feet of total available stacking depth inside the property line. The 
stacking distance shall be increased by seventy (70) feet for every twenty (20) 
loading docks beyond fifty (50) docks. Queuing and circling of vehicles on public 
Streets immediately pre- or post-entry to a Truck Terminal is strictly prohibited 
unless queuing occurs in a deceleration lane or right turn lane exclusively serving 
the facility. 

 
i. Outdoor Storage.   
 

(1) The outdoor storage of unlicensed and/or uninspected Trucks or Trailers is 
prohibited. 

 
(2) No outdoor storage of trash, garbage, refuse, explosive or flammable 

materials, hazardous substances, animals, animal carcasses or skins or 
similar items shall be permitted.  

 
j. The use shall include an appropriate system to contain and properly dispose of 

any fuel, grease, oils, or similar pollutants that may spill or leak where such 
substances are stored or where vehicles are fueled, repaired or maintained. 

 
k. Signage and Traffic Patterns.   

 
(1) Applicants shall submit to the Borough Engineer, and obtain approval of, 

all turning templates to verify Truck turning movements at entrance and 
exit driveways and Street intersections adjacent to a 
Warehouse/Distribution use prior to conditional use approval. 

 
(2) Anti-idling signs indicating a three (3) minute diesel Truck engine idling 

restriction shall be posted at Warehouse/Distribution uses along entrances 
to the site and in the dock areas and shall be strictly enforced by the 
facility operator. 

 
(3) The applicant shall establish and submit with its conditional use application 

a Truck routing plan to and from the state highway system. The plan shall 
describe proposed Truck routing to and from the Warehouse/Distribution 
facility to designated Truck routes that avoids passing sensitive receptors 
to the greatest extent possible. The plan shall include measures, such as 
signage and pavement markings, queuing analysis and enforcement, for 
preventing Truck queuing, circling, stopping, and parking on public Streets. 
The facility operator shall be responsible for enforcement of the plan. The 
Board of Supervisors shall have discretion to determine if changes to the 
plan are necessary including any additional measures to alleviate Truck 
routing and parking issues that may arise during the life of the facility. 

 
(4) Signs shall be installed at all Truck exit driveways directing Truck drivers 

to the Truck route as indicated in the Truck routing plan and state highway 
system. 

 
(5) Signs and drive aisle pavement markings shall clearly identify the on-site 

circulation pattern to minimize unnecessary on-site vehicular travel. 
 
(6) Facility operators shall post signs in prominent locations inside and outside 

of the Building indicating that off-site parking for any employee, Truck, or 
other operation related vehicle is strictly prohibited.  The Borough may 

227



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 131 of 192 

 

require the facility operator to post signs on surface or residential Streets 
indicating that off-site Truck parking is prohibited by this Chapter and as 
specified in the required Truck routing plan. 

 
l. Environmental and Community Impact Analysis. The applicant shall provide an 

environmental and community impact analysis. The environmental and community 
impact analysis shall include:  
 
(1) A narrative description of the nature of the on-site activities and 

operations, including the market area served by the facility, the hours of 
operation of the facility, the total number of employees on each shift, the 
times, frequencies and types of vehicle trips generated, the types of 
materials stored and the duration period of storage of materials.  

 
(2) A site plan of the property indicating the location of proposed 

improvements, flood plains, wetlands, waters of the Commonwealth, and 
cultural and historic resources on the property and within five (500) feet 
of the boundaries of the property. 

 
(3) Evidence that the disposal of materials will be accomplished in a manner 

that complies with state and federal regulations. 
 
(4) An evaluation of the potential impacts of the proposed use, both positive 

and negative, upon:  
 
(a) Emergency services and fire protection;  
 
(b) Water supply;  
 
(c) Sewage disposal;  
 
(d) Solid waste disposal;  
 
(e) School facilities and school district budget;  
 
(f) Municipal revenues and expenses  
 

(5) Any environmental impacts that are likely to be generated (e.g., odor, 
noise, smoke, dust, litter, glare, vibration, electrical disturbance, 
wastewater, stormwater, solid waste, etc.) and specific measures 
employed to mitigate or eliminate any negative impacts including the 
performance standards specified in § 27-411 of this Chapter. The 
applicant shall further furnish evidence that the impacts generated by the 
proposed use fall within acceptable levels, as regulated by applicable 
laws and ordinances. 

 
12. Yard Waste Composting Facility.  A facility which yard waste and natural wood waste is 

received and processed to produce compost for off-site Use.  Retail and wholesale sales 
of bulk compost, mulch, and earth products shall be permitted as an Accessory Use to a 
yard waste composting facility. The term does not include composting by a single-family 
Parcel Owner for personal Use.  The following supplemental Use regulations apply: 
 
a. Minimum Parcel size: Five (5) acres. 
 

228



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 132 of 192 

 

b. Setbacks. 
 
(1) The minimum composting activity setback shall be one hundred (100) feet 

from any property line abutting a non-residential Use or zoning district. 
 
(2) The minimum composting activity setback two hundred (200) feet from any 

property line abutting a residential Use or zoning district. 
 
c. Operations. 

 
(1) Compliance. A Yard Waste Composting Facility shall always be in full 

compliance with the statutes of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and 
the rules and regulations of the Department of Environmental Protection 
(DEP) and the provisions of this Article. In the event that any of these 
provisions are in conflict, then the requirements of the Department of 
Environmental Protection shall apply.   

 
(2) Hazardous Waste Disposal. Hazardous waste as included on the list of 

hazardous waste as maintained by DEP shall not be disposed of in a 
composting facility. 

 
(3) Management. Each permitted facility must have a certified compost 

operator on staff. This certification can be the Compost Specialization 
Certificate from the Professional Recyclers of Pennsylvania (PROP), or 
other DEP-approved certification courses. 

 
(4) Site Maintenance. The entire area shall be kept clean and orderly.   

 
d. Site Access.  Access to the site shall be limited to those posted times when an 

attendant is on duty. In order to protect against indiscriminate and unauthorized 
dumping, every composting facility shall be protected by locked barricades, 
fences, gates or other positive means designed to deny access to the area at 
unauthorized times or locations. 
 

§ 27-306 Accessory Uses 
 
(A) General Provisions. 
 

1. Accessory Uses Allowed. Accessory Uses as listed in Table 3.01, Table of Uses, are allowed 
only in connection with the lawfully established Principal Uses.   

 
2. Allowed Uses.  Allowed Accessory Uses are limited to those expressly regulated in this 

Chapter as well as those that satisfy the following criteria:  
 
a. They are customarily found in conjunction with the subject Principal Use(s) or 

Principal Structure; 
 
b. They are subordinate and clearly incidental to the Principal Use(s) of the property; 

and 
 
c. They serve a necessary function for the comfort, safety, or convenience of 

occupants of the Principal Use(s). 
 
3. Accessory Structures. Refer to Section 4.01 of this Chapter. 

229



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 133 of 192 

 

 
4. Time of Construction and Establishment. Accessory Uses may be established only after the 

Principal use of the subject property is in place. 
 
5. Location. Accessory Uses shall be located on the same Parcel as the Principal Use to which 

they are accessory. 
 
(B) Accessory Uses. 

 
1. Accessory Dwelling Unit. A Dwelling Unit clearly subordinate to the principal Building on the 

same Parcel and serving a purpose customarily incidental to the principal residential 
Building.  This unit will be considered an Accessory Dwelling Unit if it is 1) located in a 
separate structure or offers an independent entrance, 2) provides sleeping, cooking, and 
bathroom facilities independent from the principal dwelling, 3) is occupied by family 
relations of the primary residence, and 4) the unit is occupied by no more than two (2) 
people.  The following supplemental Use regulations apply: 
 
a. A property Owner shall file a Zoning Permit for an accessory dwelling unit prior 

to its recognition as an Accessory Dwelling Unit. The property proposed for an 
Accessory Dwelling Unit shall contain one (1), but no more than one (1), residential 
Structure occupied as a one-unit Dwelling. 

 
b. The property shall be Owner-occupied, either in the Principal Structure or principal 

Dwelling Unit, or in the accessory Dwelling. 
 
c. The Accessory Dwelling Unit shall be located either: 
 

(1) In a newly constructed Accessory Dwelling Unit Structure;  
 
(2) In an existing detached accessory Structure occupied, or formerly 

occupied, on the first floor by a garage, barn, or similar Accessory Use; or 
 
(3) In a Principal Structure, including a Tiny Home, as defined in Section 6 of 

this Chapter, provided that there is a separate entrance to the exterior or 
to an unconditioned porch type space. 

 
d. Maximum Height.  Twenty-five (25) feet in any residential district. (Historic District 

requirements shall be met.) 
 
e. The Usable GFA of the Accessory Dwelling Unit shall not exceed fifty (50) percent 

of the Usable GFA of the principal dwelling unit or one thousand (1,000) square 
feet, whichever is less. Exterior patios, decks, porches, and staircases providing 
interior access from the principal unit to the Accessory Dwelling Unit shall not be 
counted toward the Usable GFA of the Accessory Dwelling Unit. 

 
f. Parking. A minimum of one (1) off-Street parking spaces are required for an 

Accessory Dwelling Unit. 
 
g. Pedestrian Access. An all-weather surface path to the Accessory Dwelling Unit shall 

be provided from the Street Frontage.  
 
h. A separate numeric address for the Accessory Dwelling Unit is prohibited. 
 

230



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 134 of 192 

 

i. No new, separate utility connection may be installed for the Accessory Dwelling 
Unit in a Principal Structure, unless more than one (1) utility connection already 
serves the Parcel, to the location of the proposed Accessory Dwelling Unit, at the 
time of the application for the Accessory Dwelling Unit. 

 
j. At any one time, the number of residents of an Accessory Dwelling Unit shall be 

limited to: 
 

(1) One (1) adult and minor children related to said adult by blood, marriage, 
adoption, custodianship, or guardianship; or  

 
(2) Two (2) adults (in total) and minor children related to at least one (1) of 

the adults by blood, marriage, adoption, custodianship, or guardianship. 
 

k. Wastewater Disposal. Certification that the Accessory Dwelling Unit can adequately 
connect to either the existing sewer line or septic system that is serving the principal 
use.  In no case shall an Accessory Dwelling Unit be served by a separate septic 
system. Provided that the primary dwelling is connected to the public sewer system, 
an Accessory Dwelling Unit shall connect or tie into the primary dwelling’s sewer 
line.   

 
l. Parcel Non-severability. The Accessory Dwelling Unit may not be conveyed, or the 

title to the Accessory Dwelling Unit be transferred separate and apart from the 
rest of the property.  

 
m. Mechanical Equipment. Mechanical equipment shall be located on the ground or 

contained within an Accessory Dwelling Unit and may not be located on the roof. 
 

2. Child Care Center as an Accessory Use to a Residential Use.  The following supplemental Use 
regulations shall apply: 

 
a. The following shall be the maximum number of children under age fifteen (15) that 

may be cared for in any dwelling unit: 
 

(1) In a Single-family Detached Dwelling with a minimum lot area of 10,000 
square feet and a ten (10) foot setback from all existing dwellings: a 
maximum of six (6) children who are not related to a permanent resident 
of the dwelling. 

 
(2) In any other dwelling unit: a maximum of three (3) children beyond those 

children who are related to a permanent resident of the dwelling. 
 
b. The dwelling shall retain a residential appearance with no change to the exterior 

of the dwelling to accommodate the use, other than cosmetic improvements. 
 
c. Any Child Care Center involving seven (7) or more children shall be considered a 

principal use and shall meet the standards of § 27-305(D)10. for such use, if 
permitted.  

 
d. The use shall be actively operated by a permanent resident of the dwelling. 
 
e. If four (4) to six (6) children who are not related to a permanent resident of the 

dwelling are cared for, then the following requirements shall be met: 
 

231



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 135 of 192 

 

(1) Smoke detectors shall be provided throughout the building, an ABC-rated 
fire extinguisher shall be provided, and exit lights shall be provided at 
outdoor exits, and at least one exit/window shall be provided with an 
opening within six feet of the adjacent exterior grade level. 

 
(2) A minimum of one hundred (100) square feet of safe exterior play area 

shall be available. 
 

2. Heliport/Vertiport.   
 

a. Heliports. A take-off and landing area for helicopters with associated terminal and 
maintenance facilities. Heliports strictly adhere to the Federal Aviation 
Administration (FAA) regulations and include standard marking and lighting 
designs.  The following supplemental Use regulations shall apply: 

 
(1) All facilities shall be designed and operated in strict compliance with all 

applicable State and Federal laws and regulations. 
 
(2) The Applicant shall furnish evidence of the obtainment of a license from 

the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation, Bureau of Aviation, prior 
to the approval of the conditional use application. 

 
(3) The proposed helistop would not be detrimental to the health, welfare and 

safety of the Borough residents and their property. 
 
b. Vertiport. A designated area that supports take-off and landing operations of 

Electric Vertical Take-off and Land (eVTOL) aircraft and designed pursuant to FAA 
specifications. The design of a Vertiport has similar infrastructural elements to a 
Heliport, including a touchdown and lift-off (TLOF) area, a final approach and 
take-off (FATO) area, and visual aids.  The supplemental Use regulations specified 
for a Heliport shall also apply. 

 
3. Helistop. An accessory use permitted on a roof or on the ground to accommodate 

helicopters for the purpose of picking up and discharging passengers or cargo with no 
service facilities.  The following use regulations apply: 
 
a. All facilities shall be designed and operated in strict compliance with all applicable 

State and Federal laws and regulations. 
 
b. The Applicant shall furnish evidence of the obtainment of a license from the 

Pennsylvania Department of Transportation, Bureau of Aviation, prior to the 
approval of the conditional use application. 

 
c. The proposed helistop would not be detrimental to the health, welfare and safety 

of the Borough residents and their property. 
 
d. The takeoff and landing pad area shall have a minimum length and width (or 

diameter if circular) of one and one-half (1.5) times the overall length of the 
largest helicopter intended to use the facility.  The pad shall be paved, level, and 
maintained dirt free. Rooftop pads shall be free of all loose stone and aggregate. 

 
e. At least two (2) approach lanes, or each landing pad shall be provided and 

maintained free of obstructions and shall be located not less than ninety (90) 
degrees apart. Each approach lane shall be located within forty-five (45) degrees 

232



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 136 of 192 

 

left or right of the prevailing winds and shall fan out at an angle of ten (10) 
degrees from the width of the landing pad to a width of one thousand (1,000) 
feet and shall have a glide angle slope of eight (8) to one (1) measured from the 
outer edge of the pad.   

 
f. An application for the helistop on a roof shall be accompanied by a certification 

by a registered engineer that the loads imposed by the helicopter shall be 
supported by the Structure. 

 
g. No helicopter over six thousand (6,000) pounds gross weight shall use any helistop. 
 
h. The helistop shall be located a minimum of one thousand (1,000) feet from any 

dwelling unit.  
 
i. The Applicant shall furnish evidence of the obtainment of a license, if required, 

from the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation, Bureau of Aviation, prior to 
the approval of the conditional use application. 

 
j. It shall be unlawful for any Person to land, discharge, load or take off in a 

helicopter in any place within the Borough other than at a Heliport except: 
 
(1) In conjunction with a special event as an athletic contest, holiday 

celebration, parade or similar activity.  
 
(2) When necessary for police and/or fire training or when necessary for law 

enforcement purposes and for emergencies. 
 
(3) In connection with a construction project where a helicopter is to be used 

to lift equipment in connection with such project. 
 
(4) Spraying and dusting for agricultural purposes. 
 

3. Home Occupations.  A Use that is incidental or secondary to the residential use of a dwelling 
and which is conducted entirely within the dwelling by one of the residents.  The following 
supplemental Use regulations shall apply: 
 
a. The activity or occupation shall be conducted entirely within the dwelling or existing 

accessory building by a resident of the dwelling. 
 
b. The amount of floor area used for such occupation shall not exceed twenty-five 

(25) percent of the total floor area of the dwelling. 
 
c. No more than four (4r) nonresidents shall be employed. 
 
d. There shall be no displays nor any change on or to the exterior of the building 

indicating that the building is being used for anything other than a residence. 
 
e. One Sign shall be permitted in accordance with the provisions of the Borough Sign 

Ordinance, Chapter 19 of the Borough Code of Ordinances. 
 
f. Activities involving the industrial manufacture of products shall not be permitted. 

 

233



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 137 of 192 

 

4. Keeping of Chickens.  The keeping of Chickens for personal use and consumption shall be 
permitted as an Accessory Use as specified in Table 3.01 and shall abide by the following 
regulations: 

 
a. General.   
 

(1) The keeping of Chickens under this Chapter shall be permitted in 
residential zones when in compliance with the provisions outlined herein. 

 
(2) The keeping of Chickens shall be for non-commercial purposes. 
 
(3) These regulations do not apply to the raising of poultry and other fowl as 

an Agricultural Operation use and where such uses are permitted within 
this Chapter. 

 
(4) A permittee shall not engage in commercial: (1) chicken breeding; (2) sale 

of chickens; (3) egg producing; or (4) fertilizer production. 
 
b. Number of Chickens per Parcel. 

 
(1) Three (3) chickens shall be permitted for the first one (1) acre. 
 
(2) One (1) additional chicken shall be permitted for each additional one 

quarter (1/4) acre, up to a maximum of twenty (20) chickens per Parcel. 
 
(3 Notwithstanding Subsection b(2), there shall be no limit on the number of 

chickens on Lots over five (5) acres. 
 

c. Type.  Chickens shall be hens. Roosters and English Gamecocks are prohibited.  
 
d. Coops. 

 
(1) Chicken coops shall: 

 
(a) Have a solid roof.  
 
(b) Be solid on all sides. 
 
(c) Have adequate ventilation. 
 
(d) Provide protection from predators. 
 
(e) Be designed to secure the chickens. 
 
(f) Be readily accessible for cleaning.  

 
(2) Coops shall be either:  

 
(a) Commercially built/designed; or  
 
(b) Built by the Owner.  
 

(3) Coops shall provide a minimum of three (3) square feet per chicken. 
 

234



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 138 of 192 

 

e. Pens. 
 
(1) Pens shall provide a minimum of ten (10) square feet of area for the first 

chicken, and then an additional three (3) square feet per each additional 
chicken permitted under Subsection b(2). 

 
(2) Pens shall be constructed in a way to prevent chickens from roaming free 

and keep predators from getting into the pen.  
 
(3) The Pen shall be accessible by the hens from their Coop when they are not 

secured in the Coop. 
 

f. Location. 
 
(1) Pens and Coops shall be located in the Rear Yard only and shall meet the 

setback requirements of the zoning district within which the use is located.  
 
(2) Any part closer than ten (10) feet from any property line shall be screened 

by closed fencing or solid hedge.  
 

g. Living Conditions. 
 
(1) Chickens shall have access to feed and clean water at all times. 
 
(2) Feed shall be secured to prevent rodents or other pests from accessing the 

feed.  
 

h. Disposition of Deceased Chickens.  Chicken carcasses shall be disposed of in 
compliance with 3 Pa. C.S. § 2352, and no Person shall slaughter a Chicken in a 
residential zone.  

 
i. Disposal of Waste Material.  All waste shall be disposed of in any of the following 

manner: 
 

(1) Appropriate waste disposal may be any of the following: 
 
(a) Waste is to be double bagged and placed into municipal waste; 

or 
 
(b) Waste is to be placed into a designated container to be taken to 

the municipal compost facility. 
 

(2) Owners may compost the waste themselves; or 
 
(3) An Owner may give the waste to another Person who composts.  In such 

instances, the Owner shall: 
 
(a) Notify any Person using the material to compost that the waste 

contains Chicken excrement.  
 
(b) Notify any Person given compost that the compost was made 

from Chicken waste.  
 

(4) Waste may not be disposed of by dumping in any location. 

235



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 139 of 192 

 

 
5. Keeping of Honeybees. The Keeping of Honeybees for non-commercial purposes shall be 

permitted as an Accessory Use as specified in Table 3.01 and shall abide by the following 
regulations: 
 
a. General.   
 

(1) The Keeping of Honeybees under this Chapter shall be permitted in 
residential zones when in compliance with the provisions outlined herein. 

 
(2) The Keeping of Honeybees shall be for non-commercial purposes. 
 
(4) These regulations do not apply to beekeeping and apiaries when 

associated with an Agricultural Operation use and where such uses are 
permitted within this Chapter. 

 
(5) The keeping of one (1) or more colonies of the common domestic 

honeybee, Apis Mellifera, shall be permitted as an Accessory Use to a 
permitted primary use when in compliance with Pennsylvania’s Bee Law, 3 
Pa. C.S.A. § 2101, et seq., as amended.  Additionally, all beekeepers shall 
maintain their colonies per the Voluntary Best Management Practices for 
Maintaining European Honeybee Colonies in the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania as provided and as may be amended by the Pennsylvania 
Apiary Advisory Board.  Colonies include a hive and its equipment and 
appurtenances, including bees, comb, honey, pollen, and brood.  The 
following supplemental use regulations apply. 

 
b Maximum Number of Colonies. 

 
(1) Any Parcel containing a residential Use shall be limited to two (2) colonies. 

One additional colony is permitted for every one thousand (1,000) square 
feet of Parcel Area over ten thousand (10,000) square feet, and an 
absolute maximum of ten (10) colonies. 

 
(2) Exceptions.  A beekeeper may exceed these regulations under the 

following conditions:  
 
(a) As part of normal honeybee colony management, a beekeeper 

may also keep, in addition to allowable standard hives, for up to 
forty-five (45) days between April 15th and August 15th, two 
nucleus colonies per standard hive, provided they are used for 
managing colony strength, to minimize reproductive swarming, 
queen rearing or swarm capture. 

 
(b) For each allowed hive, a single nucleus hive may be kept from 

August 16th to April 14th to allow a beekeeper to mitigate winter 
bee losses.  

 
(c) Apiaries that are pre-existing prior to enactment of this Chapter 

shall not be subject to the limitations of section 4b and shall not 
exceed the number of hives active at the time of the ordinance and 
shall be confirmed by the pre-existing apiary registration of the 
location as reported by the Pennsylvania Department of 
Agriculture, Bureau of Plant Industry. 

236



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 140 of 192 

 

 
c. Colony Size. No colony shall exceed twenty (20) cubic feet in volume. 

 
d. Location.  A colony shall be located in a Rear or Side Yard on any Parcel with a 

Residential or Community Garden Use. No colony shall be located in the front yard 
nor closer than ten (10) feet from any property line or principal Building on an 
abutting Parcel unless a flyway barrier is in place. No colony shall be located 
within fifty (50) feet of a pre-existing swimming pool or a pre-existing kenneled 
animal. 

 
e. Flyway Barrier. A flyway barrier of at least six (6) feet in Height shall shield a 

property line within ten (10) feet of a colony, unless the base of the colony is 
located more than six (6) feet above the ground.  

 
(1) A required flyway barrier shall consist of a wall, fence, dense vegetation, 

or a combination thereof.   
 
(2) The barrier shall be positioned along the side of the hive(s) that contains 

the entrance to the hive(s).  
 
(3) The barrier shall be located within five (5) feet of the hive(s) and shall 

extend at least two (2) feet on either side of the hive(s).  
 
(4) Exceptions to Flyway Barrier.  A flyway barrier is not required if the 

property adjoining the apiary Parcel line is:   
 

(a) Undeveloped, or   
 
(b) Zoned agricultural, industrial or is outside municipal limits, or   
 
(c) Is a state game lands, state park, national forest, state forest, 

natural park, or conservation area and has no pre- existing human 
or horse trails located within twenty-five (25) feet of the property 
line.   
 

f. Agricultural Commercial Enterprise. No sales of honey shall occur on the Parcel 
containing the honeybee colony, except in the case of a honeybee colony located 
on an Agricultural Operation or Community Garden where there is an Agricultural 
Commercial Enterprise, in which case the operator of the honeybee colony shall be 
permitted to sell honey at the Agricultural Commercial Enterprise.  
 

g. State Registration Required.  All persons keeping bees in the Borough shall apply 
for a certificate of registration for beekeeping pursuant to the Bee Law, as 
amended.   
 

h. Education Certification. Written evidence shall be provided to the Borough from 
each and every individual engaged in beekeeping activities and shall have 
completed a beekeeping education course/program with a minimum of eight (8) 
hours of instruction or has a letter of validation from an officer of the PA State 
Beekeepers Association, an officer of a local bee club, or a certified Master 
Beekeeper.   
 

i. Water.  A supply of fresh water shall be maintained in a location readily accessible 
to all bee colonies on the site throughout the day to prevent bees from 

237



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 141 of 192 

 

congregating at neighboring swimming pools or other sources of water on nearby 
properties. 
 

j. Nuisance.  It shall be unlawful for any beekeeper to keep any hive in such a manner 
as to cause any unhealthy condition or interfere with the normal use of adjoining 
properties.  By way of example and not limited to, the following activities are 
hereby declared a nuisance and therefore unlawful: 
 
(1) The use of receptacles for honeybees that does not comply with the Bee 

Law, as amended.   
 
(2) Hive placement and related bee movement such that the bees, without 

provocation, interfere with the reasonable freedom of movement of 
persons in a public Right-of-Way, or the location of bees have a proven 
impact to the general safety, health, and welfare of the public. 
 

k. Inspection.  If an inspection is required as a result of a nuisance complaint, the 
designated municipal code enforcement officer will inspect the property only and 
not the beehives. A representative of the state or local beekeeping organization 
will be contacted to assist in understanding how the complaint arose and to what 
extent it is actually caused by the honeybees/beekeeper (i.e., “bee” stings are 
often caused by yellow jackets, hornets and wasps and mistakenly blamed on 
honey bees because the honey bee colonies can be seen unlike many other 
aggressive stinging insects). A notice of forty-eight (48) hours shall be given to the 
beekeeper prior to any inspection. 

 

6. No-Impact Home-Based Business. A business or commercial activity administered or 

conducted as an Accessory Use that is clearly secondary to the Use as a residential dwelling 
and which involves no customer, client or patient traffic, whether vehicular or pedestrian, 
pickup, delivery or removal functions to or from the Premises, in excess of those normally 
associated with residential Use.  The following supplemental Use regulations shall apply:  

 
a. The business activity shall be compatible with the residential use of the property 

and surrounding residential uses. 
 
b. The business shall employ no employees other than family members residing in the 

dwelling. 
 
c. There shall be no display or sale of retail goods and no stockpiling or inventory 

of a substantial nature. 
 
d. There shall be no outside appearance of a business Use, including, but not limited 

to, parking, Signs or lights. 
 
e. The business activity may not Use any equipment or process which creates noise, 

vibration, glare, fumes, odors or electrical or electronic interference, including 
interference with radio or television reception, which is detectable in the 
neighborhood. 

 
f. The business activity may not generate any solid waste or sewage discharge, in 

volume or type, which is not normally associated with residential Use in the 
neighborhood. 

 

238



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 142 of 192 

 

g. The business activity shall be conducted only within the dwelling and may not 
occupy more than twenty-five (25) percent of the habitable GFA. 

 
h. The business may not involve any illegal activity. 

 
 

7. Parking; Commercial Use Only. A privately-owned parcel used for surface parking solely 
by the commercial use occupants in an adjacent Building located on the same Parcel. A 
parking Parcel may be uncovered or covered by a Structure. The following supplemental 
Use regulation shall apply: 
 

a. In no cases shall an existing principal Building or Structure shall be 
removed for the sole purpose of creating surface parking. 

 
b. In no case shall the parking be made available for public parking 

purposes. 
 
c. The perimeter of the commercial parking area shall be landscaped in 

accordance with Chapter 22, Subdivision and Land Development, of the 
Borough Code of Ordinances. 

 
§ 27-307 Temporary Uses 
 
(A) General. 
 

1. Temporary Uses are limited to those expressly regulated in this Chapter as well as those 
that in the Determination of the Borough Board of Supervisors are deemed appropriate as 
a Temporary Use. 

 
2. A Temporary Use that is conducted annually or on a similar recurring basis as determined 

by the Borough and has received Special Exception approval from the Borough Zoning 
Hearing Board.  The temporary Use may be permitted to recur thereafter with approval 
from the Zoning Officer provided that the event location, format, and operations have not 
substantially changed from the original approval and that the conditions established in the 
original approval are deemed applicable.  All other Temporary Uses shall receive Special 
Exception approval for each occurrence. 

 
(B) Temporary Uses. 
 

 
 

2. Temporary Outdoor Event and/or Retail Sales.  A Temporary Outdoor Event and/or Retail 
Sales such as a carnival, circus, Street celebration, race, bazaar, market, procession, 
assemblage, temporary sales tents (e.g., fireworks, flowers, etc.) or other similar outdoor 
event. Such events may be on a Street, Open Space, or other public space in which public 
access is wholly or partially restricted.  The event may include the sale of goods.  The 
following supplemental Use regulations shall apply: 

 
a. The Applicant shall indemnify, save harmless, and defend (if requested) the Borough 

and the Owner(s) of any private or public property upon which the event/activity 
will be held and their respective officers, agents, and employees from any and all 
claims, suits, or actions for injuries, death and/or property damage arising out of 
the Temporary Outdoor Event where the claim, suit, or action was caused by the 
Applicant, its officers, agents, and employees, the event participants, support staffs, 

239



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 3 ZONING USES Page 143 of 192 

 

event officials, volunteers, medical support, technical support, media vehicles, event 
communications staffs, the traveling public, general public, or spectators. 

 
b. A certificate of insurance must be provided showing: (a) public liability insurance 

for bodily injury and property damage in the minimum amount of two hundred fifty 
thousand dollars ($250,000) per Person and one million dollars ($1,000,000) per 
occurrence to cover any loss that might occur as a result of the Permitted use of the 
local and state rights of way or private property that might otherwise arise out of 
or be connected with the event; (b) occurrence-based coverage; and (c) the Borough 
and applicable public and private Landowner’s named as the additional insured. 
The Applicant warrants the information in the insurance certificate is accurate. 

 
e. The event location or route shall be appropriately secured with proper security and 

safety measures taken to protect the event participants, support staffs, event 
officials, volunteers, medical support, technical support, media vehicles, vehicle 
escort services, maintenance and protection services, the traveling public, event 
communications staffs, the general public, and spectators. Proper emergency 
medical services shall be provided. Local fire departments, the general public, and 
the traveling public shall be notified in advance of the event.  

 
f. Written authorization from the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation 

(PennDOT) via a Special Event Permit granting the Applicant permission to Use the 
Right-of-Way of a state roadway. The Applicant shall provide the Borough with a 
complete copy of the Special Event Permit and associated documentation.  All 
information shall be submitted to the Zoning Officer. 

 
g. Written permission for use of any private property must be obtained from the 

Owner(s), or other Person with authority to grant same, and be submitted to the 
Zoning Officer. 

240



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Code, Chapter 27 

PART 5 DEFINITIONS Page 144 of 192 

PART 4 SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS 

 
Purpose.  The purpose of these supplemental zoning regulations is to set specific performance standards 
related to the Use of a Lot including accessory Buildings and Structures; buffering and screening, off-Street 
parking, encroachments, outdoor storage, etc.  Use requirements contained elsewhere in this Chapter apply 
to all Uses and Structures, whether specifically listed in this Article.  Likewise, the provisions of this Article 
shall not be interpreted as relief from the requirements of this Chapter or any other requirements of the 
Borough.  Certain of the following supplemental regulations or provisions thereof, to the extent specified 
therein, are applicable to any and all existing and proposed Uses of land, Buildings, or Structures. 
 
§ 27-401 Access to Structures 
 
Every building or structure hereafter erected or moved shall be located on a lot that abuts a public street 
or road or with access to an acceptable private street or road, and all buildings and structures shall be 
located so as to provide safe and convenient access for servicing, fire protection and off-street parking. 
 
§ 27-402 Accessory Buildings and Structures 
 
(A) Detached Garages.  Detached private garages shall be permitted in any zoning district, subject to 

the following requirements: 
 

1. Maximum Capacity.  Three (3) Vehicles permitted in the R-1, R-1A, and R-2 Districts. 
 
2. Maximum Height. Twenty-five (25) feet. 
 
3. Temporary detached garage buildings and structures are not permitted. 
 
4. A detached garage shall not be located within any required minimum front yard area. 
 
5. A detached garage located along or adjacent to an alley shall be exempt from the minimum 

rear and side yard setback requirements of the underlying zoning district, provided that all 
stormwater and snow runoff will be directed on-lot and will not discharge to neighboring 
properties.  

 
(B) Other Accessory Buildings and Structures. 
 

1. Maximum Height. Twenty-five (25) feet in any residential district. (Historic District 
requirements shall be met.) 

 
2. Minimum Distance Between Buildings and/or Structures. Five (5) feet, except in the R-1 and 

R-1A Districts, where the minimum distance between buildings and structures shall be ten 
(10) feet. 

 
3. Except as otherwise permitted herein (see setback provisions in sections regulating "private 

swimming pools" and "fences" set forth herein), no accessory Building or Structure shall be 
located within any required minimum front, side, or rear yard areas nor within five (5) feet 
of any property line. A residential accessory building located in the backyard of a Lot may 
be permitted within the minimum side yard a distance of up to two (2) feet from the side 
property line if the applicant submits a survey of the subject Lot prepared by a Professional 
Land Surveyor who is currently licensed and registered under the laws of the Commonwealth 
of Pennsylvania to engage in the practice of land surveying. Under no circumstance shall 
any portion of the building, including its overhangs, gutters, or other architectural features, 
extend beyond the property line of the subject Lot and encroach upon the adjoining Lot. 

241



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 4 SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS Page 145 of 192 

 

 
4. Accessory buildings and/or structures shall meet the Lot coverage requirements for the 

regulating zoning district. 
 

§ 27-403 Build-To Lines 
 
(A) Build-To Lines Established. Build-to lines are hereby established from the existing Curbline of all 

existing and proposed public streets within the Borough or at the edge of the paved cartway if 
there is no curb. Except as specifically provided in other sections of this chapter, no buildings shall 
be placed in the area between the Build-To Line and any Street Curbline, except as permitted under 
Subsection (E) below. In situations involving a proposed public Street, the Build-To Line shall be as 
shown on the subdivision and/or land development plan. 

 
(B) Build-To Line Requirements.  Distance requirements for zoning district Build-To Lines shall be as 

specified in the respective Building Form Regulations under Article 2 Zoning Districts of this Chapter.   
 
(C) On any corner Lot, the required Build-To Line shall be provided along both Streets. 
 
(D) The Build-To Line shall be considered a building setback line in all districts. 
 
(E) Whenever the majority of the existing buildings on a block face have nonconforming Build-To Lines, 

the Build-To Line for new buildings may be modified to conform to such majority at the discretion of 
the Borough Zoning Officer. In no case shall the Build-To Line be less than that of any adjacent 
building. 

 
(F) The Build-To Line may vary with a recess or setback to the building, or to the Build-To Line itself, of 

up to four feet. However, the Build-To Line may have a greater recess or a setback to a building 
when: topographic or hydrologic conditions on a Lot warrant same; an ADA-accessible ramp is 
needed; or Zoning District height modifications are employed. 

 
(G) The Build-To Line may vary up to four (4) feet with a projection to a building or to the Build-To Line 

itself if no part of any building or sign encroaches upon the Street right-of-way and the required 
sidewalk can physically fit along the streetscape. 

 
§ 27-404 Driveways 
 
(A) No single use or group of attached buildings on a single lot or uses designed as a single unit shall 

have more than two (2) driveways. 
 
(B) No driveway shall be located within fifty (50) feet of the intersection of any Street Right-of-Way 

lines. 
 
(C) Driveways between the Street Right-of-Way line and cartways shall be paved. 
 
(D) Driveways shall be no wider than thirty (30) feet. 
 
§ 27-405 Existing Single-Family Attached Dwellings 
 
When a Lot which is improved with existing single-family attached dwellings is the subject of a subdivision 
application for the purpose of enabling single-family residential development and usage on the subdivided 
Lot or Lots, the applicant shall not be required to meet the requirements of § 27-403, Build-To Lines, herein 
relative to Lot requirements. All other requirements of this Part shall apply to the development of the 
subdivided Lot or Lots and shall be enforced. 
 

242



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 4 SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS Page 146 of 192 

 

§ 27-406 Existing Single-Family Semidetached Dwellings 
 
When a Lot, which is improved with existing single-family semidetached dwellings, is the subject of a 
subdivision application for the purpose of enabling single-family residential development and usage on the 
subdivided Lot or Lots, the applicant shall not be required to meet the requirements of § 27-403, Build-To 
Lines, herein relative to Lot requirements. All other requirements of this Part shall apply to the development 
of the subdivided Lot or Lots and shall be enforced. 
 
§ 27-407 Fences 
 
(A) In residential districts, no fence shall be erected that is more than six (6) feet in height, except as 

stipulated under Subparagraph (B) below. 
 
(B) Fences shall not exceed four (4) feet in height in the front yard area between the Street Right-of-

Way and required building setback or Build-To Lines. Any fence located in the required front yard 
in an R-1, R-1A, R-2, NC-1, NC-2, NC-3, or OT District shall have a minimum ratio of 1:1 of open to 
structural area.   

 
(C) The finished side of the fence material shall face towards the public Street. 
 
(D) A fence shall not be required to comply with minimum setbacks for accessory buildings and structures. 
 
§ 27-408 Maintenance of Common Areas, Facilities and Open Spaced 
 
(A) A formal, binding Homeowners' Association shall be responsible for any commonly owned and/or 

maintained improvements or lands, such as common open space, parking areas, recreation facilities, 
sidewalks, streets, alleys, utilities, stormwater control facilities and other similar improvements. This 
Homeowners' Association shall be established and subject to the provisions of Section 705(f) of the 
State Municipalities Planning Code2 and Title 68 of the Real and Personal Property Act, Part II, Real 
Property, Subpart B, Condominiums, as amended by Senate Bill 65, 1979. 

 
(B) Any such Condominium or Homeowners' Association agreement shall be provided to the Borough 

Solicitor for review a minimum of thirty (30) business days before the final plan is recorded. If, within 
those thirty (30) business days, the Borough Solicitor determines, in writing, that such a document is 
not in legally acceptable form with regard to the concerns of the Borough, the plan shall not be 
recorded until acceptable revisions are made. 

 
§ 27-409 Nonconformities 
 
(A) Purpose. The following provisions shall apply to existing lawful uses, buildings, structures, and lots 

which do not conform to the requirements of this Chapter or any amendments thereto. The purpose 
of these provisions is to reasonably provide for such existing nonconformities. The conversion or 
reversion of such nonconformities, however, shall be encouraged whenever possible. 

 
(B) Nonconforming Buildings, Structures and Uses. 

 
1. Continuation. Any building, structure or lawful use existing at the Effective Date of this 

Chapter may be continued indefinitely. 
 
2. Extension. 
 

a. A building occupied by a nonconforming use shall not be enlarged, extended, or 
structurally altered (except as may be required by law to assure the structural 
safety of the building) and any nonconforming use shall not be enlarged or 

243



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 4 SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS Page 147 of 192 

 

extended except for the following which may be authorized by Special Exception 
by the Zoning Hearing Board: 

 
(1) The extension of a nonconforming use of a portion of a building to another 

portion of the building. 
 
(2) The reasonable extension of a conforming building occupied by a 

nonconforming use on a conforming lot, provided that such extension is not 
detrimental to the character of the surrounding area or the interests of the 
Borough and that such extension shall conform to the area and height 
regulations of the district in which it is located. 

 
b. A nonconforming building may be rebuilt or altered only: 
 

(1) Where an existing building is nonconforming with regard to one or more 
applicable dimensional standards, such building may be extended, 
expanded, or enlarged as a matter of right, provided that the degree of 
nonconformity is not increased. 

 
(2) Where an existing building is nonconforming with regard to one or more 

applicable dimensional standards, and an extension, expansion, or 
enlargement of said building is proposed that would increase the degree 
of nonconformity, such extension, expansion, or enlargement of the 
nonconformity may only be authorized by approval of a variance for the 
same granted by the Zoning Hearing Board. 

 
(3) Pursuant to the provisions of Subsection (B)4., Restoration, of this Section. 

 
3. Change. A nonconforming use of a building or land may be changed to a nonconforming 

use of the same or more-restricted classifications, when authorized by the Zoning Hearing 
Board as a Special Exception. Whenever a nonconforming use of a building or land has 
been changed to a use of a more-restricted classification or to a conforming use, such use 
shall not thereafter be changed to a use of a less-restricted classification. 

 
4. Restoration. A nonconforming building, or a building occupied by a nonconforming use, which 

is wholly or partially destroyed by fire, explosion, flood or other phenomenon, or which has 
been legally condemned, may be reconstructed or repaired and/or used for the same 
nonconforming use, provided that such building reconstruction shall be commenced within 
one year from the date the building was destroyed or condemned and shall be carried on 
without interruption. 

 
5. Abandonment. If a nonconforming use of a building or land is voluntarily abandoned and 

ceases for a continuous period of one (1) year or more, subsequent use of such building or 
land shall be in conformity with the provisions of this Part. 

 
(C) Nonconforming Lots. 
 

1. Held in Single and Separate Ownership. A building may be erected or altered on any lot 
held at the Effective Date of this Chapter in single and separate ownership which is not of 
the required minimum area or width or is of such unusual dimensions or shape that the owner 
would have difficulty in providing the required open spaces for the district in which such lot 
is located, provided that the plans for the proposed building shall be approved by the 
Zoning Hearing Board after review of the plans to assure reasonable compliance with the 
intent of the regulations for the district. 

244



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 4 SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS Page 148 of 192 

 

 
2. Included in Approved Plans. Buildings may be erected on lots which are not held in single 

and separate ownership at the time this Part becomes effective, and which are not of the 
required area or width if such lots are included in a land subdivision plan which has been 
approved by the Borough Council prior to the Effective Date of this Part. 

 
(D) Registration of Nonconformities. 

 
1. The Zoning Officer may provide an applicant with a certificate of nonconformity if sufficient 

evidence is provided by the applicant. 
 
§ 27-410 On-Lot Storage in Residential Districts 

 
(A) Except for licensed automobiles, no vehicle, machinery, trailer, mobile home, boat, or other similar 

equipment shall be parked or stored outside for more than seven (7) days in any residential district 
within any front yard area or within any required side yard areas. No more than one (1) such item 
shall be stored outside at any time on a single property. 

 
(B) The parking or storage of any licensed automobile in a front yard area shall occur only upon a 

driveway. 
 
§ 27-411 Performance Standards 
 
(A) No use or activity shall be permitted that will create any dangerous, injurious, noxious, or otherwise 

objectionable situation. Specifically, a use or activity shall not: 
 
1. Constitute a nuisance or danger to human health and safety, livestock or plants, or any other 

property as a result of the emission or dissemination of any fumes, smoke, odor, or dust 
beyond the property line of the premises upon which such use or activity is located. 

 
2. Create any noise or vibration exceeding the average intensity of noise or vibration 

occurring from other sources at the property line. 
 
3. Endanger any surrounding area by reason of fire or explosion. 
 
4. Produce any objectionable heat or glare beyond the property line. 
 
5. Create any electrical disturbances or adversely affect the operation of equipment located 

off the premises. 
 
6. Discharge any dangerous or untreated effluent into any stream or other body of water or 

otherwise contribute to the pollution of surface or underground water. 
 
7. Create an undesirable or dangerous traffic condition on the Street or in a nearby area or 

generate a nuisance to any nearby property because of increased traffic. 
 
8. Create any other objectionable condition that will endanger public health and safety or be 

detrimental to the proper use of the surrounding area. 
 
(B) In order to determine that a proposed use or activity will comply with the above standards, the 

Zoning Officer or Zoning Hearing Board may: 
 

245



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 4 SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS Page 149 of 192 

 

1. Require the submission of impartial expert opinions or judgments from official agencies or 
private consultants. 

 
2. Require the submission of written assurances from the applicant. 
 
3. Require compliance with certain tests or provision of whatever safeguards may be 

considered necessary. 
 
§ 27-412 Parking, Loading, and Unloading 
 
(A) General Provisions.  

 
1. Vehicular Parking. 
 

a. No building or structure shall hereafter be constructed, and no use or activity shall 
be expanded, unless provision is made on the same or adjacent premises for off-
Street parking and loading facilities meeting the requirements of this Section and 
other applicable provisions of this Chapter. 

 
b. A single parking space shall have a minimum rectangular dimension of not less than 

nine (9) feet in width and eighteen (18) feet in length, exclusive of driveways, aisles, 
and other circulation areas. 

 
c. Parking areas shall be paved, except for private individual parking areas on 

residential lots, and shall be adequately drained in a manner approved by the 
Zoning Officer to provide for safe and convenient access at all times. 

 
d. Parking areas, except those designed for individual residential units, shall be 

designed so that each vehicle may access any parking space without requiring the 
movement or relocation of any other vehicle. 

 
e. Lots or parcels containing two (2) or more uses shall be required to provide parking 

spaces in accordance with Subparagraph (F), Shared Parking. Uses on separate 
but adjoining parcels may provide parking spaces in accordance with 
Subparagraph (F)5., Shared Parking. 

 
f. Off-Street parking areas of more than four (4) spaces shall be screened with 

hedges, walls, fences, or other landscaping at least thirty (30) inches in height if 
located in front or to the side of a building. 

 
2. Bicycle Parking. 

 
a. A property owner shall provide and maintain all required bicycle parking so long 

as the use for which such parking spaces were designed to serve still exists. 
Maintenance of bicycle parking spaces shall include keeping all spaces and racks 
clear of snow, ice, and any other obstructions. 

 
b. Where required bicycle parking is provided as racks, the racks must meet the 

following standards: 
 
(1) A bicycle and one of its wheels can be locked to the rack with a high security 

U-shaped shackle lock without the removal of a wheel from the bicycle; 
 

246



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 4 SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS Page 150 of 192 

 

(2) A bicycle six (6) feet in length can be securely held with its frame supported 
in at least two places so that the bicycle cannot be pushed over or fall in 
any manner that would damage its wheels or components; and 

 
(3) Racks shall be placed a minimum of thirty (30) inches on center from one 

another and a minimum of twenty-four (24) inches from any other 
obstructions; with a forty- eight (48) inch minimum aisle separating racks 
and a minimum clearance width of twelve (12) inches for each bicycle; and 

 
(4) Each rack shall be securely anchored. 
 

c. Where not provided as racks, required bicycle parking facilities must be reviewed 
and approved by the Zoning Officer. 

 
(B) Parking Space Requirements.   
 

1. Maximum Spaces Permitted.  
 

a. In recognition of the need to strongly encourage new construction and the reuse of 
building spaces within the Borough, and recognizing the availability of existing 
parking lots, parking structures, and on-Street parking areas, Applicants are 
required to consider such existing parking and their availability to meet the 
maximum permitted number of spaces stipulated in in this Section and in Table 4.01.  
Any of the specified permitted uses or Buildings hereafter established, erected or 
enlarged; any use or Building hereafter converted into one of the following uses; 
and any Open Space hereafter used shall be provided with not more than the 
maximum permitted off-Street parking spaces as set forth in Table 4.01, together 
with adequate access drives, driveways or other means of circulation and access to 
and from a Street.  

 
b. Notwithstanding the maximum parking space requirements specified in 

subparagraph (B)1 above, the Applicant may be authorized additional parking 
subject to a Parking Analysis Report pursuant to Subsection (C) below and Special 
Exception approval by the Zoning Hearing Board. 

 
c. Except for the OT District, where the need to maximize the use of existing parking 

lots, parking structures, and on-Street parking areas, new construction and 
proposed reuse of an existing building provide zero (0) new parking spaces. 

 
Table 4.01, Maximum Required Off-Street Parking Space Requirements 

USES 
MAXIMUM PERMITTED OFF-STREET 

PARKING SPACES 

RESIDENTIAL USES 

Community Residence, Group Home 
1 space per 2 beds; plus 1 space per 
employee on the largest work shift 

Community Residence, Sober Living Facility/Recovery House 

1 parking space for each sleeping room 
to be occupied by residents plus 1 space 
for each dwelling unit on the premises, 
plus 1 space for every 2 employees not 
living on the premises 

Dwelling, Multi-Family, Apartment 2 per unit 

247



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 4 SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS Page 151 of 192 

 

USES 
MAXIMUM PERMITTED OFF-STREET 

PARKING SPACES 

Dwelling, Multi-Family Conversion 2 per unit 

Dwelling, Single Family Detached 2 per Lot 

Dwelling, Single Family Semi-Detached, Duplex 2 per unit 

Dwelling, Single Family Semi-Attached, Townhouse 2 per unit 

Dwelling, Staff Housing 2 per housing unit 

Dwelling, Student Housing 1 per every 2 student residents 

Dwelling, Student Housing, Institutional 1 per every 2 student residents 

Manufactured Home 1 per unit 

Manufactured Home Community 2 per lot 

LODGING USES 

Bed and Breakfast 
1 space per sleeping room, plus 2 per 
permanent residents 

Community Residence, Halfway House 

1 parking space for each sleeping room 
to be occupied by residents plus 1 space 
for each dwelling unit on the premises, 
plus 1 space for every 2 employees not 
living on the premises 

Hotel 
1 space for each guest room, plus 1 
space for each 2 employees on the 
largest shift 

Inn 
1 space for each guest room, plus 1 
space for each 2 employees on the 
largest shift 

Motel 
1 space for each guest room, plus 1 
space for each 2 employees on the 
largest shift 

Rooming House / Boardinghouse 

1 parking space for each sleeping room 
to be occupied by boarders plus 1 
space for each dwelling unit on the 
premises, plus 1 space for every 2 
employees not living on the premises 

Vacation Rental 1 per rented unit 

Temporary Shelter Facility 1 per employee 

CIVIC AND INSTITUTIONAL USES  

Assembly, Neighborhood 
Parking Analysis Report pursuant to 
Subsection (C) 

Cemetery 

1 per each employee and accessways to 
the cemetery sections shall allow 
parallel parking on the accessway for 
gravesite services and visitations.  Such 
parking shall not queue into the public 
Right-of-Way or Clear Sight Triangle 

248



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 4 SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS Page 152 of 192 

 

USES 
MAXIMUM PERMITTED OFF-STREET 

PARKING SPACES 

Government Facility 
Parking Analysis Report pursuant to 
Subsection (C) 

Hospital 
Parking Analysis Report pursuant to 
Subsection (C) 

Library/Museum 
Parking Analysis Report pursuant to 
Subsection (C) 

Places of Worship 
Parking Analysis Report pursuant to 
Subsection (C) 

Police/Fire/EMS 

1 space per 400 square feet of facility 
space, plus 1 space for each 50 square 
feet of assembly area, meeting room, 
conference, etc.  Note these are outdoor 
parking spaces and do not account for 
the required spaces needed for indoor 
parking of emergency service vehicles. 

School, Public or Private  
Parking Analysis Report pursuant to 
Subsection (C) 

Stadium/Arena 
Parking Analysis Report pursuant to 
Subsection (C) 

FORESTRY AND OPEN SPACE USES 

Forestry N/A 

Recreation Facility, Commercial or Private 
Parking Analysis Report pursuant to 
Subsection (C) 

Recreation Facility, Public 1 per each 5 acres of park land 

Shooting Range, Indoor 1 per 1,500 sq. ft. of use area 

COMMERCIAL USES 

Adult Day Care Center 
1 per each employee on the maximum 
shift and 1 per each 2 of the maximum 
number of adults cared for at the center 

Adult Establishments 
1 per each employee on the maximum 
shift and 1 per each 2 of the maximum 
number of adults cared for at the center 

Assisted Living Facility 
1 per each employee on the maximum 
shift and 1 per each 2 of the maximum 
number of adults cared for at the center 

Automobile / Truck Repair Garage 

1 per each employee on the maximum 
shift and 1 per vehicle if drop off 
service is offered, plus vehicle queue 
area 

Automobile Car Wash 

1 parking space per employee of the 
largest shift. Stacking for 5 vehicles for 
automatic car wash lane, plus 2 drying 
spaces for each washing stall. 

Automobile Fueling Service 

1 per each employee on the maximum 
shift and 1 per vehicle if drop off 
service is offered, plus vehicle queue 
area 

249



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 4 SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS Page 153 of 192 

 

USES 
MAXIMUM PERMITTED OFF-STREET 

PARKING SPACES 

Betting Use, Large 1 per each 200 square feet of GFA 

Betting Use, Small 1 per each 200 square feet of GFA 

Brew Pub 1 per each 200 square feet of GFA 

Child Care Center 

1 per each employee on the maximum 
shift and 1 per each 2 of the maximum 
number of children cared for at the 
center 

Commercial Equipment and Supply 1 per each 200 square feet of GFA 

Community Service 1 per each 200 square feet of GFA 

Convenience Store 1 per each 200 square feet of GFA 

Drinking Place 1 per each 200 square feet of GFA 

Eating Place w/Drive-Thru 1 per each 200 square feet of GFA 

Eating Place w/o Drive-Thru 1 per each 200 square feet of GFA 

Electronic Cigarette / Vaporizer Store / Smoking Places 1 per each 200 square feet of GFA 

Event Venue 
Parking Analysis Report pursuant to 
Subsection (C) 

Extended Height Building 1 per each 200 square feet of GFA 

Farmers Market 1 per each 200 square feet of GFA 

Family Child Care Home 

1 per each employee on the maximum 
shift and 1 per each 2 of the maximum 
number of children cared for at the 
facility 

Funeral Home  
1 per for every 10,000 square feet of 
GFA 

General Commercial Service Uses 1 per each 200 square feet of GFA 

Grocery Store 1 per each 200 square feet of GFA 

Group Child Care Home 

1 per each employee on the maximum 
shift and 1 per each 2 of the maximum 
number of children cared for at the 
facility 

Kennel 
1 per each employee on the maximum 
shift and 1 per each 200 square feet of 
area devoted to the kennel area 

Long-Term Care Facility 
1 per each employee on the maximum 
shift and 1 per each 2 of the maximum 
number of adults cared for at the center 

Massage Establishment 1 per each 200 square feet of GFA 

Medical Clinic 1 per each 200 square feet of GFA 

Medical Marijuana Dispensary 1 per each 200 square feet of GFA 

250



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 4 SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS Page 154 of 192 

 

USES 
MAXIMUM PERMITTED OFF-STREET 

PARKING SPACES 

Methadone / Suboxone Treatment Facility 1 per each 200 square feet of GFA 

Microbrewery / Microdistillery / Microwinery 1 per 500 square feet of GFA 

Neighborhood Retail 1 per each 200 square feet of GFA 

Neighborhood Service 1 per each 200 square feet of GFA 

Office Uses 1 per each 200 square feet of GFA 

Outdoor Sales 
1 per each 2,000 square feet of Lot 
area for employee and customer 
parking (excludes vehicle display area) 

Pawn Shop/Check Cashing Establishment 1 per each 200 square feet of GFA 

Private Club 1 per each 200 square feet of GFA 

Public Market 1 per each 200 square feet of GFA 

Self-Storage Facility 1 per each 1,500 square feet of GFA 

Tattoo/Piercing Parlor 1 per each 200 square feet of GFA 

Tour Operator 1 per each 200 square feet of GFA 

INFRASTRUCURE USES  

Parking Structure 
1 space per parking attendant 
employee, plus 1 space for the 
employee on the preceding shift 

Principal Solar Energy Systems (PSES) 1 per each service vehicle 

Transportation and Essential Services 
Parking Analysis Report pursuant to 
Subsection (C) 

Wireless Communications Facilities, Small Wireless 
Communications Inside the Public Rights-of-Way 

N/A 

Wireless Communications Facilities, Small Wireless 
Communications Outside the Public Rights-of-Way 

N/A 

Wireless Communications Facilities, Tower-Based  1 per each service vehicle 

INDUSTRIAL USES  

Automotive Dismantler and Recycler 
Parking Analysis Report pursuant to 
Subsection (C) 

Brewery, Distillery, Winery 
Parking Analysis Report pursuant to 
Subsection (C) 

Craftsman Industrial 
Parking Analysis Report pursuant to 
Subsection (C) 

Junkyards 
Parking Analysis Report pursuant to 
Subsection (C) 

Manufacturing 
Parking Analysis Report pursuant to 
Subsection (C) 

Medical Marijuana Grower / Processor Facility 
Parking Analysis Report pursuant to 
Subsection (C) 

Outdoor Storage Yard 
Parking Analysis Report pursuant to 
Subsection (C) 

251



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 4 SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS Page 155 of 192 

 

USES 
MAXIMUM PERMITTED OFF-STREET 

PARKING SPACES 

Truck Terminal  
Parking Analysis Report pursuant to 
Subsection (C) 

Truck Trailer Parking 
Parking Analysis Report pursuant to 
Subsection (C) 

Warehouse/Distribution 
Parking Analysis Report pursuant to 
Subsection (C) 

Yard Waste Composting Facility 
Parking Analysis Report pursuant to 
Subsection (C) 

ACCESSORY USES 

Accessory Dwelling Unit 1 per ADU 

Child Care Center (as an Accessory Use to a Principal 
Residential Use) 

Equivalent to the primary residential use 
requirement 

Heliport/Vertiport 2 spaces per helistop/vertiport 

Helistop 
1 space per helistop pad (sized 
appropriately for EMS service use) 

Home Occupation 
Equivalent to the primary residential use 
requirement 

Keeping of Chickens  N/A 

Keeping of Honeybees N/A 

No-Impact Home-Based Business 
Equivalent to the primary residential use 
requirement 

Parking, Commercial 
Equivalent to the primary commercia use 
requirement 

TEMPORARY USES 

Temporary Outdoor Event 
Parking Analysis Report pursuant to 
Subsection (C) 

USES NOT PROVIDED FOR 

In the case where a use is not provided for in Table 4.07, the 
Zoning Officer may make a determination on the applicable 
parking standards based on a comparable use.  In the event 
such determination cannot be made, then the Applicant shall 
be subject to the requirements of Section 3.03 Unlisted Uses 
of this Chapter. 

In addition to the reasonable standards 
applied by the Board of Supervisors, the 
Borough shall require a Parking Analysis 
Report pursuant to Subsection D to 
determine the minimum required number 
of parking spaces. 

 
2. On-Street Parking.  
 

a. On-Street parking requirements shall be as follows, except within the R-1 and R-
1A districts: 
 
(1) On-Street parking may be provided along streets only where parking is 

metered. 
 
(2) Such on-street parking may be counted toward the required maximum 

parking for nonresidential uses as set forth in Table 4.01.  On-Street 
parking spaces may also be counted towards the number of parking spaces 
required consistent with Subsection (F), Shared Parking. 

252



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 4 SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS Page 156 of 192 

 

 
2. On-Street parking areas may only be counted within thirty (30) feet of the lot 

frontage owned by the applicant or landowner, exclusive of any driveway or other 
curb cut, and exclusive of any existing cartway and perpendicular Street. 

 
3. A bona fide on-street parking space shall measure at least seven (7) feet in width 

and twenty-feet (20) feet in length, exclusive of any Street cartway, and shall be 
parallel to the Curbline. 

 
4. All eligible on-street parking areas shall be clearly depicted on a plan. Such 

parking areas shall not conflict with any turning movements off the cartway or 
obstruct access to any Street, driveway, sidewalk, crosswalk, other accessway, or 
fire hydrant. 

 
3. ADA Parking Spaces.  Notwithstanding the requirements of Subparagraphs (B) and (C) 

above, accessible off-street parking facility spaces shall be provided and designed 
pursuant to the 2010 ADA Standards for Accessible Design.  

 
a. Location. Parking spaces serving a particular building or facility shall be located on 

the shortest accessible route from parking to an entrance.  Where parking serves 
more than one (1) accessible entrance, parking spaces shall be dispersed and 
located on the shortest accessible route to the accessible entrances. In parking 
facilities that do not serve a particular building or facility, parking spaces shall be 
located on the shortest accessible route to an accessible pedestrian entrance of the 
parking facility.” 

 
b. Minimum Size.  Each required persons with an accessible parking space shall be a 

minimum of eight (8) by twenty (20) feet. In addition, each space shall be adjacent 
to a five (5) foot wide access aisle. Access aisles may be shared by two (2) 
accessible spaces by being placed the aisle between the accessible parking spaces. 

 
c. Dimensions. Accessible parking spaces must be at least ninety-six (96) inches wide 

with a clearly marked adjacent access aisle of sixty (60) inches in width; two spaces 
may share a common aisle.  Said access aisle must connect directly to the accessible 
route. 

 
d. Signage. All accessible parking spaces must have an unobscured vertical sign that 

shows the universal symbol of accessibility. Such signage should state that a fine 
may apply for violation of the parking limitation. 

 
e. Slope. Accessible parking spaces shall be located in areas of less than two (2) 

percent slope in any direction. 
 

f. The minimum number of accessible parking spaces shall be as stipulated in Table 
4.02. 

 
Table 4.02, Minimum Number of Required Accessible Parking Spaces 

Total Parking Spaces 

Minimum Number of Required Accessible Parking Spaces 

Standard Accessible Van Accessible 
Total (Standard + 

Van) 

1 – 25 0 1 1 

26 – 50 1 1 2 

51 – 75 2 1 3 

253



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 4 SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS Page 157 of 192 

 

76 – 100 3 1 4 

101 – 150 4 1 5 

151 – 200 5 1 6 

201 – 300 5 2 7 

301 – 400 6 2 8 

401 – 500 7 2 9 

500 – 1,000 
5 out of every 6 

Accessible Parking 
Spaces 

1 out of every 6 
Accessible Parking 

Spaces 

2% of total parking 
provided 

1001 and over 
5 out of every 6 

Accessible Parking 
Spaces 

1 out of every 6 
Accessible Parking 

Spaces 

20 plus 1 for each 
100 over 1,000 

*At least 1 in every 6 accessible slot or a fraction of 6. 

Source: 2010 ADA Standards for Accessible Design 

 
(C) Computation of Off-Street Parking Spaces. 

 
1. Where required under Table 4.01, and to ensure that certain developments provide 

adequate, but not excessive, vehicle parking, the Borough requires applicants thereof to 
submit a written computation of their required off-Street parking spaces based on the 
estimated parking demand of the proposed Use(s).   

 
2. The Applicant shall prepare a Parking Analysis Report to propose the maximum and 

minimum numbers of required off-Street parking spaces required by the project.  The Report 
shall be prepared by a Registered Design Professional.  The Parking Analysis Report shall 
contain the following: 

 
a. Site Plan.  A Site Plan containing the following: 

 
(1) Legal property boundary. 
 
(2) Existing and proposed project layout. 
 
(3) All existing and proposed uses and tenant spaces. 
 
(4) All existing and proposed parking spaces. 
 

b. Analysis of parking demand information from professional literature that is 
pertinent to the proposed development. Such information may include data or 
literature from the Urban Land Institute’s (ULI) Shared Parking, Third Edition 
publication and/or the Institute of Transportation Engineers’ (ITE) Parking 
Generation Manual, 6th Edition.  

 
c. The actual number of parking spaces required shall be based on well-recognized 

sources of parking data such as the above cited ULI or ITE reports.  If standard 
rates are not available or limited, the applicant may collect data at similar sites to 
establish local parking demand rates.  The information about the existing 
development and its parking demand shall include enough detail to evaluate 
similarities and differences between the existing development and the proposed 
development.  Field surveys shall consider the seasonal peak period for the 
proposed land uses involved. 
 

254



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 4 SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS Page 158 of 192 

 

d. Propose a minimum and maximum parking ratio. For phased projects, and for 
projects where the tenant mix is unknown or subject to change, the Applicant may 
propose a range (low and high number of parking spaces) for each development 
phase and both a minimum and maximum number of parking spaces to be provided 
at buildout of the project. 
 

e. Peak hours of operation and parking occupancy. 
 

f. Final number of proposed required parking spaces with justification and summary 
of findings (Note: Where the calculation of minimum parking spaces does not result 
in a whole number, the result shall be rounded up to the next whole number). 

 
3. Borough Approval. 
 

a. As part of the Borough’s required change of occupancy or subdivision or land 
development application approval process specified under Chapter 22 of the 
Borough Code, the Borough Council, upon recommendation by the Planning 
Commission and in consultation with the Borough Zoning Officer and Borough 
Engineer shall consider the final parking requirements determination made in the 
Applicant’s Parking Analysis Report.  Based on the Applicant’s materials and other 
data the Borough Engineer deems relevant, the Borough Council shall set the 
requirements for minimum and maximum parking allowed. Conditions of approval 
may be placed on the Decision to ensure compliance with the parking determination. 

 
b. The Applicant may appeal the Borough’s Decision to the Zoning Hearing Board 

pursuant to Section 1.13 of this Chapter.  
 
(D) Reduction of Required Parking Spaces. The required number of parking spaces may be reduced for 

each of the following location criteria met. The amount of reduction shall be the cumulative 
percentage of all of the following criteria met. When the required number of parking spaces is 
being provided consistent with Subparagraph (F), Shared Parking, the percentage reduction shall 
apply only to the total number of required parking spaces calculated pursuant to the provisions of 
Subparagraph (F)1A. 
 
Table 4.03, Reduction of Required Parking Spaces Criteria 

Criteria Reduction in Number of Parking Spaces 

Within 1,000 feet of a public parking facility 15% 

Within 500 feet of a transit facility 15% 

Dedication of a right-of-way for a portion of 
the Gettysburg Inner Loop Trail or planned 
connected systems 

10% 

Dedication of one bicycle parking space in lieu 
of one vehicle parking space for every 10 
required vehicle parking spaces 

Maximum 10 space reduction 

Provide one dedicated vehicle share service 
parking space for up to 100 required spaces; 
applies to residential developments with 10 or 
more units. 

15% 

 

255



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 4 SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS Page 159 of 192 

 

(E) Location of Parking. 
 
1. Required off-street parking spaces shall be provided on the same lot as the principal use 

unless the applicant demonstrates to the Commission that a guaranteed long- term method 
of providing the spaces is available using an area of an adjacent or nearby lot located 
within 1,000 feet of the entrance of the principal use being served. If said off-premises lot 
does not have the same owner as the principal use, a Borough off-premises parking 
agreement form must be completed by the owners of both properties. Off-premises parking 
agreements are not subject to the shared parking calculation of the number of the required 
parking spaces to be made pursuant to Subsection (B) above. 

 
2. No off-street parking shall be permitted within the minimum setback of any required side 

yard or in any space between the curb and the Build-To Line. 
 
3. Parking areas shall not be located in any required Open Space area. 
 
4. Any new off-Street parking areas shall be located behind or to the side of any buildings 

on a lot. Off-Street parking areas for residential uses which have no rear alley access shall 
not be located or constructed in the area between the front building facade of the dwelling 
and the public Street used to provide the Street address assigned to such dwelling. 

 
(F) Shared Parking. 

 
1. Required parking spaces may be provided through a shared parking arrangement involving 

two (2) or more new uses on a single lot. Shared parking requirements shall be as follows: 
 

a. The number of required parking spaces shall be calculated according to the 
following formula (See Table 4.03): 
 
(1) Calculate the minimum parking spaces required for each proposed use as 

if it were a separate use. 
 
(2) Multiply the maximum parking spaces required for each proposed use by 

the corresponding percentage in the table below for each of the six time 
periods. 

 
(3) Calculate the column total for each of the six (6) time periods. 
 
(4) The column (time period) with the highest value shall determine the 

maximum number of required parking spaces. 
 
b. Shared parking facilities shall meet all the requirements of this Section, as 

applicable. 
 
c. An executed shared parking agreement shall be provided between or among all 

parties using a shared parking facility or area in order to meet the required number 
of parking spaces of this Part if the lot is subsequently subdivided or converted to 
a condominium form of ownership, or if the principal uses and the parking area are 
not owned in common. Such an agreement shall include, at a minimum the following 
items: 
 
(1) A guarantee that all parties using the shared parking facility or area shall 

have continuous access to those spaces. 
 

256



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 4 SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS Page 160 of 192 

 

(2) A plan for the long-term maintenance of the proposed shared parking 
facility or area, including lighting and pedestrian facilities connecting the 
parking spaces to the proposed uses. 

 
Table 4.03, Shared Parking Calculations 

Uses 
8:00 a.m. - 
6:00 p.m. 

6:00 p.m. - 
Midnight 

Midnight to 
8:00 a.m. 

8:00 a.m. - 
6:00 p.m. 

6:00 p.m. - 
Midnight 

Midnight to 
8:00 a.m. 

Residential 60% 100% 100% 80% 100% 100% 

Office 100% 10% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

Commercial 90% 80% 5% 100% 60% 5% 

Hotel 70% 100% 100% 70% 100% 100% 

Restaurant 70% 100% 10% 80% 100% 20% 

Movie Theater 40% 80% 10% 80% 100% 50% 

Entertainment 40% 100% 10% 80% 100% 50% 

Institutional (non-
religious institution 

100% 40% 5% 10% 10% 5% 

Religious institution 20% 40% 5% 100% 50% 5% 

Total spaces       

 

§ 27-413 Private Swimming Pools 
 
(A) All private swimming pools shall be constructed in conformance with the Pennsylvania Uniform 

Construction Code. 
 
(B) In residential districts, no pool shall be located in any required front or side yard area. 
 
(C) All pools shall be considered accessory structures and shall meet the requirements of § 27-401 of 

this Chapter, except that swimming pools may be allowed within a rear yard area, provided that 
the walls of the pool and any deck are set back at least ten (10) feet from the Lot line. 

 
§ 27-414 Recreational Vehicle, Storage 
 
(A) A maximum of one (1) uninhabited recreational vehicle in transportable condition may be stored or 

parked on a lot outside of an enclosed building, within the following limitations: 
 
1. A recreational vehicle greater than twenty (20) feet in length shall not be stored or parked 

for more than four (4) days in any seven-(7) day period within a required front yard. 
 
2. A recreational vehicle stored or parked on the lot of a single-family detached house shall 

be set back a minimum of three (3) feet from the lot line of an abutting single-family 
detached dwelling. A recreation vehicle shall not be stored within the existing right-of-way 
of a public Street. 

 
3. Any recreational vehicle that is required to be registered or licensed under state law to be 

operated and is not registered or licensed shall be kept out of view from any public Street 
or abutting dwelling. 

257



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 4 SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS Page 161 of 192 

 

 
4. If a recreational vehicle is stored within the required front yard, it shall be parked on a 

driveway or asphalt, concrete or paving block area and not upon a grass yard. 
 
(B) Any recreation vehicle longer than twenty (20) feet stored on a lot shall be screened from view of 

any abutting single-family detached dwelling by attractive landscaping. 
 
(C) A maximum of one (1) recreational vehicle may be inhabited as a temporary accessory residence 

to a single-family detached dwelling for a maximum period of seven (7) days. Such use shall occur 
only once in a calendar year. 

 
§ 27-415 Satellite Antennas 
 
(A) Purpose. To provide for reception of satellite communications, while assuring that such uses will not 

detract from the character of any area or adversely affect property values; to recognize that the 
solidness and visibility of satellite antennas can create a very strong visual impact on a neighborhood 
compared to most other noncommercial antenna. 

 
(B) Location and Number of Satellite Antennas. 

 
1. Satellite antenna shall not be located within the required front yard area or front yard 

facing Building façade.  However, when deemed unfeasible, a Special Exception may be 
granted to place the antenna in alternative locations on the parcel or Building 
notwithstanding the requirements of the Historic District standards specified in Chapter 11 
of the Borough Code. 

 
2. A satellite antenna shall comply with the accessory setback requirements of the applicable 

district. 
 
3. A maximum of two (2) satellite antennas per unit shall be permitted in a residential district. 
 

(C) Size and Height. 
 
1. A satellite antenna shall have a maximum diameter of three (3) feet. 
 
2. A ground-mounted satellite antenna shall have a maximum height of fifteen (15) feet above 

the average ground level. 
 
(D) Screening. Any satellite antenna that is ground-mounted and visible from a public Street shall be 

screened by appropriate evergreen plantings with a minimum height of three (3) feet between the 
antenna and any public Street, unless the applicant proves to the satisfaction of the Zoning Officer 
that screening in such a location would make it impossible to receive the electronic signals. 

 
(E) Colors. Earth tones are strongly encouraged. 
 
(F) Large Lot Exemption. If a satellite antenna is to be located a minimum of two hundred (200) feet 

from all exterior lot lines, the size, height and placement requirements of this section shall not be 
binding. 

 
(G) Mobile Stands. Satellite antennas on mobile stands are prohibited, except as may be initially needed 

to determine the best location for an antenna. 
 
 
 

258



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 4 SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS Page 162 of 192 

 

§ 27-416 Screens and Buffers 

 
(A) Where any commercial or industrial district abuts a R-1, R-1A, or R-2 Residential District, a buffer 

yard at least five (5) feet wide in the commercial or industrial district and along the property line 
separating the two districts shall be suitably planted with trees and shrubs and maintained at all 
times. 

 
(B) Where the Healthcare District abuts any residential district (other than in a Street or alley), a buffer 

yard at least twenty (20) feet in width in the Healthcare District and along the properly line 
separating the two districts shall be planted with trees and shrubs and maintained at all times. 

 
(C) The buffer yard shall be a landscaped area free of structures (except for decorative fences and 

walls), dumpsters, commercial or industrial storage or display, manufacturing or processing activity, 
materials, loading and unloading areas or vehicle parking or display. No new driveways or streets 
shall be permitted in the buffer yards, except at points of approved perpendicular crossings for 
ingress or egress. 

 
(D) Fence. Any fence in a buffer yard shall be placed on the inside of any required evergreen screening. 
 
(E) Dumpsters. All bulk refuse collection dumpsters shall be screened on three (3) or four (4) sides by 

walls or evergreen landscaping from the view of existing dwellings, adjacent undeveloped 
residentially zoned lots and public streets. 

 
(F) Maintenance. In buffer yards, all areas not covered by trees and shrubs shall be well maintained in 

an all-season vegetative ground cover (such as grass) and shall be kept free of debris and rubbish 
and shall not include grass areas higher than eight inches. 

 
(G) Modifications. In situations where it would be impractical to develop a screen that would meet all 

Borough requirements or where an undue hardship would be created to an applicant, the Zoning 
Hearing Board may agree to modify these requirements to allow an acceptable alternative. Such 
alternative or alternatives may, for example, involve the development of a solid wooden fence that 
has been treated to be weather-resistant. Such modification shall only occur after a review by the 
Planning Commission. 

 
§ 27-417 Side and Rear Yard Requirements 
 
One (1) side yard and one (1) rear yard are also required, with the rear yard setback being located next 
to an alley, if any, or next to another Lot's rear yard; the side yard shall be located next to another Lot's 
side yard or next to the adjoining building's side if the side is built on the property line. 
 
§ 27-418 Streetscape Design 
 
(A) Purpose.  The purpose of this Section is to maintain and improve the streetscape within the OT District 

and the neighborhoods throughout the Borough, which have a traditional block pattern and street 
and alley network as shown on the Zoning Map, § 27-202 of this Chapter. 

 
(B) Compliance Required.  All new Land Development occurring on and after the Effective Date of this 

Chapter shall comply with the design standards of this Section to the extent shown on the Zoning 
Map. 

 
(C) Minimum Requirements.   

 
1. Building Location. 

259



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 4 SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS Page 163 of 192 

 

 
a. Legislative Intent. 
 

(1) Buildings are intended to be located in close proximity to sidewalks, with 
parking located in the rear. 

 
(2) Traditional development in downtown Gettysburg is intended to form a 

continuous street wall along all corridors. 
 
(3) Buildings are intended to be located across from one another, so that the 

"outdoor room" character of the streetscape is maintained. 
 

b. Design Standards. 
 
(1) Buildings within the OT District shall be located adjacent to the sidewalk. 
 
(2) New buildings in all other districts shall be located at the build-to line or in 

alignment with existing buildings on the block. 
 
(3) Buildings shall be located to anchor street corners. 
 
(4) Unenclosed porches, stoops, and the like shall be built and maintained as 

transitional elements from the principal building to the streetscape. 
 
2. Parking Location. 

 
a. Legislative Intent. 

 
(1) On-street parking is intended to provide vital parking spaces, as well as a 

buffer for pedestrians from vehicular traffic. 
 
(2) Off-street parking is intended to be located to the rear or side of buildings. 
 
(3) On-street angled parking is intended to be maintained in the central square 

to complement vehicular traffic flow. 
 

b. Design Standards. 
 
(1) On-street parking shall be provided and maintained. 
 
(2) Line-striped "end lines" seven feet from the curb at twenty-two-foot 

intervals shall be provided for parallel on-street parking. 
 
(3) Surface off-street parking lots shall be located to the rear or side of a 

building, not in front of the building, and not at street corners. 
 
(4) Off-street parking shall be accessed via alleys wherever possible. 
 

3. Parking Lots and Decks. 
 
a. Legislative Intent. 

 
(1) Off-street parking is intended to be screened from view. 
 

260



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 4 SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS Page 164 of 192 

 

(2) Parking decks are intended to be integrated with the existing architectural 
character of other buildings along the streetscape. 

 
b. Design Standards. 

 
(1) Existing off-street parking shall be screened with hedges, walls, fences, or 

other landscaping at least thirty (30) inches in height if located in front of 
or to the side of a building. 

 
(2) New parking shall be located behind or to the side of buildings. 
 
(3) Parking decks shall be designed to continue the existing street wall. 
 
(4) Parking decks should provide ground floor retail. 
 

4. Building Types. 
 

a. Legislative Intent. 
 
(1) Traditional development in downtown Gettysburg is intended to consist of 

diverse building types with smaller building footprints and a mix of uses. 
 

b. Design Standards. 
 
(1) Vertically mixed uses with apartments or office space above commercial 

uses should be provided in the OT, NC-1, NC-2, and NC-3 Districts. 
 
(2) New buildings shall be designed to be generally consistent with the height 

and scale of existing commercial, residential, and mixed-use building types. 
 
(3) Diversified residential uses should be provided to promote housing 

affordability. 
 

5. Building Heights. 
 

a. Legislative Intent. 
 
(1) All new buildings are intended to be at least two (2) stories in height. 
 
(2) Unless otherwise specified herein, smaller-footprint, two (2) story to four (4) 

story buildings are encouraged to continue along the major street corridors 
and in the OT District. 

 
b. Design Standards. 

 
(1) The minimum height of any new building shall be twenty-four (24) feet. 
 
(2) The maximum height of buildings in the OT District shall be fifty (50) feet, 

and they comply with the Historic District Guidelines. 
 
(3) The maximum building height for buildings outside of the Old Town District 

shall be forty-eight (48) feet in height, unless otherwise specified. Where 
there is a conflict between this standard and the standards for a specific 
permitted use, the standards for the specific permitted use shall control.   

261



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 4 SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS Page 165 of 192 

 

 
(4) No building shall be constructed to be more than twenty (20) feet taller in 

building height than the height of any nearby buildings located on adjacent 
lots, except where additional building height is authorized for a mixed-use 
building by Special Exception pursuant to the standards and criteria set 
forth in § 27-305(D)19, Extended Height Building, of this Chapter, and HC 
and INS. 

 
6. Lighting: Decorative Streetlights and Building Lights. 

 
a. Legislative Intent. 

 
(1) Decorative streetlights are intended to be installed and maintained to 

enhance safety and wayfinding for drivers and pedestrians.   
 
(2) Decorative streetlights are intended to reinforce the traditional town 

character of Gettysburg. 
 
 
b. Design Standards. 

 
(1) Pedestrian-scale decorative streetlights shall be provided on the streets 

(and/or sections thereof) specified in Table 4.04. 
 
(2) Pole height shall be no greater than twenty (20) feet. 
 
(3) There shall be no trespass glare. 

 
 
Table 4.04, Required Decorative Street Light Installation Locations 

All State Roads 

Breckenridge St. 

Constitution Ave. 

Culp St. (between Johns Ave. and 
Steinwehr Ave.) 

E. High St. 

E. Middle St. 

E. Water St. 

Franklin St. 

King St. (between Johns Ave. and 
Steinwehr Ave.) 

Lefever St. 

Long Ln. (Gettys St. to Breckenridge St.) 

Mummasburg St. 

N. Fourth St. 

N. Stratton St. 

N. Washington St. 

Queen St. (between Johns Ave. and 
Steinwehr Ave.) 

Race Horse Alley (between Buford Ave. 
and Washington St.) 

Race Horse Alley (between Washington 
St. and Carlisle St.) 

S. Washington St. 

Seminary Ridge 

South St. 

Springs Ave. 

W. High St. 

W. Lincoln St. 

W. Railroad St. 

W. Stevens St. 

W. Water St. 

West St. 

 
 
 
 

262



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 4 SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS Page 166 of 192 

 

 
7. Gateways. 

 
a. Legislative Intent. 

 
(1) Gateways are intended to welcome visitors and provide a positive first 

impression of the Borough. 
 
(2) Gateways are intended to provide a form of traffic calming for drivers as 

they enter a pedestrian-friendly community. 
 

b. Design Standards. 
 
(1) Landscaping, lighting, and signage shall be provided at all gateways. 
 
(2) Gateway signage shall promote a cohesive image of the Borough. 
 
(3) Sidewalks and crosswalks shall be provided as part of gateway design. 
 
(4) Piers should be provided as gateway monuments. 
 

7. Street Trees and Other Landscaping. 
 

a. Legislative Intent. 
 
(1) Landscaping is intended to define and add beauty to the streetscape and 

provide buffering between uses. 
 
(2) Street trees are intended to provide shade and add a vertical element to 

the streetscape. 
 

b. Design Standards. 
 
(1) Street trees shall be planted and maintained according to the standards 

specified under Chapter 25 Trees of the Borough Code. 
 
(2) Tree species shall be in accordance with the types specified under § 25-

108 Recommended Tree Species of the Borough Code. 
 

8. Fences, Walls, and Hedges. 
 

a. Legislative Intent. 
 

(1) The Borough intends to promote development that provides attractive 
architectural features in the public realm such as walls, fences, and hedges. 
 

(2) Fences, hedges, and walls are intended to be used to continue the street 
wall. 
 

b. Design Standards. 
 
(1) Low walls, fences and/or hedges shall be placed to form the street wall 

whenever buildings do not adjoin the sidewalk or build-to line. 
 

263



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 4 SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS Page 167 of 192 

 

(2) A thirty (30) inch high wall, fence or hedge shall be used at the build-to 
line to screen existing off-street parking located in front or to the side of a 
building. 

 
(3) Wall design shall be appropriate to the architectural style of the building. 

 
9. Signage. 

 
a. Legislative Intent. 

 
(1) The Borough intends to promote small signs in scale with pedestrian activity 

and for wayfinding. 
 
b. Design Standards. 

 
(1) Projecting signs shall be as small as possible. 
 
(2) Simple, colorful wall signs should be used as an attractive complement to 

the character of Gettysburg. 
 
(3) Freestanding signs shall be minimized to reduce visual clutter. 
 
(4) Ground signs shall be installed instead of freestanding signs outside of the 

OT District. Within the OT District, projecting signs or wall signs shall be 
installed. 

 
10. Sidewalks and Crosswalks. 

 
a. Legislative Intent. 

 
(1) Sidewalks and crosswalks are intended to be located throughout the 

Borough to connect neighborhoods together and to the downtown. 
 

b. Design Standards. 
 
(1) Sidewalks and crosswalks shall be continuous and form an integrated 

network. 
 
(2) Sidewalks shall be at least five (5) feet in width on both sides of the street. 
 
(3) Continue sidewalk material across curb cuts to emphasize pedestrian 

continuity. 
 
(4) Crosswalks shall be at least eight (8) feet in width. 
 

11. Streets and Alleys. 
 

a. Legislative Intent. 
 
(1) The street and alley network are intended to be maintained, enhanced and 

extended. 
 

b. Design Standards. 
 

264



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 4 SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS Page 168 of 192 

 

(1) Existing streets and alleys shall be maintained. 
 
(2) A new street and alley network shall be created that ties into the existing 

network, whenever properties are developed or redeveloped. 
 
(3) New street and alley widths shall be consistent with existing street and alley 

widths. 
 
(4) New two-way alleys shall be at least sixteen (16) feet wide. 
 

12. Curb Cuts. 
 

a. Legislative Intent. 
 
(1) The Borough intends to limit new curb cuts that would be disruptive to 

pedestrian movement along sidewalks. 
 

b. Design Standards. 
 
(1) Access properties from existing curb cuts, driveways, and alleys. 
 
(2) New mid-block curb cuts shall not be created. 
 
(3) Excessively wide curb cuts shall be narrowed to a minimum width of twenty-

four (24) feet. 
 
§ 27-419 Transit Bus Stops 
 
Transit bus stops, which include both sheltered and non-sheltered infrastructure facilities that provide 
passengers safe access to both fixed-route and demand responsive public transportation services, shall 
comply with the requirements of this Chapter, as well as the following specific criteria: 

(A) Bus stop infrastructure, including ADA loading pads, bus passenger benches, and bus shelters, as well 
as bus stop location signs and bus stop passenger information signs, shall be permitted by right in all 
zoning districts, including within public Rights-of-Way, and shall be considered an accessory use that 
can stand alone without the accompanying principal use. 

 
(B) Bus stop infrastructure shall be exempt from minimum Lot size, Open Space, yards, and setback 

requirements of the governing zoning district(s). 
 
(C) The location and design of the bus stop infrastructure shall be reviewed and approved by the 

applicable transit agency, Township, and in instances where the bus stop is proposed to be located 
within a state-owned Right-of-Way, PennDOT Engineering District 8-0. The transit agency shall 
provide written documentation certifying that a location is an existing or potential future bus stop. 
Such documentation should include an executed shelter location agreement with the property owner.  

 
(D) Whenever an ADA loading pad, bench for a bus stop, and/or bus shelter is provided, the applicable 

off-street parking requirements for the Lot’s principal use may be reduced by one or more vehicular 
parking space(s) for each bus stop location. 

 
(E) Bus stop location signs and bus stop passenger information signs installed and maintained by the 

transit agency shall be permitted within the public Right-of-Way and on private property and shall 
be exempt from the Sign requirements specified under Chapter 19 of the Borough Code of 
Ordinances. 

265



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 4 SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS Page 169 of 192 

 

§ 27-420 Two or More Principal Buildings or Structures on One Lot 
 
In any district, more than one Building or Structure having a permitted principal use may be erected on a 
single Lot, provided that all the applicable requirements of this Part shall be met for each building or structure 
as though it were on an individual Lot. 
 
§ 27-421 Visual Obstructions 
 
(A) No wall, fence, sign or other structure shall be erected or altered, and no hedge, trees, shrubs, crops, 

etc., shall be maintained, which may cause danger to pedestrians or traffic by obstructing the view. 
 
(B) A Clear Sight Triangle shall be provided and maintained at all Street and/or alley intersections. 

Such Clear Sight Distance shall be maintained between two (2) and ten (10) feet above curb level. 
Such triangle shall be (15) feet along the right-of-way lines of the streets or alleys, measured from 
the intersection of such rights-of-way, with the third longer leg of the triangle connecting the two 
ends, unless a larger triangle is required by the state or by other local regulations. If the intersection 
is rounded, the triangle shall be measured from the extended ends of the rights-of-way. 

 
(C) Within such Clear Sight Triangle, no grading shall occur, or structures (such as buildings, fences or 

walls) be placed or expanded, or vegetation be permitted that would obstruct the vision of motorists 
of pedestrians and other traffic. The only obstructions permitted within a Clear Sight Triangle shall 
be transparent fences, vegetation regularly maintained at less than two (2) feet in height, mailboxes, 
sign or utility posts less than one foot in width and the trunks of deciduous trees. 

 
(D) If a driveway or accessway enters onto a Street, a required sight triangle as stated above shall be 

maintained, except that the length of the triangle shall be eight (8) feet long measured at the center 
line of the driveway or accessway and at the Street right-of-way line. 

 
§ 27-422 Yards 
 
(A) Space provided to satisfy the yard, area, and parking requirements for any building or structure, 

either existing or proposed, shall not be used to meet the yard, area, and parking requirements for 
any other building or structure. 

 

266



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Code, Chapter 27 

PART 5 DEFINITIONS Page 170 of 192 

PART 5 DEFINITIONS 

§ 27-501 Rules of Interpretation

(A) The following rules apply to the interpretation of this Chapter:

1. Words in the singular include the plural and those in the plural include the singular;

2. Words used in the present tense include the future tense;

3. The words “Person”, “Applicant”, “developer”, and “Owner” include a corporation,
unincorporated association and a partnership, or other legal entity, as well as an individual
engaged in the subject activity;

4. The word “Building” includes Structure and shall be construed as if followed by the phrase
“or part thereof”;

5. The word “Watercourse” includes channel, creek, ditch, dry run, spring, Stream and river;

6. The words “should” and “may” are permissive; the words “shall” and “will” are mandatory
and directive;

7. The word “Lot” includes the word plot or parcel; and

8. The word “used” or “occupied” as applied to any land or Building shall be construed to
include the words “intended, arranged or designed to be used or occupied.”

§ 27-501 Defined Words and Terms

(A) Words and terms used in this Part shall have the meanings given in this herein.  Unless expressly
stated otherwise, any pertinent word or term not part of this listing but vital to the interpretation of
this Chapter, shall be construed to have their legal definition, or in absence of a legal definition,
their meaning as commonly accepted by practitioners including Registered Design Professionals
and/or Certified Planners.

ABUT or ABBUTTING – To physically touch or border upon; or to share a common property line.

ACCESSORY BUILDING – A Building detached from and subordinate to the main building on the
same lot and used for purposes customarily incidental to the main building. 

ACCESSORY USE – A use customarily incidental and subordinate to the Principal Use of the lot or 
Building and located on the same Lot with such Principal Use of the Lot or Building. 

ADAPTIVE REUSE – The development of a new use for an older building or for a building originally 
designed for a specific purpose which it no longer serves. 

ADJACENT – Immediately contiguous to or abutting a neighboring property, lot or walkway, and 
excludes property, lots, or walkways across the street from, or diagonally opposite across 
an intersection from the subject property, lot, or walkway. 

ALLEY – A minor public or private right-of-way providing a secondary means of access to abutting 
properties. 

267



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 5 DEFINITIONS Page 171 of 192 

 

ALTERATION – As applied to any building, structure or sign, any change, rearrangement or 
relocation in the structural parts. 

 
ANTENNA, PRIVATE – A device, partially or wholly exterior to a building, which is used for receiving 

and/or transmitting electronic signals or short-wave or citizens' band radio frequencies and 
which is not a commercial communications tower and other than a satellite antenna. This 
includes any accessory supporting structures. 

 
APPLICANT – The person(s), company, partnership, profit or nonprofit corporation, trust or other 

entity responsible for a particular application for an approval or permit under this Chapter, 
and his/her heirs, successors and assigns. 

 
AREA (BUILDING) – The total area, taken on a horizontal plane, at the grade level of a building, 

exclusive of uncovered porches, terraces and steps. 
 
AUTOMOBILE – Any motorized or electrified powered Vehicle. 
 
BASEMENT – That portion of a Building that is partially or wholly below ground level. This portion 

serves as a substructure or foundation for a Building. A basement shall be counted as a story 
for the purpose of height measurement, if the vertical distance between the ceiling and the 
average level of the adjoining ground is more than five feet (See Figure 5.01). 

 
Figure 5.01, Basement and Story 

 

 
 
BICYCLE PARKING – A space for the temporary storage of a bicycle in the form of a rack, locker, 

or storage area used exclusively for the storage of bicycles. 
 

268



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 5 DEFINITIONS Page 172 of 192 

 

BLOCK – A tract of land, lot, or group of lots, bounded by streets, alleys, public parks, railroad 
rights-of-way, watercourses or bodies of water, boundary lines of the Borough or any 
combination of the above. 

 
BOARD – The Zoning Hearing Board of the Borough of Gettysburg, Adams County, Pennsylvania. 
 
BOROUGH — The Borough of Gettysburg, Adams County, Pennsylvania. 
 
BOROUGH COUNCIL — The Borough Council of the Borough of Gettysburg, Adams County, 

Pennsylvania. 
 
BUILDING – Any enclosed structure having a roof and walls which has been designed and built for 

the shelter, housing enclosure or protection of individuals, animals, equipment or property 
of any kind.  

 
BUILDING, PRINCIPAL – A Building in which is conducted the principal use of the lot on which it is 

located. 
 
BUILDING COVERAGE – Total area of a Lot covered by Buildings.  Measured from the outside of 

all exterior walls at ground level, it includes all exterior stairways, covered parking and 
walkways.  (See Figure 5.02). 

 
Figure 5.02, Building Coverage 

 

 
 
BUILDING FAÇADE – An exterior side of a Building. 
 
BUILDING HEIGHT – The vertical distance calculated by subtracting the elevation of the highest point 

on the roof on flat or shed roofs and/or the elevation of the deck line on gambrel and 

269



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 5 DEFINITIONS Page 173 of 192 

 

mansard roofs and/or the average height between eaves and ridges on gable or hip roofs 
from the average elevation of finished grades at the outside walls facing and/or nearest 
to the Front Yard Setback lines (See Figure 5.03). 
 

Figure 5.03, Building Height 

 
 
 
BUILDING SETBACK LINE – The line within which the Principal Building shall be located, bounding 

that portion of the Lot not contained within the required side and rear Yards, and not 
contained within the space between the property line and the build-to line. 

 
BUILD-TO LINE – A Building location line where the primary Facade of a Building is required to be 

constructed, usually in alignment with other Buildings on the block; a line parallel to and 
measured at a distance from the Street curbline. 

 
BUILDING SETBACK LINE – The line within which the principal building shall be located, bounding 

that portion of the Lot not contained within the required side and rear yards, and not 
contained within the space between the property line and the Build-To Line. 

 
BUILDING, PRINCIPAL – A Building in which is conducted the principal use of the Lot on which it is 

located. 
 
BUILD-TO LINE – A Building location line where the primary facade of a building is required to be 

constructed, usually in alignment with other buildings on the block; a line parallel to and 
measured at a distance from the Street Curbline. 

 
CARTWAY – The paved portion of a Street designed for vehicular traffic and paved areas intended 

for on-street parking. 
 
COMMISSION — The Planning Commission of the Borough of Gettysburg, Adams County, 

Pennsylvania. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN — The document entitled the "Gettysburg Comprehensive Plan," or any 

part thereof, adopted by the Borough Council, as amended, pursuant to the Pennsylvania 
Municipalities Planning Code. 

 

270



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 5 DEFINITIONS Page 174 of 192 

 

CONDOMINIUM – Real estate, portions of which is designated for separate ownership and the 
remainder of which is designated for common ownership solely by the owners of those 
separate portions, in accordance with the Pennsylvania Uniform Condominium Act (68 Pa. 
C.S. §§ 3101—3414). 

 
CLEAR SIGHT TRIANGLE – A generally triangular area that defines a zone necessary for the clear 

view by the driver of a motor vehicle or a bicyclist of oncoming cross-street motor vehicle, 
bicycle, or pedestrian traffic or of a traffic control device, and includes street intersection 
sight triangles, alley intersection sight triangles and traffic control device sight triangles.  The 
Clear Sight Triangle shall be determined by the intersecting Street center lines and a 
diagonal line connecting the two points, one at each center line. The distance of each point 
from the intersection of the street or driveway center lines, as applicable, shall be as 
specified by PennDOT's Intersection Sight Distance or Formula Sight Distance, in the latest 
edition of AASHTO "A Policy On Geometric Design of Highways and Streets" as applied 
by PennDOT. 

 
CURBLINE – A line at the face of the curb nearest to the Street or roadway. 
 
COLLOCATED WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY (COLLOCATED WCF) – Wireless 

communications facilities that are attached to existing structures, such as, but not limited to 
Buildings, water towers, electrical transmission towers, utility poles, light poles, traffic signal 
poles, flag poles, and other similar structures that do not require the installation of a new 
or replacement wireless support Structure.   

 
COLLOCATION – The mounting of one or more WCFs, including antennas, on a pre-existing 

Structure, or modifying a Structure for the purpose of mounting, or installing a WCF on that 
Structure.   

 
CONDOMINIUM – Real estate, portions of which is designated for separate ownership and the 

remainder of which is designated for common ownership solely by the owners of those 
separate portions, in accordance with the Pennsylvania Uniform Condominium Act 1980-82, 
as amended. 

 
DECISION – A final adjudication of any board or other body granted jurisdiction under this Chapter 

do so, either by reason of the grant of exclusive jurisdiction or by reason of appeals from 
Determinations. All Decisions shall be appealable to the Court of Common Pleas of Adams 
County and applicable judicial district wherein the Borough lies. 

 
DEMOLITION – The act of razing, tearing down or dismantling a preexisting building or other 

structure. 
 
DENSITY – The total number of dwelling units proposed on a lot divided by the lot area, unless 

otherwise stated. 
 
DISTRICT (or ZONING DISTRICT) – A land area within the Borough within which certain uniform 

regulations and requirements apply under the provisions of this Chapter. 
 
EARTH DISTURBANCE ACTIVIITES – A construction or other human activity which disturbs the surface 

of the land, including land clearing and grubbing, grading, excavations, embankments, land 
development, agricultural plowing or tilling, operation of animal heavy use areas, timber 
harvesting activities, road maintenance activities, oil and gas activities, well drilling, mineral 
extraction, and the moving, depositing, stockpiling, or storing of soil, rock or earth materials. 

 

271



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 5 DEFINITIONS Page 175 of 192 

 

ELECTRICAL PERSONAL ASSISTIVE MOBILITY DEVICES (EPAMD) – A self-balancing device with two 
(2) wheels not in tandem, designed to transport only one (1) person by an electric propulsion 
system having a maximum speed on a paved level surface of less than twenty (20) miles 
per hour.  For purposes of this Chapter, EPAMDs shall include but shall not be limited to the 
Segway® PT and shall not include electric or motorized wheelchairs and powerchairs shall 
not be considered EPAMDs. 

 
ELECTRIC VEHICLE (EV) – Any Vehicle that is licensed and registered for operation on public and 

private highways, roads, and streets; and operates either partially or exclusively using an 
electric motor powered by an externally charged on-board battery. 

 
ELECTRIC VEHICLE SUPPLY/SERVICE EQUIPMENT (EVSE) – The equipment, including the cables, 

cords, conductors, connectors, couplers, enclosures, attachment plugs, power outlets, power 
electronics, transformer, switchgear, switches and controls, network interfaces, point of sale 
equipment, and associated apparatus designed and used for the purpose of transferring 
energy from the electric supply system to a plug-in electric vehicle. "EVSE" may deliver 
either alternating current or, consistent with fast charging equipment standards, direct 
current electricity. “EVSE” is synonymous with “Electric Vehicle Charging Station”. 

 
ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING STATION – See Electric Vehicle Supply/Service Equipment (EVSE). 
 
FAMILY – A household consisting of one (1) or more persons related by genetics, adoption, or 

marriage, or a group of four (4) or fewer persons who are not related by genetics, 
adoption, or marriage and none of whom are wards of the court unless such wards are 
related by genetics, adoption, or marriage to members of such group living in a dwelling 
unit. Family homes shall include state-licensed adult family homes, state-licensed foster 
family homes group care facilities, and group care homes for the disabled required to be 
accommodated as residential uses pursuant to the Fair Housing Act. The term “Family” shall 
exclude individuals residing in halfway houses, group homes licensed for juvenile offenders, 
or other facilities, whether or not licensed by the state, where individuals are incarcerated 
or otherwise required to reside pursuant to court order under the supervision of paid staff 
and personnel. 

 
FENCE – A manufactured barrier, placed or arranged as a line of demarcation, an enclosure or a 

visual barrier, which is constructed of wood, chain-link metal, vinyl or aluminum and/or 
plastic inserts. Manufactured barriers constructed principally of masonry, concrete, cinder 
block or similar materials shall be considered a wall. The term "wall" does not include 
engineering retaining walls, which are permitted uses as needed in all districts. The terms 
"fence" and "wall" do not include hedges, trees or shrubs. 

 
FLOOR AREA, HABITABLE – The sum of the horizontal areas with at least seven-foot ceilings used for 

habitable space in a structure for living, sleeping, eating or cooking. Bathrooms, toilet 
compartments, closets, halls, storage or utility spaces and similar areas are not considered 
habitable spaces. (See "Habitable Space”) 

 
GARAGE (PRIVATE) – An accessory building for the storage of motor vehicles owned and operated 

by the owner or occupants of the premises, provided that space for the storage of not more 
than two vehicles may be leased to nonresidents. 

 
GARAGE SALE – The accessory use of any lot for the occasional sale or auction of only common 

household goods and furniture and items of a closely similar character. 
 
GREEN AREA – The portion of a lot that is not paved or covered by Buildings, Structures, or other 

like-type impervious surfaces, which is devoted to landscaping; lawns; gardens; active and 

272



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 5 DEFINITIONS Page 176 of 192 

 

passive parks; vegetated surfaces, including vegetated stormwater management facilities; 
green roofs; and pervious surfacing or pavers. 

 
GROSS SQUARE FEET – The total number of square feet within the inside finished wall surface of 

the outer building walls of a structure. 
 
HABITABLE FLOOR AREA – The aggregate of the horizontal area of all rooms used for habitation, 

such as living room, dining room, kitchen, bedroom, but not including hallways, stairways, 
cellars, attics, service rooms or utility rooms, bathroom, closets, nor unheated areas such as 
enclosed porches, nor rooms without at least one window or skylight opening onto an outside 
yard or court. At least one-half of the floor area of every habitable room shall have a 
ceiling Height of not less than seven (7') feet and the floor area of that part of any room 
where the ceiling Height is less than five (5') feet shall not be considered as part of the 
habitable floor area. 

 
HABITABLE SPACE – Space in a structure for living, sleeping, eating or cooking. Bathrooms, toilet 

compartments, closets, halls, storage or utility spaces and similar areas are not considered 
habitable spaces. 

 
HANDICAP – Means, with respect to a Person: 

 
1. a physical or mental impairment which substantially limits one or more of such 

Person's major life activities, 
 
2. a record of having such an impairment, or 
 
3. being regarded as having such an impairment, but such term does not include 

current, illegal use of or addiction to a controlled substance (as defined in Section 
102 of the Controlled Substances Act (21 U.S.C. 802)). 

 
HORSE DRAWN CARRIAGE – Any hackney or carriage which is operated by being drawn by a 

horse or mule for the transportation for hire of passengers. 
 
HISTORIC RESOURCE, HISTORIC STRUCTURE, or HISTORICALLY SIGNIFICANT SITE- Any Structure or 

site that is: 
 
1. Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places (a listing maintained 

by the U.S. Department of the Interior) or preliminarily determined by the Secretary 
of the Interior as meeting the requirements for individual listing on the National 
Register; 

 
2. Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as contributing 

to the historical significance of a registered historic district or a district preliminarily 
determined by the Secretary to qualify as a registered historic district; 

 
3. Individually listed on a state inventory of historic places in states with historic 

preservation programs which have been approved by the Secretary of the Interior; 
or 

 
4. Individually listed on a County or local inventory of historic places in communities 

with historic preservation programs that have been certified either: 
 
a. By an approved State program as determined by the Secretary of the 

Interior; or 

273



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 5 DEFINITIONS Page 177 of 192 

b. Directly by the Secretary of the Interior in states without an approved
program.

5. Individually listed on the most recent inventory of the Adams County Historical
Society Register, the Adams County Planning Commission, or Borough inventory
(whichever is determined to be the most complete and accurate).

HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION - A Homeowners' Association organized pursuant to the Uniform 
Planned Community Act (68 Pa C.S. §§ 5101—5414). 

INCLUSIONARY HOUSING – Refers to municipal housing policies that require a given share of new 
construction to be affordable to people with low to moderate incomes. The term is broad 
and covers various policies enacted by local jurisdictions to increase the supply of 
affordable housing. 

JUNK – Items or objects that are old, discarded, or not currently being used for the purpose or 
purposes for which they are designed or normally used, including but not limited to used or 
salvaged metals and their compounds or combination; used or salvaged rope; rubber; 
rotting wood; scrap iron; tires and snowmobile treads; parts for motor vehicles, boats, all-
terrain vehicles, recreational vehicles, snowmobiles, and/or trailers; inoperable or 
dismantled refrigerators, stoves, dishwashers, dryers, washing machines, and furniture; and 
inoperable or dismantled lawn mowers, weed trimmers, snow blowers, snow plows, tractors, 
and any other machinery used for excavation, maintenance, or snow removal. 

JUNKED MATERIALS – The accumulation of used and/or discarded materials with the potential for 
leaching pollutants into the groundwater, including, but not limited to, trash, appliances, 
machinery, vehicles, or parts thereof, whether on the land surface, into a sinkhole or into a 
stream, wetland or other water body. 

LAND DEVELOPMENT – As defined by the Pennsylvania Municipalities Planning Code, as amended. 

LANDOWNER – The legal or beneficial Owner or owners of land including the holder of an option 
or contract to purchase (whether or not such option or contract is subject to any condition), a 
lessee if they are authorized under the lease to exercise the rights of the landowner, or 
other Person having a proprietary interest in land, shall be deemed to be a landowner for 
the purposes of this Chapter.  

LOT – A designated parcel, tract or area of land established by a plat or otherwise as permitted 
by law and to be used, developed or built upon as a unit. 

LOT AREA – The area contained within the property lines of a lot, excluding space within the legal 
public right-of-way, but including the area of an easement. 

LOT COVERAGE – The percentage of a lot covered by Buildings, paved areas, gravel areas, and 
other like-type surfaces through which water does not or cannot infiltrate. 

LOT DEPTH – The horizontal distance measured between the Street Right-of-Way line and the rear 
property line. On corner Lots, reverse frontage Lots, and triangular or other irregularly 
shaped Lots, the depth shall be measured along the property line adjacent to the side yard 
which extends from the Street of address to the opposite property line. Where a rear yard 
is formed by angled or offset property lines, the Lot depth shall be measured as the 
weighted average distance from the Street Right-of-Way line to the farthest rear property 
line.  

274



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 5 DEFINITIONS Page 178 of 192 

 

 
LOT FRONTAGE – The Lot dimension measured along the Building setback line parallel to and 

abutting a public Street where public vehicular access is allowed.  
 
LOT LINE – A line of record which divides one (1) Lot from another Lot, or from a public or private 

road or any other public space. Where a Lot abuts a public Right-of-Way, the Lot line for 
regulatory purposes shall be the Right-of-Way line. Also known as road or Street line (see 
Figure 5.02). 

 
NET SQUARE FEET – The total number of square feet within the inside finished wall surface of the 

outer Building walls of a structure, excluding major vertical penetrations of the floor 
(elevator and other mechanical shafts; stairwells), mechanical equipment, parking areas, 
common restrooms, common lobbies, and common hallways. 

 
MOTOR VEHICLE – A Vehicle which is self-propelled except for an electric personal assistive mobility 

device or a vehicle which is propelled solely by human power. 
 
OBSCENE – Displays or information that, taken as a whole, appeals to the prurient interest in sex 

and depicts or describes in a patently offensive manner nudity as sexual conduct and which, 
taken as a whole, does not have serious literary, artistic or scientific value, or otherwise 
qualifies as vulgar or indecent. 

 
OFFICIAL ZONING MAP – The map as adopted by the Borough Council which designates the 

location and boundaries of Zoning Districts. 
 
PENNSYLVANIA MUNICIPALITIES PLANNING CODE (MPC or PA MPC) – Act 247 of 1968, P.L. 805; 

53 P.S. § 10101. 
 

PERMANENT RESIDENCY or RESIDENTIAL OCCUPANCY: Permanent, full-time habitation in a 
Dwelling Unit for a period of thirty (30) consecutive days or more. 

 
PERSON – Includes one or more individuals, corporations, partnerships, associations, labor 

organizations, legal representatives, mutual companies, joint-stock companies, trusts, 
unincorporated organizations, trustees, trustees in cases under title 11 of the United States 
Code, receivers, and fiduciaries. 

 
PRINCIPAL USE – The predominant use of the land or building to which all other uses are secondary. 
 
PUBLIC – Owned, operated, or both, by the Township, its authority, a municipal-supported fire 

company, or a municipal-supported ambulance association. 
 
PUBLIC GREEN SPACE – A tract of land owned and maintained by private or semi-public persons, 

entities, groups, or a public-private partnership to provide active and/or passive 
recreational opportunities for the general public. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING – A formal meeting held pursuant to public notice by the Gettysburg Borough 

Council or Zoning Hearing Board intended to inform and obtain public comment, prior to 
taking action in accordance with the Pennsylvania Municipalities Planning Code. 

 
PUBLIC MEETING – A forum held pursuant to notice under 65 Pa.C.S. Ch. 7 (relating to open 

meetings.)  
 
PUBLIC NOTICE – Notice published once each week for two (2) successive weeks in a newspaper of 

general circulation in Gettysburg Borough. Such notice shall state the time and place of the 

275



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 5 DEFINITIONS Page 179 of 192 

 

hearing and the particular nature of the matter to be considered at the hearing. The first 
publication shall not be more than thirty (30) days and the second publication shall not be 
less than seven (7) days from the date of the hearing. Public notice for rezoning, special 
exception, variance, or any combination thereof, requests shall also include the posting of 
a sign(s) at a conspicuous location(s) upon the site to notify potentially interested citizens; 
this sign(s) shall be posted at least one week prior to the hearing and will exhibit the nature, 
date, time and location of the hearing.  

 
REGISTERED DESIGN PROFESSIONAL – A professional engineer, land surveyor or professional 

geologist licensed by the State Registration Board for Professional Engineers, Land 
Surveyors and Geologists under the act of May 23, 1945 (P.L. 913, No. 367), known as the 
"Engineer, Land Surveyor and Geologist Registration Law, " a landscape architect who is 
licensed by the State Board of Landscape Architects under the act of January 24, 1966 
(1965 P.L. 1527, No. 535), known as the "Landscape Architect's Registration Law, " or any 
corporation or association, including professional corporations, organized or registered 
under the act of December 21, 1988 (P.L. 1444, No.177), known as the "General 
Association Act of 1988," practicing engineering, landscape architecture or surveying in this 
Commonwealth.   

 
RIGHT-OF-WAY (ROW) – An area acquired or reserved for Streets, Street trees (or landscaping), 

drainage, utilities and pedestrian ways owned by a public or private Person.  When used 
in the regulation of Wireless Telecommunications Facilities, the surface of and space above 
and below any real property in the Borough in which the Borough has a regulatory interest, 
or interest as a trustee for the public, as such interests now or hereafter exist, including, but 
not limited to, all Streets, highways, avenues, roads, Alleys, sidewalks, tunnels, viaducts, 
bridges, skyways, or any other public place, area or property under the control of the 
Borough, and any unrestricted public or utility easements established, dedicated, platted, 
improved or devoted for utility purposes, but excluding lands other than Streets that are 
owned by the Borough. The phrase “in the right(s)-of-way” means in, on, over, along, above 
and/or under the right(s)-of-way.  

 
ROOF – An Impervious Cover of a Building or Structure.  
 
SETBACK – The minimum required horizontal distance between a setback line and a property or 

Street Right-of-Way line. 
 
SETBACK LINE – A line parallel to the front, side or rear Lot line so as to provide the required yards.  

See Figure 5.02. 
 
SETBACK, FRONT – The minimum distance between the Street line and the Building setback line 

projected the full width of the Lot. Commonly, called “required front yard”.  
 
SETBACK, REAR – The minimum distance between the rear Lot line and the rear setback line projected 

the full width of the Lot. Commonly called “required rear yard”. 
 
SETBACK, SIDE – The minimum distance between the side Lot line and the side setback line projected 

from the front yard to the rear yard. Commonly called “required side yard”. 
 
SHORT TERM LODGING: Any dwelling unit or portion thereof that is available for use or is used for 

transient lodging, and where such lodging is provided for compensation for no more than 
thirty (30) consecutive days. 

 
SIGHT DISTANCE – An area of unobstructed vision measured at the centerline of the Cartway to an 

object one and one-half (1½) feet above the pavement, from a Height of three and one-

276



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 5 DEFINITIONS Page 180 of 192 

 

half (3½) feet and ten (10) feet from the edge of paving at the intersection. Sight distances 
shall be designed pursuant to Chapter 22, Subdivision and Land Development, of the 
Borough Code of Ordinances.  

 
SMALL WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY – A wireless communications facility that meets the 

following criteria: 
 
1. The wireless support Structure on which antenna facilities are mounted— 

 
(a) Is fifty (50) feet or less in Height, or  
 
(b) is no more than ten (10) percent taller than other adjacent structures, or  
 
(c) is not extended to a Height of more than fifty (50) feet or by more than 

ten (10) percent above its pre-existing Height as a result of the Collocation 
of new Antenna facilities; and 

 
2. Each Antenna associated with the deployment (excluding the accessory equipment) 

is no more than three cubic feet in volume; and 
 
3. All accessory equipment associated with the wireless support Structure (excluding 

antennas) is cumulatively no more than 28 cubic feet in volume. 
 
4. The wireless communications facility does not require antenna Structure registration 

under 47 CFR Section 17; 
 
5. The wireless communications facility is not located on Tribal lands, as defined under 

36 CFR 800.16(x); and 
 
6. The wireless communications facility does not result in human exposure to 

radiofrequency radiation in excess of the applicable safety standards specified in 
47 CFR 1.1307(b). 

 
SMALL WIRELESS FACILITIES DEPLOYMENT ACT – Act of Jun. 30, 2021, P.L. 232, No. 50. 
 
SPECIAL EXCEPTION USE – A use for which the Zoning Hearing Board may grant permission 

following a public hearing and findings of fact consistent with this chapter, provided that 
the use complies with the conditions and standards required by this Chapter. 

 
STREET – Any street, road, lane, court, cul-de-sac, public way, public square, alley, highway, or any 

other public place or way located in the Borough and as ordained or otherwise established 
for the use of the traveling public. 

 
STREET LINE (RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE) – A line defining the edge of a Street Right-of-Way and 

separating the Street from abutting property or Lots (see Figure 5.02). 
 
STRUCTURE – Any assembly of materials constructed or erected with a fixed location on the ground 

or attached to something having a fixed location on the ground, any portion of which is 
above the natural surface grade, including, but not limited to Buildings, sheds, cabins, 
manufactured houses and trailers, pavilions, pagodas, tents, kennels, swimming pools, 
dumpsters, fences, dams, culverts, roads, railroads, bridges, storage tanks, and signs.  

 

277



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 5 DEFINITIONS Page 181 of 192 

 

SUBSTANTIAL DAMAGE – Damage from any cause sustained by a structure whereby the cost of 
restoring the structure to its before-damaged condition would equal or exceed fifty (50) 
percent or more of the market value of the structure before the damage occurred. 

 
SUBSTANTIAL IMPROVEMENT – Any repair, reconstruction, or improvement of a Structure, the cost 

of which equals or exceeds fifty (50) percent of the fair market value of the Structure either 
(a) before the improvement or repair is started or (b) if the Structure has been damaged, 
and is being restored, before the damage occurred. For the purpose of this definition, 
“substantial improvement” is considered to occur when the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, 
floor, or other structural part of the Structure commences, whether or not that alteration 
affects the external dimensions of the Structure. 

 
TOTAL FLOOR AREA – The area of all floors in all Buildings measured to the outside of the exterior 

walls, excluding attics, basements, and open porches (measured in square feet). (Note: An 
“open porch” has a Roof but is not enclosed with screens or windows. Porches enclosed with 
screens or windows shall be counted toward Total Floor Area.) 

 
TOUR GUIDE – Any person who drives or operates a horse-drawn carriage on the streets of 

Gettysburg Borough or who acts or offers to act as a guide for hire through any part of the 
Borough who serves as an actor during a tour for hire. “Tour guide” as used in this Chapter 
does not include any person acting or offering to act as a guide for hire, or an actor during 
a tour for hire, when the tour is to be conducted solely on private real property. 

 
TRANSIENT LODGING – Lodging provided for compensation for periods of less than thirty (30) 

consecutive days. 
 
TEMPORARY USE – A use or Structure on improved or unimproved real estate, which is of 

impermanent nature, and is used for less than ninety (90) days in a calendar year. 
 
USE – The specific purpose for which land or a Building is designed, arranged, intended, or for 

which it is or may be occupied or maintained. The term "Permitted Use" or its equivalent 
shall not be deemed to include any Non-Conforming Use. 

 
USE, PERMITTED – Means any Use allowed by right within a Zoning District, subject to the restrictions 

applicable to that Zoning District, and that is not a Special Exception Use. 
 
USE, PRINCIPAL – The dominant purpose for which a Lot or Building is utilized. 
 
USE, TEMPORARY – See Temporary Use. 
 
VARIANCE – The permission granted by the Zoning Hearing Board following a Public Hearing that 

has been properly advertised as required by the Pennsylvania Municipalities Planning 
Code, as amended, for an adjustment to some regulation which, if strictly adhered to, would 
result in an unnecessary hardship and where the permission granted would not be contrary 
to the public interest, and would maintain the spirit and original intent of the Chapter. 

 
VEHICLE – Every device in, upon or by which any person or property is or may be transported or 

drawn upon a Street, except devices used exclusively upon rails or tracks. The term does 
not include a self-propelled wheelchair, or an electrical mobility device operated by and 
designed for the exclusive use of a person with a mobility-related disability. 

 
VEHICLE, ABANDONED – A Vehicle shall be presumed to be abandoned under any of the following 

circumstances, but the presumption is rebuttable by a preponderance of the evidence: 
 

278



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 5 DEFINITIONS Page 182 of 192 

 

1. The vehicle is physically inoperable and is left unattended on a Street or other 
public property for more than forty-eight (48) hours. 

 
2. The vehicle has remained illegally on a highway or other public property for a 

period of more than forty-eight (48) hours. 
 
3. The vehicle is left unattended on or along a highway or other public property for 

more than forty-eight (48) hours and does not bear all of the following: 
 
a. A valid registration plate. 
 
b. A current certificate of inspection. 
 
c. An ascertainable vehicle identification number. 
 

4. The vehicle has remained on private property without the consent of the owner or 
person in control of the property for more than twenty-four (24) hours. 

 
5. The vehicle has remained on the private property of a salvor for twenty (20) days. 
 
Vehicles and equipment used or to be used in construction or in the operation or maintenance 
of highways or public utility facilities, which are left in a manner which does not interfere 
with the normal movement of traffic, shall not be considered to be abandoned. 
 

VEHICLE, NONREPAIRABLE – An Abandoned Vehicle that is incapable of safe operation for use on 
roadways or highways and which has no resale value except as a source of parts or scrap 
only, a salvage vehicle issued a nonrepairable or non-rebuildable vehicle document by 
another state or a vehicle which a salvor or vehicle salvage dealer designates as a source 
for parts or scrap or which the owner irreversibly designates as a source for parts or scrap. 
Such vehicles may not be issued a certificate of title or certificate of salvage. 

 
 
YARD – An area between the permitted structures and the property lines (see Figure 6.02.8). 
 

 
Figure 6.02.8, Yards 

279



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

PART 5 DEFINITIONS Page 183 of 192 

 

 
 
VARIANCE – The permission granted by the Zoning Hearing Board following a Public Hearing that 

has been properly advertised as required by the Pennsylvania Municipalities Planning 
Code, as amended, for an adjustment to some regulation which, if strictly adhered to, would 
result in an unnecessary hardship and where the permission granted would not be contrary 
to the public interest, and would maintain the spirit and original intent of the Ordinance. 

 
YARD, FRONT – A yard nearest to the Street extending the full width of the lot, between the build-

to line and the front lot line. Also, see "Build-to Line." 
 
YARD, REAR – A yard extending the full width of the lot along the rear lot line and extending in 

depth from the rear lot line to the building setback line. 
 
YARD, SIDE – A yard extending the full depth of the lot along the side lot line and extending in 

width from such lot line to the Building Setback Line. 
 
ZERO-LOT-LINE DEVELOPMENT – A form of development where a building, usually a single-family 

detached or semidetached dwelling, is placed on a side lot line with no setback from that 
lot line and has only one side yard. 

 
ZONING – The designation of specified districts within the Township, reserving them for certain uses 

together with limitations on Lot size, heights of structures and other stipulated requirements. 
 
ZONING MAP – The Official Zoning Map of Gettysburg Borough, Adams County, Pennsylvania. 
 
ZONING OFFICER – The designated administrative officer who serves as the Zoning Officer for the 

Borough of Gettysburg and who is charged with the duty of enforcing the provisions of this 
Chapter. 

 
ZONING ORDINANCE – Chapter 27 of the Code of Ordinances of the Borough of Gettysburg. 
 

280



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Code, Chapter 27 

PART 5 DEFINITIONS Page 184 of 192 

EXHIBIT A – ZONING MAP 

 

 

281



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Code, Chapter 27 

PART 5 DEFINITIONS Page 185 of 192 

APPENDIX A – SMALL WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY DESIGN MANUAL 

282



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Code, Chapter 27 

APPENDIX A – SMALL WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY DESIGN MANUAL Page 186 of 192 

Small Wireless Communications 

Facility Design Manual 

283



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Code, Chapter 27 

APPENDIX A – SMALL WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY DESIGN MANUAL Page 187 of 192 

Section 1: Purpose and Intent 

The purpose of this Wireless Facilities Design Manual is to provide the Borough 

with uniform design and aesthetic standards regarding the placement of Small Wireless 

Facilities within the Right-of-Way consistent with the Borough’s obligation to promote the 

public health, safety, and welfare; to manage the Right-of-Way; and to ensure that the 

public’s use is not obstructed or disturbed by the use of the Right-of-Way for Small 

Wireless Facilities. The Borough recognizes the importance of wireless 

telecommunications facilities to provide high-quality communications and internet access 

services to residents and businesses within the Borough. The Borough also recognizes its 

obligation to comply with applicable federal and state laws regarding the placement of 

wireless telecommunications facilities in the Right-of-Way including, without limitation, 

the Telecommunications Act of 1996, 47 U.S.C. § 151, et seq., and Act 50 of 2021, 53 P.S. 

§§ 11704.1 – 11704.11.

Section 2: Definitions 

The definitions contained in Part 5 of the Gettysburg Borough Zoning Code, 

Chapter 27 of the Borough Code of Ordinances, are incorporated into this policy by 

reference as though fully set forth herein.  When not inconsistent with the context, words 

used in the present tense include the future tense, words in the plural include the singular, 

and words in the singular include the plural. 

Section 3: Aesthetic and Design Requirements for Small Wireless Facilities 

The following aesthetic and design requirements shall apply to any person who 

installs, operates, Modifies, or maintains a Small Wireless Facility in the Right-of-Way: 

284



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

APPENDIX A – SMALL WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY DESIGN MANUAL Page 188 of 192 

1. An Applicant and/or Permittee shall use all design techniques possible to minimize the 

visual impact of a Small Wireless Facility on the public during and after the installation, 

Modification, or repair of a Small Wireless Facility.   

2. Applicants and/or Permittees shall minimize the quantity and size of Accessory 

Equipment placed on Wireless Support Structures. Long and narrow Accessory 

Equipment, as opposed to wide and bulky Accessory Equipment, should be used. 

Accessory Equipment should be clustered together as much as possible and located 

toward the top of the Wireless Support Structure when possible.  

3. No Applicant and/or Permittee shall install or attach flashing lights or unnecessary, 

distracting, non-essential or poorly placed signage or stickers, unless required by 

Applicable Codes or agreed upon by the Borough, on any Small Wireless Facility, 

Accessory Equipment, or Wireless Support Structure.  

4. No Small Wireless Facility or Accessory Equipment shall have any exposed cables or 

wiring. All cables and wiring shall be concealed or contained within a Wireless Support 

Structure unless doing so is not Technically Feasible as determined by the Borough’s 

engineer. If the cables and wiring cannot be contained within the Wireless Support 

Structure, then all cables and wires shall be contained within a conduit that is flush 

mounted to the Wireless Support Structure. All conduits shall be of a color that matches 

the Wireless Support Structure to which the Small Wireless Facility is attached and be 

non-reflective unless otherwise agreed upon by the Permittee and Borough.   

5. Spools and/or coils of excess wires or cables shall not be stored on a Wireless Support 

Structure unless they are completely within the approved enclosures or conduits. 

285



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

APPENDIX A – SMALL WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY DESIGN MANUAL Page 189 of 192 

6. All cables and wiring shall be installed tautly and without excessive slack or extra cable 

storage on the Wireless Support Structure.  Extra wiring shall not be attached to any 

Wireless Support Structure. 

7. Exterior panel Antennas should not exceed the height of the Wireless Support 

Structure.  

8. Antennas and Accessory Equipment should not extend further than twenty (20) inches 

from the Wireless Support Structure.  

9. Applicants and/or Permittees shall avoid installing Small Wireless Facilities on 

Wireless Support Structures that are directly in front of dwelling units or businesses. 

Wireless Support Structures near Street corners, landscaped areas, or in Alleys shall 

instead be considered for installation first.  

10. Small Wireless Facilities and Accessory Equipment shall be painted with graffiti-

resistant paint which matches the Wireless Support Structure’s color and surroundings.  

11. Colors and materials for Small Wireless Facilities, Antennas, and Accessory 

Equipment shall be chosen to minimize visibility and be compatible with the 

surrounding environment. Muted colors, earth tones, and subdued hues, such as light 

green, brown, gray, or light blue, or a color that is more compatible with the 

surrounding architecture or environment only as approved by the Borough shall be 

used. Small Wireless Facilities, Antennas, and Accessory Equipment shall match the 

color of the Utility Pole or Municipal Pole that they are attached to if they are attached 

to such structure. 

12. Advertisements are prohibited on a Wireless Support Structure, Accessory Equipment, 

or Small Wireless Facility.  Likewise, all manufacturer decals, logos, and the like shall 

286



DRAFT Borough of Gettysburg Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 27 

APPENDIX A – SMALL WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY DESIGN MANUAL Page 190 of 192 

be removed or otherwise entirely concealed by the Applicant/Permittee from any 

Wireless Support Structure, Accessory Equipment, or Small Wireless Facility. 

13. If technically feasible, all Accessory Equipment shall be entirely contained or enclosed 

within a single cabinet which has the smallest physical dimensions possible.  

14. Any replacement Wireless Support Structure shall be placed as close as possible to the 

existing Wireless Support Structure that is being replaced.   

15. Any replacement Wireless Support Structure shall substantially conform to the material 

and design of the existing Wireless Support Structure or to the adjacent Wireless 

Support Structures located within the contiguous Right-of-Way.   

16. The height of any replacement Wireless Support Structure shall not extend more than 

10 feet above the height of the existing Wireless Support Structure. 

17. RESERVED. 

Section 4:  Updates 

This Wireless Facilities Design Manual may be updated from time-to-time by 

resolution of Borough Council. 

Section 5:  Limitations 

 Nothing contained in this Wireless Facilities Design Manual shall be deemed to restrict or 

otherwise limit the lawful exercise of the discretion of Borough staff in approving and 

issuing a Permit that deviates from the strict application of these standards where, in the 

sole and exclusive judgment of the Borough, circumstances so warrant. 

Section 6:  Effective Date 

This Wireless Facilities Design Manual shall be effective as of the date of the 

adoption of the enabling Resolution. 

287



0 0. 1 5 0. 3 0. 45 0. 60. 07
M i les

BOROUGH OF GETTYSBURG 
ZONING MAP

Version May 15, 2024

MIXED-USE DISTRICTS

RESIDENTIAL

LEGEND

PRESERVATION RESIDENTIAL (R-1A)

HISTORIC CORRIDOR NEIGHBORHOOD 
COMMERCIAL (NC-2)

LOW IMPACT NEIGHBORHOOD 
COMMERCIAL (NC-1)

MODERATE DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (R-2)

CIVIC INSTITUTION (CI)

GENERAL COMMERCIAL (C-1)

LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (R-1)

INDUSTRIAL (IND)

NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL (NC-3)

INSTITUTION (INS-1)

REVITALIZATION (R)

HEALTHCARE (HC)

OLD TOWN (OT)

SPECIAL DISTRICTS

OVERLAY
FLOODPLAIN (F)  

HISTORIC DISTRICT (HD)

288


	05202024_Planning-Commission-Agenda-FINAL
	DRAFT_PC-Minutues_04152024
	111
	2023.11.15 ZO Memo to PC SLD-230004 Welcome Center
	SLD#23 - 097 - Welcome Center - js
	2024-4-12 Welcome Center Land Development Plans
	Sheets and Views
	238384900_A-COVER
	238384900_A-DEMO PLAN
	238384900_A-SITE PLAN
	238384900_A-LANDSCAPING PLAN
	238384900_A-DETAILS


	222
	Memo to PC SLD-240001 05162024
	SLD#24 - 028 - Gettys Golf - js
	2024-5-14 Gettys Golf LLC Plan Review
	SLD-240001_Gettys-Golf-LLC_533-Steinwehr-Avenue_Combined-Materials
	23-135-A Steinwehr Mini Golf_24-03-29
	Sheets and Views
	C-1 COVER SHEET
	C-2 EXISTING CONDITIONS
	C-3 SITEPLAN
	C-4 GRADING & UTILITY PLAN
	C-5 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS
	LS-1 LANDSCAPE PLAN
	LT-1 LIGHTING PLAN
	ES-1 EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN
	ES-2 E&S NOTES & DETAILS


	2024-03-27 Steinwehr Mini-Golf PCSWM Report
	Microsoft Word - PCSWM report
	Microsoft Word - PCSWM report
	QUAD MAP
	AERIAL MAP
	Custom Soil Resource Report for Adams County, Pennsylvania
	Cover
	Preface
	Contents
	How Soil Surveys Are Made
	Soil Map
	Soil Map
	Legend
	Map Unit Legend
	Map Unit Descriptions
	Adams County, Pennsylvania
	Uc—Urban land



	Soil Information for All Uses
	Suitabilities and Limitations for Use
	Building Site Development
	Shallow Excavations



	References

	Microsoft Word - PCSWM report

	Applications & Modification Request

	333
	24-0193-001-LD Plan Set
	24-0193-001-01-Cover-C-100
	24-0193-001-01-Cover-C-101
	24-0193-001-02-Existing Con Plan-C-200
	24-0193-001-02-Existing Con Plan-C-201
	24-0193-001-03-Site Plan-C-300

	444
	ZHB-240001_Gettysburg-Welcome-Center_ZO-memo-to-PC
	ZHB-240001_Application
	3656_Gettysburg Welcome Center_Elevations_4-24-2024
	A2.1 - OVERALL EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

	Gettysburg Welcome Center - Baltimore Street Rendering
	555
	Gettysburg Borough Draft ZO_05152024
	Gettysburg_Future Zoning Map_04.30.24_Floodplain



